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REVISION TO THE NEW MEXICO STATE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

PERTAINING TO 20 NMAC 11.02 NMAC, PERMIT FEES (AKA 20.11.2 NMAC, Fees)

April 2001 / April 2011

SIP COMPLETENESS CHECKLIST
for regular processing
(per 40 CFR 51 Appendix V)

2.1 Administrative Materials

()

(b)

(©)

A formal letter of submittal from the Governor or his designee, requesting EPA
approval of the plan or revision thereof (hereafter “the plan”).

_X_YES __NO__NIA

This SIP revision submission contains a formal transmittal letter from the Governor
of the State of New Mexico.

Evidence that the State has adopted the plan in the State code or body of regulations;
or issued the permit, order, consent agreement (hereafter “document”) in final form.
That evidence shall include the date of adoption or final issuance as well as the
effective date of the plan, if different from the adoption/issuance date.

_X_YES __NO__NIA

The regulation, 20 NMAC 11.02, Permit Fees, was repealed and replaced by 20.11.2
NMAC, Permit Fees on April 18, 2001 at the regular meeting of the Albuquerque-
Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board (AQCB), following a public hearing
held on February 14, 2001. The regulation was filed with the New Mexico State
Records Center (NMSRC) on May 16, 2001 and became effective on July 1, 2001.
Attachment A is a copy of the transmittals for the repeal and replacement of the rule,
as well as the replacement rule itself as filed with the State Records Center, and
signed by AQCB Chairman Randy Sanchez. The date stamp at the top of the pages
indicates the date of filing.

Evidence that the State has the necessary legal authority under State law to adopt and
implement the plan.

_X_YES _ NO__NA
The New Mexico Air Quality Control Act provides for regulation at 74-2-5.1

NMSA 1978, Duties and powers of the department and the local agency; and for
plan revisions at 74-2-5.2 NMSA 1978, State air pollution control agency;





(d)

()

(f)

(9)

specific duties and powers of the department. See:
http://www.conwaygreene.com/nmsu/lpext.dlI?f=templates&fn=main-hit-
h.htm&2.0

A copy of the actual regulation, or document submitted for approval and
incorporation by reference into the plan, including indication of the changes made to
the existing approved plan, where applicable. The submittal shall be a copy of the
official State regulation/document signed, stamped, dated by the appropriate State
official indicating that it is fully enforceable by the State. The effective date of the
regulation/document shall, whenever possible, be indicated in the document itself.

_X_YES __ _NO__ N/A

A copy of the actual regulation submitted for approval and incorporation by
reference into the plan is shown in Attachment A. Attachment A contains the
replacement rule and transmittal forms indicating that the rule has been repealed
and replaced, signed, stamped and dated by the appropriate officials, indicating that
it is fully enforceable. This replacement rule was published in the New Mexico
Register on May 31, 2001 (Volume XII, Issue Number 10), See Attachment D.

Evidence that the State followed all of the procedural requirements of the State's
laws and constitution in conducting and completing the adoption/issuance of the
plan.

_X_YES __NO__NA

The New Mexico Air Quality Control Act 74-2-6C requires 30-day notice. See Staff
Exhibits 1 & #2 in Attachment B for evidence that notices were published in the local
newspaper and the New Mexico Register.

Evidence that public notice was given of the proposed change consistent with
procedures approved by EPA,; including the date of publication of such notice.

_X_YES _ _NO__NIA

See Staff Exhibits #1 & #2 in Attachment B. These provide evidence that notices
were published in the local newspaper and the New Mexico Register. In addition,
notice was also provided by mail. The New Mexico Air Quality Control Act at 74-2-
6C NMSA 1978, Adoption of regulations; notice and hearings requires a 30-day
notice.

Certification that public hearing(s) were held in accordance with the information

provided in the public notice and the State's laws and constitution, if applicable.



http://www.conwaygreene.com/nmsu/lpext.dll?f=templates&fn=main-hit-h.htm&2.0

http://www.conwaygreene.com/nmsu/lpext.dll?f=templates&fn=main-hit-h.htm&2.0



(h)

_X_YES __ _NO__ N/A

The opening statement for the February 14, 2001, public hearing includes
information on the notice of public hearing and instructions on how the hearing will
be conducted. See certified hearing record transcript in Attachment C.

Compilation of public comments and the State's response thereto.

_ X _YES __ NO__NA

See Attachment B which contains: Staff Exhibits # 4, #6, #7, and #9 for public
comment and the hearing transcript shown as Attachment C, for State’s response

thereto. See Staff Exhibits #5 & #8 for NOIs filed with the Department. See also
Rio Grande Portland Cement Exhibits 1 & 2, which were admitted at the hearing.

2.2 Technical Support

(a)

(b)

()

Identification of all regulated pollutants affected by the plan.

YES ___NO_X_N/A
The amended regulation only affects the fees paid in order to emit pollutants, but
does not affect emission levels directly.

Identification of the locations of affected sources including the EPA attainment/
nonattainment designation of the locations and the status of the attainment plan for
the affected area(s).

_X_YES __ _NO__NA

The regulation 20.11.2 NMAC, Fees, sets forth applicable fees to be paid for certain
sources of air pollution by the regulated community within Bernalillo County, New
Mexico. Bernalillo County is currently designated as an attainment area for all
criteria air pollutants except PMyo. Bernalillo County is classified as unclassifiable
for PMjo and Bernalillo County is under a Limited Maintenance Plan for carbon
monoxide.

Quantification of the changes in plan-allowable emissions from the affected sources;
estimates of changes in current actual emissions from affected sources or, where
appropriate, quantification of changes in actual emissions from affected sources
through calculations of the differences between certain baseline levels and allowable
emissions anticipated as a result of the revision.





(d)

()

(f)

(9)

(h)

YES __ NO _X_NIA
The amended regulation only affects the fees paid in order to emit pollutants, but
does not affect emission levels directly.

The State's demonstration that the national ambient air quality standards, prevention
of significant deterioration (PSD) increments, reasonable further progress
demonstration, and visibility, as applicable, are protected if the plan is approved and
implemented. For all requests to redesignate an area to attainment for a national
primary ambient air quality standard, under Section 107 of the Act, a revision must
be submitted to provide for the maintenance of the national primary ambient air
quality standards for at least 10 years as required by section 175A of the Act.

___YES __NO_X__N/A

This plan revision does not pertain to redesignating an area to attainment for a
national primary ambient air quality standard. Nor does it pertain to prevention of
significant deterioration (PSD) increments and demonstrations of reasonable further
progress. The amended regulation only affects the fees paid in order to emit
pollutants, but does not affect emission levels directly.

Modeling information required to support the proposed revision, including input
data, output data, models used, justification of model selections, ambient monitoring
data used, meteorological data used, justification for use of offsite data (where used),
modes of models used, assumptions, and other information relevant to the
determination of adequacy of the modeling analysis.

YES NO X_N/A

Evidence, where necessary, that emission limitations are based on continuous
emission reduction technology.

YES NO _X_N/A

Evidence that the plan contains emission limitations, work practice standards and
record keeping/reporting requirements, where necessary, to ensure emission levels.

YES NO X_ N/A

Compliance/enforcement strategies, including how compliance will be determined in
practice.
__YES __NO X __N/A

Q) Special economic and technical justification required by any applicable EPA

4





policies, or an explanation of why such justifications are not necessary.

YES NO _X_NI/A

No special economic and technical justifications required by other applicable EPA
policies are necessary because no such policies are relevant in this case.






April 1, 2011

Dr. Alfredo Armendariz, Regional Administrator
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region VI
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200

Dallas, TX 75202-2733

Subject: Request for Approval of Revision to the State Implementation Plan for
Air Quality, for 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees (AKA Fees)

Dear Dr. Armendariz,

I am writing to request approval of the attached documentation which will serve as the basis
for a revision to the New Mexico State Implementation Plan for air quality (SIP).
Specifically, I am submitting documentation for the proposed repeal of the regulation, 20
NMAC 11.02 and replacement by 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees (AKA Fees), which applies to
Bernalillo County, New Mexico, and was adopted in 2001.

The Albuquerque - Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board (Air Board) repealed 20
NMAC 11.02 Permit Fees and replaced it with 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees, on April 18, 2001,
after a public comment period and corresponding public hearing held on February 14, 2001.
The regulation was filed with the New Mexico State Records Center (NMSRC) on May 16,
2001 and became effective on July 1, 2001. We believe that the submitted materials provide
adequate documentation to support the requested SIP revision.

The reasons for submitting an historical rule amendment as a revision to the SIP are as
follows. Subsequent to adoption of the SIP revision before you, the Air Board adopted
amendments to 20.11.2 NMAC on 1/14/04 regarding fees necessary in order to operate the
fugitive dust program [20.11.20 NMAC] as well as other changes; these amendments were
filed on 1/28/04, and became locally effective on 3/1/04. On 9/7/04 a request for a SIP
revision was submitted to EPA under the Governor’s signature. But before EPA finalized
their approval for this revision, the Albuquerque Air Quality Division (AQD) had already
begun work on the next revision. So EPA’s review was postponed until the next SIP revision
request was sent to them. The Air Board adopted this second set of amendments on
11/8/06, which reduced the hearing appeal fee from $1000.00 to $125.00. These





amendments were filed on 11/15/06, and became effective locally on 12/16/06. A request
for a SIP revision was submitted to EPA under the Governot’s signature on 2/5/07.

20.11.2 NMAC has been amended numerous times since it was first adopted in 1977, with
the penultimate hearing before the aforementioned 2004 and 2006 hearings, being held on
2/14/01. The Air Board adopted this repeal and replacement on 4/18/01. ‘This
replacement rule was filed on 5/16/01, and became effective locally on 7/1/01. The new
rule addressed permit fees, potential to emit, State air toxics, and Title V. EPA reviewed
these changes but there is no record of the 2001 amendment ever being submitted to EPA
for inclusion into the SIP. Thus, EPA has not approved a SIP revision to include any of the
amendments made to 20.11.2 NMAC in the intervening period since their initial approval in
the Federal Register on April 10, 1980 [Vol. 45 No. 71, 24460-69].

Since the 20.11.2 NMAC SIP has not been revised at EPA since 1980, the locally effective
version is completely different from that approved in the SIP. This raises two issues. First,
the 2004 & 2006 (2007) SIP revisions will need to be compared to a “baseline” rule such as
the 5/16/2001 replacement rule, since the 1980 rule is not compatable. Secondly, since the
2004, and 2006 (2007) amendments did not amend/update the language currently found in
20.11.2 NMAC, at Sections: 1, Issuing Agency; 4, Duration; 5, Effective Date, and 8, Savings Clause,
these sections will need to be updated in the SIP as well. This will be done when the 2004 &
2006 (2007) SIP revisions are approved; or if the most recent amendments that were
adopted on 12/8/2010, filed 12/10/2010, effective 1/10/2011, and submitted to EPA on
12/27/2010, are approved in the same federal register notice as the 2004 & 2006 (2007)
revisions, then the update will take place at that time.





To facilitate your review and processing, the following materials are enclosed:

1) SIP Completeness Checklist pursuant to 40 CFR 51;

2) Hearing record, including transcript and exhibits;

3) Comments and responses;

4) The proposed SIP revision for 20.11.2 NMAC, Perwmit Fees;
adopted by the AQCB; and

5) Other supporting documentation.

Your favorable consideration of this request is appreciated. If you have any questions,
please contact Mary Lou Leonard, Director of the Albuquerque Environmental Health
Department (EHD), at (505) 768-2631.

Sincerely,

Susana Martinez
Governor
State of New Mexico

cc: Mary Lou Leonard, Director, Albuquerque EHD
Mary Uhl, Chief, Air Quality Bureau, NM Environment Department
Chair, AQCB
Margaret Nieto, Control Strategies Section Supervisor, AQD

Enclosures






AIR QUALITY CONTROL BOARD Multi-Page™ FEBRUARY 14, 2001

1 ALBUQUERQUE/BERNALILLO COUNTY 1 TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
AIR QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
2 2 THE HEARING OFFICER: If everybody can
3 3 take a geat, we’ll go ahead and begin.
4 4 Okay. We are going to begin. For the
3 5 record, this public hearing is being held on
& & Wednesday, February l4th, 2001 in the council
7 7 commission chambers at One Civie Plaza, the
E TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS 8 City/County Building in Albuguerque, New Mexico. The
February 14, 2001
9 5:15 p.m. 9 time i3 5:15 p.m.
COUNCIL CHAMBERS
10 Cne Civic Plaza, NW 10 This is a hearing of the
Albuquerque, NM 87102
11 11 Albuquerque/Bernalilleo County Air Quality Control
12 12 Board, also known as the Air Board or Board, to
13 13 consider the proposed VPO and replacement of Section
14 14 20.11.2 HMAC, New Mexico Administrative Code, permit
15 15 fees, alsc Xnown as part 2 or regulation 2.
16 16 My name is Arthur Olona. I am a former
17 17 member of the Albugquerque/Bernalille County Air
18 18 Quality Control Board and I will be the hearing
19 19 officer for this hearing.
20 20 I am also an attorney licensed to practice in
21 21 the state of New Mexico. And I note for the record
22 REPORTED BY: DENISE KOPAM, NM CCR #124 22 that there are three members of the Air Board present
Paul Baca Professional Court Reporters
23 500 Fourth Street, NW, Suite 10§ 23 at the public hearing this evening, Mr. Paul
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102
24 24 Silverman, Ms. Karen Wentworth and Dr. Karen Mulloy.
25 25 The court reporter tonight is Denise Kopan
Page 1
Page 3
1 APPEARANCES 1 representing the firm of Paul Baca Professional Court
2 THE HEARING OFFICER: MR. ARTHUR G. OLONA 2 Reporters. Anyone who wishes to obtain a transcript
MR. PAUL SILVERMAN, COUNTY
3 MS. KAREN WENTWORTH, CITY 3 of this hearing may order a transcript from that
DR. STEPHEN PILON, CITY
4 M5. JEANNE BASSETT, CITY 4 firm.
DR. KAREN MULLOY, CITY
5 5 The Air Board hearings do not follow the
For the City of Albuguerque Environmental
6 Health Department: & rules of evidence as used in the courts; however, I
7 MR, MICHAEL D. SMITH 7 will limit testimony which is irrelevant or repeats
MR. ANGEL MARTINEZ, JR.
8 P.O. Box 1293 8 testimony already given.
Albuquerque, NM 87103
9 9 The decision regarding whether testimony is
16 10 irrelevant or repetitious will be made by me as the
11 il hearing officer. I will also rule on whether evidence
12 12 or exhibite may be admitted into the record and on any
13 13 motions or objections made.
14 14 We will begin the hearing with the testimony
1s INDEX 15 of the proponent, the Albuquerque Environmental Health
PAGE
16 16 Department Air Quality Division, who will testify
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS 3
17 17 about the proposed VPO and replacement of part 2.
REPORTER’S CERTIFICATE 173
18 18 Next, additional proponents, people who are
19 19 in favor of the proposed VPO and replacement, will
20 20 have an oppertunity to testify. After that, the
21 21 oppenents will have an opportunity to testify.
22 22 Finally, any interested parties will have an
23 23 opportunity te testify.
24 24 Bach category will be heard {n the same order
25 25 as pecple signed up to testify. Based on the number
Page 2
Page 4

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS Page 1 - Page 4






AIR QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
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FEBRUARY 14, 2001

i of people who wish to testify tenight, ! may limit the 1 Environmental He Department may begin.
2 amount of time each person may testify. If you want 2 1 have besn reques ;, Mr. Smith, by Mr
3 to testify and have not signed up, please do so 3 Silverman, pecause he has a commitment in about less
4 immediately. The sign-up sheet is located in the back 4 than an hour, if you could do your presentation in 15
3 of the room. 5 minutes or 80 0 we can get to the rest of the
3 Everyone who testifies will be sworrn in by [ testimony, is that possible?
7 the court reporter before giving testimony. The 7 MR, SMITH: I timed 1t at about 45
g witnesses must identify themselves for the record. g minutes.
89 Each witness must state his or her name, address, if g THE HEARING OFFICER: Your entire
io they represent someons or an organization, and who 10 presentation?
11 that person or organization is. 11 MR. SMITH: Yes.
12 After each witness has testified, the Air 12 MR. SILVERMAN: At 45 minutes?
13 Board members may question the witness. After the Air 13 THE HEARING OFFICER: Well, let’s do the
14 Board has had an opportunity to ask the witness 14 best we can. This is a public hearing.
15 questions, I will alleow any interested person or party 15 ALl right. You may begin. One second.
16 to agk the witness questions. 18 Ms. Kearny?
17 The questions may be related to the testimony 17 M5. KEARNY: Adelia Kearny with the city
18 just given by the witness. A person who is asking a 18 attorney’s office. T did want to make it clear that
19 question does not have to be sworn in, but the person 18 because I have been associated with the drafting of
20 whe is asking a question cannot turn the gquestion into 20 this regulation that I'11 not be advising the Air
21 testimony of his or her own. You have an opportunity 21 Board, but as you know, Mr. Olona, from the ordinances
22 to testify later. 22 when you were a Board member, we cannot have the
23 Please beware, each statement you make may be 23 hearing without a guorum, but everyone who is a member
24 subject to examination by myself or an Air Board 24 who chooses to consider and vote on that at a later
28 member. Immediately after this hearing is closed 25 time will have to read the transcript and the
Page 5 Page 7
1 tonight, if there is a quorum, the Alr Board will hold 1 exhibits, so Mr. Silverman has to leave, if he wants
2 its regular monthly meeting. 2 to vote on this, will have to review the remainder of
3 Before we proceed with the hearing, would all 3 the record.
4 people present piease sign the separate attendance 4 MR. SILVERMAN: I understand that, Ms.
5 sheet, sign-in sheet, whether or not they wish to N Kearny, but I can read the proposal for myself, what I
& testify, and, again, the way this hearing is going to [ cannot do is hear the testimony of the general public,
7 operate, I will first allow the proponents, the City 7 and I’d rather spend my time here listening to what
g of Albuquerque, to proceed and any other individual 2 the public has to say rather than somebody read me a
g who may wish to testify on behalf of the proposed 8 45~page document that I can read on my own, $o maybe
10 requlation. 10 what I might do is make a proposal that we take
11 After that, any person or party who opposes 11 testimony from the public first and let staff make
12 the regulation may then testify, and after that, any 12 their presentation last.
13 person Interested or otherwise may testify. 13 MS. KEARNY: I understand that.
14 1 am the hearing officer in this case, I do 14 MR. SMITH: For the purpose of the
15 not vote or make any decision on this matter. My role 15 hearing, I do feel it’s important to read it into the
16 is strictly to conduct this hearing. The other thing 16 record, and taking testimony prior to my testimony
17 I want to mention befcre we begin is that I have been 17 simply does not make any sense.
i8 informed by the city that after the conclusion of this 18 MR. SILVERMAN: Then I would make the
19 hearing, the record will remain open for two weeks, 19 request that staff make the presentation in 20
2G until February 26th, 2001, 5:00 p.m., so any 20 minutes.
21 individual or organization or otherwise who wishes to 21 THE HEARING OFFICER: I really can’t
22 submit additional evidence and/or testimony has an 22 limit any relevant testimony. The problem I have with
23 additional two weeks and must submit it to Mr. Smith 23 that, Mr. Silverman, in falrness, is that at a public
24 at the City of Albuquerque. 24 hearing, there are people from the public who may want
23 Okay. The staff of the City of Albuquerque 25 to address specific concerns that the clty is
Page 6 Page 8
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presenting, and 1 think there could be a problem down

-

contaminan involved.®

4 the line 1f Mr. Smith and the City of Albuguerque’s 2 Also, when considering a new regulation as
3 tegtimony -~ 3 staff, we must provide you with substantial evidence
4 MR. SILVERMAN: That’s fine. Let’s move 4 te support a new requlation or amendment to satisfy
5 forward, 5 that regquirement, and to meet the requirement of the
] THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Mr. Smith, & Hew Mexico Alr Quality Control Act, we are having this
7 you may proceed, Please ralse your right hand and be 7 hearing tonight to hear testimony from the staff and
8 wOrn. 8 publ concerning this regulation to provide you with
g MICHAEL D. SMITH E] the information you need to make an informed decision.
10 after having been first duly sworn under oath, ic In tonight’s hearing, I will make every
11 testified as follows: 11 effort vo aveld using acronyms without first defining
12 THE HEARING OFFICER: Would you please 12 the term. If I should use a term or phrase that you
13 state your name. i3 de not understand, please interrupt me and I will
14 MR. SMITH: My name is Michael D. Smith, 14 explain the word or phrase.
15 I am with the City of Albuquerque Air Quality 15 As required by the New Mexico Alr Quality
16 Division. ie Control Act, the division must provide public notice
17 THE HEARING OFFICER: Please proceed, 17 of hearing at least 30 days prior to hearing. To meet
18 MR. SMITH: Good evening, Mr. Olona, 18 this requirement, the division published notice of
19 members of the board. My name, again, is Mike Smith 19 tonight’s hearing in New Mexico State Register on
20 with the Environmental Health Department. I am an 20 Decemper 29th, 2000, Staff Exhibit Number 1, and in
21 environmental health scientist responsible for 21 the Albuguerque Journal on January 7th, 2001, Staff
22 researching and revising air gquality rules and 22 Exhibit Number 2.
23 regulations. 23 In addition, the notice of hearing was posted
24 I nave been with the department for more than 24 in city hall as required by Clty of Albugquerque
25 10 years and worked as an air quality inspector, 25 ordinance Section 2-6-1-4(C)(2)(a). Also, as required
Page 9 Page 11
i permit writer and supervisor. 1 by the New Mexico Air Quality Control Act, the
2 I have a bachelor of geological science 2 division mailed the notice of hearing to all persons
3 degree from New Mexico State University and have 3 who have made written request to receive advance
4 worked in resource law enforcement for 20 years at the 4 notice of hearings and to every company with a permit
$ federal, state and local levels. 5 and registration lssued by the department and to
6 Before I start my testimony, I would like to 6 contractors’ lissued surface disturbance permits
7 explain, for the benefit of the newer board members, 7 pursuant te 20.11.20, NMAC airborne particulate
8 some of the requirements of the New Mexico Air Quality 8 matter. This mailing list is Staff Exhibit Number 3.
9 Control Act important to tonight’s hearing. 9 All letters sent were postdated January 10th
10 The basic duty of the local Air Quality Board 10 or 1lth, 2001. Staff believes we have met and
11 is to "prevent and abate air pollution.® To that end, 11 exceeded the public notice requirements for this
12 the board is required to adopt, promulgate, publish 12 hearing. As a result of this notice, the department
13 and repeal regulations consistent with the Air Quality 13 has received seven written comments or requests to
14 Control Act. 14 testify. These are marked as Staff Exhibits Numbers 4
15 When considering new regulations or 15 through 9.
16 amendments, the board must take into account the 16 Staff Exhibit Number 10 is a copy of our
17 “"character and degree of injury to or interference 17 current regulation. Staff Exhibit Number 11 is a copy
18 with health, welfare, visibility and property;" take 18 of the proposed regulation with minor editorial
19 in account "the public interest, including social and 19 changes made on January 18th, 2001, with the proposed
20 economic value of the sources and subjects of air 20 floor amendments we wish to introduce tonight. I will
21 contaminant;" and, finally, take in account the 21 be referring to this exhibit during my testimony.
22 “technical practicability and economic reasonableness 22 Staff Exhibit Number 12 is a copy of my
23 of reducing or eliminating air contaminants from the 23 testimony for the record. Finally, Staff Exhibit
24 sources involved and previous experience with 24 Numbers 14 and 15 are fee comparison tables I will
25 equipment and methods available to control the air 25 refer to later in my testimony.
Page 10 Page 12
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1 Mr. Hearing Officer, at this time I would 1 First, page 1, line 8, Section 20.11.2.2

2 like to introduce these exhibits into the record. 2 outlines the sources that will be affected by this

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: Staff Exhibits 1 3 requlation. The only major change to this section

4 through 14 are hersby admitted into the record. 4 from the current regulation is the requirement that

5 MR. SMITH: My testimony toenight is to 5 persons requesting a surface disturbance permit

6 explain the changes we propose to 20.1.2 NMAC permit 3 pursuant to 20.11.20 NMAC, airborne particulate

7 fees, the purpuse of the fee regulation, how the 7 matter, shall be regquired to pay a filing and

8 permit fee regqulation will be implemented and explain 2 inspection fee to cover the direct and indirect costs
9 the rationdle for the proposed fee scheduling. 9 of administering and enforcing the dust control

10 Following my testimony, Mr. Angel Martinez, 10 program, which will pe discussed later in my

13 division manager, will discuss issues gpecific to the i1 testimony.

12 division’s budget. Why do we have fee requlation in 12 Page Z, line 11, Section 20.11.2.6,

13 the first place? 13 objectives, outlines the objective of the regulation
14 As reguired by New Mexico Air Quality Control 14 and states a statutory requirement for establishing

1% Act, 74-2-7 NMSA, and the Joint Alr Quality Control 15 permit fees

16 Board ordinances, the board is required to estaplish a 16 Starting on page 3, line 1, Section

17 schedule of construction fees sufficient to cover the 17 20.11.2.7, definitions, list the definitions that will
18 reasonable cost of reviewing and acting upon any i8 be used in this part. The division is¢ adding several
i9 application for a permit, including the costs of 19 new definitions that will be used to implement the fee
20 implementing and enforcing the terms of any permit, 20 program.
21 excluding the cost of any court costs or other cost 21 The first new definition is found on page 3,
22 asgociqted with an enforcement action. 22 iine 21, "potential to emit," which defines the method
23 In addition, the poard is reguired te 23 the division uses to determine the source’s potential
24 egtablish a schedule of emission fees consistent with 24 emissions, This definition has been crafted to be
25 the provisions of Section 50(B) (3) of the federal 25 similar to the federal definition for regulatory

Page 13 Page 15

1 Clean Alr Act that requires any alr contaminants 1 consistency. This definition will benefit sources

2 source that emits 100 tons or more per year of any 2 since it takes in account controls that are integrail

3 regulated air pollutant or 10 tons per year of any 3 to the producticn process.

4 single hazardous air pollutant or 25 tons per year of 4 At this time, staff would like to present the
3 combined hazardous air pollutants, to pay annual 3 following floor amendments to add several new

6 emission fees sufficient to cover the direct and & definitions teo this section.

7 indirect costs of a federally approved major source 7 The first new definition is on page 4, line

g permitting program. ] 3, "qualified small business,"” which shall mean &

9 With their regulation, the division is 9 business that has 100 or fewer emplioyees; is a small
10 establishing new elements for a minor source operating 10 business concern as defired by the federal Small

11 permit program requiring all sources with a permit or 11 Business Act; does not emit more than 50 tons per year
12 registration with the division to pay annual emission 12 of any regulated pollutant or 75 tons per year of all
13 fees sufficient to cover the direct and indirect costs 13 regulated air pollutants; and is not a major source of
14 of ongoing inspection and compliance activities. 14 hazardous air pollutants.

15 This regulation also establishes fees to 15 This definition is consistent with the small
16 cover the direct and indirect costs of administering 16 business stationary scurce technical and environmental
17 and enforcing the asbestos and dust control programs 17 compliance assistance program approved by the board on
18 required by board regulation. 18 October 7, 1982. The staff is proposing that

19 At this time, please refer to Staff Exhibit 19 qualified small businesses may be eligible for reduced
20 Number 11, the proposed fee regulation with floor 20 permit and emission fees reguired by this part.
21 amendments . 21 The second new definition we wish to propose
22 Since this is a new regulation and staff is 22 is on page 4, e 22, "state air toxic review," which
23 proposing to repeal the current regulation, I'm going 23 shall mean a case-by-case permit application review of
24 to discuss the major elements of the proposed 24 the potential emissions of air toxins listed in state
25 regulation and proposed four amendments. 25 regulation 20.2.72 NMAC, Subsection IV. This

Page 14 Page 16
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1 definition hasg been added s8¢ the division can 1 emit may do so through the provisions of NMAC,
2 establish an appropriate review fee for toxie air 2 authority €o construct. Annual permit fees will also
3 pollutants. 3 be sent directly to the department’s finance section.
4 Depending on the source’s potential to emit a 4 Tnis section alse requires that any person
5 toxiec air pollutant, a permit review becomes more 5 submitting an application for a surface disturbance
[ complicated and may require additional research and 6 permit or notifying the department of the removal of
7 alr disperslon modeling; increasing staff time and 7 asbestos-containing material, purauant to 20.11.64
g effort, justifying the additional fee. g NMAC, emission standards for hazardous air pollutants,
9 The last definition the division wishes to 3 for stationary sources shall also be required to pay
ie add is “stationary source with de minimus emissions,® 10 411 fees due at the time of application.
11 which means a source with a potential to emit less 11 To ensure compliance with this part
12 than five tons per year of any requlated air 12 subsection G, page 6, line 22, states that no source
13 pollutant, excluding hazardous air pollutants; less 13 will be in compliance with its permit unless all
14 than two tons per year of any hazardous air pollutant; 14 applicable fees ars paid as required by this part
15 five tons or less of any combination of hazardous air 15 As part of an lnspection or annual compliance
16 pollutants; or 20 percent of any lesser threshold per 16 statament, gources must demonstrate that all
17 year for a single hazardous air pollutant establiszhed 17 applicable permit fees have been paid.
18 by the Environmental Protection Agency by rule. 18 Starting on page 7, line 5, Bection
18 This definition establishes the emission 19 20.,311.2.12 authority to construct permit fees:; fee
20 limit the division will use to determine the 20 caleulations and procedures describes the methods and
21 applicability of a gource in paying permit or emission 21 procedures used te determine the permit fee reguired
22 fees. This definition is not intended to exempt 22 to process an authority-to-construct permit
23 sources Ifrom this regulation or any other board 23 application.
24 regulation. Current and future regulations may 24 The division intends to stay with an
25 require sources that meet minimum limits established 25 emission-based fee schedule in determining permit
Page 17 Page 19
1 by this definition to obtain permits and payee i fees, that is, the more you potentially pollute, the
2 emission fees, such as dry cleaners and other 2 higher the fee.
3 hazardous pollutant sources that are specifically 3 When determining the application fee, the
4 regulated. 4 applicant must determine the potential to emit of all
5 Starting on page 5, line 21, Section 5 requlated fee pollutants and emissions. This
& 20.11.2.1 are the general provisions for this & procedure, along with the increased application fees,
7 regulation. A major change from the current 7 generally will mean higher application fees to the
] regulation is the requirement to pay all feeg at the 8 applicant.
g time of application. g The division belleves these increased fees
10 Currently, staff invoices the applicants for 10 are justified since the fee not only pays for the
11 any fees due after the application is processed. By 11 permit review process, but includes initial baseline
1z collecting fees at the time of application, not only 12 inspections, performance testing review, EPA reporting
13 is the division reducing the administrative burden on 13 and the source’s annual emission fee until the next
14 the staff, but streamlines the review process by 14 inveice cycle.
15 having the complete application package submitted to 15 In addition to the emission-based fees,
16 the division for review. 16 sources that must comply with federal performance
17 All permit fees will be required to be sent 17 standards or major source review programs shall be
18 or delivered directly to the Eavironmental Health 18 required to pay an additional fee, depending on the
19 Department’s finance section prior to the application 18 federal program being reviewed.
20 being submitted to the division. 20 Federal programs include new source
21 This process will ensure all fees are 21 performance standards, hazardous air pollutants
22 deposited into the correct air quality accounts. 22 standards and federal major source review programs
23 Subsection B requires all sources to pay an annual 23 such as prevention of significant deterioration,
24 emission fee based on the source’s potential to emit. 24 nonattainment area permitting and acid rain.
25 Sources wishing to reduce their potential to 25 Fees to modify an existing permit will also
Page 18 Page 20
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1 e emission based in determining 1f the modification 1 MR. SMITH: That particular page 8 or 9
2 is maltor or minor modifications that trigger a federal 2 may be paged a tittle bit different, but the same
3 review program or require an air toxle review will pay 3 material 1z there.
4 the additional federal program and air toxic review 4 MR, SILVERMAN: It would pe page 7 in
5 tees, but only for the emission unit subject to the 5 what was sent oul, 43 best ag 1 can tell.
3 requirement. 6 THE HEARING OFFICER: Before you
7 Page £, line 3, paragraph 7, cutlines an 7 proceed, Mr. Smith, I just want to state in the record
8 example of an emigsion-based fes with an additional 8 that since the beginning of your testimony, two
a tederal program review fee added. ] additional air guality members, Dr. Steve Pilon and
16 MR. BILVERMAN: Excuse me, Mr. Smith, my 10 Ms. Jeanne Bassett, arrived and are attending.
11 package doesn’t have page 8, 11 Please proceed.
iz MS. BASSETT: [ don’t think any of the iz MR. BMITH: Thank you. At this time,
13 packetz do. 13 staff would like to offer the following floor
14 MR, STLVERMAN: It was included in what 14 amendments, and it’z not on page 8.
15 you made out, though. 15 Backing up te page 7, line 6, Section
16 MR, SMITH: I'm sorry, I did have 16 20.11.12, Sub A, delete the word "reserved" and add
17 problems with the copler today, and I can make coples 17 Yaour ing for a general permit pursuant to
18 if you would like to have that. Mr. Olona has the 18 20.11.41 NMAC, authority to construct, shall pay the
14 official recerd and if you would make sure it’sg in 19 applicable fee found in Subsection 18 of this part."
20 that. 20 THE HEARING OFFICER: Excuse me. Ig
21 THE HEARING OFFICER: That's correct. I 21 that in Exhibit 117
22 just want to make sure you are referring to your floor 22 MR. SMITH: That’s in Exhibit 11.
23 exhibit now. 23 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay.
24 MR, SMITH: Right. 24 MR. SMITH: And you are on page 7,
25 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Which is 25 aren’t you?
Page 21 Page 23
1 your -- 1 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, sir.
2 MR, BMITH: Well, I just referenced page 2 MR. SILVERMAN: Repeat that one more
3 @, line 3, paragraph 7 of the regulation, 3 time, please.
4 THE HEARING COFFICER: Right. I'm trying 4 MR. SMITH: "Sources applying for a
5 to look at it. Are you talking about Exhibit 10 or 5 general permit pursuant to 20.11.41 NMAC, authority to
6 Exhibit 11, then? [3 construct, shall pay the applicable fee in Section 18
7 MR. SMITH: I am talking about Exhibit 7 of this part.
g i1 8 "The division intends to amend 20.11.41 NMAC,
9 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. 1I'm sorry, 9 authority to construct, to allow general permits to be
10 Mike, what page number are you on again? 10 established for specific source categories,
11 MR. SILVERMAN: Eight. 11 eliminating the need for case-by-case air guality
12 MR. SMITH: Page 8, line 3, paragraph 7. 12 review, expediting the permit-issuing process.”
13 THE HEARRING OFFICER: Page 8 is not in 13 Now I am going to be referring to page 8
14 the exhibit. 14 again. If I can go ahead and review, read that, and,
15 MR. SMITH: That's probably why no one 15 then, we can refer later back to the correct page.
16 has it, 16 At the end of Section 20.11.2.12, page 8,
17 THE HEARING OFFICER: 1If you can have 17 line 19, we wigh to add Subsection D as follows:
18 one of your staff members make a copy prior te the i8 "Qualified small businesses shall pay one-half of the
19 conclusion of your testimony, so we need to put it 13 calculated case-by-case air guality review fees prior
20 into the record, and, also, make sure the Air Board 20 to adding any federal review fees or state toxic
21 has a copy. 21 review fees.”
22 MR. SMITH: I will. 22 Qualified small businesses working through
23 THE HEARING OFFICER: OKkay. 23 the division's small pusiness assistance program will
24 DR. MULLOY: I have a copy of page 8 24 only pay half of the case-by-case ailr quality review
25 from what you had sent us out prior to this meeting. 25 calculated prior to adding additional fees.
Page 22 Page 24
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1 The szmall business would still be responsible

it owill collect about $756,850 per year in annual

2 Ior paying for any federal program and alr toxic 2 emission
3 review fees. This provizion ls not applicable to 3 The division estimates it takes approximately
4 gources applying for general permit since the cost of 4 5819,000 to minimally fund the inspection and
5 the permit has already been reduced. 5 compliance in small business asslstance activities
[ The division estimate under the proposed 6 within the division. Funds from annual emission fees
7 regulation, based on the average number of permit 7 will also be used for staff tralning regulatory
g appilcations received, to collect about §111,000 per 8 development and federal emission inventory reporting
9 year in application fees. 9 and cther activities required by Bection 502 of the
10 Under the current regulation, we have 10 federal Clean Alr Act. Remainder of the funding comes
11 invoiced 87,500 for the past year. The division 11 from federal grant money and city general funds,
12 egtimates 1t costs approximately $252,000 per year to 12 One maior change staff is proposing is to
13 minimally fund 4 new source review program, the 13 remove the provision in the current regulation to
14 remainder of the funding comes from annual emission 14 allow sources to pay annual emission fees based on
15 fees, federal grant money and city general funds. is actual emissions.
16 Starting on page 8, line 22, Section 16 This provision is found in Section I1.2.4.F
17 20.11.2.13, annual emigsion fees, fee calculations and 17 that reads “An annual emission inventory may be
148 procedures describes the methods and procedures for 18 submitted for reviews by the department for the
19 inveicing and calculating annual emission fees. ALl 19 purpose of annual fee adjustment. This shall be
20 invoicing will be done by the City of Albuquerque with 20 restricted to sources with established permit
21 annual feea sent to the department’s finance section 21 allowable emission rates or sources which have
22 for deposit, 22 submitted a timely permit application pursuant te part
23 As required by law, all fees will be 23 42, Section 1.2.2.A.2.
24 deposited into the City of Albuquerque permits program 24 "The emissions inventories shall be
25 fund. All annual emission fees will be determined 25 submitted to the department by no later than January
Page 25 Page 27
1 based on the source’s potential to emit, taking into 1 1, 1997 and by April 1 each year thereafter for review
2 account any permits and SIP-approved regulatory 2 consideration for every year an adjustment is sought.
3 Limits. 3 within 30 days of receipt, the department will bill
4 Sources with registrations issued pursuant to 4 the source for the review pursuant to Table 1 of this
5 20.11.40 NMAC, source registration, will be reviewed 5 part.
3 on a case-pby-case basis, and if permitting is 6 "Any adjustments te the sources permitted or
7 required, the division will permit these sources at no 7 otherwise established emission fees shall be
g charge. 8 incorporated and adijusted and bilied in accordanrce
] The division will be proposing to repeal 9 with the billing schedule provisions in this part.”
ic 20.11.40 NMAC, source registration, and establish a 10 While this provision benefits sources with
11 federally enforceable operating permit program for all i1 large allowaple emissions and on the surface appears
12 applicable sources. 12 to encourage emission reductions, these sources stili
13 Staff will also be proposing several floor 13 have the right to pollute at their permitted levels at
14 amendments in Section 18, creating annual emission 14 any time.
15 fees for specific source categories that currently 15 The division strongly supports emission
16 have registrations in lieu of authority-to-construct 16 reduction through permit and by removing the ability
17 permits. 17 for sources to pay on their actual emissions will
18 Annual emission fees will be used primarily 18 encourage sources te truly reduce their emission
19 to fund compliance and inspection activities required 19 through federally enforceable permit conditions. The
20 by the state Air Quality Control Act, the joint Air 20 division received three written comments concerning
21 Quality Control Board ordinances and board 21 the removal of the emission inventory provision from
22 regulations. 22 the Department of Energy, General Mills and PNM.
23 In addition, the annual emission fees will 23 Both the Department of Energy and General
24 alsc fund the small business assistance program. 24 Mills believe that by removing the provision to pay on
25 Under the proposed regulation, the division estimates 25 actual emissions will create a disincentive for
Page 26 Page 28
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1 veluntary pollution reductions, i atter the notification i ceived, increasing the
Gensral Mills staff Exhi Number & stated 2 adminlstravive burden on the staff by requiring fees

3 in their let that "The propused system of fees 3 ar the tir of application.

4 creates a disincentive to minimize air emissions 4 The inspector will be free of this

& because the fee {g based on potential worst case 5 administrative burden and spend more time in the field
6 activities and effsctively disallows pollution & conducting inspections.

7 prevention activities from quickly recovering cost 7 Division estimates it takes approximately

g savings azsocciated with emission fee reduction.™ 8 584,000 annually to minimally fund this program and

£l The Department of Energy will also tastify 9 expects te collect approximately $63,000 a year in

10 the current provislion encourages pellution prevention. 10 fees based on average number of notifications

11 The Department disagrees that removing the 11 received. The remainder of the funding comes from

12 provision will discourage pollution prevention and is 12 federal grant money and city general funds.

13 proposing in the fee structure a pollution prevention 13 page 11, line 8, Section 20.11.2.15, filing
14 modification at no charge Lo encourage sources Lo 14 and inspection fees for surface disturbance permits;
15 reduce their emissions through federally enforceable 15 fee caiculations and procedures degcribes the methods
16 pollution prevention techniques or process. 16 and procedures in calculating filing and inspection

17 Pollution prevention means the reduction or 17 fees for surface disturbance permits lssued pursuant
18 other practices that reduce or eliminate the creation 18 te 20.11.20 NMAC airborne particulate matter.

19 of pollutants through increased efficiencies and the 19 Currently, the division does not charge for these
20 use of raw materials, energy, water or other rescurces 20 permits and is proposing to charge a per acre fee to
23 or protection of natural resources by conservation. 21 cover the program cost to inspectors.
22 source redustion includes any practice which 22 The dust control program is an lmportant part
23 reduces the amount of any hazardous substance or 23 of the particulate matter SIP and must be adequately
24 polliutant prior te recycling or treatment, including 24 funded. For 1999 and the first quarter of 2000,
25 equipment or technology modifications, process 25 monitors in Bernallllo County exceeded the annual

Page 29 Page 31

1 modifications, reformulation or redesign of products, 1 national ambient air guality standard for particulate
2 substitution of raw materials and improvement in 2 matter.

3 housekeeping, maintenance, training and inventory 3 It's wvital that we not continue this trend

4 control. 4 and the division 1s aggressively addressing problem

5 Pollution prevention techniques or practices 5 areas, such as dust control, in an effort to avoid

6 do not include add-on air pollution controls used to 6 nonattainment status. The fees for suxface

7 limit air emission or emission reductions based on 7 disturbance permits not only funds the dust control

2 decreased production needs. 8 program, but hopefully will encourage businesses to

9 PNM, in its letter, Staff Exhibit Number 7, 9 disturb only the acreage necessary for their project.
10 undergtands that emission fees can be reduced through 10 The division received one comment letter from
11 permit modification, but chooses not to modify based 11 Sandia Properties Limited concerning the proposed fee
12 on its business needs, which is consistent with the 12 and I will address the comment letter in my

13 division's proposal that scurces pay on what they are 13 testimony.

14 allowed to emit by permit. 14 page 11, line 19, Section 20.11.2.16, fee

15 Page 9, line 21, Section 20.11.2.14, filing 15 errors, corrections and refunds describes the

16 and inspection fees for the removal cof regulated 16 procedures to be taken to correct fee errors, make

17 asbestos~containing material; fee calculations and 17 corrections or request refunds as stated in general

18 procedures describes the methods and procedures used 18 provisions of this part, the director may deduct a

19 to calculate f£iling and inspection fees for the 19 reasonable professional service fee to cover the costs
20 removal of regulated asbestos-containing material. 20 of staff time and processing a permit or request.

21 The section remains unchanged from the 21 pPage 12, line 19, Section 20.11.2.17, failure
22 existing requirements: however, as required by the 22 to pay, establishes the violation for sources failing
23 general provisions of this part, all fees must be pald 23 to pay any fee required by this part and of procedures
24 at the time of application. 24 to be used to calculate any penalty and interest due
25 Currently, the inspectors invoice the sources 25 consigstent with the provisions of Section
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1 S92 (-BY (-31~{C) of the federal Clean Alr Act,

gallons of total solvent usad, Iincluding solvent-based

2 Star g on page 13, line 5, continuing to 2 inks, cleaning solvent adhesives and ooating: $150.
3 the end of the regulation is the proposed fee 3 PFlexography {(water based) or U¥V-cared inks
4 schedule. The fee schedule iz combined inte one 4 using less than 200,000 pounds total of inks, coatings
5 gection for the convenience of the reader and to 5 and adhezives: $150. Soil and water remediation
3 simplify future amendments to the fee schedule. & operations: $150, Stationary sources with de minimus
7 The first subsection addresses annual 7 emissions: No charge."
8 emission fees. The divigion is not proposing te 8 It is the intent of the division to use this
g change the fee pollutant rates for nonhazardous or g list of specific source categories for nonmajor
10 hazardous air pollutants and will remain at $31 and at 10 sources when determining source applicapbility and to
it $250 per ton respectively. 11 ensure falr fee assessment.
i2 The current federal presumptive fee rate for 12 The next twe subsections of Section 18
13 major sources iz $34.87 per ton. The division is 13 establigh the fee schedule for an initial air quality
14 proposing to raise the minimum annual fee from $100 to 14 review to obtain a construction permit from the
15 5150. Sources will be regquired to pay 5150 or $31 per 15 divisicn.
i6 ton, whichever is grester, unless otherwise stated. 16 On page 14, line 17, the divislen initially
17 Upon further review of the requlation, staff 17 wanted to reserve this subsection for minor source
18 recommends the following floor amendments. 18 general permits in lieu of case-by-case air guality
19 Starting at page 13, line 10, add the phrase 19 review for new scurces., Upon further review, the
20 Yunless otherwise llsted,” Starting on line 14, add 20 division proposes to add the following fees for
21 4 new paragraph 4, "({4) annual emission fees for 21 general permit review to avoid having to open this
22 specific source categories," then list the following: 22 requlation again for public hearing.
23 Auto body repalr and painting: One spray booth: No 23 On page 14, starting on line 7, strike the
24 charge; two or more spray booths: $150; chromium 24 word "reserved" and add the following paragraphs:
25 electroplating: §150; degreasers using organic 25 One, auto body repair and painting: $800; two, dry
Page 33 Page 35
1 solvents, nonhalogenated solvents using less than 1 cleaners (nonmajor): $500; three, emergency
2 2,200 gallons of any one sclvent-containing material 2 generators: $500; four, generic coating and abrasive
3 and 5,100 gallons of any combination of 3 operations: $500; other fueling facilities receiving
4 solvent-containing materials: §150. 4 fuel by truck or rail, {(non-NSPS}: 51,0C0; non-NSPs
5 Halogenated solvents using less than 1,200 5 boilers: $500; printing and packaging operations:
& gallons of any one solvent containing material and & $500; retail fleet gasoline service stations: $500;
7 2,900 gallons of any combination solvent-containing 7 s0il water remediation systems: $1,000
8 materials: §150; dry cleaners/nonmajor: $150; 8 On page 15, starting on line 2 are the
9 emergency generators: $150; gasoline service and 9 proposed case-by-case alr quality review fees for new
10 fleet stations: $250 or $31 per ton, whichever is 10 sources. This is an emission-based fee schedule where
11 greater. 11 fees increase as the source’s potential to emit
12 "Natural gas or distillate fuel-fired boiler 12 increases and will be based on the source’s potential
13 less than 2 million BTUs used exclusively for 13 to emit all fee pollutants, including guantifiable
14 residential, commercial or institutional heating and 14 fugitive emissions.
15 hot water: No charge. Printing, publishing and 15 The fee not only covers the cost of permit
16 packaging operations: Sheetfed, nonheat set, offset 16 review, but also includes costs for construction and
17 lithograph, using less than 7,125 gallons of cleaning 17 baseline inspections, compliance test reviews and
18 solvent and fountain sclution additives: $150. 18 source’s annual emissions fee until the next billing
19 “Nonheat set web offset lithography using 19 period.
20 less than 7,125 gallons of solvent and fountain 20 For those sources with potentially low
21 solution additives: §$150. Heatset web offset 21 emissions of toxlc or hazardous air pollutants, an
22 lithography using less than 50,000 pounds of ink, 22 additional air toxic review fee will be regquired which
23 cleaning solvent and fountain solution additives: 23 will offset the costs of these more complicated
24 $150. 24 permits.
25 *Screen printing using less than 7,125 25 The fees proposed are substantially higher
Page 34 Page 36
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1 than the current fee schedule. Currently, a source 1 very difficult to compare permlt fees with other
Z 1 precontrolled emissions less than 100 tonz would 2 jurisdictions .
pay only §500. 3 State of o, for example, is

4 That covers about zeven staff hours, azsuming 4 currently fee structure to an

5 $75 per staff hour. The proposed fee schedule would 5 effort-pbased fee scheduler that is, the more emissian
3 require sources to pay up to §5,000, which offset up 6 units a source proposes, the higher the permit fee.

7 to 67 staff hours, assuming 40 hours for permit review 1 Ir additien, the state charges fees for

8 and processing, eight hours air quality medeling 8 gources that must comply with federal regquirements

9 review, with the remaining fee covering construction g along with air quality modeling fee, toxic air

18 and baseline inspeccions, compliance testing and the 10 pollutant review fee and nonrefundable filing fee.

11 annual emission fees for the source until the next 11 On reviewlng the state’s proposed regulation
iz billing periocd. 12 and based on some sample calculations on recent

i3 In addition to the emission-based air qualicy 13 permits issued by our department, we beliesve our fee
14 review fee, any source that must comply with any i4 schedule is comparable to the state's proposal.

1% federally required performance standards or control 15 However, I believe it’s more telling to

16 technologies would be assessed in additional review 16 compare our proposed fee structure with other

17 fee to cover the cost of implementing the federal 17 metropolitan areas in the southwest. For this

i8 program. ig purpose, I picked Maricopa County, Arizona, which

18 These federal review fees are found on page 18 includes Phoenix, and Clark County, Nevada, which
20 15, starting on line 13, Section D. The most common 20 includes Las Vegas.
21 federal program reviewed are the new source 21 Staff Exhibit 13 outlines the different fee
22 performance standards or NSP5 found in 40 CFR &0, 22 approachas and compares tonight’s proposal with the
23 which would add $1,000 to the initial air quality 23 state of New Mexico, Clark County and Maricopa
24 review fee. 24 County.
25 As a rule, NSPS requlires additional 25 Since each jurisdiction has developed a fee

pPage 37 Page 39

H record-keeping reporting and compliance testing for 1 program that fits its individual needs, it’s difficult
2 the source and the division. 2 to make a direct comparison. I believe, however, the
3 On page 15, line 23, Section E establishes 3 comparison does show that Albuquerque’s hew source

4 the fee schedule for permit modification. The 4 review fees are reasonable, even considering the

& division intends to revise 20.11.41 NMAC, authority to 5 increases being discussed.

& construct, to establish modification criteria for [ Page 16, line 4, Subsection H establishes

7 pollution prevention modifications, minor or flexible 7 §100 per acre fee for surface disturbance permits.

g permit modifications and major modifications. e The purpose of this fee is to cover the costs of

9 Generally speaking, major modifications will 9 administering and enforcing the provisions of 20.11.20
id be those modifications that significantly increase the 10 NMAC airborne particulate matter,
i1 source’s potential to emit requiring more extensive 11 As previously discussed, Albuguerque has
12 permit review and processing, modeling and inspection 12 exceeded the annual naticnal ambient air quality
13 and compliance activities. 13 standard for particulate matter in 1999 with high
14 As with the case~by-case air guality review, 14 levels continuing into the year 2000.
1s any modification that must comply with federal program 15 Albuquerque must act now to control dust
16 requirement will be charged an additional federal 16 generated by land disturbance to avoid federal

17 program review fee. 17 action. Managing the dust control program takes a
i8 On page 16, line 2, the division proposes a 18 minimum of two full-time positions to process permits,
19 portable source relocation fee to cover the cost of 19 conduct on-site inspections, respond to complaints and
20 permit review and modeling at the different locations 20 perform the other administrative matters related to
21 a portable source may relocate. 21 the program.
22 When establishing the case-by-case air 22 Again, I compared our proposed dust control
23 quality review fees, we did not compare our fee 23 permit program fees wich those of Clark and Maricopa
24 structure to other jurisdictions because the 24 Counties, Staff Exhibit Number 14.
23 emission-based fee schedule fit our needs. It is also 25 Our proposed fee of $100 an acre is less than
Page 38 Page 40
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3 Clark County’s fee, but more than Maricopa’s fee; 1 Mr. Smith or staff

2 however, Maricopa’s fee iz an annual fee. The annual 2 Mr. Silverman?

k] plock permit required by Maricopa County is avallable 3 MR. SILVERMAN: Mr. Smith, when you go

4 for organizations that perform routine malintenance on 4 Lo the dentist, do you have to pay him before he sits
& utilities, paved and unpaved roads, road shoulders, 5 you in his chair?

& alleys and public right-of-ways at noncontiguous 6 MR. SMITH: No, but he certainly asks

7 sites. 7 for my insurance.

8 ¥We have received one comment concerning our 8 MR. SILVERMAN: You know, when you go

i proposed fees from Sandia Properties Limited, Staff 9 see your lawyer, does he ask for money up front before
10 Exhibit Number 9, regarding master plan projects such 10 he hears your case?

11 as Ventana Ranch, which encompassed approximately 300 11 MR, SMITH: Many do.

iz ACTOR . 12 MR. SILVERMAN: Well, you are using the
13 When applying our proposed fee, the developer 13 wrong lawyer. 1It’s my opinion that the concept of

14 would be required to pay 590,000 or approximately $30 14 having te pay the fees before you look at anything or
15 per house assuming three houses per acre in addition 15 do anything sits really wrong with me, and I would

16 to the fees already pald to the city for project 16 never vote to support that.

17 approval. 17 That's my comment on that subject.

i8 Leoking at other jurisdictions, the same 18 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr.

19 project would oozt at least $32,510 or more in 19 Silverman.

20 Maricopa County gince permits must be renewed 20 Any other member of the board have a guestion
21 annually, and $98,100 in Clark County. 21 for Mr. smith or the staff?
22 Staff believes that the proposed fee of $100 22 DR. PILON: Would you repeat the
23 per acre is reasonable and expecis Lo generate 23 rationale for charging a potential to emit rather than
24 approximately $80,000 in revenue per year based on the 24 the actual emissions as addressed by the General Mills
25 average number of acres disturbed per year. 25 letter I was just looking at.

Page 41 Page 43

1 The asbestos unit fee found on page 16, line 1 MR. SMITH: W®When we refer to potential

2 5, Subsection I, will remain the same. 2 to emit, what we refer to is what’s limiting the

3 pPage 16, starting on line &, Section J, 3 ability for this source to emit., In many cases, it’'s
1 establishes a miscellaneous administrative fees the 4 a permit, a federally enforceable permit that actually
5 division will charge. The $75 per hour professional 5 limits the source to so many, let’s say, tons psr

& service fee was established assuming an average 6 year.

7 enployee salary plus benefits and overhead. 7 In absence of a permit, potential looks at

8 Maricopa‘’s professional service fee is $70 per hour 8 the process, itself, and assuming no controls other

9 and staff believes the proposed fee is reasonable. 9 than those controls along with production in the past,
10 The fees established for photocopying and 10 or, rather, current fee regulation, [ should say,

11 regulation books are consistent with department 11 allows for sources to be charged on their actuail

12 policy. The public records research fee has been 12 emisgions.

13 established to cover the direct staff cests of 13 That means emissions they are emitting which
14 complying with information regquests concerning 14 are below thelr actual permit, but they are actually
15 permits, enforcement acticns and complaints. 15 permitted to emit sc many hundreds of tons per year,
16 Mr. Hearing Officer, this concludes my le 50 the ~- what we do is we tie up -- those emissions
17 testimony and I wish to end by guoting Miguel de 17 are tied up.

18 Cervantes from his classic Don Quixote by saying "That 18 For the purpose of many alr gquality programs,
19 what costs little is valued less.” 19 for example, if we were to do modeling, we must take
20 Thank you. 20 into account that of the source’s emissions that are
21 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr. 21 next to the proposed scurce. We must take in account
22 smith, and you finished well in front of your 45 22 their worst case scenario when we do the modeling.

23 minutes, so good job. 23 Also, at any time during any time that source
24 At this time, I want to ask the members of 24 may be -- their allowable emissions may be -~ let's

25 the Air Quality Board if they have any questions of 25 say they were emitting 50 tons per year and they are
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allowable 100 at any time without our approval, they

inzentive to get a permit as close to what they

2 Are allowed to emit up to 100 tons and what we had 2 actually expect, leaving a margin for error, but they
3 dose s actually inventory the emissions throughout 3 are going Lo have incentive to get closer to their
4 the county to figure out where our emlgsions are 4 cutput, and that would fres up other emissions
5 totally, a5 a total picuure, and we tried to use those 5 sort of That would /e you an idea that the -- a
& emigsions in approving and disapproving projects. & cioser idea based on the permitting, what their actual
7 HM5. BASSET S0 what you are saying is 7 cutput ig going to be.
g that a company would purchase a certain amount of 8 Right now what you are saying is that the
9 emissions, almost like a bank account, not knowing 4 range of actual emissions is anywhere from half the
10 whether they would use all of those, but hedge their 10 permit to all of the permit and we don’t know, but,
11 bets, they would purchase, say, 100 tons? 11 then, the guestiocn is the General Mills letter
12 MR. SMITH: Well, no, they would not 12 raised the question: Why are they going to be charged
13 purchase. 13 for emission; that is, they are not doing and you are
14 M3. BASSETT: Do they pay for those 14 saying you are trying to create an incentive for them
15 10672 i5 te permit more closely to what they are actually going
16 MR, SMITH: No. Right now, we allow 16 to emit.
17 them to pay for their actual 50, even though they’re 17 MR. SMITH: That’s correct.
14 permitted to have 100. 18 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Silverman?
15 M5. BASSETT: Why aren’t they charged 19 MR, BILVERMAN: What would be the
20 for 1007 20 immediate penalty for exceeding the permit?
21 MR. SMITH: Because our current fee 21 MR. SMITH: $15,000 a day.
22 regulations say they can pay on actuals. 22 MR. SILVERMAN: Would it be possibie --
23 MS. BASSETT: So what we are trying to 23 I mean, ! can see both sides of this issue. I mean, I
24 de is say "You have to know exactly what'sg in the bank 24 certainly understand why we want to go to the
25 account pecause we need that money," quote, unquote, 25 potential to emit, but at the same time, with
Page 45 Page 47
1 "We need that money feor the air shed for other 1 penalties for violating the permit being, you know, at
2 potential projects," and you are basically sort of 2 that level, you know, the need to pad the permit is
K stockplling that potential CO? 3 pretty cbvious because you don’t want to -- you just
4 MR. SMITH: Well, it“s really not 4 simply can’t take that risk, and my question is: Did
5 correct te say these emissions have any value. They 5 you look at a procedure that might encourage people to
& are permitted during the permit process. They are 6 permit closer to what they are going to -- what they
7 allowed to emit so many tons per year of emissions 7 would use, but, then, if, you know, mid year, there is
8 based on thelr proposed application modeling and so 8 a need for, you Xnow, business spikes, I mean, PNM is
9 forth, ] a great example.
10 At this time, we don’t have what’s referred 10 I noticed today that they were out, you know,
it o as a capped-off trade where we have capped off the 11 burning Reeves generating plant primarily to send
12 emission levels, and, therefore, those emission levels 12 electricity to California is my, you know,
13 may have actual real value, but what we are trying to 13 supposition.
14 do is eliminate sources that have, let’s say, 100 tons 14 I think balance load on the grid, take Palo
1s permitted, tying up those 100 tons within our air shed 18 Verde, send it west, generate on our power here, you
16 and paying only on 50 tons, when, at any time, they 16 know, they didn’t know that we were going to have a
17 could use that 100 tons if production demands it. 17 crisis in California, and, you know, what is it to the
18 M5. BASSETT: Okay. 18 economy, you know, to have California go dark, and if
19 DR. PILON: So by switching to a 19 they had a permit level that was down, where they had
2G potential to emit, as opposed to actual usage, you are 20 taken five years’ worth of normal business, permitted
21 creating an incentive for the source to approach more 21 that amount, and, then, this spike happens, and, then,
22 closely with its actual output to what it potentially 22 they get hit with $15,000 a day, you Know, that
23 is allowed to do? 23 doesn’t -- that’s putting handcuffs on the economy,
24 MR. SMITH: Actually, vyes. 24 and, you know, 1 think if we want to encourage this,
25 DR. PILON: Because then they will have 25 the concept of potential to emit, then we probably
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1 cught to come up with some type of mechanism that 1 bank permitting tonnage by reserving more than, you

Z would allow unexpected events. 2 k¥now, than what they need, so we have come up with a

3 I mean, you know, there is one thing to be, 3 mechanism To Lry to cut that down closer to what they
4 you know, conscientioug, you know, going to exceed, 4 are actually using, the permit level, but at the same
El excead, exceed, but there ls a whole other deal where & time, T am not sure that you can move fast enough to

& chere is fust unintended consequences that you cannct & react tx what happens in business on an ongoing

7 toresee, and so 1 am ot sure we have U v pasls.

8 figured out glven that thought process, and I might 8 Clearly, 90 days 1s not fast enocugh.

L] 1ike to see a couple of other scenarios that might 9 MR. SMITH: Well, there are provisions
10 take that into account. 10 especially with major sources, as to the type of

11 MR, SMITH: Well, since you brought up 11 permits, to have alternative operating scenarios, so
12 PNM, in thelr letter, they are currently paying 12 that’s, again, another opportunity that they have.

13 511,292 &4 year. I guess that was the last, and this 13 MR. SYILVERMAN: Well, maybe you need to
14 change would increase by -- would require an increase, 14 explain that te us, because I don’t understand that.
15 let’s ses, to §152,923. 1 have got socurces that are 15 MR. SMITH: They have different -- Title
16 not major sources like PNM paying more than $11,292. 16 Vv allows for sources to create different operating

17 MR. SILVERMAN: 1s that 11,000 based on 17 scenarios based on their need. One operating scenario
18 their actual emissions? 18 may be providing Albuguergue with power, the other

19 MR. SMITH: Yes. So I have got sources 19 aperating scenario may be providing California with

20 out there paying more than $11,292 which aren’t going 20 power,

21 to enjoy the benefits of California’s blackout. 21 Both of thoge options are in the permit so

22 MR. SILVERMAN: Why are people paying 22 that they don’t have to repermit to go Lo those

23 more than that? 23 particular operating scenariocs.

24 MR. SMITH: We charge $31 per ten. 24 M3. BASSETT: But they would be using --
25 MR. SILVERMAN: And? 25 they would be exceeding, then, the tonnage of the
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1 MR. SMITH: $31 per ton. 1 permit that they originally purchased, so they would

2 MR, SILVERMAN: And what are you 2 be violating their permit.

3 charging the other folks? 3 MR. SMITH: One of those operating

4 MR, SMITH: 1 couldn’t tell you right 4 scenarios would include the worst case scenario.

5 otf the tep of my head. 5 MR. SILVERMAN: And what do you permit

6 MR. SILVERMAN: Well, I am clearly in & an?

7 favor of everybody paying their failr share, which is 7 MR. SMITH: I don’t understand.

8 my next set of guestions, 1f I could continue. 8 MR. SILVERMAN: Well, are you going to

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: Please proceed. g permit on worst case scenario or normal scenario?

10 MR, SMITH: Mr. Martinez wag just 10 MR. SMITH: Both,

1l advising me that there are also other provisions 11 MR. SILVERMAN: What are you geing to

12 involved. In fact, they do have modifications, 12 charge for it?

13 provisions where they can make changes to their 13 MR. SMITH: Right now, we are proposing
14 permic. 14 to charge $31 a ton.

15 MR. SILVERMAN: Yes, what’s the time 15 MR. SILVERMAN: So you are suggesting

16 line for doing that, though. 16 that you can permit on either one, but you're going to
17 MR. SMITH: 90 days. 17 end up paying on the worst case scenario, even though
18 MR. SILVERMAN: 90 days, you Know, 18 that might ke a once in 15 year -

19 California would go dark. 138 MR. SMITH: That’s the benefit of having
20 MR. SMITH: Well, then I would think 20 that modification already in place and not having to
21 that $159%,000 is a bargain. 21 go 90 days.

22 MR. SILVERMAN: Maybe it is and maybe 22 MR. SILVERMAN: I think you are giving
23 it's fair, I don’t know, but 1 can tell you that from 23 business too much credit.

24 a conceptual standpoint, we have a problem, and the 24 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Martinez, do
25 problem is that we are trying to get people not to 25 you want to give a response? If so, you have to be
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1 EHOLH . 1 fine, but what happens with us is that now, at this

2 ANGEL MARTINRZ 2 point, we understand that rhose emission submissions

3 after having been first duly sworn under oath, 3 within that area are tled down and there 1s no taking
4 testified as follows: 4 from them at that point.

5 THE HEARING CFFICER: Pleagse state your 5 You know, what makes it difficult for us is
& name and proceed, Mr. Martinez. 6 that when we are loocking at laventories, we basically

MR. MARTIN My name i1s Angel Martinez 7 to look at okay, what happened last year, but

2 and I am the manager for the air quality division. I 2 there wag a federal document in place that basically

9 think one of the things that needs to be explained is 9 gave the right to large sources Lo go up L6 where Lhe
10 that yes, we are trying to ensure that permitted 10 timit was, and so what that basically does to that

11 sources permit as clogse to thelr operations or as 11 area is that we have to take that into the modelling

12 close to thelr needs as possible, that may be as close 12 consideration.

13 to the operations last year or as close to what they 13 We cannot continue to permit sources arcund
14 perceive the market will be in the next few years. 14 that area because nothing prohibits them from going to
i% There are provisions that allow the source to 135 the maximum, and when they do that, then we are

16 modlfy, there are provisions from the prevention 16 taiking about serious econcmic impacts to the area and
17 program that allows the spurce to actually reduce on 17 that i going on the payment, which is far higher of
18 eone end of the source and basically take credit for 18 an economic impact, than pretty much anything else

18 that.. 19 within the realm of the Clean Air Act, but there are a
24 The turnarcund time is very, very short on 20 lot of provisisns that are gurrently in place that
21 that and I believe it’s a matter of notification 21 allows the facility to utilize good business

22 within 10, 15 days. 1t does not require public 22 practices, good engineering practices, and we have
23 nearing, it doesn’t require anything. They can 23 assistance that, you know, we go vut there free of
24 pasically fust do it, so we have those provisions in 24 charge and work for them on that particular issue.
25 place. 25 Maybe there 1z an antiquated plece of
Page 53 Fage 55

1 the issue of the operating alternative 1 equipment that can be changed, maybe there is

2 operating scenarics 1is that yes, the source can 2 configuration, maybe there is some kind of process or
3 actually design different scenarios into the permit. 3 alternative method that they can use and we don’t take
4 What would have to happen is that notification would 4 those credits away because they are in a permit, but

5 have to be submitted to the department in order for 5 we give them credit for additional process or

4 them to switch over to the next scenario. & production, so those are there and they are somewhat

7 One of the things that I need to be —- that 7 complicated, but there is -~ by all means, there is

8 needs to be pointed out on this whole issue is that it 8 more than one provision that allows the facility to

9 is -- you know, there are provigions within the ] make modifications during -~ halfway through the

10 federal act that allow that if there is an 10 process to ensure that production is made, and, you

11 emergency-type situation, I mean, pretty much you have 11 know again, to us, what the facility puts out as far
12 no choice. I mean, if California goes dark tomorrow, 12 as production is irrelevant to us, it’s just the

13 then I can guarantee you that all bets are off, I 13 emissions that are tied to that production, so the
14 mean, as far as complying with these particular 14 more efficient that they become, you know, the better
15 regulations because that is more of a national 15 it is for everybody, and, you know, for the economy

16 emergency than anything else, and the federal act does 16 and for the environment.
17 allow for that. 17 MR. SILVERMAN: I understand that, I am
18 Now, what we are talking about is ensuring 18 supportive of it and I think that’s great and that’s
19 that the facilities have taken into consideration and 138 the way it ought to be, but, you know, that’s the
20 are using geood business practice to ensure that we 20 normal course of business, and, you know, one thing
21 also understand what the impact to the economy or to a 21 that I know is that normal is hard to find anymore,
22 specific area will be. 22 and, you know, to be -- maybe we need to think about
23 Keep in mind that if a facility has the 23 how we are doing this.
24 option, you know, and since we are talking about PNM, 24 If we pick up & lot of headroom ag a result
25 to go ahead and pay for the full permit, and that is 25 you know, of this permitting process, maybe what we
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1 need to do 1s reserve a plece of thsat for the unknown,

MR. SMITH: Well, the small business

2 and, then, maybe we nesd to bulld into ocur fee P reduction or whatever, it is consistent with the Clean
3 structure and our regulatory system the abillty for 3 Alr Act, and in trying to provide for rellef from

4 the economy, l.e., individual businasses or groups of 4 these regulations -~ it*s right out of the Clean Air

5 them, to be able to use that safety margin, maybe they 5 and it - you know, the small business systems was

& have te pay double, you know, on an audit basis after @ pasged by this bodrd.

i the fact for that tonnage, 30, you xnow, maybe they 7 MR. S51LVERMAN: I guess we can unpass

8 are paying $31 up to thelr permit level and they pay 8 it, then, can’t we?

9 $65, you know, a ten to go above it, which will 9 MR, SMITH: No.
10 encourage sgqueezing the excess out of if, but not be 10 MR, SILVERMAN: I think we can.

11 hit with §15,000 a day. il MR. SMITH: Well, then there would be a
2 f mean, you know, I am just not sure that we 12 federal program in place.

13 really, you know, are on the right track., Okay. I 13 MR. SILVERMAN: The other part of this
14 fully support that, I just think that there 15 some 14 is -~ and you brought to light in comparing Clark

13 tweaking that needs to be done to take into account 15 County and Maricopa County, which I guess it’s Clark
16 the way the real world works. 16 County that has the annual permits?

17 The second set of quegtions, if I may, do we 17 MR. SMITH: Maricopa.

18 have any idea what the loss of revenue would be if all 18 MR. SILVERMAN: Maricopa has the annual
19 of our small business permittees took advantage of the 13 permits. It seems to me, and I will use topsoil
20 50 percent or whatever the discounts are for small 20 disturbances as a paxticular, okay, the program that
21 business? 21 we worked ocut with Rio Grande Cement, the four-people
22 MR. SMITH: No. 22 program 1 believe is what it was called (hat we were
23 MR. SILVERMAN: I3 there any way of 23 awarded
24 gquantifying it? 24 MR, SMITH: P-4§.
25 MR. SMITH: Not without a lot of effort, 25 MR. SILVERMAN: The P-4 program where we
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1 becauge we simply don’t have the information of who is 1 went out, we worked with them, we adjusted the --

2 a small business by that definition. 2 worked with them to adjust their systems and make ali
3 MR. SILVERMAN: So we don‘t have any 3 that work, it seems to me that particularly in the

4 idea of how much of a cost of operating this program 4 topsoil disturbance that there is probably, I am

5 is going to get shifted to the larger operations as a 5 guessing, four or five, six, maybe eight folks that do
3 result of what we are suggesting is credits for small 6 large-scale development, probably do 80 percent, you

7 pusiness? 7 know, of all the masquerading in town, and it seems to
g MR. SMITH: No. 2 me that we need to take that same carrot and stick

9 MR. SILVERMAN: Well, I think that’s 9 proposal and instead of maybe doing landowner permits
10 unfortunate and I think we need to make a good-faith 10 that what we de is we come up with a quality assurance
S effort to try to determine that, and the reason 11 program for the larger contractors that do the

i2 being -~ 12 majority of this work and work with them to make sure
13 MR. SMITH: Well, we couldn’t honestly 13 that their operaticng are as good as they possibly can
14 get that information without months and months of 14 be, because if you can get the 80 percent with eight
15 going out there, and, actually, getting -- actually 15 people doing an excellent job of maintaining, you

16 asking the questions, are you a small business. 16 know, PNM, 2.5, or PNM dust control work, then your

17 MR. SILVERMAN: Well, you know, I guess 17 problem gets to be a whole lot smaller and maybe you
18 my response would be that, you know, to quote 18 have a whole lot more time to focus on, you know, the
19 Cervantes, that "That which cost little is valued 19 renegades, I guess is what I might call them, and so I
20 less.™ 20 have a problem, I guess, with the hundred dollars an
21 1 mean, if we don’t have any idea what we are 21 acre.
22 giving away, I don’t know how it can have any value, 22 I think we need to come up with a different
23 so, you know, if a ton of pollution is worth X, it’s 23 thought process, given the structure of people that do
24 worth X to a small business, just like it is to a big 24 topsoil disturbance, what different way of approaching
25 business. 25 that.
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1 And I think we need to think through that, as 1 MR. SIIVERMAN: Give 1t back te them.

2 well, for a different approach becauss I think it will 2 MR. SMITH: Well, that’'s what we do, and

3 be much more effective, you take a whole lot less time 3 with the fees exactly, and that will expedite the

4 and have a 1ot better end result for alr quality if we 4 process.

& do that. 5 DR. PILON: But what you are saying is

& That’sz all my guestlons and comments. [ that your administrators wind up handling the

K THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr. 7 paperwork over and over agaln rather than having it

8 Gilverman, g completed once and handed to you.

g Any other members of the board have any 9 MR. SMITH: We want it complete up

16 questions to the city staff at this time? 10 front. HNow, one of the comments that Mr., Silverman

11 DR, MULLOY: I guess I want to go back il made about businegses, you know, 90 days may seem like
12 to what Mr. Silverman said, just so I understand, 12 a long time for a businesgs, but Xeep in mind that if a
13 gince he was so vehement about the paying up front and 13 buginess sends ug a permit that is incomplete, we send
14 the process is to pay for the permit fee up front, is 14 it pack to them, yet we are the ones that are, you

15 that right, i that what you are -- was part of your 15 know, causing the problems, what we are proposing in
16 application? 16 this regulation and on into the amendments to 41, is
17 MR, SMITH: Pay the permit fee up 17 that we want a complete application, we will discuss
18 front, For example, the dust control permits, we 18 the matter ahead of time, if you want to, as we will
19 would ~- I would hope that the contractor would know 19 go with the business to make sure they have a complete
20 how many acres he plans to disturb since that’s 2G application, we will charge for that $75% an hour, but
21 probably part of his bid. 21 at the time that it is submitted inte the -- to us for
22 I don't gee where there would be a problem of 22 processing, it will be a complete application and we
23 paying up front there as far as asbestos. Again, if 23 don’t have to return it in 30 days because it's

24 the contract ls going to remove asbestos, I would hope 24 incomplete.
25 the contractor would XKnow how much asbestos he iz 25 MR. SILVERMAN: How does paying the fee
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1 going to be removing prior to getting the permit. 1 up front ensure that the application is going to be

2 As for authority-to-construct permits, I 2 completed?

3 would hope that the sources have an application in 3 I mean --

4 place where it states what their potential emisgsion 4 MR, SMITH: It’s a part of the complete
5 rates are going to be 50 that they, themselves, can 5 application packet, just as it’s going to be the

[ make a determination as to what the applicability 6 public information or the public notice requirements

7 would be, so I totally disagree with Mr. Silverman. 7 that we will ask the businesses to submit, it’s a

8 DR. MULLOY: Since you do a different 8 coemplete application. We want complete paperwork

9 procegs at this point, has it been prior to this that 9 which includes a calculation of the fees and payment.
1¢ you have expected them to pay something and either 10 R, MULLOY: I see this as similar to

13 they had to pay more or pay less than what their 11 kind of a licensing, and, I mean, cbviously, I have a
iz provisional permit was? 12 license, 1 have to complete my application and send my
13 MR. SMITH: Well, for the asbestos 13 fee in

14 program, what we have found out is that they are 14 MR. SMITH: Up ahead, exactly.
15 making us do the work in determining how much it’s 15 DR. MULLOY: Up ahead. If they find
16 going to cost as opposed to having them do the 16 some problem with it, you know, 1 don’t necessarily

17 complete application and submitting it to us. 17 get my money back or whatever, but, you know, I don’t
18 MS. BASSETT: Can you explain that? 18 see a problem with that because 1t”s not just you are
19 What do you mean by you “doing the work™? 19 adding service on top of it and somehow you're going
20 MR, SMITH: Well, they don’t come in 20 to take your money back or take it before or whatever,
21 with a complete application. 21 I think this is for paying for all of the
22 MS. BASSETT: Half-filled-out 22 administrative costs and not adding costs on it, and
23 application? 23 it should be known up front what it is.
24 MR. SMITH: They have not filled it 24 MR. SMITH: You know you’re going to be
25 completely out. 25 assessed that fee.
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: Steve? 1 of the fastest permitting processes within the entire
2 DR, PILON: It seems to me that it's 2 region, and I mean EPA Reglon 6.
3 also a sign of good falth that they are seriocus about i You know, an audit wag done within all the
4 doing what they are saying they are going to do to 4 states within Region 6 and we basically issued most of
5 submit the fee. 5 our permits within that 90 days’ time period, as
& My question is: If one of the problems opr if é compared to the State of New Mexico where a very, very
7 one of the delays is the fact that the application has 7 low percentage is lssued within that time frame and
8 Lo be submitted -~ has to be returned, and, then, ] that ig hecause we try to figure out ways to simplify
3 resubmitted, is there any way that the department can 9 the process, and $o pecple know up front what they
16 commit to a shorter time period than 90 days, maybe 10 have to do in order to deal with us.
11 cut it in half, maybe cut it by a third, if the clock 11 Another izsue that needs to be pointed out on
1z starts running from the time that the money is paid 12 this whole issue of why we are going to the fee up
13 and the application iz completed? 13 tront, and that is, it keeps us from being bill
14 MR. SMITH: Currently, we have 30 days 14 collectors. The way that the city process basically
is from the date we receive an application to determine 15 works is that they submit the application.
16 just if it's complete, administratively complete. 16 Now, we issue an inveice, and, then, that
17 That, of course, you know, the permit reviewer 17 goes to the treasury department. What happens at the
18 actually takes the application, goes through, and, for 18 treasury department is that then they will issue an
19 the most part, it’s an administrative check, because 13 invoice within 30, 45 days that they get it, and,
20 the application is filled out, is it gigned correctly, 20 then, it goes out, and, then, what happens is that we
21 is the alr quality modeling attached. 21 don’t really get any sense of when that fee was
22 If there is something missing, usually we 22 actually submitted to city treasury until, you know,
23 make contact with the source and they will supply that 23 months later, sometimes it will be up to six,
24 to us, so, actually, there is usually no stopping the 24 sometlmes even & year, and so then what happens after
25 ¢lock, per se, but does that answer your gquestion? 25 a year, we realize that the sources have not paid, and
Page 65 Page 67
1 MR. MARTINEZ: If I may, one of the 1 we do have a lot of that, and I gave you that copy of
2 things I need to point out, and this is, you know, we 2 what was actually billed and what was collected, so
3 feel that this is a far more simplistic approach to 3 then what happens at that point, it takes about --—
4 the fee and the permit connection, if you will, and 4 sometimes 1t will take up to seven months before we
5 the reason for that is that we basically simplify the 5 realize that the source has not paid, and, thern, sc¢ we
6 process and basically put a price on what the 6 have to bring an enforcement action and that’s a
7 application is, so if you are a dry cleaner, this is 7 seven-month enforcement action, if you will.
] what we are going to charge you, you know, until this 8 What we are saying now, this is the bill, pay
9 regulation is modified, and you pay up front. g it now, that starts our review process, and, then, at
18 It is similar to a licensing fee because what 10 least from that administrative aspect, we are done
11 it does, you know, we do review the application and we 11 with that and there is not an enforcement action, at
12 are basically going to issue authority to construct 12 least on that part of it, so it does simplify the
13 for that particular site. 13 process guite a bit.
14 Now, one of the things that the state is 14 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Silverman?
15 going to is that is going to an effort, unit effort, 15 MR. SILVERMAN: When does the applicant
16 if you will, that the engineer basically gets the 16 get his permit?
17 appiication and they determine how hard that 17 MR. MARTINEZ: Typically, within a few
18 application was, and, then, that’s how they determine 18 Wweeks of the end of the --
19 the fee. 19 MR. SILVERMAN: How does he get it
20 Now, we decided not to go to that and 20 physically?
21 basically say up front “This is going to be the 21 MR. MARTINEZ: Through certified mail
22 price," which, again, comparatively, I can guarantee 22 typically.
23 you, it's far lower than anything around this region. 23 MR. SILVERMAN: Well, why couldn’t the
24 Ancther thing that I’11 point out, as far as 24 applicant, when it’s all processed, it’s all done,
25 the 30 days, we do have the fastest -- you know, one 25 it’s all ready, simply come down, pick up the permit,
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1 show you his receipt for the fees? H MR. MARTINEZ: That would be under this

2 MR. MARTINEZ: Well, actually, that’'s 2 current level. I mean, the changes are not going to

3 something that they would have to do. When they 3 be significant to most of the sources that are out

4 submit the application, we get a receipt that the fee 4 there, and I think that needs te be clear, you know,

5 has already been sent, 5 we have done a ioct of -- o try to simplify the

& MR. SILVERMAN: S0 why can’t they 6 particular reg, you know, we have done a lot to try to

7 exchange a copy of that recelpt for the permit when 7 lock at what, you know, we can do Lo ensure that there

8 you are through fooling with it? And, then, that 8 is some emission reductions.

9 eliminates all the bill collecting. 9 If there is no emission reductions, we want
10 MR. MARTINEZ: Then we would have to go 16 to make sure that okay, we are always goihg to count
13 back and modify the reg because then we are going to 11 on the fact that that facility used the max, but it
i2 be holding up the permit until payment is made. 12 doesn’ t change that much.

13 MR. SILVERMAN: You are doing that 13 I mean, the generated funds in this

14 anyway. 14 particular change is not going to be that substantial

i5 MR. MARTINEZ: Actually, you know, what 15 as Mike pointed out. I mean, we are still geing to

16 we are asking for is for the application review to be 16 depend on the others, but, I mean, the idea is that

17 up front. The permit basically comes from that, you 17 the general public has to pay for the auto emissions

ig know. i8 program already, you know, that equates to about §7

18 MR. SILVERMAN: So now the application 19 million, which, right now, it's about, you know, our

20 review fee 1s the full amount of the permit, right? 26 current budget is about $2 million and that’s

21 MR. MARTINEZ: It’s the full amount that 21 pasically all we are trying to make just to cover

22 -~ the application review fee, correct. 22 expenses, so the general public is already paying

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Any other 23 three times the amount that -- actually more than

24 questions? 24 that, you kneow, than our current budget is, and so not

25 MR. BMITH: May I just add to that? 25 only that they are paying for half of the industrial
Page 69

1 THE HEARING OFFICER: VYes. 1 source permitting program, and, you know, we are

2 MR, BMITH: We do have businesses that 2 trying to make this as equitable as possibie, you

3 come in to start permits, and, then, stop, okay, 3 know, short of just basically getting rid of the

4 because of whatever the case may be, the money dried 4 program as a whole, which really doesn’t change

5 up, they weren't being well-received and whatever they 5 anything regulatorily, and it makes it even worse for

3 were going to be billed, and is it then fair for the 6 the industry and the economy because then we don’t run

7 division to have gone through all that work an 7 it, the feds run it, and I guarantee you the feds

g effort? 8 aren’t going teo run it with $2 million, there’s no

9 MR. SILVERMAN: That’s why you are 9 way, but we have created incentives and programs to
10 called public servants, 10 reduce plus, we have created programs that allow the
11 MR. SMITH: I'm sorry, Mr. Silverman, 11 facility to take credit for the good things they do
12 that’s an unfalr statement. 12 within their facility and be able to use those
13 MR. MARTINEZ: If I may, that issue, one i3 emissions for something else, we have created programs
14 of the facts that you have to understand is that 14 that allow the facility to modify certain things, and,
135 currently, for this process, the taxpayers pick up 15 again, you know, federal law allows modifications in
16 most of the program, even with the new fee changes, 16 case of national emergency, so that’s covered there,
17 the taxpayers basically pick up 50 percent of the 17 but, again, still at this point, even with the
18 program and that is through the gross receipt taxes. 18 changes, you know, for the industrial source
19 Federal funding equates to about 20 percent, 19 permitting program, the gross receipts tax still pick
20 even with the changes, what the permitted sources 20 up 50 percent of that program, you know, facilities
21 contribute to maybe running the program is about 30 21 industry is only picking up 30 percent still, and so 1
22 percent, 22 just want to make sure that we keep that in mind, that
23 I mean, you Xnow -- 23 if the money doesn’t come from somewhere, then we are
24 DR. PILON: And that’s the current 24 going to have to go to the taxpayers and that’s not a
25 program? 25 very good thing to do, I mean, in my opinion, when we
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3 are already paying for a substantial amount of the
2 sverall alr gquality permitting programs and air

3 gquality protection programs.

testimonies, you may step forward and ask them
questions.

So 1f anybody from the public would like to

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Thank you, 4 do so, please step forward to the microphone.

5 Myr. Martinez. 3 THE HEARING OFFICER: 5tate your name.

& At this -~- My, Silverman? & MR. GRANDJEAN: Mlchael Grandjean,

7 MR. SILVERMAN:@ I need to leave and I 7 Grr-a-n-ded-g-a-n.

g just want to apologize to the members of the public 2 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, sir.

] rhat I won’t pe able to personally hear thelr 9 MR. GRANDJBEAN: 1 have a question
10 testimony, but I do have another commitment that I 10 concerning the agbestos portion, and I understand
1% need to get to. 11 there is going to be some administrative fees and I am
12 I will read the transcript and I asgsume we 12 not sure how the administrative fees ave going to work
13 are not voting on this tonight since we didn’t have a 13 and are they going toe be, you know, for inspections,
14 guorum. 14 for additional ingpections or for any of those kind of
15 THE HEARING OFFICER: That’s correct, 15 things?

16 it’s not on the agenda of the board this evening. 16 How does that work?y

17 MR, SILVERMAN: I thought it was. 17 MR. SMITH: I am sorry?

i8 THE HEARING OFFICER: It wag, but it's 18 MR. MARTINEZ: The administrative fees,

18 been moved. 19 what Mr. sSmith mentioned, administrative fees, it’'s

20 MR. SMITH: We were going to ask that 20 things that are related to photocopying, asking, you

21 the hearing record be open for twe weeks. 21 know, sometimes we have reguests.

22 THE HEARING OFFICER: 1 suspect it will 22 I will give you a great example: The

23 be on the next. 23 Pondercsa Pine Potters file, that’s like six drawers,

24 MR. SILVERMAN: I am ocut of town the 24 and sc the time it takes for us to make those copiles

25 last week of February. 25 and run that, what he is referring to, not anything
Page 73 Page 15

1 MR. SMITH: Well, just the hearing 1 related to inspections as far as the asbestes program

2 record will ke held open until the 26th, and, then, at 2 is concerned, there are no changes from the previous

3 the regularly scheduled Alr Board meeting, we will 3 regulation with the exception of making sure that

4 have a discussion and vote on it. 4 payment is attached to the application, that is the

& THE HEARING OFFICER: Next board 5 only change that was proposed for that.

& meeting? & MR. GRANDJEAN: Okay. Thank you.

7 MR. SILVERMAN: That’'s fine. 7 THE HEARING OFFICER: Please state your

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr. 8 name.

9 Silverman. 9 MR. CAUDILL: My name is Larry Caudill.
10 MR. SILVERMAN: My apologies to my other 10 I live at 4519 Watercrest and I want to ask a specific
11 board members. 11 question about the fee for surface disturbance
12 THE HEARING OFFICER: At this time, this 12 permits.

13 portion of the hearing will now be -- any member of 13 THE HEARING OFFICER: Please proceed,

14 the public may step forth and ask questions of the 14 MR. CAUDILL: I notice there was no

15 cities staff regarding this proposed detail i5 mentioen of any waiving of fees or exemptions or rate

186 replacement of part 2 of the regulations; in other 16 structure, whatever, for public projects, and often,

17 words, just like the Air Quality Board members have 17 the fees are walved because it takes money in one

i8 asked the staff questions, any member of the public i8 department and puts it into another, and I am just

19 may step forward, just state your name and you can ask 19 curious as to the steps or action to -- did they

20 Mr. Smith, Mr. Martinez, members of the city staff 20 consider this, and if not, why not; or 1f they did

21 questions. 21 consider it, why was it not -~

22 You cannot give testimony, that’s a different 22 MR. SMITH: We don’t propose to waive

23 portion of this public hearing; rather, this is just 23 any fee for public organizations, nor do we waive any

24 your opportunity if you have guestions about the 24 fee for permitting, for what it costs for a public

25 regulation and Mr. Smith’s and Mr. Martinez’ 25 organization; let’s say the public works department or
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H the treatment plant or the landfill also was a major 1 You can deal with a 25-acre site reasonably
2 rce and they are algo required to pay fees, so all 2 well. TIf you double the size of that site to 50
3 sources would be required to pay fees, yes. 3 acres, the rate of erosion, and, therefore, the
4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Does any olther 4 quantity of airborne particulates increases
5 member of the publlc have any guestions for the city 5 geomstrically, it’s at least four times as bad as a
& gsraff regarding the VPO replacement of part 27 3 25-acre site, sc what we should be looking at if we
Gkay. At this polnt, the hearing will now 7 want to effect a change in air quality is that a part
El shift to any individual organizatian or public member 2 of the permitting process would be some incentive to
3 who wishes Lo give testimony regarding the proponent; 9 reduce the total acres disturbed at any one time in
in other words, in faver of this repeal and 10 any ong proje so 1 would suggest that there be an
11 replacemant, please :p forward and give testimony. 11 escalating fee schedule for each 25-acre increment and
12 Again, Mr. Caudill, please state your full 12 that it should basically go¢ up, perhaps even double,
i3 name . 13 with each increment; in other words, if it’s §$100 for
14 MR. CRUBILL: Larry Caudill, 4915 14 a 25-acre project, it would be $200 for a 50-acre
15 Watercrest, Northeast, Albuquerque, New Mexico, 87113, 15 project and s0 on.
16 THE HEARING OFFICER: Before you begin, 16 There is absolutely a very direct correlation
17 Mr. Caudill, now that you have given testimony, please 17 in terms of the guantity of the dust and the
18 De SWOLRN. 18 difficulty in dealing with it. An additional
is LARRY CAUDILL 19 advantage here would be that this would stimulate the
20 after having been first duly sworn under oath, 20 development community and their engineers to engineer
21 testified as follows: 21 projects incrementally or in phases that would allow
22 THE HEARING OFFICER: Please proceed, 22 for putting a portion of the job to bed before they
23 sir 23 disturb the ne portion, projects can be engineered
24 MR. CAUDILL: Agaln, my comments are 24 incrementally.
25 spacific te the surface disturbance permitting fee 25 The tendency of some of our tunpel vision
Page 77 Page 79
1 process, and for those that I am not acquainted with, i engineers is to attack the world at ore whack and that
2 H point out that for 15 years, 1 did the dust 2 increases the insult to the environment and to the
3 control work for the city of Albuguerque and so what I 3 neighpbors signrificantly. This would provide an
4 ask and what I say has some basis in experience and 4 incentive to do things in a more responsible way.
5 it’s from that point of view that I would raise the 5 I would point out that a number of projects
6 following issues: First of ail, I support the fee 6 have involved this process, Cottonwood Mall, Vista Del
7 increase for service disturbance permitting. 7 Norte, recent industrial parks in the north portion of
8 The circumference, the area under 8 the city have been held and the permitting process to
9 consideration, is in excess of 100 miles, that’s how S require that they not be allowed to disturb more thar
10 long -~ that’s the distance around the typical service i0 perhaps a guarter to a third of the Jjob at any one
il area that is invoived, And in recent years, 98 and 11 time just as a condition of the permit.
12 799, approximately 300 permits were issued, 275 in 12 Thirdly, there is no provision for penalty if
i3 ’98 and 295 in 799, I don’t know what the total was 13 the actual disturbance area exceeds that permitted and
14 in 2000, but that’s a terrific work load and involves 14 on which the per-acre fee is based. It’s very cCOmmoOn
15 an awful lot of staff, time and energy to even begin 15 for a contractor to come in and get a permit for an
16 to keep up with, and for the time that I was doing i6 acre and tear up the acre next door, parking, driving,
17 that, we did not have this additional support that 17 stacking dirt pile, materials and so forth and so on,
18 this fee increase would provide, so I am heartily in 18 so I suggest as a disincentive to be very conservative
1% favor of a fee for this work. 19 in their estimate of the disturbance area, that they
20 I don’t, however, believe it goes far 20 pay a doubled fee for any excess beyond that which is
21 enough. As I will illustrate for you in the near 21 originally permitted.
22 future, either the next meeting or the meeting after 22 Either adjacent or remote, what I mean by
23 that, depending on the pleasure of the board, there is 23 remote, suppose they are bringing in dirt from another
24 a very direct correlation between the slze of the area 24 site or stockpiling dirt from their site onto another
25 disturbed and its capacity to generate particulates. 25 parcel, it may be clear across town, they may not
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i congider that in their original permit and they 1 you’ll see clty rtrucks oub there plcking up
Z certainly should pecause it’s all tied together ag a 2 Lumbleveeds pli nigh as this city bullding
3 part of that one project. 3 because adjacent land wasn’t stabllized and ft’'s
4 Finally, no provision is made for public 4 turbed and unrevegetated and unre ded land that
K] gector projects in terms of a -- gome sort of 4 5 produces the weeds, again, a savings vo the city and a
6 different fee schedule or waiving of fees or something & benefit to the city that ocours.
7 of that sort. 7 Rg part of this process, I will provide
2 1f there is to be a sliding scale for g written testimony within that specified time, and I
k] disturbance excesding 25 acres, say, and that’s not 9 stand for g fong
10 fact at thisg moment, but I would suggest that it be it HEARING OF
i1 considered, then there should be a provision for 13
12 dealing with projects that are not speculative in 12 Members of the staff, any questions of Mr,
13 nature, such a8 industrial parks, residential areas, 12 Caudill?
14 subdivisions and so forth, but which are of necessity 14 I"m sorry, Steve, go ahead.
15 involving so many acres, example, Bilg I, they didn’t 15 DR, PILON: You say that an area of 23
16 have a whole lot of choice about that one because 16 acres i the impact and is much smaller than an area
17 that’s just how big the project was, $o there needs to 17 of 50 acres. HNow, obviously, if you had 25 one-parcel
18 be some consideration given to speculative disturbance 18 acres, the impact would be much smaller, so you are
19 versus necessary disturbance. 19 saying that the bigger the contiguous area, the longer
20 Something that is overlooked here, and this 20 the impact even for the game number of acres
21 was discussed by staff in terms of the problems we are 21 disturbed?
22 experiencing with particulates prevention, is 22 MR. CAUDILL: That’s correct, the reason
23 absolutely the best way te deal with airborne 23 being that on the edge of a disturbing parcel, the
24 particulates from soil disturbance; therefore, things 24 greater the distance blows across that surface, the
25 like holding down the size of the area disturbed, 25 more the waves bu
Page 81 Page 83
1 requiring stabilization on completien or stabilization 1 The same thing applies to moving material or
2 on an incrementing basis and certainly stabilization 2 suspended load, 1f we are talking wind, which is also,
3 of excess disturbance area, that is that which is not 3 you know, that’s a fluid working on a solid surface as
4 developed and just left behind, all of these things 4 opposed to water, but as those particles are knocked
5 should be considered in the permitting process, and I 5 loose, each one NOx loose more and that one NOx its
6 would point cut that there are a lot of other benefits 6 share, so you may have, in fact, a logarithm increase
7 to this process, as well, that I would call collateral 7 in moving material on a site as you proceed across it
g or incidental benefits and these include things like 8 and at an absolute minimum, there is a geometric
9 traffic safety. g increase at least four times as difficult to deal with
10 In terme of visibility, I have seen dirt flow 10 because of accelerated erozion rates and the greater
11 from sites so severely that you absolutely could not volume of airborne materials, and by ~-- it’s possible
12 see peyond the hood ornament of your vehicle. That 12 to do this incrementally.
13 creates a significant accident hazard, when streets 13 If a guy has a 100-acre site he wants to tear
14 blow full of sand, that sands has to be picked up by 14 up, what’s wrong with a reguirement that says we will
i5 somebody . 15 give you 25 acres at a time and when you put that 2%
16 Recently, it has been the person who caused 16 to bed, you can de¢ the next 257
17 the mess because that’s what's required in the 17 DR. PILON: So what you are proposing is
18 permit. Prior to that being implemented, it was 18 a fee schedule that reflects that?
19 common for the city to take city equipment and city 19 MR. CAUDILL: Not necessarily the whole
20 crews to clean up a mess created by the private 20 hundred acres, but maybe he could do it on a 25-acre
21 sector, s$o those costs went to the public at large and 21 rotating basis. The example was used of Ventana
22 that’s simply not right. 22 Ranch. I can assure you that all 900 acres have not
23 Another benefit of stabilization would be to 23 and will net be torn up, they do it in parcels, and so
24 cover these bare areas with native vegetation rather 24 he iz not looking at, you know, $90,000 in a given
25 than tumbleweeds. I guarantee you, this spring, 28 time frame, over the total development of the
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1 project.

do you agree with his assessment that the size of --

2 Yes, I would agree that that’s the case, but 2 the actual size of the project has a significant

3 the thing we don’t consider is the public costs 3 impact on the amount of particulate matter generated

4 associated with hig fallure to contrel that material, 4 by a projecty

5 clean up of the streets, clean up of adjacent 5 I mean, that 25 cne-acre projects are going
g preperty, clean up of drainage works. & to develsp less than one 25-acre project?

7 Again, I have got some slides that will 7 MR. MARTINEZ: Actually, Mr. Caudill’s

8 illustrate this very graphically, d4s Mr. Olona will 8 comments on basically the dispersion of physics full

8 testify, and 1 hope we will be able to provide those 9 of an area, certainly, & disturbed area, they are

10 to you in the near future. 10 correct, and we don’t have any disagreement with that
1i THE HEARING OFFICER: Jeanne? i1 particular -- with that lssue.

1z M3. BASSETT: Will your testimony have 12 I think that one of the things that we rook
i3 more specifics about actually how you would do the fes 13 into consideration and we don’t disagree with, the

14 structure? 14 validity of having sort of a sliding scale, dependent
15 MR. CAUDILL: Yes, the way I proposed it 15 on ~= you Xnow, dependent on an area disturbed because
16 would be a doubling of fees for each increment. 16 yes, there is a higher impact.

iz MS. BASSETT: Right, so you’ll get into 17 I think what ~- you know, we have had this

18 those details. 18 program in place for, as Mr. Caudill pointed out, 15
19 MR. CAUDILL: Yes, ma’am, as far as 19 years., In 15 years, this program basically has been
20 permitting, time frames of the permits that were 20 funded out of other programs that have come in, again,
21 issued in 798 and 799, and I suspect that Mike and his 21 out of basically taxpayers’ money that comes in, too,
22 crew are holding pretty much to the same numbers. We 22 so for 15 years, thls program has not been funded at
23 turned completed permits arcund in five and a half to 23 all, this is our first fee that was set up for this
24 gix days, that’s about as fast as you can get a permit 24 program.
25 for anything, for anything, anywhere, anyplace. 25 I don't really -- you know, as things change

Page 85 Page 87

1 Now, that’s completed permits that don’t have 1 you know, 1 do see, you know, in another five, 10

2 to go back because the guy didn’'t follow very complete 2 years for this fee to change based, you know, on

3 instructions on the back of the form; in other words, 3 circumstances, but, you know, since it is the first

4 there is very little excuge for turning in an 4 we are trying to make it as simple as possible,

5 inadeguate package because there are very good 5 We do feel, you know, that it is, you know,

6 directions that tell you exactly what to do and why 3 going from paying nothing to disturb a 40-acre site,

7 it’s required. 7 to paying $100 per each acre; that, in itself, is a

8 And so the numbers that I gave you for 8 disincentive, you know, and basically, it requires

9 turnaround time on permits relate to review, which 9 that much effort.

10 includes a site vigit, it's very important to know 10 You know, if, indeed, you know, we continue
i1 what’s around that site, what its grade is relative to 11 to see the same trends that we have seen in the past
12 surrounding property, things of this sort, and they 12 years of how much soll was actually disturbed in one
13 were still turned around and that’s a pretty good 13 shot, you know, if anything, at this point, we will be
14 record. 14 able to potentially fund additional personnel to take
15 I mean, that’'s nothing for the city to be 15 care of that, but, again, I mean, I don’t have any

16 ashamed of for a second. I know that’s not true in 16 disagreements with Mr., Caudill’s comments, you know,
17 very many cases, but I am not responsible for what 17 but what we are attempting to do at this point is, you -
18 other departments do. 18 know, being the first fee ever in 15 years developed
19 DR, PILON: Are we allowed to sort of 19 for this particular program, you know, to keep it as
20 ask the city, the department folks, to respond to what 20 simple as we can, keep it as still be able to pay,
21 he is saying, or is that like inappropriate? 21 again, we are not going to be able to pay for the
22 THE HEARING OFFICER: ¥No, you can ask 22 entire program, but pay for the majority of the
23 the city if they have any response to Mr. Caudill’s 23 program.

24 suggestions or comments. 24 THE HEARING OFFICER: The other thing
25 DR. PILON: Do you guys have anything -- 25 you can de, Dr. Pilon, because the record is being
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H neld open for two weeks, is once Mr. Caudill submits 1 well.
2z his written suggestions, you can ask in a board 2 Any other guestions of Mr. Caudiiip?
3 meeting for the city te respond, if that’s your 3 And, as a former poard member, I will suggest
4 degire. 4 to the other -- current board members, 1 have worked
i Any other gquestions by board members of Mr. 5 with Mr. Caudili in the past, he has some excellent
3 Caudill? & edueaticnal and disturbing slides and photographs --
7 Members of the staff, any guestions for Mr. K MS. BASSETT: No pun intended.
8 Caudilly 8 THE HEARING OFFICER: -- of the dust
2 Any member of the public can step forward and 9 control proplems and I think at another time, we can
10 ask questions of Mr. Caudill at this time if they so 10 arrange for Mr. Smith to have Mr. Caudllil give you a
13 decide. i1 pregsentation.
12 MR. CAUDILL: May I be allowed a final 12 MR. CAUDILL: Thank yeu, Mr. Chairman
13 comment? 13 for those Xind commants. 1t's my intention -~ 1
14 THE HEARING OQFFICER: Please do. 14 mentioned t a couple months ago and I was going to
15 MR. CAUDILL: The stated intent of the 15 do it npw, but they indicared there was to be a
16 fee was to deal with our problems, our growing 16 hearing this month, so my intent ig to request a slot
17 problems with particulates. One of the best ways to 17 on the agenda for next month’s meeting.
18 do that is to reduce the active disturbance area in a 18 It will be the heart of the dust season,
19 disturbance at any given time, and I promise you 19 so~called windy season, so it will be timely,
20 you’ll see that this spring, I have already seen it a 20 informative and highly educational, I promise you.
21 couple of times on some big subdivisions on the west 21 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr.
22 side which I can see clear acrosgs town, the average 22 Caudill, it’s always a pleasure, your testimony, and,
23 gize of the parcel based on averages of 10 of those 15 23 also, ag my former high school biology teacher and
24 years, year in, year out, it averages within half an 24 former high school tennis coach, it’s always a
25 acre to 10 acres per permit, so if you issue 300 25 pleasure to see you again.
Page 89 Page 91
1 permits in a year, you have experienced 3,000 i Thank you.
2 disturbed acres in that year or something very close 2 MR, CAUDILL: Thank you, Mr. Hearing
3 te it, and that is the most effective way to deal with 3 Officer, I didn’t Know I was goling to have such good
4 particulates from that source is to simply reduce the 4 infiuence on him to become a lawyer. I hope that’s
5 amount of active disturbed area open and unstabilized 5 good influence.
& at any one time. & THE HEARING OFFICER: Maybe you should
7 I would point out that you can go in and 7 have taught me to play better tennis.
8 mulch and stabllize an area, effectively taking it out 8 All right. Does any other individual or
9 of the base of that which reduces blowing particulates 9 organization wish to step forward and give testimony
10 and it's put te bed, you can forget about it, and at 10 in favor of this repeal and/or replacement of part 27
11 that point, then proceed to the next portion and you 11 If so, please step forward and give testimony.
12 could do the same amount of disturbance at, 12 Okay. Now, we will go to the fun part. We
13 essentilally, the same cost, but without the 13 are back on the record again, it’s five minutes after
14 environmental insult that accompanies the larger 14 7:00 and we will now proceed with the next phase of
15 parcel disturbance. 15 the hearing, which is those individuals and/or
16 THE, HEARING OFFICER: Are you no longer, 16 organizations who wish to give testimony to the board
17 for lack of better terminology, the dust control 17 regarding the opposition of the repeal or replacement
18 monitor? 18 of part 2, 1 would agk you to step forward and give
19 MR. CAUDILL: I retired a year ago. 18 testimeny. There is a sign-up sheet, put I don’'t
20 THE HEARING OFFICER: I’'m sorry to hear 20 believe we need to go in order of the sign-up sheet
21 that. 21 just come on forward and give your name, be sworn in,
22 MR. CAUDILL: I was, too, it wasn’t my 22 give your testimony.
23 intent, but circumstances changed and I decided it was 23 Please state your name, sir.
24 the best for me to hit the trail. 24 MR, Du MOND: Mike du Mond.
25 THE HEARING OFFICER: Fine. I wish you 25 THE HEARING OFFICER: Do you represent
Page 90 Page 32
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H an organization? H Boulevard, Southeast, which is situated in the eastern
2 MR. du MOND: I repregent Sandia P portion of Kirtliand Air Force Base across the street

3 Hational Laboratories. 3 from the Atomic Mugeum.

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Please 4 Exhibit 1 is a map giving the boundaries of

5 raise your right hand and be sworn. 5 the Alr Force pase and the steam plant’s location

& MIKE du MOND & relative to the east mountain community and downtown

7 after having been first duly sworn under cath, 7 Albugquerque- .

g testiftied as follows: ] Exhiblt 2 is a photograph of the steam plant

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: Could you please El looking north, with the three smaller units, boilers
10 give your professional address before you begin your 10 1, 2 and 3, on lefr, and the two larger units

i1 testimony, sir. 1% bollers 5 and 6, on the right. Boiler number 4 was

12 MR, du MOND: Yes, my address is Post 12 removed in 2000,

13 Office Box 3800, Albuguergue, New Mexico, zip code 13 THE HEARING OFFICER: Can @ stop you for
14 87185-1042. 14 4 quick second, Mr. du Mond. I apologize.

is THE HEARING OFFICER: Please proceed, 15 Are you going Lo place these exhibits into

16 Mr. du Mond, 16 evidence?

17 MR. du MOND: Good evening, my name is 17 MR, du MOND: Yes, 1 am.

18 Mike du Mond, I am an employee of Sandia Corporation 18 THE HEARING OFFICER: How many exhibits
19 or Sandia. My current responsibilities are as project 19 do you have?
20 leader of the air guality compliance team at Sandia 20 MR. du MOND: Six in total.
21 National Laboratories/New Mexico, located out at 21 THE HEARING OFFICER: I’m sorry, please
22 Kirtland Alr Force Base. 22 proceed,

23 Sandia is a research and development 23 MR. du MOND: The steam plant is DOE’s
24 laboratory owned by the United States Department of 24 largest source of air emissions and has the potential
25 Energy and operated by Sandia for DOE. 25 of pbeing a major source under the Clean Air Act’s
Page 93 Page 95

i I am here today to ghare with you our view of H Title V operating permit program.

2 the importance and positive impact of retaining the 2 A le V operating permit appilication was

3 annual emissions inventory provision of Title 20, 3 submitted to the City of Albugquerque on March ist

4 Chapter 11, Part 02, permit fees, of the board’s air 4 1996 and the application was deemed complete on May

5 quality control regulations. 5 lst, 1996.

& We pelieve that removing the provision will & An updated application was reguested by the

7 have a negative effect on our operations., As 7 city and resubmitted on February 23rd, 1998.

8 currently promulgated, the provision allows an annual 8 The existing provision was found at part 02

9 accounting of emissions and provides a means for 9 Section 2.4F and reads: “An annual emissions

10 Sandia to implement pollution prevention or p-2 10 inventory may be submitted for review by the

11 activities to reduce actual emissions. 11 department for the purpose of annual fee adjustments.
12 Sandia as the prime contractor to DOE is 12 This shall be restricted to sources with established
13 responsible for research and development supporting 13 permit allowable emission rates or sources which have
14 national security interests. In support of this 14 submitted a timely permit application pursuant to Part
15 mission, Sandia’s steam plant supplies an average 1.5 15 42, Section 1.2.2A.2.

16 million pounds per day of saturated steam for space i6 "The emissions inventories shall be submitted
17 heating and laboratory processes for Sandia’s 17 to the department by no later than June lst, 1997 and
18 technical Area One and an eastern portion of Kirtland 18 by April lst each year thereafter for review
19 Air Force Base. 19 consideration for every year an adjustment is sought.
20 The primary fuel is natural gas with diesel 20 "Within 30 days of receipt, the department
21 fuel for backup. The five bollers range in rated 21 will bill the source for the review pursuant to Table
22 capacity from 60,000 to 150,000 pounds of steam per 22 One of this part. Any adiustments to the source’s
23 nour. The steam plant has been in continuous 23 permitted or otherwise established emission fee shall
24 operation since 1949. 24 be incorporated and adjusted and billed in accordance
25 Sandia’s steam plant is located along Wyoming 25 with the building schedule provisions of this part."
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1 This provision became effective on May 30th, 1997. 1 fusl and reductions in emissions fees. Without the
2 Exhibit 3 is a table of Sandia’s submissions 2 financial incentives, these studies may not have been
3 snder thig annual emissions inventory provision. The 3 initiated,
) first column is the calendar year in which the annual 4 Sandia next embarked on carrying out the
5 emissions were inventoried beginning in 1997 with a 5 recommendations of its study. During the
& calendar year 2000 emissions to be submitted by April 6 poiler-tuning phase, the three smaller bollers were
7 1, 2001. 7 tuned during the summer of 1987, while the two larger
8 the second column is Sandia’s actual 8 poilers were tuned in the winter of 1998.
9 inventory reported for that year with the majority of 9 Exhibit 4 shows the graph of the results of
0 the emisgions from the steam plant and only a few tons i0 the boiler tuning with, in some cases, a several
11 per year from the standby diesel generator power 11 percentage point increase over the baseline values.
12 plant, 12 During the reprogramming phase, the new
13 The third column 1s the annual Title V fee i3 operational ranges were coded into the software. The
14 calculated from the actual emissions in column two 14 evaluation phase evaluating each boiler and the
15 times $31 per ton. 15 feasibility of installing emission reduction
16 The fourth column is the $1,000 fee from part 16 equipment.
17 02’s Table 1, fee number 7, annual emissions inventory 37 The 1999 emission reduction phase involved
18 review for major source emissions fee adjustment. 18 retrofitting FGR in boilers 5 and 6 while the 2000
19 The final column is the sum of the two 19 phase involved retrofitting FGR on boller 3 to
20 previous columns ylelding the total fee agsessed for 20 evaluate potential performance for boilers 1 and Z.
21 each calendar year. 21 Again, the tuning and subseguent installation of
22 When the annual emissions inventory provision 22 emissions reduction eguipment were funded based on
23 of part 02 became effective in May 1997, Sandia 23 return of investment, or ROI strategy. Without the
24 recognized an opportunity to reduce its fees by 24 reduction in emissions fee, these projects may not
25 reducing its actual emissions. 25 have been funded.
Page 97 Page 99
1 Because the steam plant is the largest source 1 As a direct result of this effort, the
2 of actual emissions, a study was conducted in 1997 at 2 operation of the steam plant is estimated to be 1.5
3 the steam plant to determine if operational 3 percent more fuel efficient,
4 improvements could be accomplished. 4 The fuel efficiency results in a total NOx
5 As the largest pollutant, the primary goal 5 reduction of 2.3 tons per year, tpy, of actual
& wag to determine if nitrogen oxide or NOx emissions 6 emissions with an additional 44.4 tpy of actual NOx
7 could be minimized. The initial focus was to reduce 7 reduction from FGR cn three bollers.
8 emissions by maximizing combustion efficiency, and, 8 Exhibit 5 is a table showing an analysis of
9 hence, reduce fuel usage and emissions. 9 sandia’s emission reduction efforts, The first column
10 The first phase of the study included 10 is a progression of improvements starting with the
11 evaluating the tuning of the five bolilers and 11 baseline in 1997, followed by boiler tuning, and,
iz reprogramming the boiler’s digital control system, or 12 then, two phases of FGR retrofit.
13 DCS. Process optimirzation, that is, operating the 13 The second column is the potential NOx
14 more efficient bollers to cover the steam demands, was 14 emissions starting with the baseline value and
15 also evaluated. 15 decreasing with each improvement. The third column is
16 In addition, the study evaluated if 16 the cost savings from boiler tuning and the reduced
17 installation of additional emission reduction 17 fuel consumption based on 1997 natural gas rates.
18 equipment such as flue gas for recirculation, or FGR, 18 The fourth column is the cost of these
19 could effectively reduce emissions. 19 pollution prevention efforts. The final column is the
20 The study concluded that an increase in fuel 20 payback in years based on initial fuel savings. The
21 efficiency and decrease in emissions could be realized 21 cost of retrofitting FGR in boilers 1 and 2 is
22 through boiler tuning, process optimization and 22 estimated at $120,000.
23 installation of emission reduction equipment. 23 Exhibit 6 is a list of the awards recelved
24 These studies were funded partially based on 24 for the emission reduction efforts at the steam
25 the Y“return on investment® related to the savings of 25 plant. The joint industry and government pollution
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i prevention alr guallty award f{rom the ¥ew Mexico

2 fach

ities managers from the natwork, in conjunction

epportunities to reduce actual emissions in our

communiLy.

3 with the City of Albugquerque, was issued in 1897 as a 3 Thank you for your consid cion and 1°d be
4 pollution prevention honorable mention te Sandia for 4 happen to apswer any questions.
5 "Demonstrating exemplary management commitment Lo the 5 THE HEARING OFFICER: At this time, I
3 environment.” The joint industry and government & would admit Sandia National Laboratory’s Exhibits 1
7 pollution prevention award in 1999 was for the large 7 through 6 into the record.
8 industry air quality award category issued to Sandla g Do you have the originals, Mr. du Mond?
2 for their reduction of alr emissions through "process 9 MR. du MOND: I do.
10 optimization projects.™ 10 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Can you
i1 An honorable mention joint industry and i1 hand thoge to Mr. Smith and he will get them to me to
12 government pollution prevention award in 2000 was for 12 make sure they are admitted into the record, and,
13 the innovative P-2 award category issued to Lhe 13 also, before we begin gquestioning your testimony, for
14 Department of Energy and Sandia for thelr continued 14 the record, I have 4lso received page 8 of Exhipit -~
i5 "reduction of air emissions through process 15 of Staff Exhibit 11, which was missing, and I will now
16 optimization project.” 16 place that into the record.
17 Governor Gary Johnson presented the 2000 17 T understand members of the bcard have
18 commitment level award for the Green Zla Environmental 18 received coples, and, members of the public, page 8
19 Excellence programs at Sandia’s steam plant, "Hereby 19 has been distributed.
20 commits to environmental excellence by integrating the 20 Thank you.
21 gore values of the Green Zia program, which are 21 Okay. Questions?
22 management commitment, efficient product process and 22 M5, BASSETT: Thank you, Mr. du Mond,
23 service design, partnerships, valuing employees and 23 for your testimony. I was just a little confused. So
24 continuous improvement and learning into daily 24 you are saying that under this new fee structure that
25 business practices. 25 if you estimate yocur tennage and you pay a certain fee
Page 101 Page 103
1 "Purthermore, your commitment to seek 1 that the idea as running as an efficlent government
2 continuous improvement in these efforts demonstrates 2 agency, you want to reduce your fee to next year, and
3 leadership in providing a safe and healthy workplace, 3 let’s fust take a net thousand tons and you pay X
4 assuring a clean community and contributing to the 4 amount for that thousand tons and you decide well,
5 ourganization’s economic well-being." BSandia also has 5 actually, we want to be more efficient because we
3 issued several interpnal awards. 6 ended up not using that thousand tons that we thought
7 Az a result of the experiences with the 7 we might, and so we want to reduce our fees, so we
8 annual emissioneg inventory, Sandia has concluded that 8 will implement these types of programs so that ocur fee
9 it encourages pollution activities to reduce actual - is less the following year?
i0 emisszions, 10 I don’t understand why you wouldn’t still get
11 If the retrofit of boilers 1 and 2 with FGE 11 to energy efficient programs by -- 1f reducing your
12 is funded, Sandia will have gpent nearly a 12 fees is your goal, you still want to reduce yosur fees,
13 half-a-million dollars to reduce emissions. 13 right?
14 Without this existing provision in part 02, 14 I don’t know why this would change that.
15 there would not have been the financial incentive to 15 MR. du MOND: Under the current
i6 reduce actual emissions. As noted, our first goal of 16 provision where we can apply for and be billed on
17 reducing emissions focused on receiving the "biggest 17 actual emissions, there is that real incentive under
18 bang for the buck" by targeting the largest source of 18 the proposed plan to eliminate, basically, that
19 emissions, and, hence, realizing the largest reduction 19 provision, so we would pay on this potential to emit,
20 in actual emission fees and emission fees. 20 so even though our actual emissions are actually going
21 As we carry forward towards more P~2 options 21 down where we should realize some cost savings, we are
22 to reduce emissions, the reduction fees will become 22 still paying this potential to emit fee.
23 more and more important to fund the projects. 23 MS. BASSETT: But, I mean, if you are
24 If we remove this option to have our fees 24 doing your palancing properly, you would pay for --
25 based on potential emissions, we are removing 25 what you are estimating to emit would be based on real
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1 numbers. 1 unforeseen variations in the amount of emissions that
2 1 mean, I assume you would go back over five 2 are to be produced because of changes 1 natural gas,
3 years and look at what you have usually emitted and do 3 that kind of thing, but what your original

4 some sort of average and pay that. If it turns out 4 presentation was about was the incentive to continue

5 you use less than that, then the incentive would be to 5 making efficiency improvements.

6 guarantee you use less than that the following year by 6 1 don’t see how that is affected by the

7 implementing energy-efficient measures to make sure 7 proposed changes if you are ratcheting down the amount
8 that next year, you buy one that’s 300 tons, because 8 of emissions you are expected to produce, Sandia Labs
9 you have actually -~ you know, you have done energy 9 can ratchet down the amount of the emissions that they
10 efficient programs and you’re going to reduce your 10 permit, and it seems to me that the savings, if

1 emissions. il instead of -- well, one of my guestions is exactly

12 MR. du MOND: Correct. 12 okay, you have 71 tons per year of emissions in 2000,
13 MS. BASSETT: I guesg I don’t see why 13 what is your current permit for?

14 you don’t get at the same end result. 14 MR, du MOND: Our Current one -- we

15 MR. du MOND: Okay. Your analogy of 15 den't have a permit, we have an application that we

16 buying a permit is not guite accurate. We apply for a i6 Filed in 1996.

17 permit based on our expected emissions and we also 17 DR. PILON: Well, what’s your potential
18 have to remain flexible based on our demand. A third 18 to emit at this point?

19 of our steam production actually goes to Kirtland Air 19 MR. du MOND: Our potential to emit, and
20 Force Base. 20 this is unreasonable, but it’s based on as if all five
21 If they were to change their operations, that 21 poilers are operating all the time, every day, all
22 would increase the steam demand. Also, as a 22 year round, on both natural gas and on 0il, which is
23 contractor with DOE, we have to meet the emission 23 impossible.
24 goals, so we have to be flexible and we have to 24 DR. PILON: So it sounds like there is
25 provide that steam demand. 25 plenty of room to bring down your application to the

Page 105 page 107

1 As you are aware, the last several winters 1 amount that you are actually applying for, and as I

4 have been relatively mild, so these numbers actually 2 understand, the department folks are saying “Yes, we

3 reflect those mild winters. And with the crisis in 3 want to get a better handle on really" -- Ywe want the
4 california, with the natural gas rates going up, our 4 permitted emissions to really more accurately reflect
& steam plant is actually dual-fueled. 5 what the sources are emitting"?

6 We normally burn natural gas. We can burn 3 MR. du MOND: That's correct, and we

7 diesel, in fact, we are burning more diesel now to 7 have looked into that, but if the proposed rule goes

8 offset the increased cost of burning natural gas, and 8 through as planned and we pay more for some potential
9 pecause of this, our potential to emit is based on 9 that we are not actually emitting, then to us, that
10 poth fuels and we cannet purn both fuels 10 cuts into funds that we could apply towards these P-2
11 simultaneously, but in a permit, we have to have that 11 projects of further emission reductions, actual
12 capaplility. 1z emission reductions; instead of paying the fee, you

13 In fact, in the past, PNM has asked us to i3 know, we would actually be paying it to some kind ~-
14 curtail our natural gas consumption so that Four Hills 14 putting it to some kind of beneficial use.
15 and other portions of the city could have gas, and so 15 MS. BASSETT: So if you have applied for
16 we have gone to oil, but we need that capability in 16 a permit now and you are permitted to -- you actually
17 our permit to be able to meet that demand, so I don’t 17 gave us an area that’s actually impossible, so how
18 know if that guite answers your guestion. 18 would you solve what we are hearing from the
19 M5, BASSETT: No. Thank you. 19 administrative staff, that, you know, we have got this
20 THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other 20 problem where entities like yourself are making an
21 questions? 21 impossible amount, if, God forbid, what happens, so
22 Steve? 22 then what would be ycur selution because you are
23 DR. PILON: I understand, I mean, the 23 exactly the kind of entity we are trying to -- you
24 last point you made is similar to the point that Mr. 24 know, you are holding up all this stuff in the bank
25 Silverman was making before that there are sort of 25 account that we then can’t use for economic
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1 gevelopment and other industries, saying “We want o H gee?

2 do thiz and we need this much CO2", and, “Well, sorry, 2 You know, you say the last couple of years

3 Sandia Lab has it all so we can’t give you any," 30 3 have been kind of warm winters and so you don’t have

4 how do we get at this problem? 4 to produce as much steam for heating, but give us a

5 MR. du MOND: That’s correct. One of 5 palipark idea of how much variation we would see in

[ vthe solutions we have looked at is, like you suggest, & this over any two years, you know, figure the coldest

7 possibly applying for a permit to reduce those 7 winter in the last 30 years and the warmesti winter

8 emissions and the question is how far would we reduce 8 over the last 30 years and kind of put yourself in the

9 that and still leave us enough room for the demand, 9 middle there and what kind of variation in emission
1o both from the DOD and the DOE side on the Alr Force 10 are we talking about?

11 pase, and, you know, potential growth of our own 11 MR, du MOND: Well, you could see from
32 facility, change of emissions, plus having to do a 12 the one table, the drop of over 100 tons per year, of
13 fuel capability, is it natural gas or is it ©il, and 13 course, some of that was realized by some of our

14 still, at some point, though, there is golng to be a 14 actual emission reduction, but there is an example of
15 gap between this allowable level and what we are 13 just a four-year psriod right there, and we have had
16 actually emitting, and so there would be some excess 18 values much higher than that.

17 fee payments that would be -- come about from that. 17 people talk about the winter of '71 as some
18 MS. BASSETT: But it seems like with all 18 kind of a baseline.

18 the smart scientists at Sandia Lab, they must pe able 19 THE HEARING OFFICER: I have a4 guestion
20 to calculate it pretty close to what's really going to 20 o€ Mr. Smith before you leave, Mr. du Mond. I

21 happen. 21 understand his problem.

22 MR. du MOND: Right. 22 Is there currently a procedure for a person
23 MS. BASSETT: A little more what the 23 who was issued a permit to amend the permit; in other
24 staff is trying to get at, I have not yet heard a 24 words, it’s getting near that permit level, in order
25 selution, I can understand where you're coming from, 25 te avoid fines or other things, can they then request

page 109 Page 1.1

1 but I also understand what the staff is saying, and I 1 the city to amend the permit?

2 don’t -- I have not yet heard of 4 better way of 2 See what I am getting at?

3 closing that gap, so I am open to it, but it has not 3 MR. SMITH: Yes, there are methods to

4 yet been done. 4 amend the permit, and, as I testified, we are

& MR. du MOND: Well, what we wouldn’t 5 proposing to add even more flexible ways to amend the
4 want to do is somehow be in noncompliance, is reduce [

7 loads to such a point that it would impact our 7 For example, a P-2 modification where -- I

8 emission, our operations and put us in some type of a 8 defined what P-2 meant. Basically, it’s not a

38 bad situation, and, then, other fines would kick in, 9 response to decrease production, it’s not a response
10 which would not be beneficial at all. 106 to controls, but true P-2 would pbe free, we are not
11 M5. BASSETT: So is that the greatest 11 even going to charge for that, we are not going to

12 fear, then, the issue that you cut yourself too close 12 spend time to incur P-2 changes.
13 to what you actually use, and, then, you get into 13 That’s what Mike may be requiring to be more
14 noncompliance? 14 in the line of a more minor permit modification, which
15 MR. du MOND: Yes, that, and like I 15 would probably be fairly quick to obtain without any
16 stated, the facility was originally built in 1949 and 16 problems or, I mean, our regulation has even been

17 is actually grandfathered. It’s the Title V program 17 interpreted to allow for an emission reduction to be
18 that’s come into play since then that is adding some 18 administratively amended, so, yes, I think there are
19 of these additional requirements, so we have had some 19 many other options.
20 long-term history of operations of emissions prior to 20 The thing is we want to get sources into a
21 some of these regulations. 23 federally enforceable permit that we can enforce, as
22 MS. BASSETT: That’s all. 22 opposed to adding, you Kknow, a permit that has so much
23 THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other 23 emissions here that, you know, there 1ls so much gray
24 questions by members of the board? 24 area where the source can be -~ it’s very difficult
25 DR. PILON: So how much variation do you 25 for us to enforce.
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B An analogy for our problem is, you Know, H cf a manufacturing vype of ie where they are

2 potential to emit for a source may be like a Ferrari, 2 actually an an hourly basis trying to get something

3 yet you are only driving in school zones, why do you 3 out, so their situation is actually guite different

4 have this Ferrari 1f all you're geing to do is drive 4 and it’s far more complicated because it lnvolves very
5 in school zones? 5 different types of operations, you know, so we kind of
[ Obviously, there is a reason why you have [ wanted to deal with a facility like that to creats

7 your permit set at higher levels, and we are not 7 incentives within the permit that says “Okay, we Xnow
8 talking about 10 percent higher, we are talking about 8 that you have," you know, ‘“so many boilers, so many

El significant amounts, such as PNM. g generating sets, so many things that equate to so much
10 DR. PILON: 8o what time frame and how 10 emissions, you can assign yourself a specific number
11 much expense are you speaking about for the Sandia 11 to that, and, then, if you do need to increase

12 folks to make a change? 12 somewhere else, then you probably have to modify and
13 Say the winter 1s way colder than they 13 not use some of these other things," that’s probably
14 expected and they have to use diesel instead of 14 e only way that we could do it withocut actually

15 natural gas and they realize that they are geing to be 15 triggering another permit.

i6 cut of compliance with thelr permit, how much money 1is 16 Because 1f there is an actual increase in

17 it going to cost them to make the change and what time 17 what’s already an enforceable document, you Know, say
18 frame are they golng to have to be able to see ahead? 18 go back to those thousand tons, 1f the document says
18 MR, du MOND: I would assume that that's 19 you are allowed to emit a thousand tons, and here is a
20 probably an alternative. 20 big document that says how we are golng to ensure that
21 MR. SMITH: I think you are talking 21 you stav within those thousand tons, you know, if, for
22 apout a permit. 22 some reason, they need to go to 1,100, then that is
23 MR. MARTINEZ: I think what we are 23 going to trigger a permit modification, that is going
24 talking about here is two different things, we are 24 to require public comment review because yocu have to
25 talking about making sure that the board understands, 25 inform the public that you are increasing the
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1 and { think that the public understands, that we have 1 potential impact of that area, so there is really no
2 not really created -- we feel strongly that we have 2 way that I could think of of getting out of that,

3 not c¢reated a disincentive for sources to go in there 3 other than going through a full permitting process.

4 and modify their source, and in a way, that lowers 4 If you are going to increase the emissions

5 thelr emissions. 3 that you are allowed to do, regardiess of the changes
6 I think that’s still there and we are not 6 you know, if they need to increase now, they would

7 going to charge for that review, but what we are 7 have to come in for a permit modification.

g saying its that if you want to take credit for that 8 If they have to decrease now, they could

g particular reduction, then it has to be within the 9 actually deo it through administrative modification,

10 enforceable limits of a permit, you know; otherwlse, 10 and there is no charge for that and that will stay the
11 you really don’t get credit for that. 11 same.

12 Now, the other things, the other issue that 12 One of the things I want to also point out is
13 Mr. du Mond is asking is that increase -- that’s kind i3 that when you look at the productions and the way the
14 of a different situation, you know, we have been 14 fee registered is, okay, we say in the past, 1f your
15 working on trying to create flexibility with a permit 15 actuals are only a certain percentage of what’s in

16 that looks at production increases. 16 your permit, come in, you know, past $1,000 to review
17 For example, you know, the facility has 17 it, and, then, we will give you credit for that, well
18 specific emission sources within their boundaries, and 18 we want to make sure if that’s going to be the case

19 for them to keep a good management of close emission 19 that those conditions are enforceable, and we dropped
20 sources, and if they need to increase production, then 20 the fee, there is basically a $100 modification fee,
21 they are able to go back and make modifications at the 21 so we even dropped that particular fee, so they still
22 other end and still keep emissions within the same 22 can reduce that, you know, but they are going to have
23 rate. 23 to basically plan to manage the emissions, you know,
24 Now, what happens with Sandia, it’s a little 24 action, and there 1s a lot of flexibility of that we
25 bit different because they really don't fit the mold 25 have been working on for years to try to give that,

Page 114 Page 116

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

Page 113 - Page 116






AIR QUALITY CONTROL BOARD

Multi-Page ™

FEBRUARY 14, 2001

1 put, again, if it’'s going to be an inc

on what’ g

2 permitted, keep in mind that it 1s the model,

MR. GRANDJEAN:

Michael Grandjean, ATI,

3 everything arcund that is based on that model, based 3 Cariisie, Northeast.

4 on that impact. 4 MICHAEL GRANDJEAR

5 #ive mere sources might have come in within 5 after having been first duly sworn under cath,

& that particular guadrant and so now everything has 6 testified as follows:

7 peen changed and 1t’s been cumulative, so if they are 7 MR. GRANDJEAN: I have some concerns

g going te increase, there ls really ne way of getting El apout the specifics te the asbestos and paying the

9 out of that without gelng through a fuil-fledged g fees ahead of time.

10 parmitting process, becduse, again, you have to inform 10 Originally, when the board put the fee

11 the public that the impact of that will be 11 gchedule inta place, which ! belleve wag three years
12 increasing. 12 age now.

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr. 13 MR. du MOND: "96.

14 Martinez. 14 MR, GRANDJEAN: Originally, when we had
15 Any other questions by members of the hoard 13 a public comment, the fees were to go specifically o
18 of Mr. du Mond? 16 the owner, and the reason it was o go specifically te
17 Does any member of the public have any 17 the owner is so that contractors like myself, T am a
18 guestions of Mr. du Mond in regard to his testimony? 18 hazardous substance remedlation contractor, we remove
18 Sir, yeou have to come forward and state your 19 asbestos lead-based paint so that the contractors as a
20 name on the record. 20 whole could not go to the cwners and say "Well, 1 have
21 MR. DAMON: My name is George Damon, I 21 this permit fee and with this permit fee that you need
22 am a memper of the air quality staff and I just wanted 22 to pay, it’s only $40, puil I'm going to charge you

23 to ask Mr. du Mond if their measurements of the 23 $100,* and they would have no idea because of, you

24 emissions reductions properly accounted for any 24 know, the regulations and all those kind of things how
25 increase in emissions. 25 the actual permit fees were calculated, what AU was a
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1 I know typically, when you reduce NOX in a 1 best test unit, all of those kinds of things, and so

2 noiler, you get an increase in carbon moncxide, and he 2 it was specifically set by the board at that time to

3 did not specifically mention that, so I was curious 3 have the owner specifically pay the fee.

4 about that. 4 The permits, themselves, are actually filled
& THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. du Mond? 5 cut by the contracters, so being filled out by the

6 MR. du MOND: We based our emission & contractor and being prefessional, we know what we

3 numpers strictly on the EPA factors, it’s a published 7 have to put in there, what the air gquality, you know,
g decument, either a natural gas or on oil, there is ne g City of Albuquerque is looking for in air quality,

9 indication of any other changes in those emissions 9 what sections we need to fill out and all those kinds
1¢ other than the NOx emissions for inclusion of the gas 10 of things in accordance with the regulation, so by

11 recirculation, so I understand Mr. Damon’s question, 11 doing that, we provide the service to the actual

12 but -~ 80 we were able to reduce our NOx emisgssionsg 12 owner, f£illing out the documentation, turning that

13 pased on emission factors with no other change in the 13 documentation in, because it’s very specific in the
14 other emissions. 14 documentation about actually, you know, giving ten

15 THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other member 15 days’ notice before we actually disturb an

16 of the public have any questions for Mr. du Mond? 16 asbestos-containing material, exactly what day we are
17 Members of the board? 17 going te start, what day we are going to be on site,
18 There being no furtheyr questicns, thank you, 18 what day we are going to leave the site, what day we
19 sir. 19 are going to finish, those kinds of things, and so
20 Did you give your exhibits to Mr. Smith so we 20 there is lots of very detailed informaticen that needs
21 can put them in the record? 21 to be filled out.

22 Any other member of the public wish to step 22 S0 we fill those out for the owner, as a
23 forward and give testimony toc the board in regards to 23 courtesy, basically, to the owner to be able to submit
24 their opposition to the propesed regulation, part 27 24 that.
235 Please come forward. Please state your nanme 25 One of the problems that I see is that by
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i having the contractor Lurn in the permit fee, okay, 1 { mean, as the notification is written, now
2 with turning in the application is twofold: One, the 2 it’s 10 warkings days before we can actually go in and
3 contractor Ur pecomes the bank and has to then turn 3 do any kind of asbestos remediation, and, typically

4 411 of the money in for the fees before he gets paid 4 what has ended up happening in 99 percent of the

5 on a project, and that may be 30, 60, 90, 120 days, 5 projects is that nobody knows that they have the

3 depending on the length of the project and depending 6 problem until somebody says “Hey, wait a minute, I

7 on the fes. 7 think there is this over here, let’s go check," and.
8 1n itself, some fees can be very remedial. I 8 then, by that time, they find out that they have a

9 mean, it can be $100, it can be §75, they can be 9 huge problem and they call us and they want it done
16 really nothing, which really wouldn’ ¢ be any big deal, 10 immediately, and I say “Hey, man, I'm sorry, I can‘t
11 put seme of the fees could be extremely substantial 11 help you for ten days.”

12 and could be $2,000 or $3,000 out of pocket for a 12 50 by being able to fill out that immediately
13 particular size job based on that, which ig a fairly 13 and say “Hey, I can get it in today, wait 10 days, we
14 substantial amount of money for the contractor to be 14 will go from there,* that's one of the services that
15 aple to pay up front and have to wait to be able to 15 we provide by doing that. The dates that we put on
i6 get the money back later on, which is one problem that 16 the notification are absolutely, positively,

1 I see. 17 critical.

18 The other problem that I see is that by doing 18 1f we do not give ten days® notification for
18 that, the contractor can then up the permit fees, not 19 the date that we are going to disturb an
20 allowing the awner of that particular facility to know 20 asbestos-containing material, we are then subject to
21 that he has increased the permit fees and turned it 21 fines of -- you know, whatever that fine is, $15,000
22 in, because he actually never sees them, which I 22 per day per inch extraction, basically, of not
23 couldn’t believe was the intent of the board until the 23 starting that notificacion.
24 original application of the fees in those kinds of 24 I1f we leave that responsibility, then, up to
25 things, so those are a couple of the things that I 25 the owner and he misses it by a day because he didn"t
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1 see, especially in the asbhestos portion, because in 1 get down there that day, he didn’t get the fee paid

2 that, you are working with the owner and a contractor 2 that day, he didn’t get the, you know, receipt or any
3 who is selling services to a particular owner to be 3 of those kinds of things, and what will end up

4 able to pe pald based on those particular fees and not 4 happening is we will have to end up redoing the

5 necessarily an entity that actually calculates how 5 paperwork, turn it back in to them, have them try to
& much tonnage they are golng to use in a year, pays for [ go back down again at that point and match those days
7 those fees and all of those kinds of things for that 3 up, and it's very hard to be able to match the days

8 particular owner in itself. 8 and match your schedule in trying to do all of this

9 S0 those are a couple of concerns that T 9 work by getting another entity involved, in trying to
16 have. 10 go down and pay the fee and do all of those xinds of
1l THE HEARING OFFICER: Questions by 11 things.
12 members of the board? 12 One of the things that I believe was brought
13 DR. MULLOY: And I can see the problem, 13 up earlier was that one of the redasons why they want
14 there. Would it be a problem if, you know, in your -- 14 these fees to be paid up front is so that the

15 how you usually do business, that you help £ill out 15 application can be filled out and filled out

16 the application form, so it was correct, put, then, 16 correctly.

17 give it to the owner and say "I cannot start this job 17 Well, I have been in this business for ten
18 until you go down to pay this fee" so that you 18 years and been a contractor for six years, and in six
18 wouldn’t have to be up front, and, then, you are just 19 years, I have never had a notification turned back to
20 111ling for the job that you are doing? 20 me because it was filled out incorrectly. I mean, T
21 MR. GRANDJEAN: Absolutely. I could see 21 never have.

22 that particular logic, but in most cases, what ends up 22 And, typically, what happens is we simply put
23 happening is that we the owners ugually want to move 23 the amount of asbestos-containing materlals that we
24 as guickly as they can to be able to do a particular 24 are going to remove in that particular building, and,
25 project. 25 then, at that point, that is when the city actually
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i calculates what the fee is going to be based on the 1 They they would say "Weil, we

2 number of linear foorvage or sguare footage that we are 2 cannot cut you 4 %1 mean, you have to put in a
3 actually going to remove, and so by adding that third 3 arder. you put in the purchase order

4 party, I think what happens 1is already to a confusing 4 get L

5 system of trying to get this permit and do all of 5 Once we get it approved, then we have got to
& those kinds of things and meet those deadlines, some ] wait 30 days, and once you walt 30 days, we can get

7 days to be sure that we are golng to pe exactly whare 7 you the check, and, then, two weeks later, you can

8 we need to be on that day so we are not in violation 8 have it, and that’s 60 days later, and, then, we could
9 §f the requlations, I think that it would make it a 9 actually go in and start the project, and so in that
10 iittle bit more cumberscme to be able to get this work 10 ir ance, it’s really unfeasible o pe able to go in
11 dene and get it done properly and cerrectly, 11 and aszk for money up front from, you know, 30 percent
12 especially to the clients that we are trying to work 12 of ocur clients because we are either a subcontractor
13 with. 13 or we are working with a government agency, we 4are

14 Yes, ma’am? 14 working with Kirtland Alr Force Base or we are working
15 MS. BASSETT: I am just trying to 15 with, you know, the County of Santa Fe or the City of
16 understand, this is a last dramatic example, 16 Albuguerque or whoever it is, and say "Well, I'm

17 opviously, but it’s not unusual, for instance, if you 17 sorry, ¢ can’t do that until you pay the fee,” and so
18 buiid a home and you ge before an architectural review 18 at that peint, il makes 1t real difficulc.

18 sommittee to have your plans submitted, you have to 19 M$. BASSETT: S0 what percentage, I
20 pay 5400 or whatever the amount, and the development 24 mean, just as a guess, of your clients are actually a
2% is to that architectural review committee before they 21 federal or state or local government?

22 will review your architectural plan, that’s part of 22 MR. GRANDJEAN: 1 would say that we
23 the cost of reviewing the plan, and usually what 23 probably have ~- a rough guess, about 63% percent would
24 nappens is that the developer will ask that the 24 pe federal, state or local governmental agencies, and,
25 homeowner, obvicusly, for that check to be submitted 25 then, the rest would be commercial and industriail,
Page 128 Page 127

1 when they submit the blueprints for the plan, so I 1 and, than, out of that, we wonld probably have apout 5
2 guess 1 am just a little concerned why would it be so 2 percent that would actually be residential types.

3 difficult to say to the person who immediately wants 3 THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other

4 this asbestos removed, “Well, you can have the form 4 guestions of the witness?

5 filled out tomorrow, but I need the $2,000 check 5 Does any member of the public have any

6 pecause I’m going to go down and submit the & questions for this witness?

7 application, and, you know, I need your money to' -~ 7 MS. HALL: I am B.J. Hall, management

8 vand I am showing you this is for your job," so itrs g analyst, and what 1 would like to comment on is one of
9 even more —- 1 mean, I feel like there is another 49 the problems that has occurred from a fiscal side,

310 accountability to the person who you are contracting 16 asccounting side, and that is many times, what we have
1t with because it’s their job and their permit and their 11 peen dealing with is that we will pili --

12 fee for their job, so they are not paying anycne 12 THE HEARING OFFICER: Can I stop you one
13 else’s job, it’s their job and their permit and their 13 second? If you are going to give testimony, I need to
14 fees. 14 swear you in.

15 MR. GRANDJEAN: Absolutely, that’s a 15 B.J. HALL

16 great point. The problem is that in most of the 16 after having been first duly sworn under oath,

17 cases, what happens is we are usually a subcontractor 17 and testified as follows:

18 to the general contractor, who is then either 18 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Thank you.
19 subcontracted to somebody, and, then, contracted to 19 MS. HALL: One of the problems that we
20 the owner, and so in most cases, what ends up 20 have had is that we’ll go ahead and issue a bill for
21 happening is you have a lot of governmental agencies, 21 the asbestos permit to the owner or to the government
22 federal agencies, things like that, in trying to walk 22 agency, and, then, what happens is the bill doesn’t

23 in and say “I'm sorry, I can’t do your work, but I 23 get paid, it doesn’t get paid, it doesn’t get paid;

24 need §2,000 before I can get the permit or I can do 24 six months later, then my office picks it up and we

25 ic." 25 are dealing with the owner and the owner is telling me
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1 “Well, the contractor has taken care of all that, I 1 conglomerate or really talk to somebody, so, again, we
2 ¢ut one purchase order and they were going to pay it," 2 are trying to simplify the process and we will be
3 50, then, we call the contractor and the contractor 3 willing =0 work with the government entities that seem
4 says "Oh, no, the regulation says they are responsible 4 to be the primary customer, you know, to sel up some
5 for it," and so the bottom line is that we are in this 5 kind of process, you know, whether it's city or, you
& vicious circle, then we get into the middle between 6 know, some kind of process, that we have at least some
1 contractor and owner, which is not where we want Lo 7 assurance that the they are cognizant of the billing,
8 be, and on many occasions, we do not collect a fee 8 you Know.
G because the contractor and the owner cannot settle up, 9 As Ms. Hall mentioned, a lot of the times,
16 so it goes on, and after five years, we have to write 10 they are not, you know, cognizant of the billing, they
i1 it up, write it off as a governmental agency, $o0 I 11 4ust think okay, we are going to hire the contractor
12 think that the other issue iz that we have tremendous 12 and pay that contractor, and, then, it’s over, and so,
13 problem collecting on asbeatos. 13 you know, we really lose a lot of money on that
14 DR. MULLOY: Do you have any sense or do 14 particular program, and, you Know, again, the
15 you have any figures apout how much that has been over 15 alternative is just to turn it back to the federal
16 the years or per year? 16 government, and I am not sure if that’s the best
17 MS. HALL: I don’t have that with me, 17 alternative at this point, but, agaln, you know,
18 put 1 can certainly get that for the board. 18 simplification, what we are looking for and everybody
18 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Martinez? 19 nas thelr idea about that.
20 MR, MARTINEZ: Just, Mr. Hearing 20 We are willing to listen to that
21 Officer, one last thing I want to mention on that 21 specifically with the asbestos program.
22 issue is that when that does happen, and B.J. Hail, 22 MR, GRANDJEAN: I absolutely agree. I
23 she is our management analyst for our fiscal issues, 23 mean, I have a real problem when I go in and I will
24 {s that then, eventually, it gets turned over to the 24 tell the owner, I will tell that federal agency, I
25 enforcement and compliance division and it’s dealt 25 will say "Hey, you are going to be getting a permit
Page 129 Page 131
1 with. 1 and it goes directly to the owner and I don’t pay that
2 What we have had happen numerous times is 2 permit fee because it goes directly to you and you
3 that a lot of the buildings, and this is basically as 3 need to pay that permit fee," and the problem is the
4 related to some of the private entities that we deal 4 way contracting and all of those kinds of things work,
5 with, not necessarily APS or Kirtland or the 5 it’s set up for a specific jop for a specific amount
& government agencies, they don’t go anywhere, so we 6 of money, and what's written in the specificatien of
7 know where to find them, but a lot of the private 7 rhat actual job is that the contractor pays all of the
8 entities, you know, a lot of these commercial 8 fees.
9 buildings, you know, they are either owned by a 2 Well, that’s the problem with the situation
10 conglomerate or owned by pecple out of town, so it 10 in a whole, that the way the regulations are set up,
11 basically becomes impossible for us to track the owner 11 they are set up to be paid by the actual owner, so
1z down after everything has been done, and, again, we 12 that there are no markups in fees, so there are none
13 are trying to simplify the process from our fiscal 13 of these additional zosts and those kind of things,
14 standpoint because, again, as Ms. Hall mentioned, the 14 and, typically, what ends up happening and has
way it works is, you know, the permit engineer issues i5 happened in the past is that I will have an owner come
16 out a billable invoice, and, then, that gives 30 days 16 back and, say, five, six, seven, eight, nine, 10, a
17 for the treasury to then issue their official invoice, 17 year later and say "Hey, we keep getting this letter
18 so, then, by that time, we are at about like 45 days, 18 from the city and they want us to pay this fee,® and 1
19 itrs about two and a half months, you know, that the 19 say "Oh, yes, remember, you're supposed to pay that
20 project has already been completed, for the most part, 20 fee, it's in your contract," and they are like "Well,
21 and, you know, a lot of times, you don't find the 21 it’s not in my contract because you guys are supposed
22 owner. 22 to pay the fee."
23 We do get a lot of those returned letters, 23 There is a real problem with that asbestos
24 and I can probably get you a number of those, and we 24 and the permitting and the fee.
25 never are able to track this person down or this 25 MS. BASSETT: So, potentially, we will
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1 have to, at our next poard meeting, decide this: 1 contractors and those kinds of things intc the cost of
2 wWould you be open to that, there was some notarized 2 the proiecte, but it iz a delfinite congern.
3 ietter at had to be signed by the owner saying, you 3 THE HEARING GFFICER: 5te
4 know, "I realize 1 am responsible for the fee that 4 DR. PILON: My understanding is that say
5 would go in with the permit,™ so that we would have 5 the owner contr with the general contracuror Lo
& some way of knowing, you know, sc it's on paper that & take care cf the job, so they are going to rip out the
7 48 the owner, they are -~ YHere is what we are inside of a buiiding, say the old Clgital equipment
LS ¢stimating the fee to be," and, you know, "I 9 building, and they come across asbestos and so they
9 understand it’s going Lo take you 60 days because you 3 cail you, and it's something they had not anticipated
16 have to get approval from Washington, D.C." or 10 or maybe they had anticipated some remediation, what
11 whatever it ig "to get the money, but you have to sign 11 would happen if you were o go to the contracter and
32 here and it’g got to be notarized and I have to 12 say "Well, your project is basically stopped until you
13 inciude iv.” 13 give me the fees so that T can pay for the permit"?
14 MR. GRANDJEAN: That's very possible, 14 Now, he may just say "Well, okay, 1f you're
18 it's a very poszible thing to do, although from a 15 not willing to front the money, pay the bank for the
16 contracting standpoint, I think it would be somewhat 16 permit fee, I will just go to some other contractor,”
17 difficult because of the way things are budgeted in 17 that is essentially what would happen?
18 contracting and those kind of things, for them to turn 18 MR, GRANDJEAN: That’s a very good
19 around and say, "Okay, well, now I have to pay this 19 possibi vy, yes, 1 mean, it’s a very good
20 $1500 bill and I have already pald the general 20 possibility, they would just turn arocund and say
21 contractor," whoever that was, you know, “all of his 21 “Okay, we will just go someplace else. ™
22 portien of his money, now how am 1 goinrg to cost code 22 DR. PILON: Okay, but, typically, it’s
23 that basically back to that project te be able to cut 23 the contractor that’s geing to be paying for -- I
24 that check?” 24 mean, it’s the owner basically pays the contractor to
25 MS. BASSETT: That’s another problem, 25 handle the whole project, and out of that wiil come -~
Page 133 Page 135
1 but you are saying that’s the current way 1t works, 1 1 mean, they are going to pay a fixed amount, and,
2 that they have to still pay it, so whether they code 2 then, out of that fixed amount will come the asbestes
3 it properly is their problem, you know what I mean? 3 removal permit fee, right?
4 MR. GRANDJEAN: Absolutely, but because 4 50 there is no question of markup or anything
5 of federal government contracting and things like 5 because the deal has already been made between the
& that, they cannot just turn around and say "Okay, we & owner and the general contractor.
7 have got to pay this person this bill for this 7 MR. GRANDJEAN: To some degree, I guess,
8 contract® because all the money is paid to the general 8 yes, it could be. I mean, basically, if you have ~-—
9 contractor, S you know, like I said, in most cases, they don’t even
10 MS. BASSETT: Right, I wasn’t saying it 10 find that they have a problem until it’s already --
11 was a blil, I was just saying it was proof that they 11 you Know, the contract is already stated, the
12 will pay it. 12 contracts have already been cut, it’s already been
13 MR. GRANDJEAN: Right, and that’'s one of 12 awarded for X number of dollars and all of those kinds
14 the hard things that they have, and, I mean, it's 14 of things.
i5 coming down to the case, and I have done it a couple 18 DR. PILON: 1Is that going to be a change
16 of times where T-VI is a prime example, I mean, we had 16 order, the typical thing where the contractor would
17 a bill hanging out for T-VI for 12 or 14 months and 17 have to go back to the owner and say “This 1s going to
18 finally, I said "Look, just give me the bill, I will 18 cost us. The fee 1s really only $500, but we are
19 pay the $202," you know, "I will take care of that 19 going to charge you $1,000 for ic"?
20 bill," because we were getting letters, they were 20 MR. GRANDJEAN: Right, so, basically, it
21 getting letters, everyone was getting letters, and I 21 goes in as a change order at that point for that
22 could really see the problem in how that works, but I 22 additional work that would need to be done by removing
23 am not quite sure how to solve the problem, if, in 23 the asbestos~containing maeterials, and so at that
24 fact, we still want the owner to be able to pay the 24 point, then, when that change order is cut, then
25 bill so that it doesn’t get marked up by the 25 that’s when we would actually go in to be able to do
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i the work to be able to get that done, so, you Rnow, I

analyst is involved, and so that is the real case and

e gquess who pays the fee? 2 20 what we say 18, you kaow, pay it up front, asbestos
3 If the contractor pays the fee, he could 3 has Lo be abated, so that portion of the project is
4 certainly pay the fee and he would then have to go 4 not going to continue until he gets done with his
5 back and include that into his price and give it back 5 work.
& Lo the owner, okay, and, then, the owner would be able & The other issue, tco, is that yes, it does
7 Lo pay that money to be able to get the fee, but part happen in the real world and it has happened where
8 of that problem is it comes down to, you know, again, g yes, the reputable abatement contractor that says
9 like I said, the contractor being the bank to pay all 9 "This is what it’s going to cost you to abate it,” it
10 of the money up front to be able to get that permit 10 has happened where they said "Well, get out of my
11 fee pbefore the work can even be started, when he may 11 face, we will just go with" -- you know, someone
12 net even get paid for 60 days or 90 days or whatever. 12 that’s not qualified and just basically has a
13 DR. PILON: But isn’t the general 13 front-end loader, and we have caught that, we have
14 contractor getting, you know, cuts of money all the 14 caught that, and there are a lot of fines that are
15 time in the project? 15 issued and we do catch that, but, then, again, it
i6 MR. GRANDJERN: Oh, no, you’'re not going 16 would have been cheaper for that persen, guarantee it
17 to get any money from the contractor, 17 and we have had many scenarios to pay the contractor,
i8 DR, PILON: Until the job is finished? i8 pay the $250 and get rid of the asbestos,
i8 MR. GRANDJEAN: Until you have got a 19 I can’t think of a single case where it has
20 completion done on, you know, usually what happens is 20 been more cost effective to bypass federal law and not
21 you have a job and it’s two, three months, whatever it 23 pay a contracter and pay the $250, I really can’t
22 is that first month, they give you 25 percent of the 22 think of one scenario that it’s worked out better, so,
23 money, and $6 at that point, it's, you know, on a 23 again, our efforts are to simplify the process.
24 progressive scale of how much work is actually 24 MR. SMITH: If I can add, we are out to
25 completed, so to go in and say “Hey, I c¢an’t even do 25 simplify the process, but we want to put the inspector
Page 137 Page 139
1 this work and you have not gotten paid yet, but I want 1 out in the field instead of at the desk writing memos,
2 you to pay the fee to me that you are not going to get 2 that’s what I testified to.
3 until the end of next month,” it’s a circular 3 MR. GRANDJEAMN: And I absclutely agree.
4 nightmare, it makes it very difficult. 4 I mean, I absolutely agree. How we actualilly solve the
5 DR. MULLOY: Right, and I can sece we are 5 problem, I am not sure, because there are many, many
6 -~ obviously, I don’t think the staff was thinking & more people that are involved in being able to get
7 that the subcontractor should be the bank for somebody 7 that fee paid by, you know, the different owners and
é e€lse; on the other hand, if there are a number of fees 8 the general contracter and the money, money, money,
8 never being pald or there is a real problem with that 9 but, you know, I absolutely agree that, you know, we
10 or having to spend, then the general taxpayers are 10 need to get the inspectors to the field, we need to
11 paying for these projects, so that’s a problem, too. 11 get them out there more often, we need to have these
12 MR. GRANDJEAN: Yes, absolutely. 12 inspections because, you know, I Lry to run the most
13 DR. MULLOY: Some way we are obviously 13 positively reputable company that I can and do
14 needing to make the owners responsible for the 14 everything that I can to follow the law exactly to the
15 removal, you know, of hazardous substances. 15 letter and I know that there are other contractors out
186 MR. MARTINEZ: And, ultimately, really, 16 there that don’t do that, and I am wel}l in favor of
17 the project, really, for the most part at least, where 17 getting as many inspectors out there to dc as many
18 the asbestos was found, is going to stop until the 18 jobs as possible because I know they are not being
19 abatement is done, you know. 19 completed properly and that makes it extremely hard
20 Real world scenario is what we mentioned 20 for me to do business as a contractor whern this quy
21 about T-VI, 14 months to collect $250. I mean, it 21 doesn’t foliow the law, he only does half of what he
22 cost a substantial amount, way above $250 for the city 22 needs to do and he charges half the money, and I am
23 to just get to that point and collect it. 23 trying to do what I need to do and I can’t get it
24 1 mean, the treasury was involved, compliance 24 done, and so, you know, I agree, how you get that done
25 enforcement was involved, our fiscal management 25 and how we streamline that process without making me
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M up front all the money to be able to get it done, I am 1 540,000 fea that you had to turn in. Well, I know I
2 notl suge. 2 can’t pay that.
3 Yes, ma’am? 3 DR. PILON: Right. And there is uo cap
4 M5. BASSETT: BSince you do this on a 4 on that part of the fee, but, you know, I also believe
5 regilar basls and are obvicusly much more aware of the 5 that, you know, in some way of being able to get the
& nuances of this problem, the public comments are open 6 permits and get the permits through, I think that, and
7 for two more weeks, if you could spend a little time 7 I am not sure exactly how all that works with
2 thinking about this 8 construction, but I think that, you know, it might be
El MR. GRANDJEAN: Okay. 3 in some way associated with sending it to
in M. BASSETT: -- and you could write the 10 environmental, and, then, at that point, it could be
i1 regulation yourself, how you would get at thisg problem 13 paid up front by the general contractor putting that
12 of not having te contact people for 12 months to get 12 permit through if it was a permitted iob for
13 the money. 13 cengtruction and not necessarily for strictly
14 MR. GRANDJEAN: Okay. 14 abatement, if somebody just called in and said "All we
15 M5. BASSETT: But not having to have 15 want you to de is come remove this and go” and it
16 contractors pay out of pocket, come up with a proposal 16 wasn't assoclated with remodeling.
17 and zubmit it to usg. 17 MR. GRANDJEAN: Yes, in most cases
ig MR, GRANDJEAN: Sure, I can do that. 18 that’s the only time that you run into it because
19 DR. PILON: How are building permits in 19 there is no provisicn in the regulation that s4ays you
20 general handled? 20 have LG remove your asbestos. You don’t have to
21 T don’t know, I am not familiar ennugh with 21 remove it, you can keep il as long as you like.
22 construction the development process to know, but, I 22 I mean, 1t’'s still the greatest thirg they
23 mean, when you go in and say we are going to move dirt 23 have ever made, it happens to cause cancer, you Xnow,
24 on a project and start pouring concrete, there must be 24 sc we don't really want to keep it, but you can keep
25 some up-front fees that they pay up front. 25 it as long as you want, you don’t have to remove it
Page 141 Page 143
1 Now, why should the permitting process for 1 THE HEARING OFFICE Any other
2 asbestos abatement be any different than the fees that 2 questions from the members of the board, members of
3 you pay to an electrical inspector or the plumbing 3 the public?
4 inspector? g Thank you, sir, and if you could just submit
5 I mean, those fees are paid up front, aren’t 5 those comments to Mr. Smith and he will ensure that
6 they? 3 they get to the board.
7 MR. GRANDJEAN: I believe they are. I 7 MR. GRANDJEAN: Okay. Thank you.
2 am not real familiar with that side of it in actual —- 8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other member
9 how they get the pians through and how they pay for g of the public in opposition to the proposed VPO
10 them and that kind of thing, but I believe they are -- 10 replacement of part 2, please step forward and give
11 but I pelieve, and I don’t know what the cost 11 testimony.
1z associated with those plans, of getting those plans 12 M5. BASSETT: I can’t believe all of you
13 through the city are, I think that it’s, you know, I 13 are just sitting there because this is an interesting
i3 think it’s like $100 to get the plans through, and 14 hearing.
15 that’s all it is, and so from that standpoint, that's 15 THE HEARING OFFICER: There being no
16 a very reasonable expense to say "Okay, well, I can 16 other individuals stepping forward in opposition, at
17 front $100 until I get paid,” but on some of these 17 this time, the hearing will turn towards the
18 abatement projects, I mean, it’s all based on a 18 interested parties section; in other words, anyocne who
19 varying quantity of asbestos and that varying quantity 19 wishes to step forward and give testimony as an
20 can differ from mom and pop gas stations, which might 20 interested party, not for or agalnst, but just your
21 be a $30 permit to a $3,000 permit, and in that case, 21 opportunity to step forward and talk to the board.
22 and, see, there is no cap on what the permit can be, 22 Please step forward.
23 the permit i¢ based on $21 an asbestos unit, but there 23 Please state your name for the record, sir.
24 is no cap, so if you removed a million asbestos units 24 MR. MCGILL: My name is Brian D.
25 because it was a huge project, you would have a 25 MeGiil
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i BRIAN D. McGILL

2 after having been first duly sworn under oath,

3 testified as follows:

4 THE HEARING COFFICER: Please give ug

3 your professional address, sir.

& MR. MeGILL: My professional address is

7 P.O. Box 100, Tijeras, New Mexico, company name is Rio
8 Grande Portland Cement. I am the environmental
g manager for Rio Grand Portland.

e THE HEARING OFFICER: Please proceed,

12 MR, McGILL: I will attempt to be

13 brief. A lot of the points that I was going to touch
14 upon in my testimony tonight have already been talked
15 about to a certaln extent, but I will go ahead and

16 give my introduction,

17 In this day of extensive regulation, air

18 gquality permits can be vital to the success of a

19 facility.

The right permit can make the difference in

20 a company’s abllity to react to market demands and an

show, we have been its biggest flnancial contributor
over the years. But tonight, we have some seriocus
gquestions about this regulation,

First, I'd like to take just a few moments to
describe a few basics of how faciiities are regulated

under the air program and the regulatory mechanisms

for assessing f

Alr gquality permitting requirements for a
given source will vary depending on the proceuss type
and the typing and magnitude of regulated emissions
that will result from operating the process. The law
and regulations require that each facility over a
specified threshold apply for and cbtain a permit.

Here in Bernalillo County, we have quite an
impressive number of such sources. Various levels of
alr quality permitting, including source registration,
authority to construct, new source performance
standards, naticnal emissions standards for hazardous
air pollutants, major NSR/PSD and Title V operating

permits.

21 adequately financed and efficient program can make the Of the various levels of permitting that may
22 difference in promsting public health while sustaining 22 be required of a source, the source registration and
23 economic development. 23 duthority-to-CONSLIuct programs are truiy local in
24 The decisions of this board can play a huge 24 nature and have weakest link to the federal Clean Air
25 role in local economy. This is especlally true in 25 Act. At the state €l, these permits are more
Page 145 Page 147

1 light of the present trends towards regionalism. 1 commonly known as “construction permits.™

2 Likewise, the day-to-day activities of the city’s air 2 In federal clean air terms, the local

3 program has an ongoing impact on our businesses. 3 authority to construct program falls into the category
4 Therefore, we pelieve it is essential that 4 of "minor new source review.'"

5 the city’s program has the appropriate resources to do 5 At the other end of the permitting spectrum,
6 its job. Because we all stand to benefit from an 6 the Title V operating permit program is closely

7 adequately financed program, we support the city’s 7 prescribed by federal requirements. These

] staff efforts to obtain resources they need to provide 8 requirements are found in Title V of the Clean Air Act
9 service., 9 and in Part 30 of Title 70 of the Code of Federal

10 Desplite our support for the staff’s efforts, 10 Regulations.

11 the request for a fee increase raises some fundamental 11 Titie V sources are called "major sources"

12 questions, some of which we believe cannot be 12 because of thelr status under the reqgulations. The

13 adequately answered in the short time that we have 13 New Mexico Air Quallity Control Act allows the

14 tonight. 14 coliection of reascnable permit fees to cover the
15 Our concerns, which I will elaborate on more 15 costs of the construction permit program, including

16 fully, are based on three fundamental concepts: i6 the costs of reviewing and acting on permits and

17 Equity or fairness, accountability and level of 17 enforcing their terms, excluding legal costs of an

18 service. These issues also go to more "real-world" 18 enforcement action.
19 matters associated with the air quality program, such 19 Significantly, the New Mexico Air Quality
20 as day-to-day management of the Title V permit fund 20 Control Act has a different section that specifically
21 and Title V program staffing, and, also, programmatic 21 allows for collection of annual emissions fees
22 matters like regionalism, market-based emissions, 22 consistent with Title V of the Clean Air Act and its
23 training and air quality attainment. 23 regulations.
24 Please make no mistake, we support the local 24 The two types of fees have a different hasis
25 operating permit program, and as the members clearly 25 in state and federal law and each has a different
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1 purpose. One ls for permitting -~- one is a4 permitting 1 regulation,
2 fee dedicated towards funding the construction permit 2 Az a strateqgy Lo ensure pboth compliance with
3 program; and the other is an emigsicns fee dedicated 3 hourly and annual emission limitations contained in an
4 toward funding the state and local Title V programs, 4 air quality permit and to have a certalin degree of
5 The difference is highlighted in the federal 5 oparaticnal flexibility in an unpredictable market, a
& requirements for the Title V program and emission & source will often slightly overstate emissions beyond
7 fees. 7 what 1s indicated by PTE or potential to emit.
2 Under the federal law, local programs must E Current fees are based on actual emissions
9 guarantee that Title V emission fees will be used 9 Actual emissions are derived through performing an
10 exclusively for the costs of the Title V permit 10 annual emissions inventory submitted by Title V
11 program. 11 sources. inventory is reviewed by the clty staff
12 The idea bhehind this requirement is fairly 12 and approved and the current system allows the sources
13 stralghtforward. It ls ineguitable or unfair to 13 to pay fees based on actual emissions, not theoretical
14 require major sources subject to Title V te shoulder 14 maximum.
15 the expense of regulating all other industry. 15 This allows for a fluctuating economy. It
16 In order to provide uniform accountability 16 also promotes pollution prevention, a source as an
17 and a level of transparency in the management of these 17 economic incentive to reduce emigsions, just as
18 fees, the state law requires that local authority 18 indicated in the previous presentation by the
14 establish a designated air quality permit fund to be 19 Department of Energy.
20 used exciusively for meeting the costs of the permit 20 A couple of comments on economic conditions,
21 program. 21 the industry that I work in is very closely tied Lo
22 In addition, the federal part 70 regulation 22 the general health of the economy. Where we are at
23 requires an initial accounting and periodic 23 right now with regard te our actual emissions versus
24 agcoun 5 of how the fee revenues are used solely Lo 24 our potential te em we typlcally run anywhere from
25 cover the costs of the permitting program. 25 989G to 95 percent of what our allowable or PTE is.
Page 149 Page 151
1 Now, some of the considerations with regards 1 Over the last several years, we have enjoyed
2 to the air permit application process, some of these 2 a very robust healthy economy and hope to be able to
3 points were discussed a little earlier. Tonight I 3 take advantage of it for several more years, but
4 will try to get through them very quickly. 4 economies being cyclic things, sooner or later, there
& Despite the level of permitting, all air S is going to be a slowdeown or downturn in the economy
& quality permits will contain federally enforceable 6 that will have a direct effect or direct impact on the
7 limitations, either process or emissions, that 7 industry that I work in.
8 restrict the amount of pollutants that can be emitted 8 Potentially, what could happen if the economy
9 on an hourly and annual basis. These emissions are 9 slows or even goes into a recession, we would most
10 termed to be emigsions allowed by permit or “allowable 10 likely have to cut back on our production, even go to
11 emissions.*” 11 half production basis.
12 These limitations are imposed te ensure 12 This has happened in the past, however, under
13 compliance with federal, state and local ailr quaiity 13 the proposed regulation, even at half production, we
14 standards that are designed to protect the public’s 14 are still paying full permit fees. Emission fees
15 health and the environment. 15 under the proposed regulations, as I have mentioned,
16 These federally enforceable limitatlons are 16 1 pe pased on theoretical maximum emissions. No
17 based, at least partially, on information contalned in 17 provisions fer fluctuating economic conditions, and,
18 the permit application. 18 also, incentives in the -~ economic-based incentives
19 By regulation, a permit must base their 19 for pollution prevention is removed.
20 emissions estimates on a facilities “potential to 20 Now, getting to the gsecond handcut that I
21 emit® or PTE. Emissions based on PTE are theoretical 21 passed out, 1 believe that this is some information
22 emissions that have been derived assuming that the 22 that was handed out in January’s board meeting. I
23 process is running 100 percent capacity. A fuller 23 can’t attest for sure on that, I wasn’t present at
24 definition of PTE can be found in Section 20.11.2.7.E 24 that meeting.
25 ~~ gorry for all that -- on page 3 of the proposed 25 MS. BASSETT: It was.
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H MR. McGILL: But I believe this was 1 city budget or the city enterprise funds?

2 passed out. The first page, Title V fee projections, 2 We are all aware of the city’s

3 indicate that amending the regulation as proposed for 3 well-publicized fiscal woes. In times of revenue

4 Title V sources would increase fees from 5224,000 a 4 shortfalls, the Title V program cannot be caught up in

5 year to nearly 5463,00C a year. This is over 100 3 local pudgetary peolitics. How can the poard and the

& percent increase of approximately $23%,000. & city ensure that the Title V program is managed Yoff

7 I'm looking through a great deal of numbers, 7 budget" from other budgetary considerations so as to

8 I thought these were important. The ¢ity’'s analysis, 8 be protected from cther unrelated fiscal concerns?

9 I believe, on the second page of the air guality 3 Is there a separate Title V budget or is it
16 division fund 242 indicated that the change in 10 intermingled with the general permit program budget?
11 collection for Title V sources is zero dollars, so 11 If they are intermingled, how can we account for Title
12 it’s a little confusing to me, and the comments 12 V revenues and expenditures? Has there been an
13 secticn on that particular table on the right-hand 13 accounting as described in the part 70 rule? If not
14 side of the page, that indicates that the fee, Title V 14 when will there be?

15 scurces paid fees based on allowables. 15 How can stakeholders gain access to this

16 Now, assuming that an error was made in this 16 information? Is there a formal mechanism for

17 table and factering in increased Title V into the 17 stakeholders to request an accounting? It’s without

18 analysis based on the proposed regulation indicates i8 question that this board and the city need resources

19 that the air guality division budget, total budget, 19 to provide an adequate level of service.

20 would be right around $859,000, of which the Title V 20 How are the Title V budgetary reguirements

21 fees are roughly a 54 percent share of that. 21 derived, number of employees, hours, other resources?

22 The division’s line item kudget fer the 22 Is half the budget derived from Title V fees? Is half

23 fiscal years 1999, 2000 and 2001 was not sufficiently 23 the staff time dedicated to administering the Title V

24 detailed to determine the number of staff positions 24 program? How are these details tracked? What can we

25 and resources that the Title V fees are supporting. 25 do as stakehclders te ensure that the Title V program
Page 153 Page 159

i Now, T would like to go through a list of 1 is adequately staffed?

2 concerns that Rio Grande Portland has and we have a 2 Those are -- because our concerns will

3 number of questions that we believe merit careful 3 require some research and consultation with the city’s

4 consideration. 4 program staff, we believe it is prudent for the board

& The fee regulation presented tonight really 5 to hear our concerns tonight and to defer action on

6 goes to the filscal direction of the program, and, 6 this regulation until after we have had a c¢hance to

7 therefore, 1s fundamentally -- it fundamentally forms 7 consult more fully with the city staff.

g the basls for the program. 8 I xnow that at the very beginning of the

9 As fee payers, permittees and citizens with a 9 hearing that the hearing officer indicated that there
10 stake in the community, we have a vital interest in i0 would be -- the hearing record will be kept open for a
il this regulation. 11 period of twe weeks, I would urge the board to perhaps
12 I'd like to run through some of our 12 keep the hearing record open until the next monthly
13 guestions, and, then, invite the board to revisit them i3 meeting, given some of the guestions and issues that
14 individually after I am done. First, on the face of 14 need to be discussed in this matter.

15 the state and federal law, this board appears to be 13 That concludes my formal testimony.

16 the entity that may be ultimately liakle for the fee 16 THE HEARING OFFICER: Before we go to

17 system, the management of the fund and the program 17 the guestions, Mr. McGill, I received two documents

18 priorities that are supported by the fund. 18 one appears to be your testimony in the written form,

18 As the entity that may be ultimately 19 and the second ls the document which you referred to

20 responsible, how does this board interact with the 20 as Title V fees billed for 2000/2001.

21 city program? We are all aware of the city/county 21 Do you wish these two document to be entered

22 merger with the trends towards regionalism. How will 22 in the record as your exhibits?

23 the board and the city manage these funds and the 23 MR. McGILL: Yes, sir.

24 program in light of the consolidation of governments? 24 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. I will so

25 What is the relation of Title V budget to the general 25 mark them as Rio Grande Portland Cement Corporation,
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1 Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2.

authority to construct permite in the e ¥V portion

2 Any questions for Mr. MeGill from members of 2 ig deposited into this fund, and if this fund houses
3 the board? 3 two programs, the vehicle plus management program and
4 MS. BASSETT: Have you talked to the 4 the operating permits program of alr gquality operating
5 staff before about the separate Title V accounting? 5 permits is Title V and all the other authority to
3 MR, McGILL: We have not explicitly & construct permits, these LwWwo are Xept separated by
7 discuzged this in the past. We would have hoped to ? city accounting activities system, where, at any time,
2 have done it, perhaps this go-round, but we didn’'t 8 we could tell you haw much revenue has come in for
G recelve notice of the hearing until after the proposed 9 operating permits and how much has been expended just
10 amendments had gone to the public notice, and we 10 for that prograf.
11 arted investigating what some of the proposed i1 It also zan tell you the interest gained on
12 changes were and as we worked through this process, 12 that money, on that fund balance for just operating
13 kind of came to the reallrzation that some of the i3 permits, and, also, for just vehicle plus management
14 concerns that we have would basically or at least have 14 program.
15 a potential of significantly changing the proposed 1% There is no option for the mayor, the
16 regulation as was submitted for public notice, and 16 administration or anyone else to be able to borrow any
17 because of that, we had not had a chance to visit with 17 of that meney for any other city function or purpose,
18 the city staff and work together in addressing some of 18 s0 we do have that and that is assured and that
i9 these issues. 19 complies with federal law that says it has to be a
20 THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other 20 dedicated fund.
21 gquestions for Mr., McGill from members of the board? 21 Those same rulings apply to the pollution
22 Any questions for Mr. McGill from members of 22 management program, so to respond to his gquestion here
23 the staff or members of the public? 23 apout how does the c¢lty ensure that this money isn’t
24 MS. HALL: I am B.J. Hall, management 24 going anyplace else, we have that in place, and what
25 analyst for the city. 25 our city counc staff does do they have the
Page 157 Page 159
i THE HEARING OFFICER: State your name 1 ability to appropriave from the fund balance to run a
2 again. 2 program, but they cannol appropriate any money out of
3 M5. HALL: I am B.J. Hall, I am the 3 that to run any other program, so whether they choose
4 mandgement analyst for the Environmental Health 4 to fund this at a level we reqguest or at a level
5 Department. Actually, I don’t have -- I do have one 5 that’s less than that, it still remains in fund
6 question for Mr. McGill, but then I have a couple of 6 balance, that money does not go away, it does not
7 other statements, and the first gquestion is that I 7 revert to the general fund, it is there to be used for
8 think it would be prudent for the two of us to meet 8 the program needs.
9 because I don’t agree with the numbers that he had ] We have done analysls of the costs of the
g purported here, and in Section 5, Program Budget, in 10 Title V section of that program and we have ilncreased
11 Sections A and B of that document, I don’t know, I it our staffing te support that fund. In years past, we
12 have no ildea where he got the EHD analysis of the air 12 had to report by percentage the amount. of staff time
13 quality division fund 242 budget because 1 usually do 13 both in air gualities and in finance and everyplace
14 those anpalyses and I am not aware of any of us coming 14 else that did some work in operating permits, and,
15 up with these numbers, so I’d like to get together 15 then, we had to charge the fund appropriately.
16 with Brian, if I could, to answer some of his other 16 in fiscal year 01, we met, we evaluated and
17 questions regarding the insurance that the City of 17 we analyzed the program and we took steps to fund the
18 Albuquergue has, how these funds that are collected 18 people that appropriately do nothing but work in
19 would not be, let’s say, used by the city for any 19 operating permits of the fund and that is charged
20 other purpose. 20 indirectly for city services that are provided tc the
21 In calendar year 1994 and fiscal year, city 21 fund, and that’s aft the -- that’s at a very low rate
22 fiscal year 1995, the City of Albuquerque established 22 for the Environmental Health Department this year and
23 the air quality fund, fund 242. This fund is a 23 will probably go up this year.
24 dedicated fund and is completely separate from the 24 MS. BASSETT: So as a public agency,
25 general fund. All money is collected and the 25 your budgets are available to the public, right?
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1 MS. HALL: Yes. 1 based on the people that we determine work

2 M&. BASBETT: So, Mr. MgGill, you had 2 specifically on vperating permits primarily, permit

3 asked about that, could you see the accounting, 50 I 3 writers, and, then, some of the compliance that goes

4 think that information is available to you, so it 4 into that.

5 seems like a Lot of the guestions that you ralsed here & Again, you know, our budget, you know, our

& are something that you could fairly guickly get the 6 total budget is a little over $2 million a year. The
7 answers from, so if you could maybe work with them to 7 operating permit program accounts for about a gquarter
é get your guestions answered, lts seems like you are ] of that, and, again, you know, that’s a relatively —-
9 concerned about misuge of Title V moneys. I think you 2 you know, iL7s not by any means the majority of what
10 need to zontact the department. 10 we fund.

il MR. McGILL: Right, right, T am 1t one of the things that I want to ~- and so we
12 sharacterizing the c¢oncern as just wanting to make 12 do sit dewn, and as this sheet basically sets out, 1
13 sure that the fund is protected. 13 mean, we can break it down by each person and how much
14 M5. BASSETT: Sure. 14 each person earng and that kind of stuff, and, I mean
15 MR. McGILL: And that staffing levels 15 you know, but, basically, just what it costs for us to
16 are adequately provided for. 16 pay for wages and benefits and that kind of thing

17 M5. BASSETT: Right. 17 that’s on this page.

18 MR, McGILL: And I would be happy to 18 MS. BASSETT: Can I interrupt a second?
19 meet with B.J. and discuss some of the fine details of 19 I don’t think that’s Steve’s guestion. I think the
20 the accounting mechanigm. 20 question is just that here we are seelng one number at
21 MS. BASSETT: So I think what would be 21 the bottom, there is a $220,000 difference.
2z more helpful, certainly, for myself, as a board 22 MR, MARTINEZ: Right.

23 member, is that since it seems like B.J. is saying 23 M5. BASSETT: When you turn the page up
24 these questions are maybe not instantly answered, but 24 here and you look at the very first entry, it says

25 fairly readily answered, that if you then have further 25 “ggrimated collection of the current fees™ and

pPage 161 Page 163

H questions, it would be helpful that then you bring 1 tegtimated collection of the proposed,? that nrumber

2 them to the board, 2 stays the same; whereas, on the Iront page, it's a

3 MR, MeGILL: Yes. If the first round of 3 $220,000 difference, so that’s what he is not clear

4 answers generates a new round of guestions, I could 4 an.

5 certainly be back and provide some additional & MR. MARTINEZ: Right. This estimate

3 testimony. 6 accounts for not just only Title V, but for all the

7 DR. PILON: I think what Mr. MocGill -- 7 other sources that are in the program.

8 one of the thingg he was raising was the fact that on 8 M5. BASSETT: I realize that, but under
9 the first page that the current condition with fee 9 here, it says “Title V Sources Annual Billing." It

10 adjustments, that the total was $224,000, roughly, 10 doesn’ t show this calculation.

11 and, then, potential condition without the adjustment 11 MR. MARTINEZ: I see what you are

12 462,000, 463,000, and, then, that change isn’t 12 saying.

13 reflected on the next page. 13 MS. BASSETT: You are saying this is

14 Is that one of the things? 14 462, but, instead, this is entered as the same a$ 224,
15 MR. McGILL: That's correct. 15 rhat’s the guestion.

16 DR, PILON: And I would just like the 16 MR. MARTINEZ: Okay. HKow, on that, we
17 city staff to address that. My understanding is that 17 really haven’t, you know, until recently, we really

18 they don’t expect the estimated collections to change i8 haven’t had any indication that anybody was going to
19 all that much and that’s why, but maybe, you know, 19 be paying, you know, be paying more than what they had
20 maybe they could explain why that, why on this page 20 been paying in the past.

21 there is a big jump of #220,000 or $240,000, but 21 1 mean, they had been paying for a certain

22 that’s not reflected on the next page. 22 level of production and that’s been llke that since

23 MR. MARTINEZ: Let me explain a little 23 1997, basically, so we are entering our fourth year

24 bit about the budgetary process and how that works, 24 and, basicaily, the production has stayed within the
25 and I won’t spend a lot of time on that, and it is 25 same range, sSo we really couldn’t assume that all of a
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1 sudden, everybody was going to say "Okay, we are going 1 questions of the witness?

2 vo pay for a full permit," so we really couldn’t 2 Mr. Martinez?

3 assume that. 3 MA. MARTINEZ: I just comment on that

4 R, PILON: My understanding was there 4 the programs that are in place do not -- In our

5 was going to be adaptive behavior on the part of the 5 regulatory structure aren’ € part of our 53IPs, so,

& people whose rates were going up. & therefore, they are federally enforceable, so they are

7 MR, MARTIWEZ: And that was the idea. 7 we T think that there is a misconception, and I have

8 obvicusly, they want to go ahead and pay for the full 8 had rumerous meetings and discussions on this lssue

9 permit and not modify, then that’s their choice, you 9 with EPA at EPA headquarters on the whole issue of
16 know, and so that’s, you know -- but we really 10 major scurve and minor source.

i couldn’t account for that in there. 1l ¢ mean, you Know, you are comparing basicaily
12 Gne of the things that { will point out, and 12 apples Lo oranges because what distinguishes a major
13 this was on the issue of collectlon, is just to give 13 source from a minor source, one is below 100 times and
14 you an example, it was 224,000, that was -- that’s 14 one igs above 100 times of the emissions, but that
15 estimated here that was collected, I guess, under the 15 doesn’t really make a direct correlation to the
16 surrent level, and what was actually collected overall 16 concentration, which ig ultimately what the Clean Air
17 was about $360,783 in 199%9. 17 Act protects.
18 1f you look at our budget for 1999, it was i8 The standards de nol measure tons, they are
19 apout $464,000, so we were about $100,000 shy of that, 19 measured by the monitors, which is measured in
20 you krow, and it wasn’t attributed primarily to the 20 concentration., When you look at it from that
21 Titie V sources and we didn’t count on that money 21 perspective, it is just as important for us o
22 coming in from them, you know, but we did count on 22 requlate at the same effort and the same level, you
23 additional money coming in from the additional sources 23 xnow, and in a lot of instances, a 30-ton source, a
24 Lo ount for that amount. 24 100-ton source, and because in a lot of instances a
25 MS. BASSETT: It sounds like -~ Mr. 25 50~von source has a higher impact because of
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1 McGill, sounds like your concerns are that the budgets H configuration, because of engineering to the depth

2 at ocne level show Title V, and, then, another level 2 than the 100-tan source, so in the budget, we don’t

3 mix the department, and so you are trying to decipher 3 distinguish between one or the other, but we do

4 which 1s really Title V income and expenditures versus 4 understand that there is specific federal requirements

5 the rest of the department’s lncome. 5 in Title V for major sources, and, then, the other

6 MR. McGILL: That’s correct, looking for 6 requirements basically are within our regulatory

7 the details on the Title V operating permits. 7 structure, which, again, are also federally

g MS. BASSETT: Right. 8 enforceable.

8 MR. McGILL: Now, I have heard the term 9 I do want te point out one thing, that at one
10 "operating permits" xind of being used as a general 10 point, we did, from the budget, set up in that fashion
11 term in some of the answers to questions, and perhaps 11 where we basically took one inspegtor and said "Okay,
12 Mr. Martinez and I need to get together and discuss 12 how much time does thig inspector spend on minor
13 this a little further, but I am a little confused, on 13 sources, how much time does this inspector spend &n
14 the federal level, you have Title V operating permits 14 what we consider grant objectives, how much time does
15 that are not regulated, the manner in which major 15 this inspector spend over Title V and how much time
16 sources operate, then I believe that the local board 16 cost this inspector spend on city issues,” and 50 what
17 has 4 minor source operating permits or sources that 17 we have nhad in our budget, we have basically close now
18 are designated as smaller sources, nonmajor sources, 18 to 30 people and we have, you know, three guarters of
19 and I am hearing -- if what I am hearing is correct, 18 those people basically broken out into okay, this
20 the term "operating permits" is being applied to both 20 person, you know, Keeps their time and charges 25
21 sets of sources, and, in my mind, there 1s a clear 23 percent to this budget and another 25 percent, you
22 distinction between Title V major scurce versus -~ 22 know, so it was basically a budgetary nightmare to do
23 that’s regulated by federal law versus a local minor 23 that, and so we said "Let’s just break it up into
24 source operating permit program. 24 groups, which is operating permits, and, then, grant
25 THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other 25 objectives and the people that work on grant
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1 objectives, give it to the grants,” which iz -~ you

2 know, which basically accounts for about 70 percent of
3 what we get paid for, and, then, the people which ig

4 the smaller group that specifically work on the

& operating permit issues get paild out of that and, yes,
6 there’s an inspector that will spend time on Title V,
7 time on rescurces, and, then, time on asbestos,

g because I only have one inspector for basicaily all

9 four areas, and so, you kpnow, we try to spread that as
16 equally as possible, but we charge it to one fine.

11 1 am not sure that makes a lot of sense, but
12 i{f you could imagine, I would have to go back and say
13 "Okay, and we can do that, we have dopne that in the

14 past,” because we did an audit on where everybody

15 spends their time and that’s basically where the 1997
16 rate came from, and, you know, that’s where the number

17 came from, but in this particular case, we didn’t go

Exhibits 1 and 2, 1 being the writren testimony, 2 is

the three-page document.

MR. SMITH: You want to use your
coples?
THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes. Anything
further, Mr. Smith?
Members of the board?
MS. BASBETT: I just want to thank you
all for gpending your Valentine’s evening with us and
I hope that you are celebrating Valentine’s Day
tomorrow evening with your hugsband’s or partners,
Thanks for all your time and hanging out all
night with us.
THE HEARING OFFICER:

Okay. 1'd also

like teo thank the courl reporter, Ms. Kopan, for three

and a half hours of nonstop typing. I apologize, I

should have asked you earlier if you were okay and

18 to that level because we felt that we addressed 1t i8 needed a break.

19 pack in 1997, and you sald -- and, again, we don’'t 19 1 would algo like to thank the city staff as
20 expect to get any more than what we did in 797, we 20 always for their wonderful professionalism, and, Mr.
21 just expect to pay the biils, basically. 21 smith, thank you to you and your staff. 17d like to
22 THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other 22 thank the board for allowing me to act as hearing
23 questions for the witness? 23 officer.
24 Mr. McGill, we thank you for your time and 24 It is 8:48 p.m. The hearing is adjourned.
25 your testimony. 25 Thank you all.
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H MR. McGIL Thank you very much. 1 {Proceedings concluded at 8:48 p.m,

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: Does any other 2

a interested person or party have testimony that they 3

4 wish to give to the board or present to the record, 4

5 and 1f so, please step forward. 5

& Okay. There being no further parties giving 6

7 testimony, at this time, that portion of the hearing 7

8 will be closed. Before we adjourn, again, the 8

g comments section for this proposed VPO and replacement 9

10 is open until February 26th at 5:00 p.m. 10

11 Please submit those comments to Mr. smith at 11

12 the Environmental Health Department directly or at i2

13 P.O. Box 1293, Albuquerque, New Mexico, 87103, they 13

14 will be admitted as exhibits. 14

15 All exhibits submitted to me hereby are 15

i6 admitted inte the record, and, remember, immediately i6

17 after this hearing is closed tonight, the Air Board 17

18 will hold its monthly meeting; however, again, this 18

19 regulation 2 will not be on the agenda for the board 19
20 meeting. 20

21 Mr. Smith, anything further? 21

22 MR. SMITH: I was just a little 22
23 confused. Mr. McGill's evidence is in the record? 23

24 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, I have marked 24

25 my copies of Rio Grande Portland Cement Corporation 25
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1 STATE OF NEW MEXICO

2 :  S5S. REPORTER’S CERTIFICATE

3 COUNTY OF BERNALILLO :

4 I, the undersigned Court Reporter, HEREBY

5 CERTIFY that the foregoing hearing was recorded by me
6 by machine shorthand; that I later caused my notes to
7 be transcribed under my personal supervision; and that
8 the foregoing is a true and accurate record, to the

9 pest of my ability, of said proceedings.

10 I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am not a relative or
i1 employee of any of the parties or attorneys invelved
12 in this matter and that I have no personal interest in
i3 the final disposition of this matter.

14 DATED this 5th day of March 2001.

DENISE KOPAN, NM CCR #124
22 License Expiration: 12/31/01
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NMAC TRANSMITTAL FORM

/j 1.24.10 NMAC [Sequence # 6?(9 & 14

Albuquerque Enwronmental Health Department
P.0. Box 1293 _
Albugquerque, NM 87103-1293

Name- Michael D. Smith
E-mail -~ mdsmith@caba.qov

I Chapter ,

Envnronmental Protection Albuquerque/Bernalillo ' ‘PeEmit Fees
County Air Quality Control

(D Board

Please list attachments ‘ 1
and Internet site(s) if :
applicable 2

No X Yes

Name: Randy Sanchez Check if delegated
. authority
{ ) Title: Chair, Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board
' y Ay P o)
Signature / /i Date Signed
SRC-2000-02

5/26/2000
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This action repeals 20 NMAC 11.02, Permit Fees, which was filed with the State Records Center and Archives on
October 27, 1995, with an effective date of December I, 1995, and replaced with 20.11.2 NMAC effective J uly 1,

2001.

20 NMAC 11.02
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3 AGeney AQUrEss:
Albuquerque Environmental Health Department
P.O. Box 1293

Albuquerque, NM 87103-1293

Name . Michael D. Smith Phone #
E-mail mdsmith@cabg.gov

Environmental Protection Albuquerque/Bernalillo Permit Fees
County Air Quality Control
TN Board
) v

Most tecent filing

presce it attachment. TR : el te:
No Yes X an?;ztgn;:i:ez;?fs 1. http://www.gpo.gov/nara/cfr/index.htm
applicable 2
3.

I 1415 are attachéd, has copyright pe hibéen received e
No Yes Publicdomain | X

P HAT T TR e T T
dautor stie DRI
Name: Randy Sanchez ‘ Check if delegated
authority
{{/7) Title: Chair, Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board
~ ) I— | s/4-0)
Signature ]/ J Date Signed
/
SRC-2000-02 /

5/26/2000
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TITLE 20 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
CHAPTER 11 ALBUQUERQUE/BERNALILLO COUNTY AIR QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
PART 2 PERMIT FEES

20.11.2.1 ISSUING AGENCY: Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board, Environmental
Health Department, P.O. Box 1293, Albuquerque, NM 87103. Telephone: (505) 768-2600.
[20.11.2.1 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC.11.02.1.1, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.2 SCOPE:
A. Applicability:

(1)  Any person required to obtain a permit pursuant to 20.11.42 NMAC, Operating Permits;

(2) Any person required to obtain a permit pursuant to 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct;

(3) Any person with a valid registration or permit issued pursuant to 20.11.40 NMAC, Source
Registration, 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct, or 20.11.42 NMAC, Operating Permits;

(4)  Any person requesting a Surface Disturbance Permit pursuant to 20.11.20 NMAC, Airborne
Particulate Matter;

(5) Any person required to provide notification regarding removing regulated asbestos containing
material pursuant to 20.11.64 NMAC, Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Sources; and

(6) Any person requesting professional or administrative services.

B. Exempt: This Part does not apply to sources within Bernalillo County that are located on Indian
lands over which the Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board lacks jurisdiction.
C. Variance: Any person may request a timely variance to this Part in accordance with Variance

Procedures, 20.11.7 NMAGC, if allowed by federal, state or local laws and regulations.
[20.11.2.2 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.2 & 20 NMAC 11.02.1.8, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.3 STATUTORY AUTHORITY: This Part is adopted pursuant to the authority provided in the New
Mexico Air Quality Act, NMSA 1978 Sections 74-2-4, 74-2-5; the Joint Air Quality Control Board Ordinance,
Bernalillo County Ordinance 94-5 Sections 3 and 4; and the Joint Air Quality Control Board Ordinance, Revised
Ordinances of Albuquerque 1994 Section 9-5-1-3 and Section 9-5-1-4.

{20.11.2.3 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.3, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.4 DURATION: Permanent.
{20.11.2.4 - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.4, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.5 EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2001, unless a later date is cited at the end of a section or paragraph.
[20.11.2.5 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.5, 7/1/2001

20.11.2.6 OBJECTIVE:
A. To implement the requirements of 74-2-7 NMSA by establishing:
(1) Reasonable fees to cover the cost of reviewing and acting on any permit application received by

the Department;
(2) Reasonable fees to cover the cost of implementing and enforcing the terms and conditions of any

permit issued by the Department; and,
(3) A schedule of operating permit fees consistent with section 502(b)(3) of Clean Air Act and the

Joint Air Quality Control Board Ordinances;

B. To implement the requirements of section 507 of federal Clean Air Act by establishing adequate
funding for a small business stationary source technical and environmental compliance assistance program; and
C. To establish reasonable fees to cover the administrative expenses incurred by the Department in

implementing and enforcing the provisions of the New Mexico Air Quality Control Act, the Joint Air Quality

Control Board Ordinances, and the Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board Regulations.
D. This Part is permanent. However, a mandatory review of the permit fee regulation shall be

conducted by the Board within two-year period from the date of adoption.

[20.11.2.6 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.6, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2 NMAC 1
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20.11.2.7 DEFINITIONS: Throughout this Part, the terms defined shall have the following meanings. For
the purpose of this Part, if there is any apparent conflict between the meaning of a definition in this Part and a
definition in another Part, the definition in this Part shall prevail and apply.
A. “Allowable Emission Rate” means the most stringent emission limit that has been established by a
permit issued by the Department or the source’s potential-to-emit.
B. “Emissions Unit” means any part or activity of a stationary or portable source that emits or has the
potential to emit any fee pollutant.
C. “Fee Pollutant” means:
(1)  Sulfur dioxide (SOx);
(2) Nitrogen dioxide based on total oxides of nitrogen (NOx);
(3) Carbon monoxide (CO);
(4) Particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than or equal to 30 micrometers (TSP);
(5) Any volatile organic compound as defined in 40 CFR 51.100(s), as amended;
(6) Any hazardous air pollutant listed pursuant to section 112(b) of the Federal Clean Air Act; and,
(7) Any regulated substance listed pursuant to section 112(r) of the federal Clean Air Act.
(8)  Any other pollutant determined by the Board after public hearing.

D. “Fugitive Emissions” means those emissions that cannot reasonably pass through a stack,
chimney, vent, or other functionally equivalent opening.

E. “Major Source” shall have the meaning defined in 40 CFR 71.2.

F. “Potential-To-Emit” or “PTE” means the maximum capacity of a stationary source to emit any air

pollutant under its physical and operational design. Any physical or operational limitation on the capacity of source
to emit an air pollutant, including air pollution control equipment, restrictions on hours of operation or on type or
amount of material combusted, stored or processed, shall be treated as part of its design if integral to the process or
the limitation is federally enforceable through permit or regulation. Any limitation on emissions due to process
design must be unchanging and unavoidable physical constraints. The potential-to-emit for nitrogen oxide shall be
based on total oxides of nitrogen.

G. “Qualified Small Business” means:

(1) A business that has 100 or fewer employees;
(2) Is asmall business concern as defined by the federal Small Business Act;
(3) Does not emit more than 50 tons per year of any regulated air pollutant, or 75 tons per year of all
regulated air pollutants; and '
(4) Is not a major source of hazardous air pollutants.
H. “Regulated Air Pollutant” means the following:
(1) Nitrogen oxides, total suspended particulate matter, or any volatile organic compounds;
(2) Any pollutant for which a national, state or local ambient air quality standard has been
promulgated;
(3) Any pollutant that is subject to any standard established in Section 111 of the Federal Act;
(4) Any Class I or IT substance subject to any standard established in Title VI of the federal Act; or
(5) Any pollutant subject to a standards or requirements established in Section 112 of the federal Act,
including:
(a) Any pollutant subject to requirements under Section 112(j) of the federal Act; and
(b)  Any pollutant for which the requirements of section 112(g)(2) of the federal Act have been
met, but only with respect to the individual source subject to the requirements.

L “State Air Toxic Review” means a case-by-case permit application review of the potential
emissions of toxic air pollutants listed in 20.2.72 NMAC, Construction Permits, Subsection IV, Permits for Toxic
Air Pollutant Emissions.

J. “Stationary Source with De Minimis Emissions” means a source, unless otherwise regulated, with
a potential-to-emit:

(1) Less than 5 tons per year of any regulated air pollutant, excluding hazardous air pollutants;
(2) Less than 2 tons per year of any hazardous air pollutant;
(3) 5 tons or less of any combination of hazardous air pollutants per year; or

20.11.2 NMAC 2
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(4) 20 percent of any lesser threshold per year for a single hazardous air pollutant established by the

Environmental Protection Agency by rule.
[20.11.2.7 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.7, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.8 SAVINGS CLAUSE: Any amendment to 20.11:2 NMAC that is filed with the State Records
Center shall not affect actions pending for violation of a federal or state statute or regulation, a City or County
ordinance, or any Board regulation. Prosecution for a violation under prior regulation wording shall be governed
and prosecuted under the statute, ordinance, part or regulation section in effect at the time the violation was

committed.
[20.11.2.8 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02‘.1.9, 7/1/2001}

20.11.2.9 SEVERABILITY: If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or word of this Part or federal, state
or local standard incorporated herein is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by any court,
the decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Part.

[20.11.2.9 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.10, 7/1/2001}

20.11.2.10 DOCUMENTS: Documents cited and incorporated in this Part may be viewed at the Albuquerque
Environmental Health Department, One Civic Plaza NW, 3rd Floor, Room 3023, Albuquerque, NM 87102.
[20. ll .2.10 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.11, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.11 GENERAL PROVISIONS:

A. At the time of application, any person, including a federal, state or local governmental agency,
who files an application pursuant to 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct, for an initial air quality review and
authority to proceed with construction or requesting to modify an existing air quality permit shall pay the permit fee
required by this Part.

B. Any new or existing stationary source that meets the applicability requirements of this Part shall
pay an annual emission fee based on the source’s potential-to-emit. Sources wishing to reduce their potential-to-
emit may do so at any time through the provisions of 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct.

C. At the time of submittal, any person filing an application for a Surface Disturbance Perrmt with
the Department pursuant to 20.11.20 NMAC, Airborne Particulate Matter, shall pay the applicable filing and
inspection fee required by this Part.

D. At the time of notification, any person notifying the Department pursuant to 20.11.64 NMAC
Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Source, of the removal of regulated asbestos
containing material shall pay the applicable fee required by this Part.

E. No application will be reviewed or permit issued unless the owner/operator provides documentary
proof satisfactory to the Department that either all applicable fees have been paid as required by this Part, or the
owner/operator has been granted a variance in accordance with 20.11.7 NMAC, Variance Procedures.

F. All fees required to be paid at the time of application shall be paid by check or money order
payable to the “City of Albuquerque, Permits Program (Fund 242)” and either be delivered in person to the
Environmental Health Department, Finance Section, 3rd floor, Room 3023, Albuquerque/Bernalillo County
Government Center (City Hall), One Civic Plaza NW, Albuquerque, NM, or mailed to Attn: Finance Section,
Environmental Health Department, P.O. Box 1293, Albuquerque, NM 87103. The Finance Section then shall send a
receipt to the applicant. The applicant shall attach a copy of the receipt issued by the Finance Section to the
application as proof of payment. The Air Quality Division cannot accept direct payments.

G. No person required to pay an annual emission fee pursuant to this Part shall be in compliance with
their permit unless all applicable fees are paid as required by this Part.
H. No fee required by this Part shall be refunded without the written approval of the Director. When

determining the amount of the refund, the Director may deduct a reasonable professional service fee to cover the

costs of staff time involved in processing a permit or request.
[20.11.2.11 NMAC - N, 7/1/2001]}

20.11.2.12 AUTHORITY-TO-CONSTRUCT PERMIT FEES; FEE CALCULATIONS AND
PROCEDURES

20.11.2 NMAC 3






R

FILED WITH
STATE RECORDS CENTER

2001 HAY 16 PM 2: 08

A. General Permits for Minor and Area Sources: Sources applying for a General Permit pursuant to
20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct, shall pay the applicable fee found in section 18 of this Part.
B. Case-by-Case Air Quality Review Prior to the Construction of a Stationary Source:

(1) Case-by-case air quality application review fees shall be calculated based on the proposed
source’s potential-to-emit fee pollutants. Federally approved State Implementation Plan limitations may be used to
determine a source’s potential-to-emit.

(2) Fugitive emissions shall be included in the source’s potential-to-emit.

(3) Emissions from operations determined by the Department to be insignificant activities shall not be
included in the calculation.

(4) For each fee pollutant, calculate the potential-to-emit for each proposed emission unit to the
nearest tenth of a ton. Total the fee pollutants from each emission unit and express the value in tons per calendar
year as a whole number. When rounding, if the number after the decimal point is less than 5, the whole number
remains unchanged. If the number after the decimal point is 5 or greater, the whole number shall be rounded up to
next whole number.

(5) The application review fee shall be determined by comparing the source’s calculated potential-to-
emit with the fee schedule found in section 18 of this Part.

(6) In addition to the application review fees, a source proposing to construct any emission unit or
units that must comply with the provisions of 20.11.60 NMAC, Permitting in Nonattainment Areas, 20.11.61
NMAC, Prevention of Significant Deterioration, 20.11.62 NMAC, Acid Rain, 20.11.63 NMAC, New Source
Performance Standards for Stationary Sources, or 20.11.64 NMAC, Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Stationary Sources, also shall pay the applicable federal program review fees listed in section 18 of
this Part.

(7) Example: A company proposes to build a facility with a NSPS boiler with a potential-to-emit of
greater than 100 tons per year of NOx. From the fee schedule found in section 18 of this Part, the company will be
required to pay an initial air quality review fee of $5,000.00 with an addition federal program review fee of
$1,000.00 for the NSPS boiler, for a total fee of $6,000.00. The review fee shall be submitted at the time of
application in accordance with the procedures found in subsections E and F of 20.11.2.11 NMAC.

(8) Sources submitting an application for the removal of regulated asbestos containing material
pursuant to 20.11.64 NMAC shall comply with the provisions of 20.11.2.14 NMAC.

C. Permit Modifications:

(1) At the time of application, any source proposing to modify an existing air quality permit shall pay
the applicable fee found in section 18 of this Part. ‘

(2) Any proposed modifications to an existing air quality permit that must comply with the provisions
of 20.11.60 NMAC, Permitting in Non-Attainment Areas, 20.11.61 NMAC, Prevention of Significant Deterioration,
20.11.62 NMAC, Acid Rain, 20.11.63 NMAC, New Source Performance Standards for Stationary Sources, or
20.11.64 NMAC, Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Sources, the applicant shall also
pay the applicable federal review fee, but only with respect to the individual emission unit subject to the
requirement.

D. Qualified small business shall pay one-half of the calculated case-by-case air quality review fees

prior to adding any federal program review or state toxic review fees.
[20.11.2.12 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.]L.1, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.13 ANNUAL EMISSION FEES; FEE CALCULATIONS AND PROCEDURES

A By June 1 of each year, the Department shall send each owner/operator a letter stating the fee
amount owed. The owner/operator has 45 days from receipt of the letter to contact the Department to request a
correction to the records or submit an application to modify an existing permit reducing the source’s allowable

emission rate.
B. Starting August 1 of each year, each owner/operator shall be sent an official invoice by the City of

Albuquerque stating the annual emission fee due, which the owner/operator shall pay consistent with the directions
stated in the invoice.

C. As required by 74-2-16 NMSA, all monies received pursuant to this section shall be deposited in
the City of Albuquerque, Permits Program (Fund 242).
D. Calculating Annual Emission Fees:

20.11.2 NMAC 4
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(1)  For each source, the potential-to-emit for each fee pollutant shall be totaled and expressed in tons
per calendar year as a whole number. When rounding, if the number after the decimal point is less than 5, the whole
number remains unchanged. If the number after the decimal point is 5 or greater, the whole number shall be
rounded up to next whole number.

(2) The sum of each fee pollutant shall be multiplied by the appropriate annual emission fee listed in
section 18 of this Part then totaled, to determine the annual emission fee due.

(3) The source shall pay either the minimum annual emission fee or the calculated emission fee
whichever is greater.

E. Sources wishing to reduce their potential-to-emit may apply for a permit or modify their existing
permit consistent with the provisions of 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct.
[20.11.2.13 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.11.2, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.14 FILING AND INSPECTION FEES FOR THE REMOVAL OF REGULATED ASBESTOS
CONTAINING MATERIAL; FEE CALCULATIONS AND PROCEDURES

A. At the time of notification, a filing and inspection fee shall be paid by the owner/operator
removing regulated asbestos containing material pursuant to 20.11.64 NMAC, Emission Standards for Hazardous
Air Pollutants for Stationary Sources, and the federal regulations incorporated therein.

B. The filing and inspection fee shall be calculated by multiplying the Asbestos Unit (AU) by the
applicable fee in 20.11.2.18. Equation 1 shall be used to calculate the total Asbestos Units (AU) and amount due:

(1) Total Due = [(SF/ 160) + (LF / 260) + (CF / 35)] x AU (Equation 1)

(2) Where: SF = Square feet of asbestos containing material to be removed; LF = Linear feet of
asbestos containing material to be removed; CF = Cubic feet of asbestos containing material to be removed; and AU
= Asbestos Unit.

(3) Example: A contractor proposes to remove 320 square feet (SF), 260 linear feet (LF) and 70
cubic feet (CF) of regulated asbestos containing material.

(4) From the example above: SF=320; LF=260; CF=70; and AU=$21.00 (From section 18 of this
Part)

(5) From Equation 1: [(SF/ 160) + (LF/260) + (CF/ 35)] x AU = [(320/ 160) + (260 / 260) + (70 /
35)]1x $21.00 = (2 + 1 + 2) x $21.00 = 5 x $21.00 = $105.00

(6) Result: The contractor must pay $105.00 at the time of notification.

C. All fees due pursuant to this section shall be paid in accordance with the procedures found in
subsections D, E and F 0f 20.11.2.11 NMAC.
[20.11.2.14 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.11.2, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.15 FILING AND INSPECTION FEES FOR SURFACE DISTURBANCE PERMITS; FEE
CALCULATIONS AND PROCEDURES

A. A filing and inspection fee shall be paid by each person requesting a Surface Disturbance Permit
pursuant to 20.11.20 NMAC, Airborne Particulate Matter.

B. The filing and inspection fee shall be calculated by multiplying the acreage to be disturbed,
expressed as a whole number, by the applicable fee found in section 18 of this Part. When rounding, if the number
after the decimal point is less than 5, the whole number remains unchanged. If the number after the decimal point is
5 or greater, the whole number shall be rounded up to the next whole number.

C. All fees due pursuant to this section shall be paid in accordance with the procedures found in
subsections C, E and F 0of 20.11.2.11 NMAC.

[20.11.2.15 NMAC - N, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.16 FEE ERRORS, CORRECTIONS AND REFUNDS

A. Within 30 days of receiving any invoice from the City, any person who does not agree with the
amount due may request a review by the Director to correct any errors or challenge the basis upon which the fee was
computed. If the Director has not received a written request or challenge within 30 days after the payor receives the

invoice, the invoice shall be final.
B. If fees are due at the time of application, the payor must pay the required fee, then request a

review within 30 days of payment.

20.11.2 NMAC ‘ 5
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e C. All written requests for review shall be sent to: Division Manager, Air Quality Division,
N \ Environmental Health Department, Air Quality Division, P.O. Box 1293, Albuquerque, NM 87103
o D. The request for review must include:

(1)  The name of the owner/operator, address and telephone number;
(2) The dollar amount of the alleged error; and
(3) A description of the alleged error and any other information the payor believes may support the

claim.
E. Within 30 days of receiving the request for review, the Director shall audit the account and, either:
(1) Amend the invoice or bill and refund any money due the payor; or
(2) State the invoice or bill is correct.
F. The Director may confer with the payor to obtain additional information during the audit period.
G. Within 10 working days of the Director’s decision concerning the review, the decision shall be
sent by certified mail to address provided by the payor.
H. If a refund is due, the Department shall refund any money due consistent with the policies and
procedures of the City of Albuquerque.
1. The Director’s decision may be appealed to the Board.

{20.11.2.16 NMAC — N, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.17 FAILURE TO PAY

A. It shall be a violation of this Part to fail to pay any fee required by this Part, Director’s decision, or
Board regulation. :

B. Stating an invoice is in error shall not be a defense to this section.

C. In addition to paying past due fees the payor shall pay a penalty of 50 percent of the fee amount,

plus interest on the fee amount computed in accordance with section 6621(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986 (relating to computation of interest on underpayment of federal taxes).
[20.11.2.17 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.11.2, 7/1/2001]

7 W 20.11.2.18 FEE SCHEDULE
&\_,«' A. Annual Emission Fees: Sources issued a registration or permit pursuant to 20.11.40 NMAC,
Source Registration, 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-To-Construct, or 20.11.42 NMAC, Operating Permits, shall pay a
minimum annual emission fee of $150.00 or the annual emission fee calculated consistent with section 13 of this
Part, which ever is greater. The following fee pollutant rates shall be used in calculating the annual emission fee,
unless otherwise listed:
(1) Non-Hazardous Fee Pollutants: $31.00 per ton;
(2) Hazardous Fee Pollutants (Non-Major Sources): $31.00 per ton;
(3) Hazardous Fee Pollutants (Major Sources): $250.00 per ton.
(4) Annual Emission Fees for Specific Source Categories:
(a) Auto Body Repair and Painting:
(i) One Spray Booth: No Charge
(i) Two or more spray booths: $150.00
(b) Chromium Electroplating: $150.00
(c) Degreasers Using Organic Solvents:
(i) Non-halogenated solvents- using less than 2,200 gallons of any one solvent-
containing material, and 5,400 gallons of any combination of solvent-containing materials: $150.00
(ii) Halogenated solvents- using less than 1,200 gallons on any one solvent-containing
material, and 2,900 gallons of any combination of solvent-containing materials: $150.00
(d Dry Cleaners (Non-Major): $150.00
(e) Emergency Generators: $150.00
(f)  Gasoline Service and Fleet Stations: $250 or $31.00 per ton, which ever is greater;
(g) Natural gas or distillate fueled fired boilers less than 10 million BTU used exclusively for
residential, commercial or institutional heating and hot water: No Charge
(h) Printing, Publishing and Packaging Operations:

20.11.2 NMAC 6
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(i) Sheetfed (nonheatset) offset lithography using less than 7,125 gallons of clean solvent
and fountain solution additives per year: $150.00
(i) Nonheatset web offset lithography using less than 7,125 gallons of solvent and
fountain solution additive per year: $150.00
(iii) Heatset web offset lithography using less than 50,000 pounds of ink, cleaning
solvent, and fountain solution additives: $150 '
(iv)  Screen printing using less than 7,125 gallons of total solvent used including solvent-
based inks, cleaning solvents, adhesives and coatings: $150.00
(v) Flexography (water-based or UV-cured inks, coating and adhesives) using less than
200,000 pounds total of inks, coatings and adhesives: $150.00
(i)  Soil and/or water remediation operations: $150.00
(j) Stationary sources with de minimis emissions: No Charge
B. General Air Quality Review Fees for New Sources (Minor Source General Permits):
(1)  Auto body repair and painting: $500.00
(2) Dry cleaners: $500.00
(3) Emergency generators (natural gas or distillate fuel): $500.00
(4) Generic coating and abrasive operations: $500.00
(5) Other fueling facilities receiving fuel by truck or rail (Non-NSPS): $1000.00
(6) Non-NSPS Boilers (Greater than 10 Million BTU): $500.00
(7) Printing and packaging operations: $500.00
(8) Retail and fleet gasoline service stations: $500.00
(9)  Soil/water remediation systems: $1000.00
C. Case-by-Case Air Quality Review Fees for New Sources (Based on a Source’s Potential-to-Emit):
(1) Proposed sources with a potential-to-emit equal to or greater than 5 tons per year and less than 25
tons per year: $1,000.00
(2) Proposed sources with a potential-to-emit equal to or greater than 25 tons per year and less than
50 tons per year: $2,000.00
(3) Proposed sources with a potential-to-emit equal to or greater than 50 tons per year and less than
75 tons per year: $3,000.00
(4) Proposed sources with a potential-to-emit equal to or greater than 75 tons per year and less than
100 tons per year: $4,000.00 ’ .
(5) Proposed sources with a potential-to-emit equal to or greater than 100 tons per year: $5,000.00
D. Federal Program and State Toxic Air Pollutant Review Fees; In Addition to the Air Quality
Review Fees:
(1) 40 CFR 60 Standards: $1,000.00
(2) 40 CFR 61 Standards: $1,000.00
(3) 40 CFR 63 Standards:
(a) Promulgated Standards: $2,000.00
(b) Case-By-Case MACT Review: $10,000.00
(4) PSD/Non-Attainment Review: $5,000.00
(5) Acid Rain Review: $5,000.00
(6) State Toxic Air Pollutant Review: $500.00
E. Permit Modifications:
(1) P2 Modifications: No Charge
(2) Minor/Flexible Permit Modifications: $1,000.00
(3) Major Modifications: $5,000.00
F. Portable Source Relocation Fee: $250.00
G. Administrative Modifications to Existing Permit: $100.00
H. Surface Disturbance Permit Filing and Inspection Fee: $100.00 per acre
L Asbestos Unit (AU): $21.00
J. Administrative Fees:
(1) Professional Services Fee: $75.00 per staff hour
(2) Photocopying:

20.11.2 NMAC ) 7
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/’j (a) First 10 Pages: $0.50 per page

(b) Additional Pages: $1.00 per page

o (3) Regulation Compilation: $20.00

(4) Public Records Research Fee: $50.00 per staff hour
[20.11.2.18 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.11.2, 7/1/2001]

HISTORY of 20.11.2 NMAC:

Pre-NMAC History:

Material in the part was derived from that previously filed with the commission of public records — state records
center and archives under:

Resolution 1, Air Pollution Control Regulations of the Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board,
filed 8-06-71;

Regulation 1, Air Pollution Control Regulations, filed 6-06-73;

Regulation 1, Air Pollution Control Regulations, filed 7-19-73;

Regulation 1, Air Pollution Control Regulations, filed 3-21-77;

Regulation No. 21, Permit Fees, filed 3-24-82;

Regulation No. 21, Permit Fees, filed 8-19-83; o

Regulation No. 21, Permit Fees, filed 3-09-947 !

Regulation No. 21, Permit Fees, filed 12-16-94.

History of Repealed Material: 20 NMAC 11.02, Permit Fees, filed 10-27-95.
1l
Other History: Regulation No. 21, Permit Fees, filed 12-:€294 renumbered and reformatted to 20 NMAC 11.02,
Permit Fees, filed 10-27-95;
20 NMAC 11.02, Permit Fees, filed 10-27-95 replaced by 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees, effective 7/1/2001.
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Page 3 of 168

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
THE HEARING OFFICER: If everybody can
take a seat, we'll go ahead and begin.

Okay. We are going to begin. For the
record, this public hearing is being held on
Wednesday, February 14th, 2001 in the council
commission chambers at One Civic Plaza, the
City/County Building in Albuquerque, New Mexico. The
time is 5:15 p.m.

This is a hearing of the
Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality Control
Board, also known as the Air Board or Board, to
consider the proposed VPO and replacement of Section
20.11.2 NMAC, New Mexico Administrative Code, permit
fees, also known as part 2 or regulation 2.

My name is Arthur Olona. I am a former
member of the Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air
Quality Control Board and I will be the hearing
officer for this hearing.

I am also an attorney licensed to practice in
the state of New Mexico. And I note for the record
that there are three members of the Air Board present
at the public hearing this evening, Mr. Paul
Silverman, Ms. Karen Wentworth and Dr. Karen Mulloy.

The court reporter tonight is Denise Kopan
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representing the firm of Paul Baca Professional Court
Reporters. Anyone who wishes to obtain a transcript
of this hearing may order a transcript from that
firm.

The Air Board hearings do not follow the
rules of evidence as used in the courts; however, I
will limit testimony which is irrelevant or repeats
testimony already given.

The decision regarding whether testimony is
irrelevant or repetitious will be made by me as the
hearing officer. I will also rule on whether evidence
or exhibits may be admitted into the record and on any
motions or objections made.

We will begin the hearing with the testimony
of the proponent, the Albuquerque Environmental Health
Department Air Quality Division, who will testify
about the proposed VPO and replacement of part 2.

Next, additional proponents, people who are
in favor of the proposed VPO and replacement, will
have an opportunity to testify. After that, the
opponents will have an opportunity to testify.
Finally, any interested parties will have an
opportunity to testify.

Each category will be heard in the same order

as people signed up to testify. Based on the number

of people who wish to testify tonight, I may limit the
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2

amount of time each person may testify. If you want
to testify and have not signed up, please do so
immediately. The sign-up sheet is located in the back
of the room.

Everyone who testifies will be sworn in by
the court reporter before giving testimony. The
witnesses must identify themselves for the record.
Each witness must state his or her name, address, if
they represent someone or an organization, and who
that person or organization is.

After each witness has testified, the Air
Board members may question the witness. After the Air
Board has had an opportunity to ask the witness
questions, I will allow any interested person or party
to ask the witness questions.

The questions may be related to the testimony
just given by the witness. A person who is asking a
question does not have to be sworn in, but the person
who is asking a question cannot turn the question into
testimony of his or her own. You have an opportunity
to testify later.

Please beware, each statement you make may be
subject to examination by myself or an Air Board

mempber. Immediately after this hearing is closed

tonight, if there is a quorum, the Air Board will hold

its regular monthly meeting.
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Before we proceed with the hearing, would all
people present please sign the separate attendance
sheet, sign-in sheet, whether or not they wish to
testify, and, again, the way this hearing is going to
operate, I will first allow the proponents, the City
of Albuquerque, to proceed and any other individual
who may wish to testify on behalf of the proposed
regulation.

After that, any person or party who opposes
the regulation may then testify, and after that, any
person interested or otherwise may testify.

I am the hearing officer in this case, I do
not vote or make any decision on this matter. My role
is strictly to conduct this hearing. The other thing
I want to mention before we begin is that I have been
informed by the city that after the conclusion of this
hearing, the record will remain open for two weeks,
until February 26th, 2001, 5:00 p.m., so any
individual or organization or otherwise who wishes to
submit additional evidence and/or testimony has an
additional two weeks and must submit it to Mr. Smith
at the City of Albuquerque.

Okay. The staff of the City of Albuquerque

Environmental Health Department may begin.
I have been requested, Mr. Smith, by Mr.

Silverman, because he has a commitment in about less
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than an hour, if you could do your presentation in 15
minutes or so so we can get to the rest of the
testimony, is that possible?

MR. SMITH: I timed it at about 45
minutes.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Your entire
presentation?

MR. SMITH: Yes.

MR. SILVERMAN: At 45 minutes?

THE HEARING OFFICER: Well, let's do the
best we can. This is a public hearing.

All right. You may begin. One second.
Ms. Kearny?

MS. KEARNY: Adelia Kearny with the city
attorney's office. I did want to make it clear that
because I have been associated with the drafting of
this regulation that I'll not be advising the Air
Board, but as you know, Mr. Olona, from the ordinances
when you were a Board member, we cannot have the
hearing without a quorum, but everyone who is a member
who chooses to consider and vote on that at a later

time will have to read the transcript and the

exhibits, so Mr. Silverman has to leave, if he wants
to vote on this, will have to review the remainder of
the record.

MR. SILVERMAN: I understand that, Ms.
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Kearny, but I can read the proposal for myself, what I
cannot do is hear the testimony of the general public,
and I'd rather spend my time here listening to what
the public has to say rather than somebody read me a
45-page document that I can read on my own, sO maybe
what I might do is make a proposal that we take
testimony from the public first and let staff make
their presentation last.

MS. KEARNY: I understand that.

MR. SMITH: For the purpose of the
hearing, I do feel it's important to read it into the
record, and taking testimony prior to my testimony
simply does not make any sense.

MR. SILVERMAN: Then I would make the
request that staff make the presentation in 20
minutes.

THE HEARING OFFICER: I really can't
limit any relevant testimony. The problem I have with
that, Mr. Silverman, in fairness, is that at a public
hearing, there are people from the public who may want

to address specific concerns that the city is

presenting, and I think there could be a problem down
the line if Mr. Smith and the City of Albuquerque's
testimony --

MR. SILVERMAN: That's fine. Let's move

forward.
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Page 9 of 168

THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Mr. Smith,
you may proceed. Please raise your right hand and be
worn.

MICHAEL D. SMITH
after having been first duly sworn under oath,
testified as follows:

THE HEARING OFFICER: Would you please
state your name.

MR. SMITH: My name is Michael D. Smith,
I am with the City of Albuquerque Air Quality
Division.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Please proceed.

MR. SMITH: Good evening, Mr. Olona,
members of the board. My name, again, is Mike Smith
with the Environmental Health Department. I am an
environmental health scientist responsible for
researching and revising air quality rules and
regulations.

I have been with the department for more than

10 years and worked as an air quality inspector,

10

permit writer and supervisor.

I have a bachelor of geological science
degree from New Mexico State University and have
worked in resource law enforcement for 20 years at the
federal, state and local levels.

Before I start my testimony, I would like to
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explain, for the benefit of the newer board members,
some of the requirements of the New Mexico Air Quality
Control Act important to tonight's hearing.

The basic duty of the local Air Quality Board
is to "prevent and abate air pollution." To that end,
the board is required to adopt, promulgate, publish
and repeal regulations consistent with the Air Quality
Control Act.

When considering new regulations or
amendments, the board must take into account the
"character and degree of injury to or interference
with health, welfare, visibility and property;" take
in account "the public interest, including social and
economic value of the sources and subjects of air
contaminant;" and, finally, take in account the
"technical practicability and economic reasonableness
of reducing or eliminating air contaminants from the
sources involved and previous experience with

equipment and methods available to control the air

11

contaminants involved."

Also, when considering a new regulation as
staff, we must provide you with substantial evidence
to support a new regulation or amendment to satisfy
that requirement, and to meet the requirement of the
New Mexico Air Quality Control Act, we are having this

hearing tonight to hear testimony from the staff and
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public concerning this regulation to provide you with
the information you need to make an informed decision.

In tonight's hearing, I will make every
effort to avoid using acronyms without first defining
the term. If I should use a term or phrase that you
do not understand, please interrupt me and I will
explain the word or phrase.

As required by the New Mexico Air Quality
Control Act, the division must provide public notice
of hearing at least 30 days prior to hearing. To meet
this requirement, the division published notice of
tonight's hearing in New Mexico State Register on
December 29th, 2000, Staff Exhibit Number 1, and in
the Albuquerque Journal on January 7th, 2001, Staff
Exhibit Number 2.

In addition, the notice of hearing was posted
in city hall as required by City of Albuquerque

ordinance Section 2-6-1-4(C) (2) (a). Also, as required

12

by the New Mexico Air Quality Control Act, the
division mailed the notice of hearing to all persons
who have made written request to receive advance
notice of hearings and to every company with a permit
and registration issued by the department and to
contractors' issued surface disturbance permits
pursuant to 20.11.20, NMAC airborne particulate

matter. This mailing list is Staff Exhibit Number 3.
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All letters sent were postdated January 10th
or 11th, 2001. Staff believes we have met and
exceeded the public notice requirements for this
hearing. As a result of this notice, the department
has received seven written comments or requests to
testify. These are marked as Staff Exhibits Numbers 4
through 9.

Staff Exhibit Number 10 is a copy of our
current regulation. Staff Exhibit Number 11 is a copy
of the proposed regulation with minor editorial
changes made on January 18th, 2001, with the proposed
floor amendments we wish to introduce tonight. I will
be referring to this exhibit during my testimony.

Staff Exhibit Number 12 is a copy of my
testimony for the record. Finally, Staff Exhibit
Numbers 14 and 15 are fee comparison tables I will

refer to later in my testimony.

13

Mr. Hearing Officer, at this time I would
like to introduce these exhibits into the record.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Staff Exhibits 1
through 14 are hereby admitted into the record.

MR. SMITH: My testimony tonight is to
explain the changes we propose to 20.1.2 NMAC permit
fees, the purpose of the fee regulation, how the
permit fee regulation will be implemented and explain

the rationale for the proposed fee scheduling.
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Following my testimony, Mr. Angel Martinez,
division manager, will discuss issues specific to the
division's budget. Why do we have fee regulation in
the first place?

As required by New Mexico Air Quality Control
Act, 74-2-7 NMSA, and the Joint Air Quality Control
Board ordinances, the board is required to establish a
schedule of construction fees sufficient to cover the
reasonable cost of reviewing and acting upon any
application for a permit, including the costs of
implementing and enforcing the terms of any permit,
excluding the cost of any court costs or other cost
associated with an enforcement action.

In addition, the board is required to
establish a schedule of emission fees consistent with

the provisions of Section 50(B) (3) of the federal

14

Clean Air Act that requires any air contaminants
source that emits 100 tons or more per year of any
regulated air pollutant or 10 tons per year of any
single hazardous air pollutant or 25 tons per year of
combined hazardous air pollutants, to pay annual
emission fees sufficient to cover the direct and
indirect costs of a federally approved major source
permitting program.

With their regulation, the division is

establishing new elements for a minor source operating
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11

permit program requiring all sources with a permit or
registration with the division to pay annual emission
fees sufficient to cover the direct and indirect costs
of ongoing inspection and compliance activities.

This regulation also establishes fees to
cover the direct and indirect costs of administering
and enforcing the asbestos and dust control programs
required by board regulation.

At this time, please refer to Staff Exhibit
Number 11, the proposed fee regulation with floor
amendments.

Since this is a new regulation and staff is
proposing to repeal the current regulation, I'm going
to discuss the major elements of the proposed

regulation and proposed four amendments.

15

First, page 1, line 8, Section 20.11.2.2
outlines the sources that will be affected by this
regulation. The only major change to this section
from the current regulation is the requirement that
persons requesting a surface disturbance permit
pursuant to 20.11.20 NMAC, airborne particulate
matter, shall be required to pay a filing and
inspection fee to cover the direct and indirect costs
of administering and enforcing the dust control
program, which will be discussed later in my

testimony.
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Page 2, line 11, Section 20.11.2.6,
objectives, outlines the objective of the regulation
and states a statutory requirement for establishing
permit fees.

Starting on page 3, line 1, Section
20.11.2.7, definitions, list the definitions that will
be used in this part. The division is adding several
new definitions that will be used to implement the fee
program.

The first new definition is found on page 3,
line 21, "potential to emit," which defines the method
the division uses to determine the source's potential
emissions. This definition has been crafted to be

similar to the federal definition for regulatory

16

consistency. This definition will benefit sources
since it takes in account controls that are integral
to the production process.

At this time, staff would like to present the
following floor amendments to add several new
definitions to this section.

The first new definition is on page 4, line
3, "qualified small business," which shall mean a
business that has 100 or fewer employees; is a small
business concern as defined by the federal Small
Business Act; does not emit more than 50 tons per year

of any regulated pollutant or 75 tons per year of all
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11
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13

regulated air pollutants; and is not a major source of
hazardous air pollutants.

This definition is consistent with the small
business stationary source technical and environmental
compliance assistance program approved by the board on
October 7, 1992. The staff is proposing that
qualified small businesses may be eligible for reduced
permit and emission fees required by this part.

The second new definition we wish to propose
is on page 4, line 22, "state air toxic review," which
shall mean a case-by-case permit application review of
the potential emissions of air toxins listed in state

regulation 20.2.72 NMAC, Subsection IV. This

17

definition has been added so the division can
establish an appropriate review fee for toxic air
pollutants.

Depending on the source's potential to emit a
toxic air pollutant, a permit review becomes more
complicated and may require additional research and
air dispersion modeling; increasing staff time and
effort, justifying the additional fee.

The last definition the division wishes to
add is "stationary source with de minimus emissions,"
which means a source with a potential to emit less
than five tons per year of any regulated air

pollutant, excluding hazardous air pollutants; less
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14

than two tons per year of any hazardous air pollutant;
five tons or less of any combination of hazardous air
pollutants; or 20 percent of any lesser threshold per
year for a single hazardous air pollutant established
by the Environmental Protection Agency by rule.

This definition establishes the emission
limit the division will use to determine the
applicability of a source in paying permit or emission
fees. This definition is not intended to exempt
sources from this regulation or any other board
regulation. Current and future regulations may

require sources that meet minimum limits established

18

by this definition to obtain permits and payee
emission fees, such as dry cleaners and other
hazardous pollutant sources that are specifically
regulated.

Starting on page 5, line 21, Section
20.11.2.1 are the general provisions for this
regulation. A major change from the current
regulation is the requirement to pay all fees at the
time of application.

Currently, staff invoices the applicants for
any fees due after the application is processed. By
collecting fees at the time of application, not only
is the division reducing the administrative burden on

the staff, but streamlines the review process by
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having the complete application package submitted to
the division for review.

All permit fees will be required to be sent
or delivered directly to the Environmental Health
Department's finance section prior to the application
being submitted to the division.

This process will ensure all fees are
deposited into the correct air quality accounts.
Subsection B requires all sources to pay an annual
emission fee based on the source's potential to emit.

Sources wishing to reduce their potential to

19

emit may do so through the provisions of NMAC,
authority to construct. Annual permit fees will also
be sent directly to the department's finance section.

This section also requires that any person
submitting an application for a surface disturbance
permit or notifying the department of the removal of
asbestos-containing material, pursuant to 20.11.64
NMAC, emission standards for hazardous air pollutants,
for stationary sources shall also be required to pay
all fees due at the time of application.

To ensure compliance with this part,
Subsection G, page 6, line 22, states that no source
will be in compliance with its permit unless all
applicable fees are paid as required by this part.

As part of an inspection or annual compliance
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statement, sources must demonstrate that all
applicable permit fees have been paid.

Starting on page 7, line 5, Section
20.11.2.12 authority to construct permit fees; fee
calculations and procedures describes the methods and
procedures used to determine the permit fee required
to process an authority-to-construct permit
application.

The division intends to stay with an

emission-based fee schedule in determining permit

20

fees, that is, the more you potentially pollute, the
higher the fee.

When determining the application fee, the
applicant must determine the potential to emit of all
regulated fee pollutants and emissions. This
procedure, along with the increased application fees,
generally will mean higher application fees to the
applicant.

The division believes these increased fees
are justified since the fee not only pays for the
permit review process, but includes initial baseline
inspections, performance testing review, EPA reporting
and the source's annual emission fee until the next
invoice cycle.

In addition to the emission-based fees,

sources that must comply with federal performance
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standards or major source review programs shall be
required to pay an additional fee, depending on the
federal program being reviewed.

Federal programs include new source
performance standards, hazardous air pollutants
standards and federal major source review programs
such as prevention of significant deterioration,
nonattainment area permitting and acid rain.

Fees to modify an existing permit will also

21

be emission based in determining if the modification
is major or minor modifications that trigger a federal
review program or require an air toxic review will pay
the additional federal program and air toxic review
fees, but only for the emission unit subject to the
requirement.

Page 8, line 3, paragraph 7, outlines an
example of an emission-based fee with an additional
federal program review fee added.

MR. SILVERMAN: Excuse me, Mr. Smith, my
package doesn't have page 8.

MS. BASSETT: I don't think any of the
packets do.

MR. SILVERMAN: It was included in what
you made out, though.

MR. SMITH: I'm sorry, I did have

problems with the copier today, and I can make copies
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to have that. Mr. Olona has the

official record and if you would make sure it's in

that.

THE
just want to make
exhibit now.

MR.

THE

your --

MR.

HEARING OFFICER: That's correct. I

sure you are referring to your floor

SMITH: Right.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Which is

22

SMITH: Well, I just referenced page

8, line 3, paragraph 7 of the regulation.

THE

HEARING OFFICER: Right. I'm trying

to look at it. Are you talking about Exhibit 10 or

Exhibit 11, then?
MR.
11.

THE

SMITH: I am talking about Exhibit

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. I'm sorry,

Mike, what page number are you on again?

MR.

MR.

THE
the exhibit.

MR.
has it.

THE

one of your staff

SILVERMAN: Eight.

SMITH: Page 8, line 3, paragraph 7.

HEARING OFFICER: Page 8 is not in

SMITH: That's probably why no one

HEARING OFFICER: If you can have

members make a copy prior to the
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conclusion of your testimony, so we need to put it
into the record, and, also, make sure the Air Board
has a copy.

MR. SMITH: I will.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

DR. MULLOY: I have a copy of page 8

from what you had sent us out prior to this meeting.

23

MR. SMITH: That particular page 8 or 9
may be paged a little bit different, but the same
material is there.

MR. SILVERMAN: It would be page 7 in
what was sent out, as best as I can tell.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Before you
proceed, Mr. Smith, I just want to state in the record
that since the beginning of your testimony, two
additional air quality members, Dr. Steve Pilon and
Ms. Jeanne Bassett, arrived and are attending.

Please proceed.

MR. SMITH: Thank you. At this time,
staff would like to offer the following floor
amendments, and it's not on page 8.

Backing up to page 7, line 6, Section
20.11.12, Sub A, delete the word "reserved" and add
"sources applying for a general permit pursuant to
20.11.41 NMAC, authority to construct, shall pay the

applicable fee found in Subsection 18 of this part.”
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THE HEARING OFFICER: Excuse me. Is
that in Exhibit 11°7?

MR. SMITH: That's in Exhibit 11.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

MR. SMITH: And you are on page 7,

aren't you?

24

THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, sir.

MR. SILVERMAN: Repeat that one more
time, please.

MR. SMITH: "Sources applying for a
general permit pursuant to 20.11.41 NMAC, authority to
construct, shall pay the applicable fee in Section 18
of this part.

"The division intends to amend 20.11.41 NMAC,
authority to construct, to allow general permits to be
established for specific source categories,
eliminating the need for case-by-case air quality
review, expediting the permit-issuing process."

Now I am going to be referring to page 8
again. If I can go ahead and review, read that, and,
then, we can refer later back to the correct page.

At the end of Section 20.11.2.12, page 8,
line 19, we wish to add Subsection D as follows:
"Qualified small businesses shall pay one-half of the
calculated case-by-case air quality review fees prior

to adding any federal review fees or state toxic

mhtml:file://X:\ENVNTB\20.11.2 NMAC\AQBD0214 V1.mht

Page 23 of 168

3/3/2010





21

22

23

24

25

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

review fees."

Qualified small businesses working through
the division's small business assistance program will
only pay half of the case-by-case air quality review

calculated prior to adding additional fees.

25

The small business would still be responsible
for paying for any federal program and air toxic
review fees. This provision is not applicable to
sources applying for general permit since the cost of
the permit has already been reduced.

The division estimate under the proposed
regulation, based on the average number of permit
applications received, to collect about $111,000 per
year in application fees.

Under the current regulation, we have
invoiced 87,500 for the past year. The division
estimates it costs approximately $252,000 per year to
minimally fund a new source review program, the
remainder of the funding comes from annual emission
fees, federal grant money and city general funds.

Starting on page 8, line 22, Section
20.11.2.13, annual emission fees, fee calculations and
procedures describes the methods and procedures for
invoicing and calculating annual emission fees. All
invoicing will be done by the City of Albuquerque with

annual fees sent to the department's finance section
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for deposit.
As required by law, all fees will be
deposited into the City of Albuquerque permits program

fund. All annual emission fees will be determined

26

based on the source's potential to emit, taking into
account any permits and SIP-approved regulatory
limits.

Sources with registrations issued pursuant to
20.11.40 NMAC, source registration, will be reviewed
on a case-by-case basis, and if permitting is
required, the division will permit these sources at no
charge.

The division will be proposing to repeal
20.11.40 NMAC, source registration, and establish a
federally enforceable operating permit program for all
applicable sources.

Staff will also be proposing several floor
amendments in Section 18, creating annual emission
fees for specific source categories that currently
have registrations in lieu of authority-to-construct
permits.

Annual emission fees will be used primarily
to fund compliance and inspection activities required
by the state Air Quality Control Act, the joint Air
Quality Control Board ordinances and board

regulations.
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In addition, the annual emission fees will
also fund the small business assistance program.

Under the proposed regulation, the division estimates

27

it will collect about $756,850 per year in annual
emission fees.

The division estimates it takes approximately
$819,000 to minimally fund the inspection and
compliance in small business assistance activities
within the division. Funds from annual emission fees
will also be used for staff training regulatory
development and federal emission inventory reporting
and other activities required by Section 502 of the
federal Clean Air Act. Remainder of the funding comes
from federal grant money and city general funds.

One major change staff is proposing is to
remove the provision in the current regulation to
allow sources to pay annual emission fees based on
actual emissions.

This provision is found in Section II.2.4.F,
that reads "An annual emission inventory may be
submitted for reviews by the department for the
purpose of annual fee adjustment. This shall be
restricted to sources with established permit
allowable emission rates or sources which have
submitted a timely permit application pursuant to part

42, Section I.2.2.A.2.
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"The emissions inventories shall be

submitted to the department by no later than January

28

1, 1997 and by April 1 each year thereafter for review
consideration for every year an adjustment is sought.
Within 30 days of receipt, the department will bill
the source for the review pursuant to Table 1 of this
part.

"Any adjustments to the sources permitted or
otherwise established emission fees shall be
incorporated and adjusted and billed in accordance
with the billing schedule provisions in this part."”

While this provision benefits sources with
large allowable emissions and on the surface appears
to encourage emission reductions, these sources still
have the right to pollute at their permitted levels at
any time.

The division strongly supports emission
reduction through permit and by removing the ability
for sources to pay on their actual emissions will
encourage sources to truly reduce their emission
through federally enforceable permit conditions. The
division received three written comments concerning
the removal of the emission inventory provision from
the Department of Energy, General Mills and PNM.

Both the Department of Energy and General

Mills believe that by removing the provision to pay on
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actual emissions will create a disincentive for

29

voluntary pollution reductions.

General Mills staff Exhibit Number 6 stated
in their letter that "The proposed system of fees
creates a disincentive to minimize air emissions
because the fee is based on potential worst case
activities and effectively disallows pollution
prevention activities from quickly recovering cost
savings associated with emission fee reduction."

The Department of Energy will also testify
the current provision encourages pollution prevention.

The Department disagrees that removing the
provision will discourage pollution prevention and is
proposing in the fee structure a pollution prevention
modification at no charge to encourage sources to
reduce their emissions through federally enforceable
pollution prevention techniques or process.

Pollution prevention means the reduction or
other practices that reduce or eliminate the creation
of pollutants through increased efficiencies and the
use of raw materials, energy, water or other resources
or protection of natural resources by conservation.

Source reduction includes any practice which
reduces the amount of any hazardous substance or
pollutant prior to recycling or treatment, including

equipment or technology modifications, process
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modifications, reformulation or redesign of products,
substitution of raw materials and improvement in
housekeeping, maintenance, training and inventory
control.

Pollution prevention techniques or practices
do not include add-on air pollution controls used to
limit air emission or emission reductions based on
decreased production needs.

PNM, in its letter, Staff Exhibit Number 7,
understands that emission fees can be reduced through
permit modification, but chooses not to modify based
on its business needs, which is consistent with the
division's proposal that sources pay on what they are
allowed to emit by permit.

Page 9, line 21, Section 20.11.2.14, filing
and inspection fees for the removal of regulated
asbestos-containing material; fee calculations and
procedures describes the methods and procedures used
to calculate filing and inspection fees for the
removal of regulated asbestos-containing material.

The section remains unchanged from the
existing requirements; however, as required by the
general provisions of this part, all fees must be paid
at the time of application.

Currently, the inspectors invoice the sources

mhtml:file://X:\ENVNTB\20.11.2 NMAC\AQBD0214 V1.mht

Page 29 of 168

3/3/2010





10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

31

after the notification is received, increasing the
administrative burden on the staff by requiring fees
at the time of application.

The inspector will be free of this
administrative burden and spend more time in the field
conducting inspections.

Division estimates it takes approximately
$84,000 annually to minimally fund this program and
expects to collect approximately $63,000 a year in
fees based on average number of notifications
received. The remainder of the funding comes from
federal grant money and city general funds.

Page 11, line 8, Section 20.11.2.15, filing
and inspection fees for surface disturbance permits;
fee calculations and procedures describes the methods
and procedures in calculating filing and inspection
fees for surface disturbance permits issued pursuant
to 20.11.20 NMAC airborne particulate matter.
Currently, the division does not charge for these
permits and is proposing to charge a per acre fee to
cover the program cost to inspectors.

The dust control program is an important part
of the particulate matter SIP and must be adequately
funded. For 1999 and the first quarter of 2000,

monitors in Bernalillo County exceeded the annual
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32

national ambient air quality standard for particulate
matter.

It's vital that we not continue this trend
and the division is aggressively addressing problem
areas, such as dust control, in an effort to avoid
nonattainment status. The fees for surface
disturbance permits not only funds the dust control
program, but hopefully will encourage businesses to
disturb only the acreage necessary for their project.

The division received one comment letter from
Sandia Properties Limited concerning the proposed fee
and I will address the comment letter in my
testimony.

Page 11, line 19, Section 20.11.2.16, fee
errors, corrections and refunds describes the
procedures to be taken to correct fee errors, make
corrections or request refunds as stated in general
provisions of this part, the director may deduct a
reasonable professional service fee to cover the costs
of staff time and processing a permit or request.

Page 12, line 19, Section 20.11.2.17, failure
to pay, establishes the violation for sources failing
to pay any fee required by this part and of procedures
to be used to calculate any penalty and interest due

consistent with the provisions of Section

33

mhtml:file://X:\ENVNTB\20.11.2 NMAC\AQBD0214 V1.mht 3/3/2010





10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 32 of 168

502 (-B) (-3)-(C) of the federal Clean Air Act.

Starting on page 13, line 5, continuing to
the end of the regulation is the proposed fee
schedule. The fee schedule is combined into one
section for the convenience of the reader and to
simplify future amendments to the fee schedule.

The first subsection addresses annual
emission fees. The division is not proposing to
change the fee pollutant rates for nonhazardous or
hazardous air pollutants and will remain at $31 and at
$250 per ton respectively.

The current federal presumptive fee rate for
major sources is $34.87 per ton. The division is
proposing to raise the minimum annual fee from $100 to
$150. Sources will be required to pay $150 or $31 per
ton, whichever is greater, unless otherwise stated.

Upon further review of the regulation, staff
recommends the following floor amendments.

Starting at page 13, line 10, add the phrase
"unless otherwise listed." Starting on line 14, add
a new paragraph 4, " (4) annual emission fees for
specific source categories," then list the following:
Auto body repair and painting: One spray booth: No
charge; two or more spray booths: $150; chromium

electroplating: $150; degreasers using organic

34
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solvents, nonhalogenated solvents using less than
2,200 gallons of any one solvent-containing material
and 5,100 gallons of any combination of
solvent-containing materials: $150.

Halogenated solvents using less than 1,200
gallons of any one solvent containing material and
2,900 gallons of any combination solvent-containing
materials: $150; dry cleaners/nonmajor: $150;
emergency generators: $150; gasoline service and
fleet stations: $250 or $31 per ton, whichever is
greater.

"Natural gas or distillate fuel-fired boiler
less than 2 million BTUs used exclusively for
residential, commercial or institutional heating and
hot water: ©No charge. Printing, publishing and
packaging operations: Sheetfed, nonheat set, offset
lithograph, using less than 7,125 gallons of cleaning
solvent and fountain solution additives: $150.

"Nonheat set web offset lithography using
less than 7,125 gallons of solvent and fountain
solution additives: $150. Heatset web offset
lithography using less than 50,000 pounds of ink,
cleaning solvent and fountain solution additives:
$150.

"Screen printing using less than 7,125

35

gallons of total solvent used, including solvent-based
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inks, cleaning solvent adhesives and coating: $150.

"Flexography (water based) or UV-cured inks
using less than 200,000 pounds total of inks, coatings
and adhesives: $150. Soil and water remediation
operations: $150. Stationary sources with de minimus
emissions: No charge."

It is the intent of the division to use this
list of specific source categories for nonmajor
sources when determining source applicability and to
ensure fair fee assessment.

The next two subsections of Section 18
establish the fee schedule for an initial air quality
review to obtain a construction permit from the
division.

On page 14, line 17, the division initially
wanted to reserve this subsection for minor source
general permits in lieu of case-by-case air quality
review for new sources. Upon further review, the
division proposes to add the following fees for
general permit review to avoid having to open this
regulation again for public hearing.

On page 14, starting on line 7, strike the
word "reserved" and add the following paragraphs:

One, auto body repair and painting: $500; two, dry

36

cleaners (nonmajor): $500; three, emergency

generators: $500; four, generic coating and abrasive
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operations: $500; other fueling facilities receiving
fuel by truck or rail, (non-NSPS): $1,000; non-NSPS
boilers: $500; printing and packaging operations:
$500; retail fleet gasoline service stations: $500;
soil water remediation systems: $1,000.

On page 15, starting on line 2 are the
proposed case-by-case air quality review fees for new
sources. This is an emission-based fee schedule where
fees increase as the source's potential to emit
increases and will be based on the source's potential
to emit all fee pollutants, including quantifiable
fugitive emissions.

The fee not only covers the cost of permit
review, but also includes costs for construction and
baseline inspections, compliance test reviews and
source's annual emissions fee until the next billing
period.

For those sources with potentially low
emissions of toxic or hazardous air pollutants, an
additional air toxic review fee will be required which
will offset the costs of these more complicated
permits.

The fees proposed are substantially higher

37

than the current fee schedule. Currently, a source
with precontrolled emissions less than 100 tons would

pay only $500.
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That covers about seven staff hours, assuming
$75 per staff hour. The proposed fee schedule would
require sources to pay up to $5,000, which offset up
to 67 staff hours, assuming 40 hours for permit review
and processing, eight hours air quality modeling
review, with the remaining fee covering construction
and baseline inspections, compliance testing and the
annual emission fees for the source until the next
billing period.

In addition to the emission-based air quality
review fee, any source that must comply with any
federally required performance standards or control
technologies would be assessed in additional review
fee to cover the cost of implementing the federal
program.

These federal review fees are found on page
15, starting on line 13, Section D. The most common
federal program reviewed are the new source
performance standards or NSPS found in 40 CFR 60,
which would add $1,000 to the initial air quality
review fee.

As a rule, NSPS requires additional

38

record-keeping reporting and compliance testing for
the source and the division.
On page 15, line 23, Section E establishes

the fee schedule for permit modification. The
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division intends to revise 20.11.41 NMAC, authority to
construct, to establish modification criteria for
pollution prevention modifications, minor or flexible
permit modifications and major modifications.

Generally speaking, major modifications will
be those modifications that significantly increase the
source's potential to emit requiring more extensive
permit review and processing, modeling and inspection
and compliance activities.

As with the case-by-case air quality review,
any modification that must comply with federal program
requirement will be charged an additional federal
program review fee.

On page 16, line 2, the division proposes a
portable source relocation fee to cover the cost of
permit review and modeling at the different locations
a portable source may relocate.

When establishing the case-by-case air
quality review fees, we did not compare our fee
structure to other jurisdictions because the

emission-based fee schedule fit our needs. It is also
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very difficult to compare permit fees with other
jurisdictions.

The State of New Mexico, for example, is
currently revising their fee structure to an

effort-based fee schedule; that is, the more emission
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units a source proposes, the higher the permit fee.

In addition, the state charges fees for
sources that must comply with federal requirements
along with air quality modeling fee, toxic air
pollutant review fee and nonrefundable filing fee.

On reviewing the state's proposed regulation
and based on some sample calculations on recent
permits issued by our department, we believe our fee
schedule is comparable to the state's proposal.

However, I believe it's more telling to
compare our proposed fee structure with other
metropolitan areas in the southwest. For this
purpose, I picked Maricopa County, Arizona, which
includes Phoenix, and Clark County, Nevada, which
includes Las Vegas.

Staff Exhibit 13 outlines the different fee
approaches and compares tonight's proposal with the
state of New Mexico, Clark County and Maricopa
County.

Since each jurisdiction has developed a fee

40

program that fits its individual needs, it's difficult
to make a direct comparison. I believe, however, the
comparison does show that Albugquerque's new source
review fees are reasonable, even considering the
increases being discussed.

Page 16, line 4, Subsection H establishes
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7 $100 per acre fee for surface disturbance permits.
8 The purpose of this fee is to cover the costs of
9 administering and enforcing the provisions of 20.11.20

10 NMAC airborne particulate matter.
11 As previously discussed, Albuquerque has
12 exceeded the annual national ambient air quality

13 standard for particulate matter in 1999 with high

14 levels continuing into the year 2000.

15 Albuquerque must act now to control dust
16 generated by land disturbance to avoid federal

17 action. Managing the dust control program takes a

18 minimum of two full-time positions to process permits,
19 conduct on-site inspections, respond to complaints and
20 perform the other administrative matters related to

21 the program.

22 Again, I compared our proposed dust control
23 permit program fees with those of Clark and Maricopa

24 Counties, Staff Exhibit Number 14.

25 Our proposed fee of $100 an acre is less than
0
41
1 Clark County's fee, but more than Maricopa's fee;
2 however, Maricopa's fee is an annual fee. The annual

3 block permit required by Maricopa County is available

4 for organizations that perform routine maintenance on
5 utilities, paved and unpaved roads, road shoulders,

6 alleys and public right-of-ways at noncontiguous

7 sites.
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We have received one comment concerning our
proposed fees from Sandia Properties Limited, Staff
Exhibit Number 9, regarding master plan projects such
as Ventana Ranch, which encompassed approximately 900
acres.

When applying our proposed fee, the developer
would be required to pay $90,000 or approximately $30
per house assuming three houses per acre in addition
to the fees already paid to the city for project
approval.

Looking at other jurisdictions, the same
project would cost at least $32,510 or more in
Maricopa County since permits must be renewed
annually, and $98,100 in Clark County.

Staff believes that the proposed fee of $100
per acre 1is reasonable and expects to generate
approximately $80,000 in revenue per year based on the

average number of acres disturbed per year.

42

The asbestos unit fee found on page 16, line
5, Subsection I, will remain the same.

Page 16, starting on line 6, Section J,
establishes a miscellaneous administrative fees the
division will charge. The $75 per hour professional
service fee was established assuming an average
employee salary plus benefits and overhead.

Maricopa's professional service fee is $70 per hour
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and staff believes the proposed fee is reasonable.

The fees established for photocopying and
regulation books are consistent with department
policy. The public records research fee has been
established to cover the direct staff costs of
complying with information requests concerning
permits, enforcement actions and complaints.

Mr. Hearing Officer, this concludes my
testimony and I wish to end by quoting Miguel de
Cervantes from his classic Don Quixote by saying "That
what costs little is valued less."

Thank you.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr.
Smith, and you finished well in front of your 45
minutes, so good job.

At this time, I want to ask the members of

the Air Quality Board if they have any questions of

43

Mr. Smith or staff.
Mr. Silverman?

MR. SILVERMAN: Mr. Smith, when you go
to the dentist, do you have to pay him before he sits
you in his chair?

MR. SMITH: No, but he certainly asks
for my insurance.

MR. SILVERMAN: You know, when you go

see your lawyer, does he ask for money up front before
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he hears your case?

MR. SMITH: Many do.

MR. SILVERMAN: Well, you are using the
wrong lawyer. It's my opinion that the concept of
having to pay the fees before you look at anything or
do anything sits really wrong with me, and I would
never vote to support that.

That's my comment on that subject.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr.
Silverman.

Any other member of the board have a question
for Mr. Smith or the staff?

DR. PILON: Would you repeat the
rationale for charging a potential to emit rather than
the actual emissions as addressed by the General Mills

letter I was just looking at.

44

MR. SMITH: When we refer to potential
to emit, what we refer to is what's limiting the
ability for this source to emit. In many cases, it's
a permit, a federally enforceable permit that actually
limits the source to so many, let's say, tons per
year.

In absence of a permit, potential looks at
the process, itself, and assuming no controls other
than those controls along with production in the past,

or, rather, current fee regulation, I should say,
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allows for sources to be charged on their actual
emissions.

That means emissions they are emitting which
are below their actual permit, but they are actually
permitted to emit so many hundreds of tons per year,
so the -- what we do is we tie up -- those emissions
are tied up.

For the purpose of many air quality programs,
for example, if we were to do modeling, we must take
into account that of the source's emissions that are
next to the proposed source. We must take in account
their worst case scenario when we do the modeling.

Also, at any time during any time that source
may be -- their allowable emissions may be -- let's

say they were emitting 50 tons per year and they are

45

allowable 100 at any time without our approval, they
Are allowed to emit up to 100 tons and what we had
done is actually inventory the emissions throughout
the county to figure out where our emissions are
totally, as a total picture, and we tried to use those
emissions in approving and disapproving projects.

MS. BASSETT: So what you are saying is
that a company would purchase a certain amount of
emissions, almost like a bank account, not knowing
whether they would use all of those, but hedge their

bets, they would purchase, say, 100 tons?
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MR. SMITH: Well, no, they would not
purchase.

MS. BASSETT: Do they pay for those
1007

MR. SMITH: No. Right now, we allow
them to pay for their actual 50, even though they're
permitted to have 100.

MS. BASSETT: Why aren't they charged
for 1007

MR. SMITH: Because our current fee
regulations say they can pay on actuals.

MS. BASSETT: So what we are trying to
do is say "You have to know exactly what's in the bank

account because we need that money," quote, unquote,

46

"We need that money for the air shed for other
potential projects," and you are basically sort of
stockpiling that potential CO?

MR. SMITH: Well, it's really not
correct to say these emissions have any value. They
are permitted during the permit process. They are
allowed to emit so many tons per year of emissions
based on their proposed application modeling and so
forth.

At this time, we don't have what's referred
to as a capped-off trade where we have capped off the

emission levels, and, therefore, those emission levels
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may have actual real value, but what we are trying to
do is eliminate sources that have, let's say, 100 tons
permitted, tying up those 100 tons within our air shed
and paying only on 50 tons, when, at any time, they
could use that 100 tons if production demands it.

MS. BASSETT: Okay.

DR. PILON: So by switching to a
potential to emit, as opposed to actual usage, you are
creating an incentive for the source to approach more
closely with its actual output to what it potentially
is allowed to do-?

MR. SMITH: Actually, vyes.

DR. PILON: Because then they will have

47

incentive to get a permit as close to what they
actually expect, leaving a margin for error, but they
are going to have incentive to get closer to their
actual output, and that would free up other emissions
sort of. That would give you an idea that the -- a
closer idea based on the permitting, what their actual
output is going to be.

Right now what you are saying is that the
range of actual emissions is anywhere from half the
permit to all of the permit and we don't know, but,
then, the question is -- the General Mills letter
raised the question: Why are they going to be charged

for emission; that is, they are not doing and you are

mhtml:file://X:\ENVNTB\20.11.2 NMAC\AQBD0214 V1.mht

Page 45 of 168

3/3/2010





14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

10

11

12

13

14

saying you are trying to create an incentive for them
to permit more closely to what they are actually going
to emit.

MR. SMITH: That's correct.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Silverman-?

MR. SILVERMAN: What would be the
immediate penalty for exceeding the permit?

MR. SMITH: $15,000 a day.

MR. SILVERMAN: Would it be possible --
I mean, I can see both sides of this issue. I mean, I
certainly understand why we want to go to the

potential to emit, but at the same time, with

48

penalties for violating the permit being, you know, at
that level, you know, the need to pad the permit is
pretty obvious because you don't want to -- you just
simply can't take that risk, and my question is: Did
you look at a procedure that might encourage people to
permit closer to what they are going to -- what they
would use, but, then, if, you know, mid year, there is
a need for, you know, business spikes, I mean, PNM is
a great example.

I noticed today that they were out, you know,
burning Reeves generating plant primarily to send
electricity to California is my, you know,
supposition.

I think balance load on the grid, take Palo
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Verde, send it west, generate on our power here, you
know, they didn't know that we were going to have a
crisis in California, and, you know, what is it to the
economy, you know, to have California go dark, and if
they had a permit level that was down, where they had
taken five years' worth of normal business, permitted
that amount, and, then, this spike happens, and, then,
they get hit with $15,000 a day, you know, that
doesn't -- that's putting handcuffs on the economy,
and, you know, I think if we want to encourage this,

the concept of potential to emit, then we probably

49

ought to come up with some type of mechanism that
would allow unexpected events.

I mean, you know, there is one thing to be,
you know, conscientious, you know, going to exceed,
exceed, exceed, but there is a whole other deal where
there is just unintended consequences that you cannot
foresee, and so I am not sure we have this totally
figured out given that thought process, and I might
like to see a couple of other scenarios that might
take that into account.

MR. SMITH: Well, since you brought up
PNM, in their letter, they are currently paying
$11,292 a year. I guess that was the last, and this
change would increase by -- would require an increase,

let's see, to $152,923. I have got sources that are
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not major sources like PNM paying more than $11,292.

MR. SILVERMAN: 1Is that 11,000 based on

their actual emissions?

MR. SMITH: Yes. So I have got sources

out there paying more than $11,292 which aren't going

to enjoy the benefits of California's blackout.

MR. SILVERMAN: Why are people paying
more than that?

MR. SMITH: We charge $31 per ton.

MR. SILVERMAN: And?

50

MR. SMITH: $31 per ton.

MR. SILVERMAN: And what are you
charging the other folks?

MR. SMITH: I couldn't tell you right
off the top of my head.

MR. SILVERMAN: Well, I am clearly in
favor of everybody paying their fair share, which is
my next set of questions, if I could continue.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Please proceed.

MR. SMITH: Mr. Martinez was just
advising me that there are also other provisions
involved. In fact, they do have modifications,
provisions where they can make changes to their
permit.

MR. SILVERMAN: Yes, what's the time

line for doing that, though.
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MR. SMITH: 90 days.

MR. SILVERMAN: 90 days, you know,
California would go dark.

MR. SMITH: Well, then I would think
that $159,000 is a bargain.

MR. SILVERMAN: Maybe it is and maybe
it's fair, I don't know, but I can tell you that from
a conceptual standpoint, we have a problem, and the

problem is that we are trying to get people not to

51

bank permitting tonnage by reserving more than, you
know, than what they need, so we have come up with a
mechanism to try to cut that down closer to what they
are actually using, the permit level, but at the same
time, I am not sure that you can move fast enough to
react to what happens in business on an ongoing
basis.

Clearly, 90 days is not fast enough.

MR. SMITH: Well, there are provisions,
especially with major sources, as to the type of
permits, to have alternative operating scenarios, so
that's, again, another opportunity that they have.

MR. SILVERMAN: Well, maybe you need to
explain that to us, because I don't understand that.

MR. SMITH: They have different -- Title
V allows for sources to create different operating

scenarios based on their need. One operating scenario
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may be providing Albugquerque with power, the other
operating scenario may be providing California with
power.

Both of those options are in the permit so
that they don't have to repermit to go to those
particular operating scenarios.

MS. BASSETT: But they would be using --

they would be exceeding, then, the tonnage of the

52

permit that they originally purchased, so they would
be violating their permit.

MR. SMITH: One of those operating
scenarios would include the worst case scenario.

MR. SILVERMAN: And what do you permit
on?

MR. SMITH: I don't understand.

MR. SILVERMAN: Well, are you going to
permit on worst case scenario or normal scenario?

MR. SMITH: Both.

MR. SILVERMAN: What are you going to
charge for it?

MR. SMITH: Right now, we are proposing
to charge $31 a ton.

MR. SILVERMAN: So you are suggesting
that you can permit on either one, but you're going to
end up paying on the worst case scenario, even though

that might be a once in 15 year --
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MR. SMITH: That's the benefit of having
that modification already in place and not having to
go 90 days.

MR. SILVERMAN: I think you are giving
business too much credit.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Martinez, do

you want to give a response? If so, you have to be

53

sworn.
ANGEL MARTINEZ
after having been first duly sworn under oath,
testified as follows:
THE HEARING OFFICER: Please state your
name and proceed, Mr. Martinez.
MR. MARTINEZ: My name is Angel Martinez
and I am the manager for the air quality division. I
think one of the things that needs to be explained is
that yes, we are trying to ensure that permitted
sources permit as close to their operations or as
close to their needs as possible, that may be as close
to the operations last year or as close to what they
perceive the market will be in the next few years.
There are provisions that allow the source to
modify, there are provisions from the prevention
program that allows the source to actually reduce on
one end of the source and basically take credit for

that.
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The turnaround time is very, very short on
that and I believe it's a matter of notification
within 10, 15 days. It does not require public
hearing, it doesn't require anything. They can
basically just do it, so we have those provisions in

place.

54

The issue of the operating alternative
operating scenarios is that yes, the source can
actually design different scenarios into the permit.
What would have to happen is that notification would
have to be submitted to the department in order for
them to switch over to the next scenario.

One of the things that I need to be -- that
needs to be pointed out on this whole issue is that it
is -- you know, there are provisions within the
federal act that allow that if there is an
emergency-type situation, I mean, pretty much you have
no choice. I mean, if California goes dark tomorrow,
then I can guarantee you that all bets are off, I
mean, as far as complying with these particular
regulations because that is more of a national
emergency than anything else, and the federal act does
allow for that.

Now, what we are talking about is ensuring
that the facilities have taken into consideration and

are using good business practice to ensure that we

mhtml:file://X:\ENVNTB\20.11.2 NMAC\AQBD0214 V1.mht 3/3/2010





21

22

23

24

25

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

also understand what the impact to the economy or to a
specific area will Dbe.

Keep in mind that if a facility has the
option, you know, and since we are talking about PNM,

to go ahead and pay for the full permit, and that is

55

fine, but what happens with us is that now, at this
point, we understand that those emission submissions
within that area are tied down and there is no taking
from them at that point.

You know, what makes it difficult for us is
that when we are looking at inventories, we basically
used to look at okay, what happened last year, but
there was a federal document in place that basically
gave the right to large sources to go up to where the
limit was, and so what that basically does to that
area 1s that we have to take that into the modeling
consideration.

We cannot continue to permit sources around
that area because nothing prohibits them from going to
the maximum, and when they do that, then we are
talking about serious economic impacts to the area and
that is going on the payment, which is far higher of
an economic impact, than pretty much anything else
within the realm of the Clean Air Act, but there are a
lot of provisions that are currently in place that

allows the facility to utilize good business
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practices, good engineering practices, and we have
assistance that, you know, we go out there free of
charge and work for them on that particular issue.

Maybe there is an antiquated piece of

56

equipment that can be changed, maybe there is
configuration, maybe there is some kind of process or
alternative method that they can use and we don't take
those credits away because they are in a permit, but
we give them credit for additional process or
production, so those are there and they are somewhat
complicated, but there is -- by all means, there is
more than one provision that allows the facility to
make modifications during -- halfway through the
process to ensure that production is made, and, you
know again, to us, what the facility puts out as far
as production is irrelevant to us, it's Jjust the
emissions that are tied to that production, so the
more efficient that they become, you know, the better
it is for everybody, and, you know, for the economy
and for the environment.

MR. SILVERMAN: I understand that, I am
supportive of it and I think that's great and that's
the way it ought to be, but, you know, that's the
normal course of business, and, you know, one thing
that I know is that normal is hard to find anymore,

and, you know, to be -- maybe we need to think about
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how we are doing this.
If we pick up a lot of headroom as a result,

you know, of this permitting process, maybe what we

57

need to do is reserve a piece of that for the unknown,
and, then, maybe we need to build into our fee
structure and our regulatory system the ability for
the economy, i.e., individual businesses or groups of
them, to be able to use that safety margin, maybe they
have to pay double, you know, on an audit basis after
the fact for that tonnage, so, you know, maybe they
are paying $31 up to their permit level and they pay
$65, you know, a ton to go above it, which will
encourage squeezing the excess out of it, but not be
hit with $15,000 a day.

I mean, you know, I am just not sure that we
really, you know, are on the right track. Okay. I
fully support that, I just think that there is some
tweaking that needs to be done to take into account
the way the real world works.

The second set of questions, if I may, do we
have any idea what the loss of revenue would be if all
of our small business permittees took advantage of the
50 percent or whatever the discounts are for small
business?

MR. SMITH: No.

MR. SILVERMAN: Is there any way of
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quantifying it?

MR. SMITH: Not without a lot of effort,

58

because we simply don't have the information of who is
a small business by that definition.

MR. SILVERMAN: So we don't have any
idea of how much of a cost of operating this program
is going to get shifted to the larger operations as a
result of what we are suggesting is credits for small
business?

MR. SMITH: No.

MR. SILVERMAN: Well, I think that's
unfortunate and I think we need to make a good-faith
effort to try to determine that, and the reason
being --

MR. SMITH: Well, we couldn't honestly
get that information without months and months of
going out there, and, actually, getting -- actually
asking the questions, are you a small business.

MR. SILVERMAN: Well, you know, I guess
my response would be that, you know, to quote
Cervantes, that "That which cost little is valued
less."

I mean, if we don't have any idea what we are
giving away, I don't know how it can have any value,
so, you know, if a ton of pollution is worth X, it's

worth X to a small business, just like it is to a big
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MR. SMITH: Well, the small business
reduction or whatever, it is consistent with the Clean
Air Act, and in trying to provide for relief from
these regulations -- it's right out of the Clean Air
and it -- you know, the small business systems was
passed by this board.

MR. SILVERMAN: I guess we can unpass
it, then, can't we?

MR. SMITH: No.

MR. SILVERMAN: I think we can.

MR. SMITH: Well, then there would be a
federal program in place.

MR. SILVERMAN: The other part of this
is -- and you brought to light in comparing Clark
County and Maricopa County, which I guess it's Clark
County that has the annual permits?

MR. SMITH: Maricopa.

MR. SILVERMAN: Maricopa has the annual
permits. It seems to me, and I will use topsoil
disturbances as a particular, okay, the program that
we worked out with Rio Grande Cement, the four-people
program I believe is what it was called that we were
awarded --

MR. SMITH: pP-4.

MR. SILVERMAN: The P-4 program where we
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60

went out, we worked with them, we adjusted the --
worked with them to adjust their systems and make all
that work, it seems to me that particularly in the
topsoil disturbance that there is probably, I am
guessing, four or five, six, maybe eight folks that do
large-scale development, probably do 80 percent, you
know, of all the masquerading in town, and it seems to
me that we need to take that same carrot and stick
proposal and instead of maybe doing landowner permits
that what we do is we come up with a quality assurance
program for the larger contractors that do the
majority of this work and work with them to make sure
that their operations are as good as they possibly can
be, because if you can get the 80 percent with eight
people doing an excellent job of maintaining, you
know, PNM, 2.5, or PNM dust control work, then your
problem gets to be a whole lot smaller and maybe you
have a whole lot more time to focus on, you know, the
renegades, I guess is what I might call them, and so I
have a problem, I guess, with the hundred dollars an
acre.

I think we need to come up with a different
thought process, given the structure of people that do
topsoil disturbance, what different way of approaching

that.
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And I think we need to think through that, as
well, for a different approach because I think it will
be much more effective, you take a whole lot less time
and have a lot better end result for air quality if we
do that.

That's all my questions and comments.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr.
Silverman.

Any other members of the board have any
questions to the city staff at this time?

DR. MULLOY: I guess I want to go back
to what Mr. Silverman said, just so I understand,
since he was so vehement about the paying up front and
the process is to pay for the permit fee up front, is
that right, is that what you are -- was part of your
application?

MR. SMITH: Pay the permit fee up
front. For example, the dust control permits, we
would -- I would hope that the contractor would know
how many acres he plans to disturb since that's
probably part of his bid.

I don't see where there would be a problem of
paying up front there as far as asbestos. Again, if
the contract is going to remove asbestos, I would hope

the contractor would know how much asbestos he is
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going to be removing prior to getting the permit.
As for authority-to-construct permits, I
would hope that the sources have an application in
place where it states what their potential emission
rates are going to be so that they, themselves, can
make a determination as to what the applicability
would be, so I totally disagree with Mr. Silverman.

DR. MULLOY: Since you do a different
process at this point, has it been prior to this that
you have expected them to pay something and either
they had to pay more or pay less than what their
provisional permit was?

MR. SMITH: Well, for the asbestos
program, what we have found out is that they are
making us do the work in determining how much it's
going to cost as opposed to having them do the
complete application and submitting it to us.

MS. BASSETT: Can you explain that?
What do you mean by you "doing the work"?

MR. SMITH: Well, they don't come in
with a complete application.

MS. BASSETT: Half-filled-out
application?

MR. SMITH: They have not filled it

completely out.

63
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MR. SILVERMAN: Give it back to them.

MR. SMITH: Well, that's what we do, and
with the fees exactly, and that will expedite the
process.

DR. PILON: But what you are saying is
that your administrators wind up handling the
paperwork over and over again rather than having it
completed once and handed to you.

MR. SMITH: We want it complete up
front. ©Now, one of the comments that Mr. Silverman
made about businesses, you know, 90 days may seem like
a long time for a business, but keep in mind that if a
business sends us a permit that is incomplete, we send
it back to them, yet we are the ones that are, you
know, causing the problems, what we are proposing in
this regulation and on into the amendments to 41, is
that we want a complete application, we will discuss
the matter ahead of time, if you want to, as we will
go with the business to make sure they have a complete
application, we will charge for that $75 an hour, but
at the time that it is submitted into the -- to us for
processing, it will be a complete application and we
don't have to return it in 30 days because it's
incomplete.

MR. SILVERMAN: How does paying the fee

64
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up front ensure that the application is going to be
completed?
I mean --

MR. SMITH: 1It's a part of the complete
application packet, Jjust as it's going to be the
public information or the public notice requirements
that we will ask the businesses to submit, it's a
complete application. We want complete paperwork
which includes a calculation of the fees and payment.

DR. MULLOY: I see this as similar to
kind of a licensing, and, I mean, obviously, I have a
license, I have to complete my application and send my
fee in.

MR. SMITH: Up ahead, exactly.

DR. MULLOY: Up ahead. 1If they find
some problem with it, you know, I don't necessarily
get my money back or whatever, but, you know, I don't
see a problem with that because it's not just you are
adding service on top of it and somehow you're going
to take your money back or take it before or whatever,
I think this is for paying for all of the
administrative costs and not adding costs on it, and
it should be known up front what it is.

MR. SMITH: You know you're going to be

assessed that fee.

65

THE HEARING OFFICER: Steve?
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DR. PILON: It seems to me that it's
also a sign of good faith that they are serious about
doing what they are saying they are going to do to
submit the fee.

My question is: If one of the problems or if
one of the delays is the fact that the application has
to be submitted -- has to be returned, and, then,
resubmitted, is there any way that the department can
commit to a shorter time period than 90 days, maybe
cut it in half, maybe cut it by a third, if the clock
starts running from the time that the money is paid
and the application is completed?

MR. SMITH: Currently, we have 30 days
from the date we receive an application to determine
just if it's complete, administratively complete.
That, of course, you know, the permit reviewer
actually takes the application, goes through, and, for
the most part, it's an administrative check, because
the application is filled out, is it signed correctly,
is the air quality modeling attached.

If there is something missing, usually we
make contact with the source and they will supply that
to us, so, actually, there is usually no stopping the

clock, per se, but does that answer your question?

66

MR. MARTINEZ: If I may, one of the

things I need to point out, and this is, you know, we
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feel that this is a far more simplistic approach to
the fee and the permit connection, if you will, and
the reason for that is that we basically simplify the
process and basically put a price on what the
application is, so if you are a dry cleaner, this is
what we are going to charge you, you know, until this
regulation is modified, and you pay up front.

It is similar to a licensing fee because what
it does, you know, we do review the application and we
are basically going to issue authority to construct
for that particular site.

Now, one of the things that the state 1is
going to is that is going to an effort, unit effort,
if you will, that the engineer basically gets the
application and they determine how hard that
application was, and, then, that's how they determine
the fee.

Now, we decided not to go to that and
basically say up front "This is going to be the
price," which, again, comparatively, I can guarantee
you, 1it's far lower than anything around this region.

Another thing that I'll point out, as far as

the 90 days, we do have the fastest -- you know, one

67

of the fastest permitting processes within the entire
region, and I mean EPA Region 6.

You know, an audit was done within all the
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states within Region 6 and we basically issued most of
our permits within that 90 days' time period, as
compared to the State of New Mexico where a very, very
low percentage is issued within that time frame and
that is because we try to figure out ways to simplify
the process, and so people know up front what they
have to do in order to deal with us.

Another issue that needs to be pointed out on
this whole issue of why we are going to the fee up
front, and that is, it keeps us from being bill
collectors. The way that the city process basically
works is that they submit the application.

Now, we issue an invoice, and, then, that
goes to the treasury department. What happens at the
treasury department is that then they will issue an
invoice within 30, 45 days that they get it, and,
then, it goes out, and, then, what happens is that we
don't really get any sense of when that fee was
actually submitted to city treasury until, you know,
months later, sometimes it will be up to six,
sometimes even a year, and so then what happens after

a year, we realize that the sources have not paid, and
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we do have a lot of that, and I gave you that copy of
what was actually billed and what was collected, so
then what happens at that point, it takes about --

sometimes it will take up to seven months before we
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realize that the source has not paid, and, then, so we

have to bring an enforcement action and that's a

seven-month enforcement action, if you will.

What we are saying now, this is the bill, pay

it now, that starts our review process, and, then, at

least from that administrative aspect, we are done

with that and there is not an enforcement action, at

least on that part of it, so it does simplify the

process quite a bit.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr.

MR. SILVERMAN:

get his permit?
MR. MARTINEZ:

weeks of the end of the --

MR. SILVERMAN:

physically?
MR. MARTINEZ:

typically.

MR. SILVERMAN:

Silverman?

When does the applicant

Typically, within a few

How does he get it

Through certified mail,

Well, why couldn't the

applicant, when it's all processed, it's all done,

it's all ready, simply come down, pick up the permit,

69

show you his receipt for the fees?

MR. MARTINEZ:

something that they would have to do.

Well, actually, that's

When they

submit the application, we get a receipt that the fee

has already been sent.
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MR. SILVERMAN: So why can't they
exchange a copy of that receipt for the permit when
you are through fooling with it? And, then, that
eliminates all the bill collecting.

MR. MARTINEZ: Then we would have to go
back and modify the reg because then we are going to
be holding up the permit until payment is made.

MR. SILVERMAN: You are doing that
anyway.

MR. MARTINEZ: Actually, you know, what
we are asking for is for the application review to be
up front. The permit basically comes from that, you
know.

MR. SILVERMAN: So now the application
review fee is the full amount of the permit, right?

MR. MARTINEZ: It's the full amount that
-- the application review fee, correct.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Any other
questions?

MR. SMITH: May I just add to that?

70

THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes.

MR. SMITH: We do have businesses that
come in to start permits, and, then, stop, okay,
because of whatever the case may be, the money dried
up, they weren't being well-received and whatever they

were going to be billed, and is it then fair for the
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division to have gone through all that work and
effort?

MR. SILVERMAN: That's why you are
called public servants.

MR. SMITH: I'm sorry, Mr. Silverman,
that's an unfair statement.

MR. MARTINEZ: If I may, that issue, one
of the facts that you have to understand is that
currently, for this process, the taxpayers pick up
most of the program, even with the new fee changes,
the taxpayers basically pick up 50 percent of the
program and that is through the gross receipt taxes.

Federal funding equates to about 20 percent,
even with the changes, what the permitted sources

contribute to maybe running the program is about 30

percent.
I mean, you know --
DR. PILON: And that's the current
program?
71
MR. MARTINEZ: That would be under this
current level. I mean, the changes are not going to

be significant to most of the sources that are out
there, and I think that needs to be clear, you know,
we have done a lot of -- to try to simplify the
particular reg, you know, we have done a lot to try to

look at what, you know, we can do to ensure that there
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is some emission reductions.

If there is no emission reductions, we want
to make sure that okay, we are always going to count
on the fact that that facility used the max, but it
doesn't change that much.

I mean, the generated funds in this
particular change is not going to be that substantial,
as Mike pointed out. I mean, we are still going to
depend on the others, but, I mean, the idea is that
the general public has to pay for the auto emissions
program already, you know, that equates to about $7
million, which, right now, it's about, you know, our
current budget is about $2 million and that's
basically all we are trying to make just to cover
expenses, so the general public is already paying
three times the amount that -- actually more than
that, you know, than our current budget is, and so not

only that they are paying for half of the industrial

72

source permitting program, and, you know, we are
trying to make this as equitable as possible, you
know, short of just basically getting rid of the
program as a whole, which really doesn't change
anything regulatorily, and it makes it even worse for
the industry and the economy because then we don't run
it, the feds run it, and I guarantee you the feds

aren't going to run it with $2 million, there's no
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way, but we have created incentives and programs to
reduce plus, we have created programs that allow the
facility to take credit for the good things they do
within their facility and be able to use those
emissions for something else, we have created programs
that allow the facility to modify certain things, and,
again, you know, federal law allows modifications in
case of national emergency, so that's covered there,
but, again, still at this point, even with the
changes, you know, for the industrial source
permitting program, the gross receipts tax still pick
up 50 percent of that program, you know, facilities
industry is only picking up 30 percent still, and so I
just want to make sure that we keep that in mind, that
if the money doesn't come from somewhere, then we are
going to have to go to the taxpayers and that's not a

very good thing to do, I mean, in my opinion, when we

73

are already paying for a substantial amount of the
overall air quality permitting programs and air
quality protection programs.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Thank you,
Mr. Martinez.

At this -- Mr. Silverman?

MR. SILVERMAN: I need to leave and I

just want to apologize to the members of the public

that I won't be able to personally hear their
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testimony, but I do have another commitment that I
need to get to.
I will read the transcript and I assume we

are not voting on this tonight since we didn't have a
quorum.

THE HEARING OFFICER: That's correct,
it's not on the agenda of the board this evening.

MR. SILVERMAN: I thought it was.

THE HEARING OFFICER: It was, but it's
been moved.

MR. SMITH: We were going to ask that
the hearing record be open for two weeks.

THE HEARING OFFICER: I suspect it will
be on the next.

MR. SILVERMAN: I am out of town the

last week of February.

74

MR. SMITH: Well, just the hearing
record will be held open until the 26th, and, then, at
the regularly scheduled Air Board meeting, we will
have a discussion and vote on it.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Next board
meeting?

MR. SILVERMAN: That's fine.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr.
Silverman.

MR. SILVERMAN: My apologies to my other
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board members.

THE HEARING OFFICER: At this time, this
portion of the hearing will now be -- any member of
the public may step forth and ask questions of the
cities staff regarding this proposed detail
replacement of part 2 of the regulations; in other
words, just like the Air Quality Board members have
asked the staff questions, any member of the public
may step forward, just state your name and you can ask
Mr. Smith, Mr. Martinez, members of the city staff
questions.

You cannot give testimony, that's a different
portion of this public hearing; rather, this is just
your opportunity if you have questions about the

regulation and Mr. Smith's and Mr. Martinez'

75

testimonies, you may step forward and ask them
questions.
So if anybody from the public would like to

do so, please step forward to the microphone.

THE HEARING OFFICER: State your name.

MR. GRANDJEAN: Michael Grandjean,
G-r-a-n-d-j-e-a-n.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, sir.

MR. GRANDJEAN: I have a question
concerning the asbestos portion, and I understand

there is going to be some administrative fees and I am
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not sure how the administrative fees are going to work
and are they going to be, you know, for inspections,
for additional inspections or for any of those kind of
things?

How does that work?

MR. SMITH: I am sorry?

MR. MARTINEZ: The administrative fees,
what Mr. Smith mentioned, administrative fees, it's
things that are related to photocopying, asking, you
know, sometimes we have requests.

I will give you a great example: The
Ponderosa Pine Potters file, that's like six drawers,
and so the time it takes for us to make those copies

and run that, what he is referring to, not anything

76

related to inspections as far as the asbestos program
is concerned, there are no changes from the previous
regulation with the exception of making sure that
payment is attached to the application, that is the
only change that was proposed for that.

MR. GRANDJEAN: Okay. Thank you.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Please state your
name.

MR. CAUDILL: My name is Larry Caudill.
I live at 4519 Watercrest and I want to ask a specific
question about the fee for surface disturbance

permits.
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THE HEARING OFFICER: Please proceed.

MR. CAUDILL: I notice there was no
mention of any waiving of fees or exemptions or rate
structure, whatever, for public projects, and often,
the fees are waived because it takes money in one
department and puts it into another, and I am just
curious as to the steps or action to -- did they
consider this, and if not, why not; or if they did
consider it, why was it not --

MR. SMITH: We don't propose to waive
any fee for public organizations, nor do we waive any
fee for permitting, for what it costs for a public

organization; let's say the public works department or

77

the treatment plant or the landfill also was a major
source and they are also required to pay fees, so all
sources would be required to pay fees, yes.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Does any other
member of the public have any questions for the city
staff regarding the VPO replacement of part 2°?

Okay. At this point, the hearing will now
shift to any individual organization or public member
who wishes to give testimony regarding the proponent;
in other words, in favor of this repeal and
replacement, please step forward and give testimony.

Again, Mr. Caudill, please state your full

name.
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MR. CAUDILL: Larry Caudill, 4915
Watercrest, Northeast, Albuquerque, New Mexico, 87113.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Before you begin,
Mr. Caudill, now that you have given testimony, please
be sworn.

LARRY CAUDILL
after having been first duly sworn under oath,
testified as follows:

THE HEARING OFFICER: Please proceed,
sir.

MR. CAUDILL: Again, my comments are

specific to the surface disturbance permitting fee

78

process, and for those that I am not acquainted with,
I would point out that for 15 years, I did the dust
control work for the city of Albuquerque and so what I
ask and what I say has some basis in experience and
it's from that point of view that I would raise the
following issues: First of all, I support the fee
increase for service disturbance permitting.

The circumference, the area under
consideration, is in excess of 100 miles, that's how
long -- that's the distance around the typical service
area that is involved. And in recent years, '98 and
'99, approximately 300 permits were issued, 275 in
'98 and 295 in '99, I don't know what the total was

in 2000, but that's a terrific work load and involves
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an awful lot of staff, time and energy to even begin
to keep up with, and for the time that I was doing
that, we did not have this additional support that
this fee increase would provide, so I am heartily in
favor of a fee for this work.

I don't, however, believe it goes far
enough. As I will illustrate for you in the near
future, either the next meeting or the meeting after
that, depending on the pleasure of the board, there is
a very direct correlation between the size of the area

disturbed and its capacity to generate particulates.

79

You can deal with a 25-acre site reasonably
well. TIf you double the size of that site to 50
acres, the rate of erosion, and, therefore, the
quantity of airborne particulates increases
geometrically, it's at least four times as bad as a
25-acre site, so what we should be looking at if we
want to effect a change in air quality is that a part
of the permitting process would be some incentive to
reduce the total acres disturbed at any one time in
any one project, so I would suggest that there be an
escalating fee schedule for each 25-acre increment and
that it should basically go up, perhaps even double,
with each increment; in other words, if it's $100 for
a 25-acre project, it would be $200 for a 50-acre

project and so on.
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There is absolutely a very direct correlation
in terms of the quantity of the dust and the
difficulty in dealing with it. An additional
advantage here would be that this would stimulate the
development community and their engineers to engineer
projects incrementally or in phases that would allow
for putting a portion of the job to bed before they
disturb the next portion, projects can be engineered
incrementally.

The tendency of some of our tunnel vision

80

engineers is to attack the world at one whack and that
increases the insult to the environment and to the
neighbors significantly. This would provide an
incentive to do things in a more responsible way.

I would point out that a number of projects
have involved this process, Cottonwood Mall, Vista Del
Norte, recent industrial parks in the north portion of
the city have been held and the permitting process to
require that they not be allowed to disturb more than
perhaps a quarter to a third of the job at any one
time just as a condition of the permit.

Thirdly, there is no provision for penalty if
the actual disturbance area exceeds that permitted and
on which the per-acre fee is based. It's very common
for a contractor to come in and get a permit for an

acre and tear up the acre next door, parking, driving,
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stacking dirt pile, materials and so forth and so on,
so I suggest as a disincentive to be very conservative
in their estimate of the disturbance area, that they
pay a doubled fee for any excess beyond that which is
originally permitted.
Either adjacent or remote, what I mean by

remote, suppose they are bringing in dirt from another
site or stockpiling dirt from their site onto another

parcel, it may be clear across town, they may not

81

consider that in their original permit and they
certainly should because it's all tied together as a
part of that one project.

Finally, no provision is made for public
sector projects in terms of a -- some sort of a
different fee schedule or waiving of fees or something
of that sort.

If there is to be a sliding scale for
disturbance exceeding 25 acres, say, and that's not
fact at this moment, but I would suggest that it be
considered, then there should be a provision for
dealing with projects that are not speculative in
nature, such as industrial parks, residential areas,
subdivisions and so forth, but which are of necessity
involving so many acres, example, Big I, they didn't
have a whole lot of choice about that one because

that's just how big the project was, so there needs to
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be some consideration given to speculative disturbance
versus necessary disturbance.

Something that is overlooked here, and this
was discussed by staff in terms of the problems we are
experiencing with particulates prevention, is
absolutely the best way to deal with airborne
particulates from soil disturbance; therefore, things

like holding down the size of the area disturbed,

82

requiring stabilization on completion or stabilization
on an incrementing basis and certainly stabilization
of excess disturbance area, that is that which is not
developed and just left behind, all of these things
should be considered in the permitting process, and I
would point out that there are a lot of other benefits
to this process, as well, that I would call collateral
or incidental benefits and these include things like
traffic safety.

In terms of visibility, I have seen dirt flow
from sites so severely that you absolutely could not
see beyond the hood ornament of your vehicle. That
creates a significant accident hazard, when streets
blow full of sand, that sands has to be picked up by
somebody.

Recently, it has been the person who caused
the mess because that's what's required in the

permit. Prior to that being implemented, it was
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common for the city to take city equipment and city
crews to clean up a mess created by the private
sector, so those costs went to the public at large and
that's simply not right.

Another benefit of stabilization would be to
cover these bare areas with native vegetation rather

than tumbleweeds. I guarantee you, this spring,

83

you'll see city trucks out there picking up
tumbleweeds piled as high as this city building
because adjacent land wasn't stabilized and it's
disturbed and unrevegetated and unreseeded land that
produces the weeds, again, a savings to the city and a
benefit to the city that occurs.

As part of this process, I will provide
written testimony within that specified time, and I
stand for questions.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Any questions by
members of the board?

Members of the staff, any questions of Mr.
Caudill>?
I'm sorry, Steve, go ahead.

DR. PILON: You say that an area of 25
acres 1s the impact and is much smaller than an area
of 50 acres. Now, obviously, if you had 25 one-parcel
acres, the impact would be much smaller, so you are

saying that the bigger the contiguous area, the longer
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the impact even for the same number of acres
disturbed?

MR. CAUDILL: That's correct, the reason
being that on the edge of a disturbing parcel, the
greater the distance blows across that surface, the

more the waves build.

84

The same thing applies to moving material or
suspended load, if we are talking wind, which is also,
you know, that's a fluid working on a solid surface as
opposed to water, but as those particles are knocked
loose, each one NOx loose more and that one NOx its
share, so you may have, in fact, a logarithm increase
in moving material on a site as you proceed across it,
and at an absolute minimum, there is a geometric
increase at least four times as difficult to deal with
because of accelerated erosion rates and the greater
volume of airborne materials, and by -- it's possible
to do this incrementally.

If a guy has a 100-acre site he wants to tear
up, what's wrong with a requirement that says we will
give you 25 acres at a time and when you put that 25
to bed, you can do the next 257

DR. PILON: So what you are proposing is
a fee schedule that reflects that?
MR. CAUDILL: Not necessarily the whole

hundred acres, but maybe he could do it on a 25-acre
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rotating basis. The example was used of Ventana
Ranch. I can assure you that all 900 acres have not
and will not be torn up, they do it in parcels, and so
he is not looking at, you know, $90,000 in a given

time frame, over the total development of the

85

project.

Yes, I would agree that that's the case, but
the thing we don't consider is the public costs
associated with his failure to control that material,
clean up of the streets, clean up of adjacent
property, clean up of drainage works.

Again, I have got some slides that will
illustrate this very graphically, as Mr. Olona will
testify, and I hope we will be able to provide those
to you in the near future.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Jeanne?

MS. BASSETT: Will your testimony have
more specifics about actually how you would do the fee
structure?

MR. CAUDILL: Yes, the way I proposed it
would be a doubling of fees for each increment.

MS. BASSETT: Right, so you'll get into
those details.

MR. CAUDILL: Yes, ma'am, as far as
permitting, time frames of the permits that were

issued in '98 and '99, and I suspect that Mike and his
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crew are holding pretty much to the same numbers. We
turned completed permits around in five and a half to
six days, that's about as fast as you can get a permit

for anything, for anything, anywhere, anyplace.
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Now, that's completed permits that don't have
to go back because the guy didn't follow very complete
instructions on the back of the form; in other words,
there is very little excuse for turning in an
inadequate package because there are very good
directions that tell you exactly what to do and why
it's required.

And so the numbers that I gave you for
turnaround time on permits relate to review, which
includes a site visit, it's very important to know
what's around that site, what its grade is relative to
surrounding property, things of this sort, and they
were still turned around and that's a pretty good
record.

I mean, that's nothing for the city to be
ashamed of for a second. I know that's not true in
very many cases, but I am not responsible for what
other departments do.

DR. PILON: Are we allowed to sort of
ask the city, the department folks, to respond to what
he is saying, or is that like inappropriate?

THE HEARING OFFICER: No, you can ask
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the city if they have any response to Mr. Caudill's
suggestions or comments.

DR. PILON: Do you guys have anything --

87

do you agree with his assessment that the size of --
the actual size of the project has a significant
impact on the amount of particulate matter generated
by a project?

I mean, that 25 one-acre projects are going
to develop less than one 25-acre project?

MR. MARTINEZ: Actually, Mr. Caudill's
comments on basically the dispersion of physics full
of an area, certainly, a disturbed area, they are
correct, and we don't have any disagreement with that
particular -- with that issue.

I think that one of the things that we took
into consideration and we don't disagree with, the
validity of having sort of a sliding scale, dependent
on -- you know, dependent on an area disturbed because
yes, there is a higher impact.

I think what -- you know, we have had this
program in place for, as Mr. Caudill pointed out, 15
years. In 15 years, this program basically has been
funded out of other programs that have come in, again,
out of basically taxpayers' money that comes in, too,
so for 15 years, this program has not been funded at

all, this is our first fee that was set up for this
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program.

I don't really -- you know, as things change,

88

you know, I do see, you know, in another five, 10
years for this fee to change based, you know, on
circumstances, but, you know, since it is the first,
we are trying to make it as simple as possible.

We do feel, you know, that it is, you know,
going from paying nothing to disturb a 40-acre site,
to paying $100 per each acre; that, in itself, is a
disincentive, you know, and basically, it requires
that much effort.

You know, if, indeed, you know, we continue
to see the same trends that we have seen in the past
years of how much soil was actually disturbed in one
shot, you know, if anything, at this point, we will be
able to potentially fund additional personnel to take
care of that, but, again, I mean, I don't have any
disagreements with Mr. Caudill's comments, you know,
but what we are attempting to do at this point is, you
know, being the first fee ever in 15 years developed
for this particular program, you know, to keep it as
simple as we can, keep it as still be able to pay,
again, we are not going to be able to pay for the
entire program, but pay for the majority of the
program.

THE HEARING OFFICER: The other thing
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you can do, Dr. Pilon, because the record is being
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held open for two weeks, is once Mr. Caudill submits
his written suggestions, you can ask in a board

meeting for the city to respond, if that's your

desire.

Any other questions by board members of Mr.
Caudill?

Members of the staff, any questions for Mr.
Caudill®?

Any member of the public can step forward and
ask questions of Mr. Caudill at this time if they so
decide.

MR. CAUDILL: May I be allowed a final
comment?

THE HEARING OFFICER: Please do.

MR. CAUDILL: The stated intent of the
fee was to deal with our problems, our growing
problems with particulates. One of the best ways to
do that is to reduce the active disturbance area in a
disturbance at any given time, and I promise you
you'll see that this spring, I have already seen it a
couple of times on some big subdivisions on the west
side which I can see clear across town, the average
size of the parcel based on averages of 10 of those 15
years, year in, year out, it averages within half an

acre to 10 acres per permit, so if you issue 300
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permits in a year, you have experienced 3,000
disturbed acres in that year or something very close
to it, and that is the most effective way to deal with
particulates from that source is to simply reduce the
amount of active disturbed area open and unstabilized
at any one time.

I would point out that you can go in and
mulch and stabilize an area, effectively taking it out
of the base of that which reduces blowing particulates
and it's put to bed, you can forget about it, and at
that point, then proceed to the next portion and you
could do the same amount of disturbance at,
essentially, the same cost, but without the
environmental insult that accompanies the larger
parcel disturbance.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Are you no longer,
for lack of better terminology, the dust control
monitor?

MR. CAUDILL: I retired a year ago.

THE HEARING OFFICER: I'm sorry to hear
that.

MR. CAUDILL: I was, too, it wasn't my
intent, but circumstances changed and I decided it was
the best for me to hit the trail.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Fine. I wish you
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91

well.

Any other questions of Mr. Caudill?

And, as a former board member, I will suggest
to the other -- current board members, I have worked

with Mr. Caudill in the past, he has some excellent
educational and disturbing slides and photographs --

MS. BASSETT: No pun intended.

THE HEARING OFFICER: -- of the dust
control problems and I think at another time, we can
arrange for Mr. Smith to have Mr. Caudill give you a
presentation.

MR. CAUDILL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
for those kind comments. It's my intention -- I
mentioned this a couple months ago and I was going to
do it now, but they indicated there was to be a
hearing this month, so my intent is to request a slot
on the agenda for next month's meeting.

It will be the heart of the dust season,
so-called windy season, so it will be timely,
informative and highly educational, I promise you.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr.
Caudill, it's always a pleasure, your testimony, and,
also, as my former high school biology teacher and
former high school tennis coach, it's always a

pleasure to see you again.
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Thank you.

MR. CAUDILL: Thank you, Mr. Hearing
Officer, I didn't know I was going to have such good
influence on him to become a lawyer. I hope that's
good influence.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Maybe you should
have taught me to play better tennis.

All right. Does any other individual or
organization wish to step forward and give testimony
in favor of this repeal and/or replacement of part 27
If so, please step forward and give testimony.

Okay. Now, we will go to the fun part. We
are back on the record again, it's five minutes after
7:00 and we will now proceed with the next phase of
the hearing, which is those individuals and/or
organizations who wish to give testimony to the board
regarding the opposition of the repeal or replacement
of part 2, I would ask you to step forward and give
testimony. There is a sign-up sheet, but I don't
believe we need to go in order of the sign-up sheet,
just come on forward and give your name, be sworn in,
give your testimony.

Please state your name, sir.

MR. Du MOND: Mike du Mond.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Do you represent

93
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an organization?

MR. du MOND: I represent Sandia
National Laboratories.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Please
raise your right hand and be sworn.

MIKE du MOND
after having been first duly sworn under oath,
testified as follows:

THE HEARING OFFICER: Could you please
give your professional address before you begin your
testimony, sir.

MR. du MOND: Yes, my address 1is Post
Office Box 5800, Albuquerque, New Mexico, zip code
87185-1042.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Please proceed,
Mr. du Mond.

MR. du MOND: Good evening, my name is
Mike du Mond, I am an employee of Sandia Corporation
or Sandia. My current responsibilities are as project
leader of the air quality compliance team at Sandia
National Laboratories/New Mexico, located out at
Kirtland Air Force Base.

Sandia is a research and development
laboratory owned by the United States Department of

Energy and operated by Sandia for DOE.

94
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I am here today to share with you our view of
the importance and positive impact of retaining the
annual emissions inventory provision of Title 20,
Chapter 11, Part 02, permit fees, of the board's air
quality control regulations.

We believe that removing the provision will
have a negative effect on our operations. As
currently promulgated, the provision allows an annual
accounting of emissions and provides a means for
Sandia to implement pollution prevention or P-2
activities to reduce actual emissions.

Sandia as the prime contractor to DOE is
responsible for research and development supporting
national security interests. In support of this
mission, Sandia's steam plant supplies an average 1.5
million pounds per day of saturated steam for space
heating and laboratory processes for Sandia's
technical Area One and an eastern portion of Kirtland
Air Force Base.

The primary fuel is natural gas with diesel
fuel for backup. The five boilers range in rated
capacity from 60,000 to 150,000 pounds of steam per
hour. The steam plant has been in continuous
operation since 1949.

Sandia's steam plant is located along Wyoming

95

Boulevard, Southeast, which is situated in the eastern
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portion of Kirtland Air Force Base across the street

from the Atomic Museum.

Exhibit 1 is a map giving the boundaries of

the Air Force base and the steam plant's location

relative to the east mountain community and downtown

Albuquerque-.

Exhibit 2 is a photograph of the steam plant

looking north, with the three smaller units,

boilers

1, 2 and 3, on the left, and the two larger units,

boilers 5 and 6, on the right. Boiler number 4 was

removed in 2000.

THE HEARING OFFICER:

a quick second, Mr. du Mond. I apologize.

Can I stop you for

Are you going to place these exhibits into

evidence?

MR. du MOND: Yes, I

THE HEARING OFFICER:

do you have?

MR. du MOND: Six in total.

THE HEARING OFFICER:

proceed.

How many exhibits

I'm sorry, please

MR. du MOND: The steam plant is DOE's

largest source of air emissions and has the potential

of being a major source under the Clean Air Act's

Title V operating permit program.
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A Title V operating permit application was
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submitted to the City of Albuquerque on March 1lst,
1996 and the application was deemed complete on May
1st, 1996.

An updated application was requested by the
city and resubmitted on February 23rd, 1998.

The existing provision was found at part 02,
Section 2.4F and reads: "An annual emissions
inventory may be submitted for review by the
department for the purpose of annual fee adjustments.
This shall be restricted to sources with established
permit allowable emission rates or sources which have
submitted a timely permit application pursuant to Part
42, Section 1.2.2A.2.

"The emissions inventories shall be submitted
to the department by no later than June 1lst, 1997 and
by April 1st each year thereafter for review
consideration for every year an adjustment is sought.

"Within 30 days of receipt, the department
will bill the source for the review pursuant to Table
One of this part. Any adjustments to the source's
permitted or otherwise established emission fee shall
be incorporated and adjusted and billed in accordance

with the building schedule provisions of this part."

97

This provision became effective on May 30th, 1997.
Exhibit 3 is a table of Sandia's submissions

under this annual emissions inventory provision. The
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first column is the calendar year in which the annual
emissions were inventoried beginning in 1997 with a
calendar year 2000 emissions to be submitted by April
1, 2001.

The second column is Sandia's actual
inventory reported for that year with the majority of
the emissions from the steam plant and only a few tons
per year from the standby diesel generator power
plant.

The third column is the annual Title V fee
calculated from the actual emissions in column two
times $31 per ton.

The fourth column is the $1,000 fee from part
02's Table 1, fee number 7, annual emissions inventory
review for major source emissions fee adjustment.

The final column is the sum of the two
previous columns yielding the total fee assessed for
each calendar year.

When the annual emissions inventory provision
of part 02 became effective in May 1997, Sandia
recognized an opportunity to reduce its fees by

reducing its actual emissions.

98

Because the steam plant is the largest source
of actual emissions, a study was conducted in 1997 at
the steam plant to determine if operational

improvements could be accomplished.
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As the largest pollutant, the primary goal
was to determine if nitrogen oxide or NOx emissions
could be minimized. The initial focus was to reduce
emissions by maximizing combustion efficiency, and,
hence, reduce fuel usage and emissions.

The first phase of the study included
evaluating the tuning of the five boilers and
reprogramming the boiler's digital control system, or
DCS. Process optimization, that is, operating the
more efficient boilers to cover the steam demands, was
also evaluated.

In addition, the study evaluated if
installation of additional emission reduction
equipment such as flue gas for recirculation, or FGR,
could effectively reduce emissions.

The study concluded that an increase in fuel
efficiency and decrease in emissions could be realized
through boiler tuning, process optimization and
installation of emission reduction equipment.

These studies were funded partially based on

the "return on investment" related to the savings of

99

fuel and reductions in emissions fees. Without the
financial incentives, these studies may not have been
initiated.

Sandia next embarked on carrying out the

recommendations of its study. During the
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boiler-tuning phase, the three smaller boilers were
tuned during the summer of 1997, while the two larger
boilers were tuned in the winter of 1998.

Exhibit 4 shows the graph of the results of
the boiler tuning with, in some cases, a several
percentage point increase over the baseline wvalues.

During the reprogramming phase, the new
operational ranges were coded into the software. The
evaluation phase evaluating each boiler and the
feasibility of installing emission reduction
equipment.

The 1999 emission reduction phase involved
retrofitting FGR in boilers 5 and 6 while the 2000
phase involved retrofitting FGR on boiler 3 to
evaluate potential performance for boilers 1 and 2.
Again, the tuning and subsequent installation of
emissions reduction equipment were funded based on
return of investment, or ROI strategy. Without the
reduction in emissions fee, these projects may not

have been funded.

100

As a direct result of this effort, the
operation of the steam plant is estimated to be 1.5
percent more fuel efficient.

The fuel efficiency results in a total NOx
reduction of 2.3 tons per year, tpy, of actual

emissions with an additional 44.4 tpy of actual NOx
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reduction from FGR on three boilers.

Exhibit 5 is a table showing an analysis of
Sandia's emission reduction efforts. The first column
is a progression of improvements starting with the
baseline in 1997, followed by boiler tuning, and,
then, two phases of FGR retrofit.

The second column is the potential NOx
emissions starting with the baseline value and
decreasing with each improvement. The third column is
the cost savings from boiler tuning and the reduced
fuel consumption based on 1997 natural gas rates.

The fourth column is the cost of these
pollution prevention efforts. The final column is the
payback in years based on initial fuel savings. The
cost of retrofitting FGR in boilers 1 and 2 is
estimated at $120,000.

Exhibit 6 is a list of the awards received
for the emission reduction efforts at the steam

plant. The joint industry and government pollution

101

prevention air quality award from the New Mexico
facilities managers from the network, in conjunction
with the City of Albuquerque, was issued in 1997 as a
pollution prevention honorable mention to Sandia for
"Demonstrating exemplary management commitment to the
environment." The joint industry and government

pollution prevention award in 1999 was for the large
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industry air quality award category issued to Sandia
for their reduction of air emissions through "process
optimization projects."

An honorable mention joint industry and
government pollution prevention award in 2000 was for
the innovative P-2 award category issued to the
Department of Energy and Sandia for their continued
"reduction of air emissions through process
optimization project."

Governor Gary Johnson presented the 2000
commitment level award for the Green Zia Environmental
Excellence programs at Sandia's steam plant, "Hereby
commits to environmental excellence by integrating the
core values of the Green Zia program, which are
management commitment, efficient product process and
service design, partnerships, valuing employees and
continuous improvement and learning into daily

business practices.

102

"Furthermore, your commitment to seek
continuous improvement in these efforts demonstrates
leadership in providing a safe and healthy workplace,
assuring a clean community and contributing to the
ourganization's economic well-being." Sandia also has
issued several internal awards.

As a result of the experiences with the

annual emissions inventory, Sandia has concluded that
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it encourages pollution activities to reduce actual
emissions.

If the retrofit of boilers 1 and 2 with FGE
is funded, Sandia will have spent nearly a
half-a-million dollars to reduce emissions.

Without this existing provision in part 02,
there would not have been the financial incentive to
reduce actual emissions. As noted, our first goal of
reducing emissions focused on receiving the "biggest
bang for the buck" by targeting the largest source of
emissions, and, hence, realizing the largest reduction
in actual emission fees and emission fees.

As we carry forward towards more P-2 options
to reduce emissions, the reduction fees will become
more and more important to fund the projects.

If we remove this option to have our fees

based on potential emissions, we are removing

103

opportunities to reduce actual emissions in our
community.

Thank you for your consideration and I'd be
happen to answer any questions.

THE HEARING OFFICER: At this time, I

would admit Sandia National Laboratory's Exhibits 1
through 6 into the record.

Do you have the originals, Mr. du Mond?

MR. du MOND: I do.
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THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Can you
hand those to Mr. Smith and he will get them to me to
make sure they are admitted into the record, and,
also, before we begin questioning your testimony, for
the record, I have also received page 8 of Exhibit --
of Staff Exhibit 11, which was missing, and I will now
place that into the record.

I understand members of the board have
received copies, and, members of the public, page 8
has been distributed.

Thank you.

Okay. Questions?

MS. BASSETT: Thank you, Mr. du Mond,
for your testimony. I was just a little confused. So
you are saying that under this new fee structure that

if you estimate your tonnage and you pay a certain fee

104

that the idea as running as an efficient government
agency, you want to reduce your fee to next year, and
let's just take a net thousand tons and you pay X
amount for that thousand tons and you decide well,
actually, we want to be more efficient because we
ended up not using that thousand tons that we thought
we might, and so we want to reduce our fees, so we
will implement these types of programs so that our fee
is less the following year?

I don't understand why you wouldn't still get
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to energy efficient programs by -- if reducing your
fees is your goal, you still want to reduce your fees,
right?

I don't know why this would change that.

MR. du MOND: Under the current
provision where we can apply for and be billed on
actual emissions, there is that real incentive under
the proposed plan to eliminate, basically, that
provision, so we would pay on this potential to emit,
so even though our actual emissions are actually going
down where we should realize some cost savings, we are
still paying this potential to emit fee.

MS. BASSETT: But, I mean, if you are
doing your balancing properly, you would pay for --

what you are estimating to emit would be based on real

105

numbers.

I mean, I assume you would go back over five
years and look at what you have usually emitted and do
some sort of average and pay that. If it turns out
you use less than that, then the incentive would be to
guarantee you use less than that the following year by
implementing energy-efficient measures to make sure
that next year, you buy one that's 900 tons, because
you have actually -- you know, you have done energy
efficient programs and you're going to reduce your

emissions.
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MR. du MOND: Correct.

MS. BASSETT: I guess I don't see why
you don't get at the same end result.

MR. du MOND: Okay. Your analogy of
buying a permit is not quite accurate. We apply for a
permit based on our expected emissions and we also
have to remain flexible based on our demand. A third
of our steam production actually goes to Kirtland Air
Force Base.

If they were to change their operations, that

would increase the steam demand. Also, as a
contractor with DOE, we have to meet the emission
goals, so we have to be flexible and we have to

provide that steam demand.

106

As you are aware, the last several winters
have been relatively mild, so these numbers actually
reflect those mild winters. And with the crisis in
California, with the natural gas rates going up, our
steam plant is actually dual-fueled.

We normally burn natural gas. We can burn
diesel, in fact, we are burning more diesel now to
offset the increased cost of burning natural gas, and
because of this, our potential to emit is based on
both fuels and we cannot burn both fuels
simultaneously, but in a permit, we have to have that

capability.
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In fact, in the past, PNM has asked us to
curtail our natural gas consumption so that Four Hills
and other portions of the city could have gas, and so
we have gone to o0il, but we need that capability in
our permit to be able to meet that demand, so I don't
know if that quite answers your question.

MS. BASSETT: No. Thank you.
THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other
questions?

Steve?

DR. PILON: I understand, I mean, the
last point you made is similar to the point that Mr.

Silverman was making before that there are sort of

107

unforeseen variations in the amount of emissions that
are to be produced because of changes in natural gas,
that kind of thing, but what your original
presentation was about was the incentive to continue
making efficiency improvements.

I don't see how that is affected by the
proposed changes if you are ratcheting down the amount
of emissions you are expected to produce, Sandia Labs
can ratchet down the amount of the emissions that they
permit, and it seems to me that the savings, if
instead of -- well, one of my questions is exactly,
okay, you have 71 tons per year of emissions in 2000,

what is your current permit for?
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MR. du MOND: Our current one —-- we
don't have a permit, we have an application that we
filed in 1996.

DR. PILON: Well, what's your potential
to emit at this point?

MR. du MOND: Our potential to emit, and
this is unreasonable, but it's based on as if all five
boilers are operating all the time, every day, all
year round, on both natural gas and on o0il, which is
impossible.

DR. PILON: So it sounds like there is

plenty of room to bring down your application to the

108

amount that you are actually applying for, and as I
understand, the department folks are saying "Yes, we
want to get a better handle on really" -- "we want the
permitted emissions to really more accurately reflect
what the sources are emitting"?

MR. du MOND: That's correct, and we
have looked into that, but if the proposed rule goes
through as planned and we pay more for some potential
that we are not actually emitting, then to us, that
cuts into funds that we could apply towards these P-2
projects of further emission reductions, actual
emission reductions; instead of paying the fee, you
know, we would actually be paying it to some kind --

putting it to some kind of beneficial use.
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MS. BASSETT: So if you have applied for
a permit now and you are permitted to -- you actually
gave us an area that's actually impossible, so how
would you solve what we are hearing from the
administrative staff, that, you know, we have got this
problem where entities like yourself are making an
impossible amount, if, God forbid, what happens, so
then what would be your solution because you are
exactly the kind of entity we are trying to —-- you
know, you are holding up all this stuff in the bank

account that we then can't use for economic

109

development and other industries, saying "We want to
do this and we need this much C02", and, "Well, sorry,
Sandia Lab has it all so we can't give you any," so
how do we get at this problem?

MR. du MOND: That's correct. One of
the solutions we have looked at is, like you suggest,
possibly applying for a permit to reduce those
emissions and the question is how far would we reduce
that and still leave us enough room for the demand,
both from the DOD and the DOE side on the Air Force
base, and, you know, potential growth of our own
facility, change of emissions, plus having to do a
fuel capability, is it natural gas or is it oil, and
still, at some point, though, there is going to be a

gap between this allowable level and what we are
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actually emitting, and so there would be some excess
fee payments that would be -- come about from that.

MS. BASSETT: But it seems like with all
the smart scientists at Sandia Lab, they must be able
to calculate it pretty close to what's really going to
happen.

MR. du MOND: Right.

MS. BASSETT: A little more what the
staff is trying to get at, I have not yet heard a

solution, I can understand where you're coming from,

110

but I also understand what the staff is saying, and I
don't -- I have not yet heard of a better way of
closing that gap, so I am open to it, but it has not
yet been done.

MR. du MOND: Well, what we wouldn't
want to do is somehow be in noncompliance, is reduce
loads to such a point that it would impact our
emission, our operations and put us in some type of a
bad situation, and, then, other fines would kick in,
which would not be beneficial at all.

MS. BASSETT: So is that the greatest
fear, then, the issue that you cut yourself too close
to what you actually use, and, then, you get into
noncompliance?

MR. du MOND: Yes, that, and like I

stated, the facility was originally built in 1949 and
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is actually grandfathered. 1It's the Title V program
that's come into play since then that is adding some
of these additional requirements, so we have had some
long-term history of operations of emissions prior to
some of these regulations.

MS. BASSETT: That's all.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other
questions by members of the board?

DR. PILON: So how much variation do you

111

see?

You know, you say the last couple of years
have been kind of warm winters and so you don't have
to produce as much steam for heating, but give us a
ballpark idea of how much variation we would see in
this over any two years, you know, figure the coldest
winter in the last 30 years and the warmest winter
over the last 30 years and kind of put yourself in the
middle there and what kind of variation in emission
are we talking about?

MR. du MOND: Well, you could see from
the one table, the drop of over 100 tons per year, of
course, some of that was realized by some of our
actual emission reduction, but there is an example of
just a four-year period right there, and we have had
values much higher than that.

People talk about the winter of '71 as some
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kind of a baseline.
THE HEARING OFFICER: I have a question
of Mr. Smith before you leave, Mr. du Mond. I
understand his problem.
Is there currently a procedure for a person
who was issued a permit to amend the permit; in other
words, it's getting near that permit level, in order

to avoid fines or other things, can they then request

112

the city to amend the permit?

See what I am getting at?

MR. SMITH: Yes, there are methods to
amend the permit, and, as I testified, we are
proposing to add even more flexible ways to amend the
permit.

For example, a P-2 modification where -- I
defined what P-2 meant. Basically, it's not a
response to decrease production, it's not a response
to controls, but true P-2 would be free, we are not
even going to charge for that, we are not going to
spend time to incur P-2 changes.

That's what Mike may be requiring to be more
in the line of a more minor permit modification, which
would probably be fairly quick to obtain without any
problems or, I mean, our regulation has even been
interpreted to allow for an emission reduction to be

administratively amended, so, yes, I think there are
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many other options.

The thing is we want to get sources into a
federally enforceable permit that we can enforce, as
opposed to adding, you know, a permit that has so much
emissions here that, you know, there is so much gray
area where the source can be -- it's very difficult

for us to enforce.

113

An analogy for our problem is, you know,
potential to emit for a source may be like a Ferrari,
yet you are only driving in school zones, why do you
have this Ferrari if all you're going to do is drive
in school zones?

Obviously, there is a reason why you have
your permit set at higher levels, and we are not
talking about 10 percent higher, we are talking about
significant amounts, such as PNM.

DR. PILON: So what time frame and how
much expense are you speaking about for the Sandia
folks to make a change?

Say the winter is way colder than they
expected and they have to use diesel instead of
natural gas and they realize that they are going to be
out of compliance with their permit, how much money is
it going to cost them to make the change and what time
frame are they going to have to be able to see ahead?

MR. du MOND: I would assume that that's
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probably an alternative.

MR. SMITH: I think you are talking
about a permit.

MR. MARTINEZ: I think what we are
talking about here is two different things, we are

talking about making sure that the board understands,

114

and I think that the public understands, that we have
not really created -- we feel strongly that we have
not created a disincentive for sources to go in there
and modify their source, and in a way, that lowers
their emissions.

I think that's still there and we are not
going to charge for that review, but what we are
saying is that if you want to take credit for that
particular reduction, then it has to be within the
enforceable limits of a permit, you know; otherwise,
you really don't get credit for that.

Now, the other things, the other issue that
Mr. du Mond is asking is that increase -- that's kind
of a different situation, you know, we have been
working on trying to create flexibility with a permit
that looks at production increases.

For example, you know, the facility has
specific emission sources within their boundaries, and
for them to keep a good management of close emission

sources, and if they need to increase production, then
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they are able to go back and make modifications at the
other end and still keep emissions within the same
rate.

Now, what happens with Sandia, it's a little

bit different because they really don't fit the mold

115

of a manufacturing type of side where they are
actually on an hourly basis trying to get something
out, so their situation is actually quite different
and it's far more complicated because it involves very
different types of operations, you know, so we kind of
wanted to deal with a facility like that to create
incentives within the permit that says "Okay, we know
that you have," you know, "so many boilers, so many
generating sets, so many things that equate to so much
emissions, you can assign yourself a specific number
to that, and, then, if you do need to increase
somewhere else, then you probably have to modify and
not use some of these other things," that's probably
the only way that we could do it without actually
triggering another permit.

Because if there is an actual increase in
what's already an enforceable document, you know, say
go back to those thousand tons, if the document says
you are allowed to emit a thousand tons, and here is a
big document that says how we are going to ensure that

you stay within those thousand tons, you know, if, for
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some reason, they need to go to 1,100, then that is
going to trigger a permit modification, that is going
to require public comment review because you have to

inform the public that you are increasing the

116

potential impact of that area, so there is really no
way that I could think of of getting out of that,
other than going through a full permitting process.

If you are going to increase the emissions
that you are allowed to do, regardless of the changes,
you know, if they need to increase now, they would
have to come in for a permit modification.

If they have to decrease now, they could
actually do it through administrative modification,
and there is no charge for that and that will stay the
same.

One of the things I want to also point out is
that when you look at the productions and the way the
fee registered is, okay, we say in the past, if your
actuals are only a certain percentage of what's in
your permit, come in, you know, past $1,000 to review
it, and, then, we will give you credit for that, well,
we want to make sure if that's going to be the case
that those conditions are enforceable, and we dropped
the fee, there is basically a $100 modification fee,
so we even dropped that particular fee, so they still

can reduce that, you know, but they are going to have
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to basically plan to manage the emissions, you know,
action, and there is a lot of flexibility of that we

have been working on for years to try to give that,
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but, again, if it's going to be an increase on what's
permitted, keep in mind that it is the model,
everything around that is based on that model, based
on that impact.

Five more sources might have come in within
that particular quadrant and so now everything has
been changed and it's been cumulative, so if they are
going to increase, there is really no way of getting
out of that without going through a full-fledged
permitting process, because, again, you have to inform
the public that the impact of that will be
increasing.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr.
Martinez.

Any other questions by members of the board
of Mr. du Mond?

Does any member of the public have any
questions of Mr. du Mond in regard to his testimony?

Sir, you have to come forward and state your
name on the record.

MR. DAMON: My name is George Damon, I
am a member of the air quality staff and I just wanted

to ask Mr. du Mond if their measurements of the
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emissions reductions properly accounted for any

increase in emissions.

118

I know typically, when you reduce NOx in a
boiler, you get an increase in carbon monoxide, and he
did not specifically mention that, so I was curious
about that.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. du Mond?

MR. du MOND: We based our emission
numbers strictly on the EPA factors, it's a published
document, either a natural gas or on oil, there is no
indication of any other changes in those emissions
other than the NOx emissions for inclusion of the gas
recirculation, so I understand Mr. Damon's question,
but -- so we were able to reduce our NOx emissions
based on emission factors with no other change in the
other emissions.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other member
of the public have any questions for Mr. du Mond?

Members of the board?

There being no further questions, thank you,
sir.

Did you give your exhibits to Mr. Smith so we
can put them in the record?

Any other member of the public wish to step
forward and give testimony to the board in regards to

their opposition to the proposed regulation, part 27
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Please come forward. Please state your name

119

on the record.
MR. GRANDJEAN: Michael Grandjean, ATI,
4011 Carlisle, Northeast.
MICHAEL GRANDJEAN
after having been first duly sworn under oath,
testified as follows:

MR. GRANDJEAN: I have some concerns
about the specifics to the asbestos and paying the
fees ahead of time.

Originally, when the board put the fee
schedule into place, which I believe was three years
ago now.

MR. du MOND: '96.

MR. GRANDJEAN: Originally, when we had
a public comment, the fees were to go specifically to
the owner, and the reason it was to go specifically to
the owner is so that contractors like myself, I am a
hazardous substance remediation contractor, we remove
asbestos lead-based paint so that the contractors as a
whole could not go to the owners and say "Well, I have
this permit fee and with this permit fee that you need
to pay, it's only $40, but I'm going to charge you
$100," and they would have no idea because of, you
know, the regulations and all those kind of things how

the actual permit fees were calculated, what AU was a
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best test unit, all of those kinds of things, and so
it was specifically set by the board at that time to
have the owner specifically pay the fee.

The permits, themselves, are actually filled
out by the contractors, so being filled out by the
contractor and being professional, we know what we
have to put in there, what the air quality, you know,
City of Albuquerque is looking for in air quality,
what sections we need to fill out and all those kinds
of things in accordance with the regulation, so by
doing that, we provide the service to the actual
owner, filling out the documentation, turning that
documentation in, because it's very specific in the
documentation about actually, you know, giving ten
days' notice before we actually disturb an
asbestos-containing material, exactly what day we are
going to start, what day we are going to be on site,
what day we are going to leave the site, what day we
are going to finish, those kinds of things, and so
there is lots of very detailed information that needs
to be filled out.

So we fill those out for the owner, as a
courtesy, basically, to the owner to be able to submit
that.

One of the problems that I see is that by
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having the contractor turn in the permit fee, okay,
with turning in the application is twofold: One, the
contractor then becomes the bank and has to then turn
all of the money in for the fees before he gets paid
on a project, and that may be 30, 60, 90, 120 days,
depending on the length of the project and depending
on the fee.

In itself, some fees can be very remedial. I
mean, it can be $100, it can be $75, they can be
really nothing, which really wouldn't be any big deal,
but some of the fees could be extremely substantial
and could be $2,000 or $3,000 out of pocket for a
particular size job based on that, which is a fairly
substantial amount of money for the contractor to be
able to pay up front and have to wait to be able to
get the money back later on, which is one problem that
I see.

The other problem that I see is that by doing
that, the contractor can then up the permit fees, not
allowing the owner of that particular facility to know
that he has increased the permit fees and turned it
in, because he actually never sees them, which I
couldn't believe was the intent of the board until the
original application of the fees in those kinds of

things, so those are a couple of the things that I
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see, especially in the asbestos portion, because in
that, you are working with the owner and a contractor
who is selling services to a particular owner to be
able to be paid based on those particular fees and not
necessarily an entity that actually calculates how
much tonnage they are going to use in a year, pays for
those fees and all of those kinds of things for that
particular owner in itself.

So those are a couple of concerns that I
have.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Questions by
members of the board?

DR. MULLOY: And I can see the problem,
there. Would it be a problem if, you know, in your --
how you usually do business, that you help fill out
the application form, so it was correct, but, then,
give it to the owner and say "I cannot start this job
until you go down to pay this fee" so that you
wouldn't have to be up front, and, then, you are just
billing for the job that you are doing?

MR. GRANDJEAN: Absolutely. I could see
that particular logic, but in most cases, what ends up
happening is that we the owners usually want to move
as quickly as they can to be able to do a particular

project.

123
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I mean, as the notification is written, now
it's 10 workings days before we can actually go in and
do any kind of asbestos remediation, and, typically,
what has ended up happening in 99 percent of the
projects is that nobody knows that they have the
problem until somebody says "Hey, wait a minute, I
think there is this over here, let's go check," and,
then, by that time, they find out that they have a
huge problem and they call us and they want it done
immediately, and I say "Hey, man, I'm sorry, I can't
help you for ten days."

So by being able to fill out that immediately
and say "Hey, I can get it in today, wait 10 days, we
will go from there," that's one of the services that
we provide by doing that. The dates that we put on
the notification are absolutely, positively,
critical.

If we do not give ten days' notification for
the date that we are going to disturb an
asbestos-containing material, we are then subject to
fines of -- you know, whatever that fine is, $15,000
per day per inch extraction, basically, of not
starting that notification.

If we leave that responsibility, then, up to

the owner and he misses it by a day because he didn't

124
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get down there that day, he didn't get the fee paid
that day, he didn't get the, you know, receipt or any
of those kinds of things, and what will end up
happening is we will have to end up redoing the
paperwork, turn it back in to them, have them try to
go back down again at that point and match those days
up, and it's very hard to be able to match the days
and match your schedule in trying to do all of this
work by getting another entity involved, in trying to
go down and pay the fee and do all of those kinds of
things.

One of the things that I believe was brought
up earlier was that one of the reasons why they want
these fees to be paid up front is so that the
application can be filled out and filled out
correctly.

Well, I have been in this business for ten
years and been a contractor for six years, and in six
years, I have never had a notification turned back to
me because it was filled out incorrectly. I mean, I
never have.

And, typically, what happens is we simply put
the amount of asbestos-containing materials that we
are going to remove in that particular building, and,

then, at that point, that is when the city actually
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calculates what the fee is going to be based on the

mhtml:file://X:\ENVNTB\20.11.2 NMAC\AQBD0214 V1.mht

Page 120 of 168

3/3/2010





10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1

2

number of linear footage or square footage that we are
actually going to remove, and so by adding that third
party, I think what happens is already to a confusing
system of trying to get this permit and do all of
those kinds of things and meet those deadlines, some
days to be sure that we are going to be exactly where
we need to be on that day so we are not in violation
of the regulations, I think that it would make it a
little bit more cumbersome to be able to get this work
done and get it done properly and correctly,
especially to the clients that we are trying to work
with.

Yes, ma'am?

MS. BASSETT: I am just trying to
understand, this is a last dramatic example,
obviously, but it's not unusual, for instance, if you
build a home and you go before an architectural review
committee to have your plans submitted, you have to
pay $400 or whatever the amount, and the development
is to that architectural review committee before they
will review your architectural plan, that's part of
the cost of reviewing the plan, and usually what
happens is that the developer will ask that the

homeowner, obviously, for that check to be submitted

126

when they submit the blueprints for the plan, so I

guess I am just a little concerned why would it be so
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difficult to say to the person who immediately wants
this asbestos removed, "Well, you can have the form
filled out tomorrow, but I need the $2,000 check
because I'm going to go down and submit the
application, and, you know, I need your money to" --
"and I am showing you this is for your job," so it's
even more -- I mean, I feel like there is another
accountability to the person who you are contracting
with because it's their job and their permit and their
fee for their job, so they are not paying anyone
else's job, it's their job and their permit and their
fees.

MR. GRANDJEAN: Absolutely, that's a
great point. The problem is that in most of the
cases, what happens is we are usually a subcontractor
to the general contractor, who is then either
subcontracted to somebody, and, then, contracted to
the owner, and so in most cases, what ends up
happening is you have a lot of governmental agencies,
federal agencies, things like that, in trying to walk
in and say "I'm sorry, I can't do your work, but I
need $2,000 before I can get the permit or I can do

it."
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They would laugh, they would say "Well, we
cannot cut you a check." I mean, you have to put in a

purchase order. Once you put in the purchase order,
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we have to get it approved.

Once we get it approved, then we have got to
wait 30 days, and once you wait 30 days, we can get
you the check, and, then, two weeks later, you can
have it, and that's 60 days later, and, then, we could
actually go in and start the project, and so in that
instance, it's really unfeasible to be able to go in
and ask for money up front from, you know, 90 percent
of our clients because we are either a subcontractor
or we are working with a government agency, we are
working with Kirtland Air Force Base or we are working
with, you know, the County of Santa Fe or the City of
Albuquerque or whoever it is, and say "Well, I'm
sorry, I can't do that until you pay the fee," and so
at that point, it makes it real difficult.

MS. BASSETT: So what percentage, I
mean, just as a guess, of your clients are actually a
federal or state or local government?

MR. GRANDJEAN: I would say that we
probably have -- a rough guess, about 65 percent would
be federal, state or local governmental agencies, and,

then, the rest would be commercial and industrial,
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and, then, out of that, we would probably have about 5
percent that would actually be residential types.
THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other

questions of the witness?
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Does any member of the public have any
questions for this witness?

MS. HALL: I am B.J. Hall, management
analyst, and what I would like to comment on is one of
the problems that has occurred from a fiscal side,
accounting side, and that is many times, what we have
been dealing with is that we will bill --

THE HEARING OFFICER: Can I stop you one
second? If you are going to give testimony, I need to
swear you in.

B.J. HALL
after having been first duly sworn under oath,

and testified as follows:

THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Thank you.

MS. HALL: One of the problems that we
have had is that we'll go ahead and issue a bill for
the asbestos permit to the owner or to the government
agency, and, then, what happens is the bill doesn't
get paid, it doesn't get paid, it doesn't get paid;
six months later, then my office picks it up and we

are dealing with the owner and the owner is telling me
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"Well, the contractor has taken care of all that, I
cut one purchase order and they were going to pay it,"
so, then, we call the contractor and the contractor
says "Oh, no, the regulation says they are responsible

for it," and so the bottom line is that we are in this
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vicious circle, then we get into the middle between
contractor and owner, which is not where we want to
be, and on many occasions, we do not collect a fee
because the contractor and the owner cannot settle up,
so it goes on, and after five years, we have to write
it up, write it off as a governmental agency, so I
think that the other issue is that we have tremendous
problem collecting on asbestos.

DR. MULLOY: Do you have any sense or do
you have any figures about how much that has been over
the years or per year?

MS. HALL: I don't have that with me,
but I can certainly get that for the board.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Martinez?

MR. MARTINEZ: Just, Mr. Hearing
Officer, one last thing I want to mention on that
issue is that when that does happen, and B.J. Hall,
she i1s our management analyst for our fiscal issues,
is that then, eventually, it gets turned over to the

enforcement and compliance division and it's dealt
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with.

What we have had happen numerous times is
that a lot of the buildings, and this is basically as
related to some of the private entities that we deal
with, not necessarily APS or Kirtland or the

government agencies, they don't go anywhere, so we
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know where to find them, but a lot of the private
entities, you know, a lot of these commercial
buildings, you know, they are either owned by a
conglomerate or owned by people out of town, so it
basically becomes impossible for us to track the owner
down after everything has been done, and, again, we
are trying to simplify the process from our fiscal
standpoint because, again, as Ms. Hall mentioned, the
way it works is, you know, the permit engineer issues
out a billable invoice, and, then, that gives 30 days
for the treasury to then issue their official invoice,
so, then, by that time, we are at about like 45 days,
it's about two and a half months, you know, that the
project has already been completed, for the most part,
and, you know, a lot of times, you don't find the
owner.

We do get a lot of those returned letters,
and I can probably get you a number of those, and we

never are able to track this person down or this
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conglomerate or really talk to somebody, so, again, we
are trying to simplify the process and we will be
willing to work with the government entities that seem
to be the primary customer, you know, to set up some
kind of process, you know, whether it's city or, you
know, some kind of process, that we have at least some

assurance that the they are cognizant of the billing,
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you know.

As Ms. Hall mentioned, a lot of the times,
they are not, you know, cognizant of the billing, they
just think okay, we are going to hire the contractor
and pay that contractor, and, then, it's over, and so,
you know, we really lose a lot of money on that
particular program, and, you know, again, the
alternative is just to turn it back to the federal
government, and I am not sure if that's the best
alternative at this point, but, again, you know,
simplification, what we are looking for and everybody
has their idea about that.

We are willing to listen to that,
specifically with the asbestos program.

MR. GRANDJEAN: I absolutely agree. I
mean, I have a real problem when I go in and I will
tell the owner, I will tell that federal agency, I

will say "Hey, you are going to be getting a permit
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and it goes directly to the owner and I don't pay that
permit fee because it goes directly to you and you
need to pay that permit fee," and the problem is the
way contracting and all of those kinds of things work,
it's set up for a specific job for a specific amount
of money, and what's written in the specification of
that actual job is that the contractor pays all of the

fees.
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Well, that's the problem with the situation
in a whole, that the way the regulations are set up,
they are set up to be paid by the actual owner, so
that there are no markups in fees, so there are none
of these additional costs and those kind of things,
and, typically, what ends up happening and has
happened in the past is that I will have an owner come
back and, say, five, six, seven, eight, nine, 10, a
year later and say "Hey, we keep getting this letter
from the city and they want us to pay this fee," and I
say "Oh, yes, remember, you're supposed to pay that
fee, it's in your contract," and they are like "Well,
it's not in my contract because you guys are supposed
to pay the fee."

There is a real problem with that asbestos
and the permitting and the fee.

MS. BASSETT: So, potentially, we will

133

have to, at our next board meeting, decide this:
Would you be open to that, there was some notarized
letter that had to be signed by the owner saying, you
know, "I realize I am responsible for the fee that
would go in with the permit," so that we would have
some way of knowing, you know, so it's on paper that
as the owner, they are -- "Here is what we are
estimating the fee to be," and, you know, "I

understand it's going to take you 60 days because you
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have to get approval from Washington, D.C." or
whatever it is "to get the money, but you have to sign
here and it's got to be notarized and I have to
include it."

MR. GRANDJEAN: That's very possible,
it's a very possible thing to do, although from a
contracting standpoint, I think it would be somewhat
difficult because of the way things are budgeted in
contracting and those kind of things, for them to turn
around and say, "Okay, well, now I have to pay this
$1500 bill and I have already paid the general
contractor," whoever that was, you know, "all of his
portion of his money, now how am I going to cost code
that basically back to that project to be able to cut
that check?"

MS. BASSETT: That's another problem,

134

but you are saying that's the current way it works,
that they have to still pay it, so whether they code
it properly is their problem, you know what I mean?

MR. GRANDJEAN: Absolutely, but because
of federal government contracting and things like
that, they cannot just turn around and say "Okay, we
have got to pay this person this bill for this
contract" because all the money is paid to the general
contractor.

MS. BASSETT: Right, I wasn't saying it
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was a bill, I was just saying it was proof that they
will pay it.

MR. GRANDJEAN: Right, and that's one of
the hard things that they have, and, I mean, it's
coming down to the case, and I have done it a couple
of times where T-VI is a prime example, I mean, we had
a bill hanging out for T-VI for 12 or 14 months and
finally, I said "Look, just give me the bill, I will
pay the $202," you know, "I will take care of that
bill," because we were getting letters, they were
getting letters, everyone was getting letters, and I
could really see the problem in how that works, but I
am not quite sure how to solve the problem, if, in
fact, we still want the owner to be able to pay the

bill so that it doesn't get marked up by the
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contractors and those kinds of things into the cost of
the projects, but it is a definite concern.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Steve?

DR. PILON: My understanding is that say
the owner contracts with the general contractor to
take care of the job, so they are going to rip out the
inside of a building, say the old Digital equipment
building, and they come across asbestos and so they
call you, and it's something they had not anticipated
or maybe they had anticipated some remediation, what

would happen if you were to go to the contractor and
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say "Well, your project is basically stopped until you
give me the fees so that I can pay for the permit"?

Now, he may just say "Well, okay, if you're
not willing to front the money, pay the bank for the
permit fee, I will just go to some other contractor,"”
that is essentially what would happen?

MR. GRANDJEAN: That's a very good
possibility, yes, I mean, it's a very good
possibility, they would just turn around and say
"Okay, we will just go someplace else."

DR. PILON: Okay, but, typically, it's
the contractor that's going to be paying for -- I
mean, it's the owner basically pays the contractor to

handle the whole project, and out of that will come --
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I mean, they are going to pay a fixed amount, and,
then, out of that fixed amount will come the asbestos
removal permit fee, right?

So there is no question of markup or anything
because the deal has already been made between the
owner and the general contractor.

MR. GRANDJEAN: To some degree, I guess,
yes, it could be. I mean, basically, if you have --
you know, like I said, in most cases, they don't even
find that they have a problem until it's already --
you know, the contract is already stated, the

contracts have already been cut, it's already been
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awarded for X number of dollars and all of those kinds
of things.

DR. PILON: Is that going to be a change
order, the typical thing where the contractor would
have to go back to the owner and say "This is going to
cost us. The fee is really only $500, but we are
going to charge you $1,000 for it"™?

MR. GRANDJEAN: Right, so, basically, it
goes in as a change order at that point for that
additional work that would need to be done by removing
the asbestos-containing materials, and so at that
point, then, when that change order is cut, then

that's when we would actually go in to be able to do
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the work to be able to get that done, so, you know, I
guess who pays the fee?

If the contractor pays the fee, he could
certainly pay the fee and he would then have to go
back and include that into his price and give it back
to the owner, okay, and, then, the owner would be able
to pay that money to be able to get the fee, but part
of that problem is it comes down to, you know, again,
like I said, the contractor being the bank to pay all
of the money up front to be able to get that permit
fee before the work can even be started, when he may
not even get paid for 60 days or 90 days or whatever.

DR. PILON: But isn't the general
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contractor getting, you know, cuts of money all the
time in the project?

MR. GRANDJEAN: Oh, no, you're not going
to get any money from the contractor.

DR. PILON: Until the job is finished?

MR. GRANDJEAN: Until you have got a
completion done on, you know, usually what happens is
you have a job and it's two, three months, whatever it
is that first month, they give you 25 percent of the
money, and so at that point, it's, you know, on a
progressive scale of how much work is actually

completed, so to go in and say "Hey, I can't even do
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this work and you have not gotten paid yet, but I want
you to pay the fee to me that you are not going to get
until the end of next month," it's a circular
nightmare, it makes it very difficult.

DR. MULLOY: Right, and I can see we are
-- obviously, I don't think the staff was thinking
that the subcontractor should be the bank for somebody
else; on the other hand, if there are a number of fees
never being paid or there is a real problem with that
or having to spend, then the general taxpayers are
paying for these projects, so that's a problem, too.

MR. GRANDJEAN: Yes, absolutely.

DR. MULLOY: Some way we are obviously

needing to make the owners responsible for the
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removal, you know, of hazardous substances.

MR. MARTINEZ: And, ultimately, really,
the project, really, for the most part at least, where
the asbestos was found, is going to stop until the
abatement is done, you know.

Real world scenario is what we mentioned
about T-VI, 14 months to collect $250. I mean, it
cost a substantial amount, way above $250 for the city
to just get to that point and collect it.

I mean, the treasury was involved, compliance

enforcement was involved, our fiscal management

139

analyst is involved, and so that is the real case and
so what we say is, you know, pay it up front, asbestos
has to be abated, so that portion of the project is
not going to continue until he gets done with his
work.

The other issue, too, is that yes, it does
happen in the real world and it has happened where,
yes, the reputable abatement contractor that says
"This is what it's going to cost you to abate it," it
has happened where they said "Well, get out of my
face, we will just go with" -- you know, someone
that's not qualified and just basically has a
front-end loader, and we have caught that, we have
caught that, and there are a lot of fines that are

issued and we do catch that, but, then, again, it
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would have been cheaper for that person, guarantee it,
and we have had many scenarios to pay the contractor,
pay the $250 and get rid of the asbestos.

I can't think of a single case where it has
been more cost effective to bypass federal law and not
pay a contractor and pay the $250, I really can't
think of one scenario that it's worked out better, so,
again, our efforts are to simplify the process.

MR. SMITH: If I can add, we are out to

simplify the process, but we want to put the inspector

140

out in the field instead of at the desk writing memos,
that's what I testified to.

MR. GRANDJEAN: And I absolutely agree.
I mean, I absolutely agree. How we actually solve the
problem, I am not sure, because there are many, many
more people that are involved in being able to get
that fee paid by, you know, the different owners and
the general contractor and the money, money, money,
but, you know, I absolutely agree that, you know, we
need to get the inspectors to the field, we need to
get them out there more often, we need to have these
inspections because, you know, I try to run the most
positively reputable company that I can and do
everything that I can to follow the law exactly to the
letter and I know that there are other contractors out

there that don't do that, and I am well in favor of
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getting as many inspectors out there to do as many
jobs as possible because I know they are not being
completed properly and that makes it extremely hard
for me to do business as a contractor when this guy
doesn't follow the law, he only does half of what he
needs to do and he charges half the money, and I am
trying to do what I need to do and I can't get it
done, and so, you know, I agree, how you get that done

and how we streamline that process without making me
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up front all the money to be able to get it done, I am
not sure.
Yes, ma'am?

MS. BASSETT: Since you do this on a
regular basis and are obviously much more aware of the
nuances of this problem, the public comments are open
for two more weeks, if you could spend a little time
thinking about this --

MR. GRANDJEAN: Okay.

MS. BASSETT: -- and you could write the
regulation yourself, how you would get at this problem
of not having to contact people for 12 months to get
the money.

MR. GRANDJEAN: Okay.

MS. BASSETT: But not having to have
contractors pay out of pocket, come up with a proposal

and submit it to us.
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MR. GRANDJEAN: Sure, I can do that.
DR. PILON: How are building permits in
general handled?

I don't know, I am not familiar enough with
construction the development process to know, but, I
mean, when you go in and say we are going to move dirt
on a project and start pouring concrete, there must be

some up-front fees that they pay up front.

142

Now, why should the permitting process for
asbestos abatement be any different than the fees that
you pay to an electrical inspector or the plumbing
inspector?

I mean, those fees are paid up front, aren't
they?

MR. GRANDJEAN: I believe they are. I
am not real familiar with that side of it in actual --
how they get the plans through and how they pay for
them and that kind of thing, but I believe they are --
but I believe, and I don't know what the cost
associated with those plans, of getting those plans
through the city are, I think that it's, you know, I
think it's like $100 to get the plans through, and
that's all it is, and so from that standpoint, that's
a very reasonable expense to say "Okay, well, I can
front $100 until I get paid," but on some of these

abatement projects, I mean, it's all based on a
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varying quantity of asbestos and that varying quantity
can differ from mom and pop gas stations, which might
be a $30 permit to a $3,000 permit, and in that case,
and, see, there is no cap on what the permit can be,
the permit is based on $21 an asbestos unit, but there
is no cap, so if you removed a million asbestos units

because it was a huge project, you would have a

143

$40,000 fee that you had to turn in. Well, I know I
can't pay that.

DR. PILON: Right. And there is no cap
on that part of the fee, but, you know, I also believe
that, you know, in some way of being able to get the
permits and get the permits through, I think that, and
I am not sure exactly how all that works with
construction, but I think that, you know, it might be
in some way associated with sending it to
environmental, and, then, at that point, it could be
paid up front by the general contractor putting that
permit through if it was a permitted job for
construction and not necessarily for strictly
abatement, if somebody just called in and said "All we
want you to do is come remove this and go" and it
wasn't associated with remodeling.

MR. GRANDJEAN: Yes, in most cases,
that's the only time that you run into it because

there is no provision in the regulation that says you
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have to remove your asbestos. You don't have to
remove it, you can keep it as long as you like.

I mean, it's still the greatest thing they
have ever made, it happens to cause cancer, you know,
so we don't really want to keep it, but you can keep

it as long as you want, you don't have to remove it.

144

THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other
questions from the members of the board, members of
the public?

Thank you, sir, and if you could just submit
those comments to Mr. Smith and he will ensure that
they get to the board.

MR. GRANDJEAN: Okay. Thank you.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other member
of the public in opposition to the proposed VPO
replacement of part 2, please step forward and give
testimony.

MS. BASSETT: I can't believe all of you
are just sitting there because this is an interesting
hearing.

THE HEARING OFFICER: There being no
other individuals stepping forward in opposition, at
this time, the hearing will turn towards the
interested parties section; in other words, anyone who
wishes to step forward and give testimony as an

interested party, not for or against, but just your
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opportunity to step forward and talk to the board.
Please step forward.
Please state your name for the record, sir.
MR. McGILL: My name is Brian D.

McGill.
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BRIAN D. McGILL
after having been first duly sworn under oath,
testified as follows:

THE HEARING OFFICER: Please give us
your professional address, sir.

MR. McGILL: My professional address 1is
P.0O. Box 100, Tijeras, New Mexico, company name is Rio
Grande Portland Cement. I am the environmental
manager for Rio Grand Portland.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Please proceed,
sir.

MR. McGILL: I will attempt to be
brief. A lot of the points that I was going to touch
upon in my testimony tonight have already been talked
about to a certain extent, but I will go ahead and
give my introduction.

In this day of extensive regulation, air

quality permits can be vital to the success of a
facility. The right permit can make the difference in
a company's ability to react to market demands and an

adequately financed and efficient program can make the
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difference in promoting public health while sustaining
economic development.
The decisions of this board can play a huge

role in local economy. This is especially true in
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light of the present trends towards regionalism.
Likewise, the day-to-day activities of the city's air
program has an ongoing impact on our businesses.

Therefore, we believe it is essential that
the city's program has the appropriate resources to do
its job. Because we all stand to benefit from an
adequately financed program, we support the city's
staff efforts to obtain resources they need to provide
service.

Despite our support for the staff's efforts,
the request for a fee increase raises some fundamental
questions, some of which we believe cannot be
adequately answered in the short time that we have
tonight.

Our concerns, which I will elaborate on more
fully, are based on three fundamental concepts:

Equity or fairness, accountability and level of
service. These issues also go to more "real-world"
matters associated with the air quality program, such
as day-to-day management of the Title V permit fund
and Title V program staffing, and, also, programmatic

matters like regionalism, market-based emissions,
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training and air quality attainment.
Please make no mistake, we support the local

operating permit program, and as the members clearly
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show, we have been its biggest financial contributor
over the years. But tonight, we have some serious
questions about this regulation.

First, I'd like to take just a few moments to
describe a few basics of how facilities are regulated
under the air program and the regulatory mechanisms
for assessing fees.

Air quality permitting requirements for a
given source will vary depending on the process type
and the typing and magnitude of regulated emissions
that will result from operating the process. The law
and regulations require that each facility over a
specified threshold apply for and obtain a permit.

Here in Bernalillo County, we have quite an
impressive number of such sources. Various levels of
air quality permitting, including source registration,
authority to construct, new source performance
standards, national emissions standards for hazardous
air pollutants, major NSR/PSD and Title V operating
permits.

Of the various levels of permitting that may
be required of a source, the source registration and

authority-to-construct programs are truly local in
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nature and have weakest link to the federal Clean Air

Act. At the state level, these permits are more
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commonly known as "construction permits."

In federal clean air terms, the local
authority to construct program falls into the category
of "minor new source review."

At the other end of the permitting spectrum,
the Title V operating permit program is closely
prescribed by federal requirements. These
requirements are found in Title V of the Clean Air Act
and in Part 30 of Title 70 of the Code of Federal
Regulations.

Title V sources are called "major sources"
because of their status under the regulations. The
New Mexico Air Quality Control Act allows the
collection of reasonable permit fees to cover the
costs of the construction permit program, including
the costs of reviewing and acting on permits and
enforcing their terms, excluding legal costs of an
enforcement action.

Significantly, the New Mexico Air Quality
Control Act has a different section that specifically
allows for collection of annual emissions fees
consistent with Title V of the Clean Air Act and its
regulations.

The two types of fees have a different basis
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in state and federal law and each has a different
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purpose. One is for permitting -- one is a permitting
fee dedicated towards funding the construction permit
program; and the other is an emissions fee dedicated
toward funding the state and local Title V programs.

The difference is highlighted in the federal
requirements for the Title V program and emission
fees.

Under the federal law, local programs must
guarantee that Title V emission fees will be used
exclusively for the costs of the Title V permit
program.

The idea behind this requirement is fairly
straightforward. It is inequitable or unfair to
require major sources subject to Title V to shoulder
the expense of regulating all other industry.

In order to provide uniform accountability
and a level of transparency in the management of these
fees, the state law requires that local authority
establish a designated air quality permit fund to be
used exclusively for meeting the costs of the permit
program.

In addition, the federal part 70 regulation
requires an initial accounting and periodic
accountings of how the fee revenues are used solely to

cover the costs of the permitting program.
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Now, some of the considerations with regards
to the air permit application process, some of these
points were discussed a little earlier. Tonight I
will try to get through them very quickly.

Despite the level of permitting, all air
quality permits will contain federally enforceable
limitations, either process or emissions, that
restrict the amount of pollutants that can be emitted
on an hourly and annual basis. These emissions are
termed to be emissions allowed by permit or "allowable
emissions."

These limitations are imposed to ensure
compliance with federal, state and local air quality
standards that are designed to protect the public's
health and the environment.

These federally enforceable limitations are
based, at least partially, on information contained in
the permit application.

By regulation, a permit must base their
emissions estimates on a facilities "potential to
emit" or PTE. Emissions based on PTE are theoretical
emissions that have been derived assuming that the
process is running 100 percent capacity. A fuller
definition of PTE can be found in Section 20.11.2.7.E

-- sorry for all that -- on page 3 of the proposed
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regulation.

As a strategy to ensure both compliance with
hourly and annual emission limitations contained in an
air quality permit and to have a certain degree of
operational flexibility in an unpredictable market, a
source will often slightly overstate emissions beyond
what is indicated by PTE or potential to emit.

Current fees are based on actual emissions.
Actual emissions are derived through performing an
annual emissions inventory submitted by Title V
sources. This inventory is reviewed by the city staff
and approved and the current system allows the sources
to pay fees based on actual emissions, not theoretical
maximum.

This allows for a fluctuating economy. It
also promotes pollution prevention, a source as an
economic incentive to reduce emissions, just as
indicated in the previous presentation by the
Department of Energy.

A couple of comments on economic conditions,
the industry that I work in is very closely tied to
the general health of the economy. Where we are at
right now with regard to our actual emissions versus
our potential to emit, we typically run anywhere from

90 to 95 percent of what our allowable or PTE is.
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Over the last several years, we have enjoyed
a very robust healthy economy and hope to be able to
take advantage of it for several more years, but
economies being cyclic things, sooner or later, there
is going to be a slowdown or downturn in the economy
that will have a direct effect or direct impact on the
industry that I work in.

Potentially, what could happen if the economy
slows or even goes into a recession, we would most
likely have to cut back on our production, even go to
half production basis.

This has happened in the past, however, under
the proposed regulation, even at half production, we
are still paying full permit fees. Emission fees
under the proposed regulations, as I have mentioned,
will be based on theoretical maximum emissions. No
provisions for fluctuating economic conditions, and,
also, incentives in the -- economic-based incentives
for pollution prevention is removed.

Now, getting to the second handout that I
passed out, I believe that this is some information
that was handed out in January's board meeting. I
can't attest for sure on that, I wasn't present at
that meeting.

MS. BASSETT: It was.

153
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MR. McGILL: But I believe this was
passed out. The first page, Title V fee projections,
indicate that amending the regulation as proposed for
Title V sources would increase fees from $224,000 a
year to nearly $463,000 a year. This is over 100
percent increase of approximately $239,000.

I'm looking through a great deal of numbers,
I thought these were important. The city's analysis,
I believe, on the second page of the air quality
division fund 242 indicated that the change in
collection for Title V sources is zero dollars, so
it's a little confusing to me, and the comments
section on that particular table on the right-hand
side of the page, that indicates that the fee, Title V
sources paid fees based on allowables.

Now, assuming that an error was made in this
table and factoring in increased Title V into the
analysis based on the proposed regulation indicates
that the air quality division budget, total budget,
would be right around $859,000, of which the Title V
fees are roughly a 54 percent share of that.

The division's line item budget for the
fiscal years 1999, 2000 and 2001 was not sufficiently
detailed to determine the number of staff positions

and resources that the Title V fees are supporting.
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Now, I would like to go through a list of
concerns that Rio Grande Portland has and we have a
number of questions that we believe merit careful
consideration.

The fee regulation presented tonight really
goes to the fiscal direction of the program, and,
therefore, is fundamentally -- it fundamentally forms
the basis for the program.

As fee payers, permittees and citizens with a
stake in the community, we have a vital interest in
this regulation.

I'd like to run through some of our
questions, and, then, invite the board to revisit them
individually after I am done. First, on the face of
the state and federal law, this board appears to be
the entity that may be ultimately liable for the fee
system, the management of the fund and the program
priorities that are supported by the fund.

As the entity that may be ultimately
responsible, how does this board interact with the
city program? We are all aware of the city/county
merger with the trends towards regionalism. How will
the board and the city manage these funds and the
program in light of the consolidation of governments?

What is the relation of Title V budget to the general

155

city budget or the city enterprise funds?
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We are all aware of the city's
well-publicized fiscal woes. In times of revenue
shortfalls, the Title V program cannot be caught up in
local budgetary politics. How can the board and the
city ensure that the Title V program is managed "off
budget" from other budgetary considerations so as to
be protected from other unrelated fiscal concerns?

Is there a separate Title V budget or is it
intermingled with the general permit program budget?
If they are intermingled, how can we account for Title
V revenues and expenditures? Has there been an
accounting as described in the part 70 rule? If not,
when will there be?

How can stakeholders gain access to this
information? Is there a formal mechanism for
stakeholders to request an accounting? It's without
question that this board and the city need resources
to provide an adequate level of service.

How are the Title V budgetary requirements
derived, number of employees, hours, other resources?
Is half the budget derived from Title V fees? 1Is half
the staff time dedicated to administering the Title V
program? How are these details tracked? What can we

do as stakeholders to ensure that the Title V program
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is adequately staffed?

Those are -- because our concerns will
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3

require some research and consultation with the city's
program staff, we believe it is prudent for the board
to hear our concerns tonight and to defer action on
this regulation until after we have had a chance to
consult more fully with the city staff.

I know that at the very beginning of the
hearing that the hearing officer indicated that there
would be -- the hearing record will be kept open for a
period of two weeks, I would urge the board to perhaps
keep the hearing record open until the next monthly
meeting, given some of the questions and issues that
need to be discussed in this matter.

That concludes my formal testimony.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Before we go to
the questions, Mr. McGill, I received two documents,
one appears to be your testimony in the written form,
and the second is the document which you referred to
as Title V fees billed for 2000/2001.

Do you wish these two document to be entered
in the record as your exhibits?

MR. McGILL: Yes, sir.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. I will so

mark them as Rio Grande Portland Cement Corporation,

157

Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2.
Any questions for Mr. McGill from members of

the board?
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MS. BASSETT: Have you talked to the
staff before about the separate Title V accounting?

MR. McGILL: We have not explicitly
discussed this in the past. We would have hoped to
have done it, perhaps this go-round, but we didn't
receive notice of the hearing until after the proposed
amendments had gone to the public notice, and we
started investigating what some of the proposed
changes were and as we worked through this process,
kind of came to the realization that some of the
concerns that we have would basically or at least have
a potential of significantly changing the proposed
regulation as was submitted for public notice, and
because of that, we had not had a chance to visit with
the city staff and work together in addressing some of
these issues.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other
questions for Mr. McGill from members of the board?

Any questions for Mr. McGill from members of

the staff or members of the public?

MS. HALL: I am B.J. Hall, management

analyst for the city.
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THE HEARING OFFICER: State your name
again.
MS. HALL: I am B.J. Hall, I am the

management analyst for the Environmental Health

mhtml:file://X:\ENVNTB\20.11.2 NMAC\AQBD0214 V1.mht

Page 152 of 168

3/3/2010





10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 153 of 168

Department. Actually, I don't have -- I do have one
question for Mr. McGill, but then I have a couple of
other statements, and the first question is that I
think it would be prudent for the two of us to meet
because I don't agree with the numbers that he had
purported here, and in Section 5, Program Budget, in
Sections A and B of that document, I don't know, I
have no idea where he got the EHD analysis of the air
quality division fund 242 budget because I usually do
those analyses and I am not aware of any of us coming
up with these numbers, so I'd like to get together
with Brian, if I could, to answer some of his other
questions regarding the insurance that the City of
Albuquerque has, how these funds that are collected
would not be, let's say, used by the city for any
other purpose.

In calendar year 1994 and fiscal year, city
fiscal year 1995, the City of Albuquerque established
the air quality fund, fund 242. This fund is a
dedicated fund and is completely separate from the

general fund. All money is collected and the
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authority to construct permits in the Title V portion
is deposited into this fund, and if this fund houses
two programs, the vehicle plus management program and
the operating permits program of air quality operating

permits is Title V and all the other authority to
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construct permits, these two are kept separated by
city accounting activities system, where, at any time,
we could tell you how much revenue has come in for
operating permits and how much has been expended just
for that program.

It also can tell you the interest gained on
that money, on that fund balance for just operating
permits, and, also, for just vehicle plus management
program.

There is no option for the mayor, the
administration or anyone else to be able to borrow any
of that money for any other city function or purpose,
so we do have that and that is assured and that
complies with federal law that says it has to be a
dedicated fund.

Those same rulings apply to the pollution
management program, so to respond to his question here
about how does the city ensure that this money isn't
going anyplace else, we have that in place, and what

our city council staff does do is they have the
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ability to appropriate from the fund balance to run a
program, but they cannot appropriate any money out of
that to run any other program, so whether they choose
to fund this at a level we request or at a level
that's less than that, it still remains in fund

balance, that money does not go away, it does not
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revert to the general fund, it is there to be used for
the program needs.

We have done analysis of the costs of the
Title V section of that program and we have increased
our staffing to support that fund. In years past, we
had to report by percentage the amount of staff time
both in air qualities and in finance and everyplace
else that did some work in operating permits, and,
then, we had to charge the fund appropriately.

In fiscal year '0l, we met, we evaluated and
we analyzed the program and we took steps to fund the
people that appropriately do nothing but work in
operating permits of the fund and that is charged
indirectly for city services that are provided to the
fund, and that's at the -- that's at a very low rate
for the Environmental Health Department this year and
will probably go up this year.

MS. BASSETT: So as a public agency,

your budgets are available to the public, right?
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MS. HALL: Yes.

MS. BASSETT: So, Mr. McGill, you had
asked about that, could you see the accounting, so I
think that information is available to you, so it
seems like a lot of the questions that you raised here
are something that you could fairly quickly get the

answers from, so if you could maybe work with them to
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get your questions answered, its seems like you are
concerned about misuse of Title V moneys. I think you
need to contact the department.

MR. McGILL: Right, right, I am
characterizing the concern as just wanting to make
sure that the fund is protected.

MS. BASSETT: Sure.

MR. McGILL: And that staffing levels
are adequately provided for.

MS. BASSETT: Right.

MR. McGILL: And I would be happy to
meet with B.J. and discuss some of the fine details of
the accounting mechanism.

MS. BASSETT: So I think what would be
more helpful, certainly, for myself, as a board
member, is that since it seems like B.J. is saying
these questions are maybe not instantly answered, but

fairly readily answered, that if you then have further
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questions, it would be helpful that then you bring
them to the board.

MR. McGILL: Yes. If the first round of
answers generates a new round of questions, I could
certainly be back and provide some additional
testimony.

DR. PILON: I think what Mr. McGill --

one of the things he was raising was the fact that on
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the first page that the current condition with fee
adjustments, that the total was $224,000, roughly,
and, then, potential condition without the adjustment
462,000, 463,000, and, then, that change isn't
reflected on the next page.

Is that one of the things?

MR. McGILL: That's correct.

DR. PILON: And I would just like the
city staff to address that. My understanding is that
they don't expect the estimated collections to change
all that much and that's why, but maybe, you know,
maybe they could explain why that, why on this page
there is a big jump of #220,000 or $240,000, but
that's not reflected on the next page.

MR. MARTINEZ: Let me explain a little
bit about the budgetary process and how that works,

and I won't spend a lot of time on that, and it is
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based on the people that we determine work
specifically on operating permits primarily, permit
writers, and, then, some of the compliance that goes
into that.

Again, you know, our budget, you know, our
total budget is a little over $2 million a year. The
operating permit program accounts for about a quarter
of that, and, again, you know, that's a relatively --

you know, it's not by any means the majority of what
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we fund.
One of the things that I want to -- and so we

do sit down, and as this sheet basically sets out, I
mean, we can break it down by each person and how much
each person earns and that kind of stuff, and, I mean,
you know, but, basically, Jjust what it costs for us to
pay for wages and benefits and that kind of thing
that's on this page.

MS. BASSETT: Can I interrupt a second?
I don't think that's Steve's question. I think the
question is just that here we are seeing one number at
the bottom, there is a $220,000 difference.

MR. MARTINEZ: Right.

MS. BASSETT: When you turn the page up
here and you look at the very first entry, it says

"Estimated collection of the current fees" and

164

"estimated collection of the proposed," that number
stays the same; whereas, on the front page, it's a
$220,000 difference, so that's what he is not clear
on.

MR. MARTINEZ: Right. This estimate
accounts for not just only Title V, but for all the
other sources that are in the program.

MS. BASSETT: I realize that, but under
here, it says "Title V Sources Annual Billing." It

doesn't show this calculation.
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MR. MARTINEZ: I see what you are
saying.

MS. BASSETT: You are saying this is
462, but, instead, this is entered as the same as 224,
that's the question.

MR. MARTINEZ: Okay. Now, on that, we
really haven't, you know, until recently, we really
haven't had any indication that anybody was going to
be paying, you know, be paying more than what they had
been paying in the past.

I mean, they had been paying for a certain
level of production and that's been like that since
1997, basically, so we are entering our fourth year,
and, basically, the production has stayed within the

same range, so we really couldn't assume that all of a
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sudden, everybody was going to say "Okay, we are going
to pay for a full permit," so we really couldn't
assume that.

DR. PILON: My understanding was there
was going to be adaptive behavior on the part of the
people whose rates were going up.

MR. MARTINEZ: And that was the idea.
Obviously, they want to go ahead and pay for the full
permit and not modify, then that's their choice, you
know, and so that's, you know -- but we really

couldn't account for that in there.
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One of the things that I will point out, and
this was on the issue of collection, is Jjust to give
you an example, it was 224,000, that was -- that's
estimated here that was collected, I guess, under the
current level, and what was actually collected overall
was about $360,783 in 1999.

If you look at our budget for 1999, it was
about $464,000, so we were about $100,000 shy of that,
you know, and it wasn't attributed primarily to the
Title V sources and we didn't count on that money
coming in from them, you know, but we did count on
additional money coming in from the additional sources
to account for that amount.

MS. BASSETT: It sounds like -- Mr.

166

McGill, sounds like your concerns are that the budgets
at one level show Title V, and, then, another level
mix the department, and so you are trying to decipher
which is really Title V income and expenditures versus
the rest of the department's income.

MR. McGILL: That's correct, looking for
the details on the Title V operating permits.

MS. BASSETT: Right.

MR. McGILL: Now, I have heard the term
"operating permits" kind of being used as a general
term in some of the answers to questions, and perhaps

Mr. Martinez and I need to get together and discuss
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this a little further, but I am a little confused, on
the federal level, you have Title V operating permits
that are not regulated, the manner in which major
sources operate, then I believe that the local board
has a minor source operating permits or sources that
are designated as smaller sources, nonmajor sources,
and I am hearing -- if what I am hearing is correct,
the term "operating permits" is being applied to both
sets of sources, and, in my mind, there is a clear
distinction between Title V major source versus --
that's regulated by federal law versus a local minor
source operating permit program.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other

167

questions of the witness?
Mr. Martinez?

MR. MARTINEZ: I just comment on that
the programs that are in place do not -- in our
regulatory structure aren't part of our SIPs, so,
therefore, they are federally enforceable, so they are
-- I think that there is a misconception, and I have
had numerous meetings and discussions on this issue
with EPA at EPA headquarters on the whole issue of
major source and minor source.

I mean, you know, you are comparing basically
apples to oranges because what distinguishes a major

source from a minor source, one 1s below 100 times and
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one is above 100 times of the emissions, but that
doesn't really make a direct correlation to the
concentration, which is ultimately what the Clean Air
Act protects.

The standards do not measure tons, they are
measured by the monitors, which is measured in
concentration. When you look at it from that
perspective, it is just as important for us to
regulate at the same effort and the same level, you
know, and in a lot of instances, a 50-ton source, a
100-ton source, and because in a lot of instances a

50-ton source has a higher impact because of

168

configuration, because of engineering to the depth
than the 100-ton source, so in the budget, we don't
distinguish between one or the other, but we do
understand that there is specific federal requirements
in Title V for major sources, and, then, the other
requirements basically are within our regulatory
structure, which, again, are also federally
enforceable.

I do want to point out one thing, that at one
point, we did, from the budget, set up in that fashion
where we basically took one inspector and said "Okay,
how much time does this inspector spend on minor
sources, how much time does this inspector spend on

what we consider grant objectives, how much time does
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this inspector spend over Title V and how much time
cost this inspector spend on city issues," and so what
we have had in our budget, we have basically close now
to 30 people and we have, you know, three quarters of
those people basically broken out into okay, this
person, you know, keeps their time and charges 25
percent to this budget and another 25 percent, you
know, so it was basically a budgetary nightmare to do
that, and so we said "Let's just break it up into
groups, which is operating permits, and, then, grant

objectives and the people that work on grant

169

objectives, give it to the grants," which is -- you
know, which basically accounts for about 70 percent of
what we get paid for, and, then, the people which is
the smaller group that specifically work on the
operating permit issues get paid out of that and, yes,
there's an inspector that will spend time on Title V,
time on resources, and, then, time on asbestos,
because I only have one inspector for basically all
four areas, and so, you know, we try to spread that as
equally as possible, but we charge it to one fine.

I am not sure that makes a lot of sense, but
if you could imagine, I would have to go back and say
"Okay, and we can do that, we have done that in the
past," because we did an audit on where everybody

spends their time and that's basically where the 1997

mhtml:file://X:\ENVNTB\20.11.2 NMAC\AQBD0214 V1.mht 3/3/2010





16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

rate came from, and, you know, that's where the number
came from, but in this particular case, we didn't go
to that level because we felt that we addressed it
back in 1997, and you said -- and, again, we don't
expect to get any more than what we did in '97, we
just expect to pay the bills, basically.
THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other

questions for the witness?

Mr. McGill, we thank you for your time and

your testimony.
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MR. McGILL: Thank you very much.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Does any other
interested person or party have testimony that they
wish to give to the board or present to the record,
and if so, please step forward.

Okay. There being no further parties giving
testimony, at this time, that portion of the hearing
will be closed. Before we adjourn, again, the
comments section for this proposed VPO and replacement
is open until February 26th at 5:00 p.m.

Please submit those comments to Mr. Smith at
the Environmental Health Department directly or at
P.O. Box 1293, Albuquerque, New Mexico, 87103, they
will be admitted as exhibits.

All exhibits submitted to me hereby are

admitted into the record, and, remember, immediately

mhtml:file://X:\ENVNTB\20.11.2 NMAC\AQBD0214 V1.mht

Page 164 of 168

3/3/2010





17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

after this hearing is closed tonight, the Air Board
will hold its monthly meeting; however, again, this
regulation 2 will not be on the agenda for the board
meeting.
Mr. Smith, anything further?

MR. SMITH: I was just a little
confused. Mr. McGill's evidence is in the record?

THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, I have marked

my copies of Rio Grande Portland Cement Corporation

171

Exhibits 1 and 2, 1 being the written testimony, 2 is
the three-page document.

MR. SMITH: You want to use your
copies?

THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes. Anything
further, Mr. Smith?

Members of the board?

MS. BASSETT: I just want to thank you
all for spending your Valentine's evening with us and
I hope that you are celebrating Valentine's Day
tomorrow evening with your husband's or partners.

Thanks for all your time and hanging out all
night with us.

THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. I'd also
like to thank the court reporter, Ms. Kopan, for three
and a half hours of nonstop typing. I apologize, I

should have asked you earlier if you were okay and
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18 needed a break.

19 I would also like to thank the city staff as
20 always for their wonderful professionalism, and, Mr.

21 Smith, thank you to you and your staff. I'd like to
22 thank the board for allowing me to act as hearing

23 officer.

24 It is 8:48 p.m. The hearing is adjourned.

25 Thank you all.
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1 (Proceedings concluded at 8:48 p.m.)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SS. REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
COUNTY OF BERNALILLO

I, the undersigned Court Reporter, HEREBRY
CERTIFY that the foregoing hearing was recorded by me
by machine shorthand; that I later caused my notes to
be transcribed under my personal supervision; and that
the foregoing is a true and accurate record, to the
best of my ability, of said proceedings.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am not a relative or
employee of any of the parties or attorneys involved
in this matter and that I have no personal interest in
the final disposition of this matter.

DATED this 5th day of March 2001.
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assistance. However, only Title [l funded
programs are eligible to receive USDA
assistance;

C.USDA cash must only be used to
purchase food which is grown or processed
in the United States. Coffee, tea,
decaffeinated beverages and fruits and
vegetables grown outside of the U.S. are
not USDA reimbursable;

D. Grants for nutrition services provided
under the Older Americans Act, as
amended, are not reduced when USDA
assistance levels increase.

[9.2.18.17 NMAC — Rp, SAA Rule 95-18
Sec.11, 5/31/2001]

HISTORY OF 9.2.18 NMAC

Pre-NMAC History: SAA Rule 95-18,
Nutrition Services Standards, filed 4/13/1995,

History of Repealed Material: SAA Rule 95-
18, Nuirition Services Standards, filed
4/13/1995. ‘

Other History: 9.2.18 NMAC, Nutrition
Services Standards, effective 5/31/2001 —
replaced SAA Rule 95-18, filed 4/13/1995.

9.2.20.7 DEFINITIONS
As used in this part:

A. "indirect cost" means: a percentage

applied to a contract amount which
represents costs incurred by a project
difficult to ascertain with specificity ;

B. "tribal government® means: a
sovereign entity consisting of a Pueblo,
Apache, or Navajo government operating in
part within the State of New Mexico.

[9.2.20.7 NMAC — N, 5/31/2001]
9.2.20.8 INDIRECT COST

The State Agency on Aging will aliow an
indirect cost in service contracts with tribal
governments of up t010 % as determined
on an specific contract basis, provided
further that the tribal entity has a federally
approved indirect cost rate in place on May
31, 2001. No indirect costs shall be allowed
in construction contracts. [9.2.20.8 NMAC —
N, 5/31/2001]

HISTORY OF 9.2.20 NMAC
[RESERVED]

NEW MEXICO
STATE AGENCY ON AGING
Title 9 Human Rights
Chapter 2 Age
Part 20 Indirect Cost to Tribal Entities
9.2.20.1 ISSUING AGENCY

New Mexico étate Agency on Aging.
[8.2.20.1 NMAC — N, 5/31/2001]

9.2.20.2 SCOPE

This part applies only to contracts with
tribal governments. [9.2.20.2 NMAC - N,
5/31/2001]
9.2.20.3 STATUTORY AUTHORITY

Section 28-4-6 NMSA 1978.
NMAC — N, 5/31/2001]

[9.2.20.3

9.2.20.4 Duration
Pemanent. [9.2.20.4 NMAC — N, 5/31/2001]
9.2.20.5 EFFECTIVE DATE

May 31, 2001, unless a later date is cited
at the end of a section. [9.2.20.5 NMAC -
N, 5/31/2001]

9.2.20.6 OBJECTIVE

The purpose of this regulation is to
establish the extent to which the State
Agency on Aging will recognize indirect
costs in contracts with tribal governments.
[9.2.20.6 NMAC — N, 5/31/2001]

NEW MEXICO
ALBUQUERQUE/BERNALILLO
COUNTY AIR QUALITY
CONTROL BOARD

Title 20 Environmental Protection

Chapter 11 Albuquerque/Bernalillo
County Air Quality Control
Board

Part 2 Permit Fees

This action repeals 20 NMAC 11.02,
Permit Fees, which was filed with the State
Records Center and Archives on October
27, 1995, with an effective date of
December 1, 1995, and replaced with
20.11.2 NMAC effective July 1, 2001,

NEW MEXICO
ALBUQUERQUE/BERNALILLO
COUNTY AIR QUALITY
CONTROL BOARD

Title 20 Environmental Protection

Chapter 11 Albuquerque/Bernalillo
County Air Quality Control
Board

Part 2 Permit Fees

20.11.2.1 ISSUING AGENCY

Albuguerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality
Control Board, Environmental Health
Department, P.O. Box 1293, Albuquerque,
NM 87103. Telephone: (505) 768-2600.
[20.11.2.1 NMAC — Rp, 20 NMAC.11.02.1.1,
7/1/2001]

20.11.2.2 SCOPE
A. Applicability:

(1) Any person required to obtain a permit
pursuant to 20.11.42 NMAC, Operating
Permits;

(2) Any person required to obtain a permit
pursuant to 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-
Construct;

(3) Any person with a valid registration or
permit issued pursuant to 20.11.40 NMAC,
Source Registration, 20.11.41 NMAC,
Authority-to-Construct, or 20.11.42 NMAC,
Operating Permits;

(4) Any person requesting a Surface
Disturbance Permit pursuant to 20.11.20
NMAC, Airborne Pariiculate Matter;

(5) Any person required to provide
notification regarding removing regulated
asbestos containing material pursuant to
20.11.64 NMAC, Emission Standards for
Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary
Sources; and

(6) Any person requesting professional or
administrative services.

B. Exempt: This Part does not apply to
sources within Bernalillo County that are
located on Indian lands over which the
Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality
Contro! Board lacks jurisdiction.

C. Variance: Any person may request a
timely variance to this Part in accordance
with Variance Procedures, 20.11.7 NMAC,
if allowed by federal, state or iocal laws and
regulations.

[20.11.22 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC
11.02.1.2 & 20 NMAC 11.02.1.8, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.3 STATUTORY AUTHORITY

This Part is adopted pursuant to the
authority provided in the New Mexico Air
Quaiity Act, NMSA 1978 Sections 74-2-4,
74-2-5; the Joint Air Quality Control Board
Ordinance, Bernalillo County Ordinance 94-5
Sections 3 and 4; and the Joint Air Quality
Control Board Ordinance, Revised
Ordinances of Albuquerque 1994 Section 9-
5-1-3 and Section 9-5-1-4. [20.11.2.3 NMAC
- Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.3, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.4 DURATION

Permanent. [20.11.2.4 — Rp, 20 NMAC
11.02.1.4, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.5 EFFECTIVE DATE

July 1, 2001, unless a later date is cited at
the end of a section or paragraph. [20.11.2.5
NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.5, 7/1/2001
20.11.2.6 OBJECTIVE:

A. To implement the requirements of 74-
2-7 NMSA by estabilishing:
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(1) Reasonable fees to cover the cost qf
reviewing and acting on any permit
application received by the Department;

(2) Reasonable fees to cover the cost of
implementing and enforcing the terms and
conditions of any permit issued by the
Department; and,

(3) A schedule of operating permit fees
consistent with section 502(b)(3) of Clean
Air Act and the Joint Air Quality Control
Board Ordinances;

B.To implement the requirements of
section 507 of federal Clean Air Act by
establishing adequate funding for a small
business stationary source technical and
environmental compliance  assistance
program; and

C. To establish reasonable fees to cover
the administrative expenses incurred by ":he
Department in implementing and epforcnng
the provisions of the New ngtco Alr
Quality Control Act, the Joint Air Quality
Control Board Ordinances, and the
Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality
Control Board Regulations.

D. This Part is permanent. However, a
mandatory review of the permit fee regulation
shall be conducted by the Board within two-
year period-from the date of adoption.

[2011.26 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC

11.02.1.6, 7/1/2001}
20.11.2.7 DEFINITIONS

Throughout this Part, the terms defined
shall have the following meanings. For the
purpose of this Part, if there is any appargnt
conflict between the meaning of a definition
in this Part and a definition in another Part,
the definition in this Part shall prevail and

apply.

A. “Allowable Emission Rate” means the
most stringent emission limit that has been
established by a permit  issued by the
Department or the source's potential-to-emit.

B. “Emissions Unit” means any part or
activity of a stationary or portabie source
that emits or has the potential to emit any
fee poilutant.

C. “Fee Pollutant’ means:
(1) Sulfur dioxide (SOx);

(2) Nitrogen dioxide based on total oxides
of nitrogen (NOXx);

(3) Carbon monoxide (CO);

(4) Particulate matter with an aerodynamic
diameter less than or equal o 30
micrometers (TSP);

(5) Any volatile organic compound as
defined in 40 CFR 51.100(s), as amended;

(6) Any hazardous air pollutant listed
pursuant to section 112(b) of the Federal
Clean Air Act; and,

(7) Any regulated substance listed
pursuant to section 112(r) of the federal
Clean Air Act.

(8) Any other poliutant determined by the
Board after public hearing.

D. “Fugitve Emissions” means those
emissions that cannot reasonably pass
through a stack, chimney, vent, or other
functionally equivalent opening.

E. “Major Source” shall have the meaning
defined in 40 CFR 71.2.

F. “Potential-To-Emit” or “PTE” means the
maximum capacity of a stationary source to
emit any air pollutant under its physical and
operational design. Any physical or
operational limitation on the capacity of
source o emit an air pollutant, including air
pollution control equipment, restrictions on
hours of operation or on type or amount of
material combusied, siored or processed,
shall be treated as part of its design if
integral to the process or the limitation is
federally enforceable through permit or
regulation. Any limitation on emissions due
to process design must be unchanging and
unavoidable physical constraints. The
potential-to-emit for nitrogen oxide shail be
based on total oxides of nitrogen.

G. “Qualified Small Business” means:

(1) A business that has 100 or fewer
employees;

(2) is a small business concern as defined
by the federal Small Business Act;

(8) Does not emit more than 50 tons per

year of any regulated air pollutant, or 75 tons

per year of ail regulated air pollutants; and

(4) 1s not a major source of hazardous air
pollutants.

H. “Regulated Air Pollutant” means the
following:

(1) Nitrogen oxides, total suspended
particulate matier, or any volatile organic
compounds;

(2) Any pollutant for which a national,
state or local ambient air quality standard
has been promuigated;

(8) Any pollutant that is subject to any
standard established in Section 111 of the
Federal Act;

(4) Any Ciass | or |l substance subject to
any standard established in Title VI of the
federal Act; or

(5) Any pollutant subject to a standards or
requirements established in Section 112 of
the federal Act, including:
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(a) Any polilutant subject to requirements
under Section 112(j) of the federal Act; and

(b) Any poliutant for which | the
requirements of section 112(g)(2) of the
federal Act have been met, but only with
respect to the individual source subject to
the requirements. .

|. “State Air Toxic Review” means a case-
by-case pemit application review of the
potential emissions of toxic air poliutants
listed in 20.2.72 NMAC, Construction
Permits, Subsection IV, Permits for Toxic
Air Pollutant Emissions.

J. “Stationary Source with De Minimis
Emissions” means a source, unless
otherwise regulated, with a potential-to-emit:

(1) Less than 5 tons per year of any

.regulated air poliutant, excluding hazardous

air pollutants;

(2) Less than 2 tons per year of any
hazardous air poliutant;

(3) 5 tons or less of any combination of
hazardous air pollutants per year; or

(4) 20 percent of any lesser threshoid per
year for a single hazardous air pollutant
established by the Environmental Protection
Agency by rule.

[20.11.2.7 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.7,
7/1/2001]

20.11.2.8 SAVINGS CLAUSE

Any amendment to 20.11.2 NMAC that is
filed with the State Records Center shall not
affect actions pending for violation of a
federal or state statute or regulation, a City or
County ordinance, or any Board regulation.
Prosecution for a violation - under prior
regulation wording shall be govemed and
prosecuted under the statute, ordinance, part
or regulation section in effect at the time the
violation was committed. [20.11.2.8 NMAC —~
Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.9, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.9 SEVERABILITY

If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause
or word of this Part or federal, state or jocal
standard incorporated herein is for any
reason held to be unconstitutional or
otherwise invalid by any court, the decision
shall not affect the validity of the remaining
provisions of this Part. [20.11.2.9 NMAC —
Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.10, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.10 DOCUMENTS

Documents cited and incorporated in this
Part may be viewed at the Albuquerque
Environmental Health Department, One Civic
Plaza NW, 3rd Floor, Room 3023,
Albuguerque, NM 87102. [20.11.2.10 NMAC
— Rp, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.11, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.11 GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. At the time of application, any person,
including a federal, state or local
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governmental agency, who files an
application pursuant to 20.11.41 NMAC,
Authority-to-Construct, for an initial air
quality review and authority to proceed with
construction or requesting to modify an
existing air quality permit shall pay the
: permit fee required by this Part.

B. Any new or existing stationary source
that meets the applicability requirements of
this Part shall pay an annual emission fee
based on the source’s potential-to-emit.
Sources wishing to reduce their potential-
to-emit may do so at any time through the
! provisions of 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-
i Construct.

C. At the time of submittal, any person filing
an application for a Surface Disturbance
Permit with the Depariment pursuant to
20.11.20 NMAC, Airbomne Particulate Matter,
shall pay the applicable filing and inspection
fee required by this Part.

D. At the time of notification, any person
notifying the Department pursuant to
20.11.64 NMAC, Emission Standards for
Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary
Source, of the removal of regulated
asbestos containing material shall pay the
applicable fee required by this Part.

E. No application will be reviewed or
permit issued unless the owner/operator
provides documentary proof satisfactory to
the Department that either all applicable
fees have been paid as required by this
Part, or the owner/operator has been
granted a variance in accordance with
20.11.7 NMAC, Variance Procedures. .

F. All fees required to be paid at the time of
application shall be paid by check or money
order payable to the “City of Albuquerque,
Permits Program (Fund 242)” and either be
delivered in person to the Environmental
Health Department, Finance Section, 3rd floor,
;Room 3023, Albuquerque/Bemalillo County
" Government Center (City Hall), One Civic
®. Plaza NW, Albuguerque, NM, or mailed to
i Attn:Finance Section, Environmental Health
Department, P.O. Box 1293, Albuguerque,
NM 87108. The Finance Section then shall
§. send a receipt to the applicant. The applicant
shall attach a copy of the receipt issued by the
inance Section to the application as proof of
yment. The Air Quality Division cannot
accept direct payments.

5

. No person required to pay an annual
iISsion fee pursuant to this Part shall be
Compliance with their permit unless all
Filcable fees are paid as required by this

No fee required by ‘this Part shall be

ded without the written approval of the

tor. When determining the amount of

Sg:fubnd, the Director may deduct a

o ; le professional service fee to

- "essie Costs of staff time involved in
Ng a permit or request.

-11.2.11 NMAC - N, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.12 AUTHORITY-TO-CONSTRUCT
PERMIT FEES; FEE CALCULATIONS
AND PROCEDURES

A. General Permits for Minor and Area
Sources: Sources applying for a General
Pemit pursuant to 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-
to-Construct, shall pay the applicable fee
found in section 18 of this Part.

B. Case-by-Case Air Quality Review Prior
to the Construction of a Stationary Source:

(1) Case-by-case air quality application
review fees shall be calculated based on the
proposed source’s potential-to-emit fee
pollutants.  Federally approved State
Implementation Plan limitations may be used
to determine a source’s potential-to-emit.

(2) Fugitive emissions shall be included in
the source’s potential-to-emit.

(3) Emissions from operations determined
by the Department to be insignificant activities
shall not be included in the calculation.

(4) For each fee pollutant, calculate the
potential-to-emit for each proposed emission
unit to the nearest tenth of a ton. Total the
fee poliutants from each emission unit and
express the value in tons per calendar year
as a whole number. When rounding, if the
number after the decimal point is less than 5,
the whole number remains unchanged. If the
number after the decimal point is 5 or
greater, the whole number shall be rounded
up to next whole number.

*(8) The application review fee shall be
determined by comparing the source’s
calculated potential-to-emit with the fee
schedule found in section 18 of this Part.

(6) In addition to the application review
fees, a source proposing to construct any
emission unit or units that must comply with
the provisions of 20.11.60 NMAC, Permitting
in Nonattainment Areas, 20.11.61 NMAC,
Prevention of Significant Deterioration,
20.11.62 NMAC, Acid Rain, 20.11.63 NMAC,
New Source - Performance Standards for
Stationary Sources, or 20.11.64 NMAC,
Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Stationary Sources, also shall
pay the applicable federal program review
fees listed in section 18 of this Part.

(7) Example: A company proposes to
build a facility with a NSPS boiler with a
potential-to-emit of greater than 100 tons
per year of NOx. From the fee schedule
found in section 18 of this Part, the
company will be required to pay an initial air
quality review fee of $5,000.00 with an
addition federal program review fee of
$1,000.00 for the NSPS boiler, for a total
fee of $6,000.00. The review fee shall be
submitted at the time of application in
accordance with the procedures found in
subsections E and F of 20.11.2.11 NMAC.

(8) Sources submitting an application for
the removal of regulated asbestos containing
material pursuant to 20.11.64 NMAC shall

comply with the provisions of 20.11.2.14
NMAC.

C. Permit Modifications:

(1) At the time of application, any source
proposing to modify an existing air quality
permit shall pay the applicable fee found in
section 18 of this Part.

(2) Any proposed modifications to an
existing air quality permit that must comply
with the provisions of 20.11.60 NMAC,
Permitting in  Non-Attainment Areas,
20.11.61 NMAC, Prevention of Significant
Deterioration, 20.11.62 NMAC, Acid Rain,
20.11.63 NMAC, New Source Performance
Standards for Stationary Sources, or
20.11.64 NMAC, Emission Standards for
Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary
Sources, the applicant shall also pay the
applicable federal review fee, but only with
respect to the individual emission unit
subject to the requirement.

D. Qualified small business shall pay one-
half of the calculated case-by-case air quality
review fees prior to adding any federal
program review or state toxic review fees.

[20.11.212 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC
11.02.11.1, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.13 ANNUAL EMISSION FEES; FEE
CALCULATIONS AND PROCEDURES

A. By June 1 of each year, the Department
shall send each owner/operator a letter
stating the fee amount owed. The owner/
operator has 45 days from receipt of the
letter to contact the Department to request a
correction to the records or submit an
application to modify an existing permit
reducing the source’s aliowable emission rate.

B. Starting August 1 of each year, each
owner/operator shall be sent an official
invoice by the City of Albuquerque stating
the annual emission fee due, which the
owner/operator shall pay consistent with the
directions stated in the invoice.

C. As required by 74-2-16 NMSA, all
monies received pursuant to this section
shall be deposited in the City of
Albuquerque, Permits Program (Fund 242).

D. Calculating Annual Emission Fees:

(1) For each source, the potential-to-emit
for each fee pollutant shail be totaled and
expressed in tons per calendar year as a
whole number. When rounding, if the
number after the decimal point is less than
5, the whole number remains unchanged. If
the number after the decimal point is 5 or
greater, the whole number shall be rounded
up to next whole number.

(2) The sum of each fee pollutant shall be
multiplied by the appropriate annual
emission fee listed in section 18 of this Part
then totaled, to determine the annual
emission fee due.
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(3) The source shall pay either the
minimum annual emission fee or the
calculated emission fee whichever is greater.

E.Sources wishing to reduce their
potential-to-emit may apply for a permit or
modify their existing permit consistent with
the provisions of 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-
to-Construct.

[20.11.213 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC
11.02.11.2, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.14 FILING AND INSPECTION FEES
FOR THE REMOVAL OF REGULATED
ASBESTOS CONTAINING MATERIAL; FEE
CALCULATIONS AND PROCEDURES

A. At the time of notification, a filing and
inspection fee shall be paid by the
owner/operator removing regulated asbestos
containing material pursuant to 20.11.64
NMAC, Emission Standards for Hazardous
Air Pollutants for Stationary Sources, and the
federal regulations incorporated therein.

B. The filing and inspection fee shall be
calculated by multiplying the Asbestos Unit

(AU) by the applicable fee in 20.11.2.18."

Equation 1 shall be used to calculate the
total Asbestos Units (AU) and amount due:

(1) Total Due = [(SF / 160) + (LF / 260) +
(CF / 35)] x AU (Equation 1)

(2) Where: SF = Square feet of asbestos
containing material to be removed; LF =
Linear feet of asbestos containing material
to be removed; CF = Cubic feet of asbestos
containing material to be removed; and AU
= Asbestos Unit.

(3) Example: A contractor proposes to
remove 320 square feet (SF), 260 linear
feet (LF) and 70 cubic feet (CF) of
regulated asbestos containing material.

(4) From the example above: SF=320;
LF=260; CF=70; and AU=$21.00 (From
section 18 of this Part)

(5) From Equation 1: [(SF / 160) + (LF /
260) + (CF /35)] x AU = [(320 / 160) + (260
/260) + (70 /35)] x $21.00 = (2 + 1 + 2) X
$21.00 = 5 x $21.00 = $105.00

(6) Result: The contractor must pay
$105.00 at the time of notification.

C. All fees due pursuant to this section
shall be paid in accordance with the
procedures found in subsections D, E and F
of 20.11.2.11 NMAC.

[20.11.2.14 NMAC -
11.02.11.2, 7/1/2001]

Rp, 20 NMAC

20.11.2.15 FILING AND INSPECTION FEES
FOR SURFACE DISTURBANCE PERMITS;
FEE CALCULATIONS AND PROCEDURES

A. A filing and inspection fee shall be paid
by each person requesting a Surface
Disturbance Permit pursuant to 20.11.20
NMAC, Airborne Particulate Matter.

B. The filing and inspection fee shall be
calculated by multiplying the acreage to be
disturbed, expressed as a whole number,
by the applicabie fee found in section 18 of
this Part. When rounding, if the number
after the decimal point is less than 5, the
whole number remains unchanged. If the
number after the decimal point is 5 or
greater, the whole number shall be rounded
up to the next whole number.

C. All fees due pursuant to this section
shall be paid in accordance with the
procedures found in subsections C, Eand F
of 20.11.2.11 NMAC.

[20.11.2.15 NMAC — N, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.16 FEE ERRORS, CORRECTIONS
AND REFUNDS

A. Within 30 days of receiving any invoice
from the City, any person who does not
agree with the amount due may request a
review by the Director to correct any errors
or challenge the basis upon which the fee
was computed. [f the Director has not
received a written request or challenge
within 30 days after the payor receives the
invoice, the invoice shall be final.

B.If fees are due at the time of
application, the payor must pay the required
fee, then request a review within 30 days of
payment.

C. All written requests for review shall be
sent to: Division Manager, Air Quality
Division, Environmental Health Department,
Air Quality Division, P.O. Box 1293,
Albuguerque, NM 87103

D. The request for review must include:

(1) The name of the owner/operator,
address and telephone number;

(2) The dollar amount of the alleged error;
and

(8) A description of the alleged error and
any other information the payor believes
may support the claim.

E. Within 30 days of receiving the request
for review, the Director shall audit the
account and, either:

(1) Amend the invoice or bill and refund
any money due the payor; or

(2) State the invoice or bill is correct.

F. The Director may confer with the payor
to obtain additional information during the
audit period. )

G. Within 10 working days of the
Director's decision concerning the review,
the decision shall be sent by certified mail
to address provided by the payor.

H. If a refund is due, the Department shall
refund any money due consistent with the
policies and procedures of the City of
Albuquerque.

. The Director's decision

appealed to the Board.

may be

[20.11.2.16 NMAC - N, 7/1/2001]
20.11.2.17 FAILURE TO PAY

A. It shall be a violation of this Part to fail
to pay any fee required by this Part,
Director’s decision, or Board regulation.

B. Stating an invoice is in error shall not
be a defense to this section.

C. In addition to paying past due fees the
payor shall pay a penalty of 50 percent of
the fee amount, plus interest on the fee
amount computed in accordance with
section 6621(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 (relating to computation of
interest on underpayment of federal taxes).

[20.11.2.17 NMAC — Rp, 20 NMAC
11.02.11.2, 7/1/2001]

20.11.2.18 FEE SCHEDULE

A. Annual Emission Fees: Sources issued
a registration or permit pursuant to 20.11.40
NMAC, Source Registration, 20.11.41
NMAC, Authority-To-Construct, or 20.11.42
NMAC, Operating Permits, shall pay a
minimum annual emission fee of $150.00 or
the annual emission fee calculated
consistent with section 13 of this Part, which
ever is greater. The following fee pollutant
rates shall be used in calculating the annual
emission fee, uniess otherwise listed:

(1) Non-Hazardous Fee Pollutants: $31.00 ‘
per ton;

(2) Hazardous Fee Pollutants (Non-Major
Sources): $31.00 per ton;

(3) Hazardous Fee Pollutants (Major
Sources): $250.00 per ton.

(4) Annual Emission Fees for Specific
Source Categories:

(a) Auto Body Repair and Painting:

(i) One Spray Booth: No Charge

(ii) Two or more spray booths: $150.00
(b) Chromium Electroplating: $150.00
(c) Degreasers Using Organic Solvents:

(i) Non-halogenated solvents- using less
than 2,200 gallons of any one solvent-
containing' material, and 5,400 gallons of -
any combination of solvent-containing
materials: $150.00

(i) Halogenated solvents- using less than
1,200 gallons on any one solvent-
containing material, and 2,900 gallons of
any combination of solvent-containing
materials: $150.00

(d) Dry Cleaners (Non-Major): $150.00

(e) Emergency Generators: $150.00
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(f) Gasoline Service and Fleet Stations:
$250 or $31.00 per ton, which ever is
greater,

(g) Natural gas or distillate fueled fired
boilers less than 10 milion BTU used
exclusively for residential, commercial or
institutional heating and hot water: No
Charge

(h) Printing, Publishing and Packaging
Operations

@ Sheetfed (nonheatset) offset
lithography using less than 7,125 gallons of
clean solvent and fountain solution
additives per year: $150.00

(i) Nonheatset web offset lithography
using less than 7,125 gallons of solvent and
fountain solution additive per year: $150.00

(iii) Heatset web offset lithography using
less than 50,000 pounds of ink, cleaning
solvent, and fountain solution additives:
$150

(iv) Screen printing using less than 7,125
gallons of total solvent used including
solvent-based inks, cleaning solvents,
adhesives and coatings: $150.00

(v) Flexography (water-based or UV-cured
inks, coating and adhesives) using less
than 200,000 pounds total of inks, coatings
and adhesives: $150.00

/7

(i) Soil andlor water remediatioh
operations: $150.00

(i) Stationary sources with de minimis
.emissions: No Charge

B. General Air Quality Review Fees for
New Sources (Minor Source General
Permits):-

(1) Auto body repair and painting: $500.00
(2) Dry cleaners: $500.00

(3) Emergency generators (natural gas or
distillate fuel): $500.00

(4)  Generic coating and abrasive
operations: $500.00

(5) Other fueling facilities receiving fuel by
truck or rail (Non-NSPS): $1000.00

(6) Non-NSPS Boilers (Greater than 10
Million BTU): $500.00

(7) Printing and packaging operations:
$500.00

(8) Retail and flest gasoline service
stations: $500.00

(9) Soil/water remediation systems:
$1000.00

C. Case-by-Case Air Quality Review Fees
for New Sources (Based on a Source’s
Potential-to-Emit):

(1) Proposed sources with a potential-to-
emit equal to or greater than 5 tons per
year and less than 25 tons per year:
$1,000.00

(2) Proposed sources with a potential-to-
emit equal to or greater than 25 tons per
year and less than 50 tons per year:
$2,000.00

(3) Proposed sources with a potential-to-
emit equal to or greater than 50 tons per
year and less than 75 tons per year:
$3,000.00 .

(4) Proposed sources with a potential-to-
emit equal to or greater than 75 tons per
year and less than 100 tons per year:
$4,000.00

(5) Proposed sources with a potential-to-
emit equal to or greater than 100 tons per
year: $5,000.00

D. Federal Program and State Toxic Air
Pollutant Review Fees; In Addition to the
Air Quality Review Fees:

(1) 40 CFR 60 Standards: $1,000.00

(2) 40 CFR 61 Standards: $1,000.00

(3) 40 CFR 63 Standards:

(a) Promulgated Standards: $2,000.00

(b) Case-By-Case MACT Review: $10,000.00
(4) PSD/Non-Attainment Review: $5,000.00
(5) Acid Rain Review: $5,000.00

(6) State Toxic Air Pollutant Review:
$500.00

E. Permit Modifications:
(1) P2 Modifications: No Charge

(2) Minor/Flexible Permit Modifications:
$1,000.00

(3) Major Modifications: $5,000.00

F. Portable Source Relocation Fee:

* $250.00

G. Administrative Modifications to Existing
Permit: $100.00

H. Surface Disturbance Permit Filing and
Inspection Fee: $100.00 per acre

I. Asbestos Unit (AU): $21.00
J. Administrative Fees:

(1) Professional Services Fee: $75.00 per
staff hour

(2) Photocopying:

(a) First 10 Pages: $0.50 per page
(b) Additional Pages: $1.00 per page
(8) Regulation Compilation: $20.00

(4) Public Records Research Fee: $50.00
per staff hour

[20.11.2.18 NMAC - Rp, 20 NMAC
11.02.11.2, 7/1/2001]

HISTORY OF 20.11.2 NMAC

Pre-NMAC History: Material in the part
was derived from that previously filed with
the commission of public records — state
records center and archives under:

Resolution 1, Air Pollution Control
Regulations of the Albuquerque/Bernalillo
County Air Quality Control Board, filed 8-
06-71;

Regulaton 1, Air Pollution Control
Regulations, filed 6-06-73;

Regulation 1, Air Pollution Control
Regulations, filed 7-19-73;

Regulation 1, Air Poliution Control
Regulations, filed 3-21-77;

Regulation No. 21, Permit Fees, filed 3-
24-82;

Regulation No. 21, Permit Fees, filed 8-
19-83; '

Regulation No. 21, Permit Fees, filed 3-
01-94;

Regulation No. 21, Permit Fees, filed 12-
16-94.

History of Repealed Material: 20 NMAC
11.02, Permit Fees, filed 10-27-95.

Other History: Regulation No. 21, Permit
Fees, filed 12-16-94 renumbered and
reformatted to 20 NMAC 11.02, Permit
Fees, filed 10-27-95;

20 NMAC 11.02, Permit Fees, filed 10-27-
95 replaced by 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit
Fees, effective 7/1/2001.

NEW MEXICO
BOARD OF BARBERS AND
COSMETOLOGISTS

May 15, 2001

The New Mexico Board of Barbers and
Cosmetologists is repealing the following
rules effective June 16, 2001:

16 NMAC 34.1 General Provisions

16 NMAC 34.2 Licensing

16 NMAC 34.3 Examinations

16 NMAC 34.4 Special Licenses

16 NMAC 34.5 Regular Licenses

16 NMAC 34.6 Licensing by Reciprocity:
Credit for Out-of-State Training
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CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE

April 1, 2011

Honorable Susana Martinez
Governor, State of New Mexico
Office of the Governor

Room 400

490 Old Santa Fe Trail

Santa Fe, NM 87501

SUBJECT: Endotsement of request for the Environmental Protection Agency
to consider a revision to the State Implementation Plan for Air
Quality by amending 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees (AKA Fees)

PO Box 1293

Dear Governor Martinez,
Albuquerque

I am writing to request your endorsement of the attached submittal to the EPA which
N serves as the basis for a revision to the New Mexico State Implementation Plan (SIP)

for Air Quality. The attached documentation supports the proposed SIP revision
which incotporates a repeal of 20 NMAC 11.02 and replacement by 20.11.2 NMAC,
Permit Fees, (AKA Fees), adopted pursuant to Title I of the Clean Air Act
www.cabg.gov Amendments of 1990, into the SIP. If you agree to the submission of the proposed
SIP revision, a letter of endorsement should be sent to the EPA with a request for
their approval by way of publication in the Federal Register. A draft formal letter to
EPA is attached for your convenience. I will provide EPA with the necessaty review
copies of the submittal, so you do not need to send any accompanying
documentation. Please provide me with a copy of your letter of endorsement, or if
you prefer to provide me with the original, I will take care of all the details.

The Albuquerque - Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board (Air Board) repealed
20 NMAC 11.02 Permit Fees and replaced it with 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees, on April
18, 2001, after a public comment period and corresponding public hearing held on
February 14, 2001. The regulation was filed with the New Mexico State Records
Center (NMSRC) on May 16, 2001 and became effective on July 1, 2001. We believe
that the submitted materials provide adequate documentation to support the
requested SIP revision.

Albuquerque - Making History 1706-2006





The reasons for submitting an historical rule amendment as a revision to the SIP are
as follows. Subsequent to adoption of the SIP revision before you, the Air Board
adopted amendments to 20.11.2 NMAC on 1/14/04 regarding fees necessaty in
order to operate the fugitive dust program [20.11.20 NMAC] as well as other changes;
these amendments were filed on 1/28/04, and became locally effective on 3/1/04.
On 9/7/04 a request for a SIP revision was submitted to EPA under the Governor’s
signature. But before EPA finalized their approval for this revision, the Albuquerque
Alt Quality Division (AQD) had already begun work on the next revision. So EPA’s
teview was postponed until the next SIP revision request was sent to them. The Air
Board adopted this second set of amendments on 11/8/06, which reduced the
bearing appeal fee from $1000.00 to $125.00. These amendments were filed on
11/15/06, and became effective locally on 12/16/06. A trequest for a SIP revision
was submitted to EPA under the Governot’s sighature on 2/5/07.

20.11.2 NMAC has been amended numerous times since it was first adopted in 1977,
with the penultimate hearing before the aforementioned 2004 and 2006 hearings,
being held on 2/14/01. The Air Board adopted this repeal and replacement on
4/18/01. This replacement rule was filed on 5/16/01, and became effective locally
on 7/1/01. The new rule addressed permit fees, potential to emit, State air toxics,
and Title V. EPA reviewed these changes but thete is no record of the 2001
amendment ever being submitted to EPA for inclusion into the SIP. Thus, EPA has
not approved a SIP revision to include any of the amendments made to 20.11.2
NMAC in the intervening period since their initial approval in the Federal Register on
April 10, 1980 [Vol. 45 No. 71, 24460-69].

Since the 20.11.2 NMAC SIP has not been revised at EPA since 1980, the locally
effective version is completely different from that approved in the SIP. This raises
two issues. First, the 2004 & 2006 (2007) SIP revisions will need to be compared to a
“baseline” rule such as the 5/16/2001 teplacement rule, since the 1980 rule is not
comparable. Secondly, since the 2004, and 2006 (2007) amendments did not
amend/update the language currently found in 20.11.2 NMAC, at Sections: 1, Issuing
Agency, 4, Duration; 5, Effective Date, and 8, Savings Clause, these sections will need to be
updated in the SIP as well. This will be done when the 2004 & 2006 (2007) SIP
revisions are approved; or if the most recent amendments that were adopted on
12/8/2010, filed 12/10/2010, effective 1/10/2011, and submitted to EPA on
12/27/2010, ate approved in the same federal register notice as the 2004 & 2006
(2007) revisions, the update will take place at that time.





To facilitate your review and processing, the following materials are enclosed:
1) SIP Completeness Checklist pursuant to 40 CIR 51, Appendix V
2) Heating record, including transcripts and exhibits
3) Public comments and responses
4) The proposed SIP revision for 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees
adopted by the Air Board.
5) A draft formal submittal lettet from the Governor to EPA

Thank you for your assistance in this matter. If you have questions or need
clatification, please contact me or Margaret Nieto of my staff at (505) 768-2637.

Sincerely,

Mafy Lod Leonard
Dikecto
Albugyerque Environmental Health Department

cc Chait, Albuquerque - Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board
Margaret Nieto, Control Strategies Supervisor, AQD
Neal Butt, Environmental Health Scientist, AQD
Mary Uhl, Chief, Air Quality Bureau, NM Environment Department

Enclosures
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Testimony Regarding Proposed Changes To 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees

February 14, 2001

Brian D, McGill
Environmental Manager
Rio Grande Portland Cement Corporation

I Introduction

A

In this day of extensive regulation, air quality permits can be vital to the success
of a facility. The right permit can make the difference in a company’s ability to
react to market demands, and an adequately financed and efficient program can
make the difference in promoting public health while sustaining economic
development.

The decisions of this Board can play a huge role in the local economy. This is
especially true in light of the present trend towards regionalism. Likewise, the
day-to-day activities of the City's air program has an ongoing impact on our
businesses. Therefore, we believe it is essential that the City’s program has the
appropriate resources to do its job. Because we all stand to bencfit from an
adcquately financed program, we support the City’s staffs” cfforts to obtain the
resources they need to provide service,

Despite our support for the staff’s efforts, the request for a fee increase raises
some findamental questions, some of which we believe cannot be adequately
answered in the short time we have tonight. Our concemns, which I will elaborate
on more fully, are based on three fundamental concepts: equity (or fairness),
accountability, and level of service. These issues also go to more “real-world”
matters associated with the air quality program, such as day-to-day management
of the Title V permit fund and Title V program staffing, and also programmatic
matters like regionalism, market-based emissions trading, and air quality
artainment.

Please make no mistake, we support the local operating permit quality program,
and as the numbers clearly show, we have been its biggest financial contributor
over the years. But tonight we have some serious questions about this regulation.

First, I'd like to take a few moments to describe a few basics of how facilities are
regulated under the air program and the regulatory mechanisms for assessing fees.
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I Air Quelity Permitting - General

A. Air quality permitting requirements for a given source will vary depending on the
process type and the type and magnitude of regulated emissions that will result
from operating the process. The law and regulations require that each facility
over a specified threshold apply for and obtain a permit. Here in Bernalillo
County, we have quite an impressive assortment of such sources.

B.  Various levels of air quality permitting include Source Registration, Authority-to-
Construct, NSPS, NESHAP, Major NSR/PSD, and Title V Operating Permits.

C. Of the various levels of permitting that may be required of a source, the Source
Registration and Authority-to-Construct programs are truly local in nature, and
have the weakest link to the federal Clean Air Act. At the state level, these
permits are more commonly know as “construction permits.” In federal Clean Air
terms, the local authonty~to-consmt program falls into the category of “miner
new source review.”

D. At the other end of the permitting spectrum, the Title V operating permit program
is closely prescribed by federal requirements. These requirements are found in
Title V of the Clean Air Act and in Part 70 of Title 40 to the Code of Federal
Regulations. Title V sources are called ‘major sources” because of their status

under the regulations.

E., The NM Air Quality Control Act allows the collection of reasonable permit fees
to cover the costs of the construction permit program including the costs of
reviewing and acting on permits, and enforcing their terms, excluding legal costs
of an enforcement action.

F. Significantly, the NM Air Quality Control Act has a different section that
specifically allows for collection of annual emissions fees consistent with Title V

of the Clean Air Act and its regulations.

G.  The two types of fees have a different basis in state and federal law and each has a
different purpose. One is a permitting fee dedicated towards funding the
construction permit program, and the other is an emissions fee dedicated toward
funding the state and local Title V program.

The difference is highlighted in the federal requirements for the Title V program
and emissions fees. Under the federal law, local programs must guarantee that
Title V emissions fees will be used exclusively for the costs of the Title V permit
program.

The idea behind this requirement is fairly straightforward. It is inequitable, or
unfair, to require major sources subject to Title V to shoulder the expense of

regulating all other industry.
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H. In order to provide uniform accountability, and a level of transparency in the
management of these fees, the state law requires that the local authority establish a
designated air quality permit fund, to be used exclusively for meeting the costs of
the permit program. In addition, the federal Part 70 regulation requires an initial
accounting and periodic accountings of how the fee revenues are used soley to
cover the costs of the permitting program.

Considerations In The Air Permit Application Process

A.  Despite the level of permitting, all air quality permits will contain federally
enforceable limitations, either process or emissions, that restrict the amount of
pollutants that can be emitted on an hourly and annual basis. These emissions are
termed to be emissions allowed by permit or “allowable emissions™.

B. These limirtations are imposed to ensure compliance with federal, state, and local
air quality standards that are designed to protect the publics’ health and the
environment.

C. These federally enforceable limitations are based at least partially on information
contained in the permit application.

D. By regulation, a source must base their emission estimates on a facilities
“potential-to-emit” or PTE. Emissions based on PTE are theoretical emissions
that have been derived assuming that the process is running at 100% capacity. A
definition of PTE can be found in Section 20.11.2.7.E on page 3 of the proposed

regulation.

E. As a strategy to ensure both compliance with the hourly and annual emissions
limitations contained in an air quality permit and to have a certain degree of
operational flexibility in an unpredictable market, a source will often slightly
over-state emissions beyond what is indicated by PTE.

Title V Emissions Fees

A Current Fees are based on Actual Emissions
1. Actual Emissions are derived through an annual emissions inventory
submitted by Title V sources.
2. Inventory is reviewed by EHD staff.
3 Fees are based upon the inventory after staff review and approval.
4 Current system allows sources to pay fees based on actual emissions not
theoretical maximums.
Allows for fluctating economic conditions.
Promotes pollution prevention — A source has an economic incentive to

reduce emissions.

o
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Proposed changes to NMAC 20.11.2 will allow fees to be based upon permitted
allowable emissions.

1. Emissions fees will be based on theoretical maximum emissions.
2. No provisions for fluctuating economic conditions.
3. Removes economic based pollution prevention incentives.

V. Title V Program Budget

A.

EHD Title V Fee Projections from January, 2001 indicate that amending NMAC
20.11.2 as proposed would increase collection of Title V fees from $224,176 to
$462,937 per year. This is over a 100% increasc of $238,761.

The EHD Analysis Of Air Quality Division Fund 242 (January, 2001) indicated
that the change in collections for Title V sources is $0 even though the comments
section of this document indicates that Title V sources would pay fees based on
allowables.

Assuming that an error was made and factoring increased Title V collections into
the analysis of the fund indicates that the total Air Quality Division Fund would
be $858,825 of which Title V fees constituted a 54% share.

The Divisions January, 2001 Line Item Budget for FY 99, 00, and 01 was not
sufficiently detailed to determine the number of staff positions and resources that
the Title V fees are supporting.

VI. RGPC Concems

We have a number of questions that we believe ment careful consideration. The
fee regulation presented tonight really goes to the fiscal direction of the program,
and therefore, it fundamentally forms the basis for the program. As fee payers,
permittees, and citizens with a stake in the community, we have a vital interest in
this regulation.

I’d like to run through some of our questions, and then invite the Board to revisit
them invidually after I am done.

First, on the face of the state and the federal law, this Board appears to be the
entity that may be ultimately liable for the fee system, the management of the
fund, and the program priorities that are supported by the fund. As the entity that
may be ultimately responsible, how does this Board interact with the City

program?
We're all aware of the City/County merger and the trend towards regionalism.

How will the Board and the City manage these funds and the program in light of
the consolidation of governments?

What is relation of Title V budget to general city budget? Or the city enterprise
funds?
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We're all aware of the City's well-publicized fiscal woes. In times of revenue
shortfalls, the Title V program cannot be caught up local budgetary politics. How
can the Board and the City ensure that the Title V program is managed “off-
budget” from other budgetary considerations so as to be protected from other

unrelated fiscal concemns.
Is there a separate Title V budget? Or is it intermingled with the general permit

program budget? If they are intermingled, how can we account for Title V
revenues and expenditures? '

Has there been an accounting as described in the Part 70 rule? When will there
be? How can stakeholders gain access to the information? Is there a formal

mechanism for stakeholders to request an accounting?

It’s without question that this Board and the City need resources to provide an
adequate level of service. How are the Title V budgetary requirements derived?
Number of employees, hours, other resources. If half the budget is derived from
Title V fees? Is half of the staff time dedicated to administrating the Title V
program? How are these details tracked? What can we do as stakeholders do to
ensure that the Title V Program is adequately staffed?

Because our concerns will require some research and consultations with the City's
program staff, we believe it is prudent for the Board to hear our concerns tonight,
and to defer action on this regulation until after we’ve had a chance to consult

more fully with the City staff.
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TITLE V FEES BILLED FOR 2000 - 2001

WITH CURRENT FEE ADJUSTMENT PROVISIONS
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| Current Cond I Pontial
with Conditi?n without

Albuquerque Publishing Co. $ 1271
Chevron Bulk Terminal 12,431 12,431
COA/Cerro Colorado 6,510 6.510
Deita Power (Cobisa) 42,563 42,563
Crasent (Albuq. Plaza) 899 ge8

.| DOE 3,232 78,461 | /
Earth Grains 4,838 4838
Elastimold 8,500 9,500
General Electric 2,635 2,836
KAFB (DOD) 18,631 18,631
LaFarge (W. Mobile) 4,836 4,836
PNM Reeves 11,202 152,923 | /
Rio Grande Portland Cement 83,026 84,506 | ¥
UNM 8,805 20,326 | /
VA Hospital 1,333 1,333
Vuican 12,276 12,276

$224,176
DIFFERENCE = $238,761
Does not include COA/Southside Water Reclamation Plant and Centex
American Gypsum
& prcted Crp

v_‘p 6(0\
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OPERATING PERMITS PROGRAM - FISCAL YEARS 1999, 2000, 2001
LINE ITEM DISTRIBUTION OF BUDGETS AND EXPENDITURES

Fr o8 FY 98 FY 00 FY 00 FYol
Budget | Expenditures Budget | Expendiiures } Budget
Regular Weges $372.018]  $332,261 $372,015 $360.013]  S411 .9‘d1
[Part Time Z40 240
Qver Time 117 ~1,254
;P'TERA 70,122 m_;*m 86,394 8,40
CA 28,220 24,60 26,220 | 27,022 1,63
Other Employee Z5, 26,068 20,068 26,323 .
Benefits
Reliree Hea 3,668 3,311 3,668 3,608 X
Clothing Allowance _
'éumigu $503,113 $449.589 $503,113] __ $4B5,858 '_sﬁ’«_o{
Professional Services 4,151
Tinting & Duplicating 50 78 2,500 358 | 2,600
lectnicity
Cas
eluse —
¢lephone 1.863
VWater -
Supplies 13, 5,266
Jravei 3,850
Tramin 2.600 400
Dues g lMemtu;r:r.m 1,500
Repaiﬁmamlenance 4,000 1,668
ontractusal Services B.000 4,067
i’ﬁ?serve Appropriation ~
Subtotal $37,445 $41,718
Aulomobiies
Office Furniure
Subtotal
orkers Comp 2,000 2.000
[Ton & Oiher 685
Vehicle Maintenance 2,100
Vehicie Fuels 667
Redio Mainenance
Indirect Qverhesd 3 Z§g
ubiotal $48.775 $3,678 . S44,287 20,91
el 3863 $aEa ez Seeegosl  §u0.100) jﬁiﬁ

AGD BUDGET JANUARY 2001







Albuquerque/Bernalillo County
Air Quality Control Board

Staff’s Proposal to Repeal and Replace 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees
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Albuquerque Journal Notice, 1/7/01

Mailing List

Letter From Ms. Jole C. Luehrs, Region 6, U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency

‘Letter From Mr. George K. Laskar, Department of Energy,

Albuquerque Operations Office

Letter From Mr. Jim Goins, Plant Manager, General Mills

Letter From Ms. Nancy Norem. Principal Engineer. PNM

Letter From Mr. Brian McGill, Corporate Environmental Manager, Rio
Grande Portland Cement

Letter From Mr. Kurt Browning, Land Development Manager, Sandia
Properties Ltd.

Current Version of 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees

Proposed Draft of 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees, with Floor
Amendments Added.

Testimony of Mr. Michael D. Smith, Environmental Health
Department, Air Quality Division

Table 1 — New Source Review (NSR) Fee Comparison

Table 2 — Fee Comparison for Dust Control Activities
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NOTICES OF RULE MAKING AND PROPOSED RULES

NEW MEXICO
ALBUQUERQUE/BERNALILLO
COUNTY AIR QUALITY
CONTROL BOARD

NOTICE OF HEARINGS AND MEETING

On Weagresaay Feoruary 14, 2001, at 5:00
p-m.. the AlbuguergusBemaiilo County Air
Qualty Comtro Boaru {Board) will hold a
public heanng ana a pubic meeting in the
Council/Corvrssior Crampers, lower level,
AlbuguersueBermanto County Govermnment
Center (ABCGC) Ore Cwic Plaza, 400
Marguetie Avenue NW  Fifth  Street and
Marguette NW oowrtown Albuguergue, NM.

The purpose of e heanng is to hear
lesumony  on  repeanng* and replacing
20.11.2 NMAC Perm: Fpes

As regured by the New Mexico Air Quality
Controi Act 74-2.7 NMSA the Board must
es1abisn reasonate tees 1o cover the costs of
reviewing ana acting on any air quality permit
applicatons recenec ncuaing the ongoing
Costs O rspoechor ang mpiementing and
enforong the permis 1 agoon, the New
Mexico Act reaures the Board to establish a
SChedue of emess.on tees consistent with the
provisions o sechon 5Q2(0)(3) of the federal
Clean Ar Azt (tecera Acty for sources that
require an operatrg perm pursuant to Title V
of the tecera Act To meet these
fequrements e staM for the Board is
proposing 1o repea ang replace 20.11.2
NMAC. Permut Fees

Apphcation Review Fees The staff is also
proposing that the foliowing fees be paid
with an appucaton for or modification to
and Authonty-to-Construct Permit:

1) Proposed sources with a potential-to-
emit regulated air poliutants greater than 5
tons per year ang less than 25 tons per
year: $1.000 00,

2) Proposed sources with a potential-to-
emit regulated arr poliutants equal to or
greater than 25 tons per year and less than
50 tons per year $2.000 00:

3) Proposed sources with a potential-to-
emil requiated ar poliutants equal to or
greater than 50 tons per year and less than
75 tons per year $3.000.00

4) Proposed sources with a potential-to-
emit regulated ar polutants emissions
equal 10 or greater than 75 tons per year
and less than 100 tons per year: $4,000.00:

5) Proposed sources with a potential-to-
emit regulated ar poliutants equal to or
greater than 100 tons per year: $5,000.00.

Permit Modifications:

1) Pollution Prevention (P2) Modifications:
No Charge;

2) Minor/Flexible Permit Modifications:
$1,000.00;

3) Major Moadifications: $5,600.00.

Additional Proposed Requirements: Any
source that must comply with following
federal standards shall pay the following
fees in addition to the above fees:

1} 40 CFR 60 Standards: $1,000.00;

2) 40 CFR 61 Standards: $1 ,000.00;

3) 40 CFR 63 Standards:

a) Promulgated Standards: $2,000.00;

b) Case-By-Case MACT Review: $1 0,000.00;
4) PSD/Non-Attainment Review: $5,000.00;
5) Acid Rain Review: $5,000.00.

Annual Fees: The staff js proposing to
remove the current provision that allow
major and non-major sources to pay annual
fees based on the source's actual emission
during the previous year. Sources wishing
to reduce their potential-to-emit may apply
for a modification through the provisions
20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct.

The proposed Part 02 requires all air
poliution sources that have registrations or
permits issued by the Environmental Health
Department (Department) to pay an annual
emission fee based on the source’s
potential-to emit. The proposed fees are:;

1} Non-Hazardous Fee Poliutants: $31.00
per ton;

2) Hazardous Fee Pollutants (Non-Major
Sources): $31.00 per ton; and

3) Hazardous Fee Pollutants
Sources): $250 per ton.

{Major

Surtace Disturbance Permit Fee: Also, as
part of the changes to 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit
Fees. te Deparment is proposing  an
inspecton and filng fee to obtain a Surtace
Disturbance  Permit pursuant to 20.11.20
NMAC. Arbome Particulate Matter at $100.00
per acre disturbed.

Asbestos Inspection Fee: The Department
is not proposing to change the current
Asbestos Unit (AU) fee, which will remain at
$21.00.

The following administrative fees are also
proposed:

1) Permit Amendments (Administrative
Corrections): $100.00;

Staff Exhibit #1 —

2) Professional Services Fee: $75.00 per
staff hour;

3) Photocopying:

a) First 10 Pages: $0.50 per page;
b} Additional Pages: $1.00 per page;
4) Regutation Books: $20.00;

5) Public Records Research Fee: $50.00
per staff hour.

Persons desiing to present technical
testimony should submit a written notice of
infent to: Attn: 20.11.2 NMAC Hearing, Mr.
Michael D. Smith, Environmental Health
Department, P.O. Box 1263, Albuquerque NM
87103, or in person in Room 3032, A/BCGC,
by February 7, 2001. The notice must inciude:
name, address and qualifications of each
technical witness; identification of whether the
witness is a proponent, opponent or interested
person; description of the nature of the
anticipated testimony; anticipated length of
each witnesses’ presentation: identification of
the specific aspects of the proposed action to
which testimony will be directed; any
alternative  language proposals, where
appropriate; and list and describe technical
exhibits anticipated to be offered in connection
with the witness testimony.

In addition, written statements to be
incorporated into the public record should
also be sent to above address by February
7, 2001, and must include the name and
address of the individual submitting the
statement.

Immediately following the hearing the Board
will hold its regulady scheduled monthly
rmeeting and may consider the staffs proposal
10 repeal and replace 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit
Fees.

Interested persons may obtain a copy of
the staff's proposal at the Environmental
Health Department Office or contact Mr.
Michael D. Smith at (505) 768-1961
(mdsmith@cabg.gov).

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES: If you have a disability and
require special assistance to participate in
this meeting, please contact Mr. Michae! D,
Smith, Environmental Health Department,
Room 3023, Albuguerque/Bemalillo County
Government Center, 768-1961 (Voice),
768-1977 (FAX) or 768-2482 (TTY), as
$o0N as possible prior to the meeting date.
Public documents, including agendas and
minutes, can be provided in various

accessible formats.

New Mexico Register

Notice, Vol. XI. No. 24, 12/29/00






+ STATE OF NEW MEXICO
County of Bernalillo S8

Bill Tafoya, being duly sworn, declares and says that he is Classified
Advertising Manager of The Albuquerque Journal,

duly qualified to publish legal notices or advertisem

ents within the meaning of
Section 3, Chapter 167, Session Laws of 1937, and that payment therefore has

been made of assessed as court cost; that the notice, copy of w

and that this newspaper is

hich is hereto

attached, was published in said paper in the regular dail edition, for
; times, the first publication being on the 2 day of

f -

P

w%sﬁcz{ibe to t:}efore me, a Notary Public, in

and for g bunty pf Berﬁalillo and State of New Mexico
this day __&N_JC¥ /) of 2001.

10/.03F
Statement to come at end of \‘ﬁnth.

/865 90

sequent consecutive publications on

, 2001.
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ACCOUNT NUMBER
CLA-22-A (R-1/93)
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KED 87
SAC UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
LA s IR REGION 6
2 m E 1445 ROSS AVENUE, SUITE 1200
%, 6@? DALLAS, TX 75202-2733

Mr. Mike Smith

Environmental Health Department
P,0O., Box 1293

Albuquerque, NM 87103

RE: 20 New Mexico Administrative Code 2.11.2, Permit Fees
Dear Mr. Smithi

This is In response to your January 11, 2001, letter for the
subject item proposals for your February 14, 2001, Albuquergue
Alr Quality Board hearing. These proposals are to meet
requirements of the New Mexico Air Quality Control Acz, 74-2-7,
NMSA.

Your proposals for these Permit Fees regulations are a
thoughtful fee schedule that comports with Federal and State law.
These proposals are easy to apply and adjust, and are equitable
to sources filing Air Permit Applications received, including the
ongoing costs of inspections and implementing and enforcing the
permits. We will not object tc the Air Quality Board’'s efforts
to pay for the New Source Review Construction Permitting Program
through the collectiocn of these fees from applicants and
permittees.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on these propcsals,
Please contact Terry Thomas of my staff at (214) 665-7160 if you
have any questions.

Sincerely ypurs,
;1/6; <
ole C.{ uehrs

Chief
Air Permits Section

Staff Exhibit #4 — Letter From Ms. Jole
C. Luehrs, EPA Region 6

Recycisd/Racyelable » Printod with Vegetabie Oll Based inia on 100% Rocycled Paper (40% Poslconsumer)






Department of Energy
Albuquerque Operations Office
Kirtland Area Office
PO Box 5400
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87185-5400

FEB 0 7 2001

Mr. Michael D. Smith

Environmental Health Department

P. 0. Box 1293

Albuquerque, New Mexico 87103-1293

Dear Mr. Smith:

Enclosed is a notice of intent to testify at the Air Quality Control Board hearing and
regular monthly meeting on February 14, 2001, Testimony will be presented on
the proposed changes to the New Mexico Administralive Code (NMAC) Chapter
20, Title 11, Part 02, Permit Fees. If you have any questions, or need additional
information, please contact Susan Lacy of my staff at 845-5542. Thank you for

your assistance.

Sincerely,

Assistant Area Manager
Laboratory Operations
Enclosure

cc w/o enclosure:
K. Griffith, KAO
M. du Mond, 7575, MS 1042

Staff Exhibit #5 — Letter From Mr.
George K. Laskar, DOE





{1h) Sandia Nations! Laboratories

Cparatad foc the U 8 Department of Ensrgy by

8andla Corporation
L. A West P.O. Box 5800
Oirector Albuauerque, NM 87185.1114
intagrated Ssfety & Security Canter

Prone:  (505) 845-5208
Fax (505) g46-9008
imeroat:  Imwest@esndia goy

[ C I

Mr. George K. Laskar
Laboratory Operations

DOE / Kirtland Area Office
Post Office Box 5800
Albuquerque, NM 87185-5400

Attention: Susan D. Lacy

Dear Mr, Laskar;

Subject: City of Albuquerque’s Propesed Permit Fee Regulation Revision: Notice of Intent

Background The legal notice published in the A/buguerque Journal on January 7, 2001,
states that persons desiring to present technical testimony before the Air
Quality Control Board on February |4 should submit a written notice of mntent.

Key The notice must include:

infarmation .

Name, address, and qualifications of each technical witness:

e  Name: Mike du Mond :

* Address: Post Office Box 5800, Albuquerque, N. M. 87185-1042

* Qualification: Sandia's Air Quality Compliance Team Project Leader
Identification of whether the witness is a proponent or opponent.

*  Opponent: To removal of 20 NMAC 11.02.11.2.4F Annual Inventory.
Description of the nature of the proposed testimony:

* To provide evidence that mventories encourage pollution prevention,
Anticipated length of each witness’ presentation:

e The presentation should be no more than fifteen minutes in length.
Identification of the specific aspects of the proposed action to which
testimony will be directed, The technical testimony will specifically
address the reasons for retaining the annual emission inventory provision,
Any alternative language proposals, where apprapriate.

* Retain the current language of 20 NMAC 02.112.4.F dated 5-30-97.
List and describe technical exhibits anticipates to be offered in connection
with the witness testimony: None.

Exceptional Service in the National Interest





© Mr. George K. |askar 22 FEB

Deadiine

Transmit

Information

Certification

LAW:7131:nd

A written notice of intent should be sent by February 7, 2001.

Please transmit a written statement regarding these impacts by February 7, to:

Attn: 20.11.2 NMAC Hearing
Mr. Michael D. Smith
Environmental Health Department
Post Office Box 1293
Albuquerque, NM 87103

If you have any questions, please contact Mike du Mond at 505/845-7914.

By my signature, I certify that the author and technical reviewers of documents
are qualified, and that the process defined in AOP95-45, “Preparation, Review,
and Approval of Permit Applications/Amendments/Modification Requests and
Other Regulatory Deliverables™ has been followed. I understand that Sandia
policy is to provide true, accurate, and complete information to all government
regulators. To the best of my knowledge and belief, based upon the process
followed, and my inquiry of the person(s) responsible for overseeing the
implementation of that process, the document meets that policy.

Sincerely,

AR
L. A, West, Director
Sandia National Laboratories





General Mills
Operations

3501 Paseo del Norte NE
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87113

Attm: 20.11.2 NMAC Hearing
Mr. Michael D. Smith
Environmental Health Department
P.O. Box 1293
Albuquerque, NM 87103

Re: Written Statement to be incorporated into Public Record of Albuquerque/Bernalillo County
Air Quality Control Board Public Hearing on 20.11.2 Permit Fees

February 6, 2001 |
Dear Mr. Smith:

General Mills Operations, Inc. owns and operates a packaged foods plant at 3501 Paseo del Norte
NE, Albuquerque, NM 87113. 1 am the Plant Manager and represent General Mills in matters
pertaining to the operation of this facility. On January 25, 2001 we received from the City of
Albuquerque a Notice of Hearings and Meeting to address a proposal to repeal and replace
20.11.2 NMAC Permit Fees. We wish to place in the public record the following concerns and
comumnents pertaining to the proposed fee modification:

1) The proposed modification would change the annual fee calculation from actual air
emissions to potential-to-emit. General Mills presently pays air emission fees based on
actual emissions. Our actual emissions are approximately half the total emissions
allowed under our permit. The current method of fee calculation is more logical because:

a. It accurately reflects our use of the resource.
b.  There is a built in incentive to control and reduce emissions.

2) We are concerned that the proposed system of fees creates a disincentive to minimize air
emissions because:

a.  The fee is based on potential worst-case activities, and effectively disallows
pollution prevention activities from quickly recovering cost savings associated
with emission fee reduction.

b. Emission fees can only be reduced by modification of an existing permit. In
some cases this fee is $5000, potentially more than the fee for a new source and
also potentially more than the reduced emissions fees associated with a pollution
prevention activity.

3) If a modification to the fee calculation is deemed necessary, we are concerned about the
use of the term “potential-to-emit™(PTE). This term is used in several federal and state
regulations and definitions vary with each regulation. We feel that the use of the term
“potential-to-emit” could cause confusion. We are concerned that it could be interpreted
differently and fee assessments could become inconsistent with the intent of the annual
emission fee revision. We would propose that a more precise term to use in this instance
is “permitted emissions” or “permitted emission limits”.

Staff Exhibit #6 — Letter From Mr. Jim
Goins, General Mills





4) We are concerned that an adequate period for public comment may not take place
because of the short time period between receiving the notice and the due date for written
statements.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this proposal and thank you in advance for
addressing our concerns relating to this proposal. Please feel free to contact me if yvou have any
questions or if we can further clarify our concerns for the record.

Sincerely

el

Jim Goins

Plant Manager

General Mills Operations, Inc.
3501 Paseo del Norte NE
Albuquerque, NM 87113





Public Service Company
of New Mexico

Alvarado Square February 5, 2001
Albuquergue, NM 87158

CERTIFED MAIL

RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Attn: 20.11.2 NMAC Hearing

Mr. Michael Smith

Environmental Health Department
P.0O. Box 1293

Albuquerque, NM 87103

Subject: Public Service Company of New Mexico's Comments on Repealing and
Replacing 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees

Dear Mr. Smith:

The Public Service Company of New Mexico (PNM) is submitting these
comments on the proposed changes to 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees to be
incorporated into the public record.

PNM has numerous air emission sources located in Bernalillo County that have
air permits issued by the Albuquerque Environmental Health Department and the
Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality Board. One of these sources, Reeves
Generating Station, is a major source and has applied for and received an
operating permit.

The proposed changes to 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees will eliminate the current
provisions that allow major and non-major sources to pay annual fees based on
the source's actual emissions during the previous year. This change will result in
the annual permit fee for Reeves Generating Station to increase from $11,292 to
$152, 923. PNM realizes that this fee increase can be reduced by applying for a
permit medification to reduce the staticn's potential to emit. Due to overriding
business concerns, PNM does not believe this approach to reduce the station's
potential to emit is in our or our customer's best interests. Therefore, PNM does
not object to the increase in the annual fee.

PNM does request that the change in the regulation that removes the current
provision to pay annual fees based on a source's actual emissions not become
effective until 2002. PNM has completed the 2001 budget several months ago,
and this large increase in the Reeves Generating Station annual fee was not
included in the 2001 budget. Since the annual fee paid in 2001 is for 2000
emissions and it is too late to change budgets or emissions, PNM believes it is
only fair to delay the effective date of this change until 2002.

Staff Exhibit #7 — Letter From Ms. Nancy
Norem, PNM





PNM would also like to request that the Air Quality Division prepare and provide
to the sources paying permitting fees an annual reconciliation of the permit fees
collected and how the fees were used.

Finally, PNM hopes that the increased fees will enable the Air Quality Division to
improve their services to the regulated community.

Sincerely,

n@mgqq N
Nancy J. Norem
Principal Engineer
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IRI[

GRANDE
ErVeo o g February 6, 2001

Attn: 20.11.2 NMAC Hearing

Mr. Mike Smith Sent By Facsimile
Albuquerque Environmental Health Dept. Original Sent By U.S. Mail
P.O. Box 1293

Albuquerque, NM 87103
Dear Mr. Smith,

This letter is being submitted by Rio Grande Portland Cement (RGPC) as written notice of intent to
provide oral testimony as an interested party at the February 14, 2001 public hearing before the
Albuquerque / Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board. This hearing is being held to hear
testimony regarding the proposed repeal and replacement of 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees.

My testimony will include a very brief description of the air quality permitting process, how
emission fees are assessed, equitability in fee assessment, and how collected emissions fees support
the administration of the local air quality regulatory programs in Albuquerque and Bemalillo County.

The mailing address for RGPC is as follows:

Rio Grande Portland Cement
P.O. Box 100
Tijeras, NM 87059

If you have questions regarding this information, please feel free to contact me at (505) 286-6026.

Smccrely, /(/ %

Brian D Mch
Corporate Environmental Manager
Rio Grande Portland Cement

cc: Mr. Gary Romontio, Tijeras Plant Manager

l——l
Staff Exhibit #8 — Letter From Mr. Brian
McGill, Rio Grande Portland Cement

Tijeras Plant A company of:
P.Q. Box 100 A
Tigras. NM 87058-0100





January 29, 2001

Mr. Michael D. Smith
Environmental Health Department
City of Albuquerque

PO Box 1293

Albuquerque, NM 87103

Re:  Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board Proposed Permit Fees

Dear Mr. Smith:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed permit fees as outlined in your recent
Notice of Hearings for the Air Quality Board.

It appears the department is proposing an inspection and filing fee to obtain a surface disturbance
permit at $100 per disturbed acre. As aland developer who develops lots for area homebuilders, we
are usually responsible for the clearing and grubbing, mass grading and finish grading of the lots prior
to the start of home construction,. The fee of $100 per disturbed acre seems excessive, given the actual
time involved from city staff for reviewing and implementing the required permits.

For example, a master planned project such as Ventana Ranch, which encompasses approximately 900
acres of land, would generate $90,000 in inspection and filing fees for the City for the surface
disturbance permit. The City currently charges an average of $30,000 in fees for each subdivision
Phase through the City’s One-Stop Subdivision Improvement Agreement process; this should be taken
into consideration,

If a fee is proven to be truly needed, it should be graduated over time. Given the larger earthwork
operations, perhaps the larger master planned communities could have a “sliding scale” based on size,
or even a flat fee may be more appropriate.

We ask that our concerns regarding this proposed surface disturbance permit fee be considered given
the fee structure currently in place for new subdivisions.

Thank you for this opportunity to comment on these proposed fees.

Sincerely,

Kurt Browning
Land DevelopmentV anager

Sandia P ies Ltd. . .—_I
andia Froperties (0 - Staff Exhibit #9 — Letter From Mr. Kurt

Browning, Sandia Properties Ltd.

RTIES LTD, Co

#10 TRAMWAY LOOP NE ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO 87122 . (505) 856-6419 « EFax (505) 856-6335






ALBUQUERQUE/BERNALILLO COUNTY AIR QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
ALBUQUERQUE ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT
P.O. BOX 1293
ALBUQUERQUE, NM 87103
(505) 768-2600

TITLE 20 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
CHAPTER 11 ALBUQUERQUE / BERNALILLO COUNTY AIR QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
PART 02 PERMIT FEES

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

I ISSUING AGENCY: Albuquerque/ Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board. P.O. Box
1293, Albuquerque, NM  87103. Telephone: (505) 768-2600. [7-9-75...12-1-95]

2 SCOPE: Each owner or operator required to obtain either an Authority-to-Construct Permit
pursuant to 20 NMAC 11.41, or an Operating Permit pursuant to 20 NMAC 11.42 may be
subject to the requirements of Permitting Nonattainment Areas, 20 NMAC 11.60; Prevention
of Significant Deterioration, 20 NMAC 11.61; Acid Rain , 20 NMAC 11.62; New Source
Performance Standards, 20 NMAC 11.63; and Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants, 20 NMAC 11.64 in addition to the requirements of this Part. [12-16-94...12-1-95:
5-12-97]

2.1 EXEMPT: This Part does not apply to sources within Bernalillo County which are
located on Indian lands over which the Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality
Control Board lacks jurisdiction. [12-1-95]

3 STATUTORY AUTHORITY: This Part is adopted pursuant to the authority provided in the
New Mexico Air Quality Control Act, NMSA 1978 §§ 74-2-4, 74-2-5.C; the Joint Air Quality
Control Board Ordinance, Bernalillo County Ordinance 94-5 § 4; and the Joint Air Quality
Control Board Ordinance, Revised Ordinances of Albuquerque 1994 § 9-5-1-4. [7-9-75...12-
1-95]

4 DURATION: Permanent. [12-1-95]
5 EFFECTIVE DATE: December 1, 1995. [12-1-95]

6 OBJECTIVE: The objective of this Part is to offset the costs of review, analysis, issuance or
denial, compliance monitoring, and enforcement of Source Registration, Authority-to-
Construct Permits and Operating Permits required by regulation and adopted pursuant to the
Air Quality Control Act, Chapter 74, Article 2 NMSA 1978. [8-19-83...12-1-95, 5-12-97]

7 DEFINITIONS: In addition to the definitions in this Section 1.7, the definitions in 20
NMAC 11.01 apply unless there is a conflict between definitions, in which case the definition

20 NMAC 11.02
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in this Part shall govern. [12-1-95)

7.1 ALLOWABLE EMISSION RATE: means the maximum emission allowed by the
most stringent emission limitation applicable to the source contained in- [12-16-94, 5-
12-97]

A. Any Board Regulation; [12-16-94]

B. Any federal standard of performance. emission limitation, or emission standard adopted
pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Section 7411 or 7412; or [12-16-94]

C. Any condition within a construction or operating permit issued by the department. [12-
16-94]

7.2 ANNUAL EMISSIONS INVENTORY: for the purposes of this Part, an annual
emissions inventory means a report which presents data, calculations and supporting
technical information that provides the Department with documentation of emission rates
based on the source’s precedin g calendar year actual process rates, actual production
rates, or actual equipment rate of operation. The emissions shall be calculated or
specified based on one or more of the following methods as approved by the Department:

A. any EPA or Department approved monitoring or testing methods as approved by the
Department, including but not limited to those in 40 CFR parts 51, 60, 61, 63, and 75:
and/or; [5-12-97]

B. recognized EPA emission factor calculations (e.g., AP-42) as approved by the
Department and/or; [5-12-97]

C. presumptively credible evidence as defined in 20 NMAC 11.41.I1.15.2 B. [5-12-97]

Emissions measurements based on the EPA or Departiment approved monitoring or testing methods will
govern those based on presumnptively credible evidence if they are not in agreement. [12-16-94; R 5-12:97; 3-
12-97]

~1

-3 EMISSIONS UNIT: means any part or activity of a stationary source that emits or has thie potential to emit any
lee pollutant or hazardous air pollutant. [19-16-94: R 5-12-97; 20 NMAC 11.02.1.7.9, 5-12-97}

~1

A EXISTING STATIONARY SOURCE: means a stationary source which commenced operation on or before
December 31, 1993, [192-16-94: R 5-1-97; 20 NMAC 11.02.1.7.3, 5-1-97]

A Reserved. [12-16-94; R 5-12-97]
B. Rescrved. [12-16-94; R 5-12.97]
7.5 FEE POLLUTANT: means: [12-16-94; Rn, 20 NMAC 1 1.02.1.7.4, 5-12-97]

A, Sultur dioxide, nitrogen dioxide, carbon monoxide, total suspended particulate matter, and volatile organic

20NMAC 11.02
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11

compounds; and HZ2-16-9 1 R, 20 NMAC L0217 1.7, 5-12-97]

B. Ay anr pollutant that is histed as o hazardous air pollutant under sectton 112 of the Federnl Cleann A Aet
({CAN) (10 CFR Part 61 and 633, [12-16-9 L R, 20 NMAC 11.02.1.7. LB, 51297, 5/12/97]

~

7.0 FORM |: lorm attached o an operating pernmt whach is utihized to mlorm tie Departiient of any
ppm\ui or pre-approved modifications, new sources. notification of pollution prevention projects, new

appheable requirements, and any other changes at the source as approved pursizuit to the operating permt.
[3-12-97]

7.7 FUGITIVE EMISSIONS: means those emussions which coukl not reasonably pass tln‘ouwh astack. chimney,
vent, or other lunctonally-equivalent openng, [12-16-9 1 R 53-12-97; Rn, 20 \\( AC TLOZLT.5, 5-12-97]

~

3

B NEW STATIONARY SOURCE: micans a stationary source which commenced operation subscequent to
December 31, 18993, [I“) 1604, R 5-12-97; R 20 NMAC 11.02.1.7.6, 5-12-97]
9 Repealed. J142- l(»” R 5-12-97]

1

~1

10 STANDDBY EQUIPMENT: means an erissions mint which is used at a statonary source on a temporary
basts, to replace equipment (at the sane stationary source) used i normal operation and which has an
allowable emussion e or potential-to-eniit (L) for cach fee pollutant which is equal to or less than the
cquipment replaced. [12-16-014, 5-12-97]

™1

A1 Repealed. [12-16-94; R 5-12-97]
VARIANCES: Reserved

SAVINGS CLAUSE: Any amendment to Part 02 which s [iled with the State Records Center shall not affect
actions pending lor violation ol a federal or state statute, a City or County ordinance, Board Regulation 21, or Part

02. Prosceution for a violation under prior regulation wording shall be governed and prosceuted under the stanute,

ordinmmee. Part or regulation section in effect at the time the violwon was committed. [12-16-9 £,5-12-97]

SEVERABILITY: If anv section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or word of this Part is for any reason hield to be
unconstitutional or otherwise nnvalid by any court, the decision shall not altect the vahdity of renanming provisions
of this Part. [12-16-94...12-1-95]

DOCUMENTS: Documents incorporated and cited m this Part may be viewed at the Albuquerque
Euviromnental Health Department, One Civie Plaza NW, 8rd Floor, Room 3023, Albuquerque, NM 87102
[12-1-95]

AMENDMENT AND SUPERSESSION OF PRIOR REGULATIONS: This Part amends and supersedes
Albuquerque/Bemalillo County, Air Quality Control Board Regulation No. 21 - Permit Fees. liled on December
16, 199 L. All references to this regulation shall be understood as a relerence to this Part. [12-1-95]
APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS

PERMITS:

1.1 Every person, including any federal, state or local governmental agency, who files an application as required by

20 NMAC 11441 for an mtial or a modification to an extsting Authority-to-Construet Permit shall pay the
fee(s) required m the following Table One fee schedule. The fee is calculated by determining the sum of the

highest applicable base fee and any additional review fees. For source registration initial Tee(s) refer to Part 10,

[8-19-83...12-16-94, 5-12-97]

1.2 If an application is {iled for an Authority-to-Construct Permit for any stationary or portable source only as a

20 NMAC 11.02





result ol transter from one location (o another, and il a pernt had previoushy been granted under Part 1 and.
except lor location, the information given m 20 NMAC 11 HLILY is still vahid. the apphcant shall pay a S50
ranster fee. [8-19-83...12-1.9.3, 5-12-97]

L3 An application permit fee bill consistent with Table One of this Part will be sent to the owner or operator
within thirty (303 days of the application bemg deemed complete by the Deparunent. Alier an owner or
operator recerves a bill or invorce from the City, the owner or operator shall pay the fee within thirty (30) days
check or mouey order made pasable, o the Albuquerque Emvironmental Health Departunent. and delivered
to the City Treasnry. [8-19-83...19-1.95, G- 12-97]

Lok Ay fees required herenns shall not be refunded. [8-19-83}

1.5 The Department may provide an informal pre-application consultation tor any person wishing to determine 1f
the source 1s subject Lo Part 41, There is no fee for this seivice, HL Lowever, the person requests a written
apphcabtlity determination from the Department stating that the source is not subject to Part L, the appheant
will be assessed a fee of $50 per hour of stall time expended i preparing the determination. [8-19-83..19-1-
93, 5-12-97]

2 ANNUAL EMISSIONS FEES FOR MAJOR AND NON-MAJOR SOURCES: [12-16-91. 5-12-97]

2.4 Exvery owner or operator of a source which is required to obtain a source registration pursuant (o Part 10, an
operating permit pursuant to Part 12, an Authonty-to-Construct permit pursuant (o Part 11, or a
preconstruction permit pursuant to Part 60, 61. or 69 shall pay an annual cinssions fee under this scetion in
addition to any apphcation fee which is required by Part 02, 112-16-9 1. 5-12-97]

2.2 The fee shall be assessed: [19-16-0 {]

A for asstatonary source as delined i 20 NMAC Chapter 11 Part 10, 11, 9. 60, 61, or 62. for all ermissions
wnits; or {12-16-94..12-1-95; 5-12-97]

B. Forall other stationary sources, lor entissions units whicl, cause the source to be subject (o Part 12, {19-16-
91..12-1-05]

2.3 The mmmal lee shall be caleulated in conformance with 0201.2.L of this Part. [12-16-91...19-1-95: >-12-97]
2.1 Annual Fee Caleulation. [19-16-9.1, 5-19-97]
A The annual [ee shall be caleulated by taking the product of the allowable emission rate for cach lee pollutant
cxpressed in tons per year and the appropriate fec per ton of pollutant listed in 02.11.2.6. If an allowable
emission rate does not exist, the lee shall be calculated using the (FE). [12-16-94.,.12-1-95; 5-12-97]

B. The allowable emussion rate or the PTE which shall be used in the fee caleulation is:

I lor sources which do not posses an operating or construction permit, or are not protecied by the
provisions pursuant to Part 42, Section 1.2.2.A.2 the PTE, which exists on December 31, 1998; or

3

lor a new stationary source or a permitted existing source, the allowable emission vate as specthed m the
most recent and applicable Authority-to-Construct or operating permit tssued purswant to Part 11, 60, 61
and/or Part 42 respectively,

[12-16-94, 5-12-97]
C. Allowable emission rates or PTY, shall be caleulated to the tenth ol a ton for each cemission unit and then

totaled to determine the tons per year [or the facility. Total facility TPY quantitics shall be determined by
rounding up amounts equal to or greater than five tenths of a ton and rounding down amounts lower than

20 NMAC 11.02






five tenths of aton [12-16-9 1, 5-12-97]

D. Fassions from those operatons determined to be insignificant activitics by the Department pursuant to 20
NMAC A2 shall not be mcluded e the annual fee caleulation Tor all sourees subject to this scetion,
micluding 20 NMAC T Parts L 60, aud 61 sources. 1H2-16-9 4, 5-12-97]

L. Fogisve emtssions which have an allowable cmission rate shall be ineluded b the fee caleulation. [12-16.9 (]

oA amual emissions inventory may be subnmtied for reviews by the Department for the purpose of amial
lee adjustiments. This shall be restricted 1o sources with established pernnt allowable emission rates or
sources which ave subnitted a tmely permit application pursuant 1o Part 12 Section L2249, The
cnussions imventories shall be subimitted to the Departiment by no later theus June 1, 1997 and by Apnl |
cach year therealter for review consideration for every vear an adjustment is sought. Witlhun thirty (30) days
ol vecept the Department will bill the source for the review pursuant to Table One of tus Part. Any
adjustments to the source’s permitted or otherwise established emission lees shall be meorporated mud
adjusted and billed in accordance with the billing schedule provisions of this Part. [19-16-9-1: R 5-12-97; 5-
12-97. 5-30-97]

G Any quantty of a pollutant which is assessed a fee because i s a hazardous air pollutant shall not be
assessed additonal fees as a enteria pollutant. [12-16-0.1, 5-12-97]

2.5 SOURCLE SHUTDOWN:
. The annual fee shall not be veduced due (o Iack of operation of any enissions unit. except when:

Lo the diseontinued operation is accounted for in an allowable emission rate contaimed within an Authonty-
to-Construct or Operating Permit issued by the Departiment;

2. an Authorty-to-Constraet or Operating Permit issued by the Department has been discontinued or
termated and the source ceased operation; and

S with respect to equipiment for which the potential to emit s used as the basis lor fee caleulation, the
cquipment has been removed from the stationary source and the owner or operator provided writien
nottheation to the Department prior to December 31 of the year it was removed.

[12-16-91]
2.6 ANNUAL FEE: [12-16-94, 5-12-97|

A. The fee for each fee pollutant shall be $31.00 per ton on an amnual basis, except as provided for in Section
0211.2.6.13, 2.7, 2.8, or 2.90f Part 02.11. [12-16-9 ...12-1-95; 5-12-97]

B. The lee for cach hazardous air pollutant, for which the source is major as defined in section 112 of the
lederal Act, shadl be $250.00 per ton on an annual basis. Hazardous air pollutants, for which a source 1s
major, which are also VOC or particulates shall be subject only to lees as a hazardous air pollutant. [12-16-
91 12-1-95; 5-12-97]

2.7 ANNUAL FEE FOR SOURCES SUBJECT TO GENERAL PERMITS AND SOURCE
REGISTRATIONS:

AL The owner and/or operator ol a source required to obtain a general operating perit pursuait to 20 NAMAC

L 2L F shall pay the fee established m the applicable Part, unless a different fee is required by Section
H.2.8 or 2.9 of Part 02. [5-12-97]
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B. "The owner and/or operator of a sowree required to obtain a sounee registration pursuant (o 20 NMAC
LL0 shall pay an annual renewal regisiration fee of $100.00. 15-12-97]

28 ANNUAL FEE FOR SOURCES SUBJECT TO MACT REQUIRFMENTS:
AL The owner and/or operator ol asowrce subject 1o a maximum achicvable control technology VACTY
stanidard for hazardous ar pollutants promulgated by the lederal EPA at 10 CFR Part 63 shall pay the

lollowmg fees:

l. i the source 1s not considered a major source pursuant o seetion 112 of the federal Act or the
apphicable MACT standard, an anmual Tee of $100.

[5-12-97]
2.9 ANNUAL FEE FOR RETAIL GASOLINE DISTRIBUTION STATIONS:
A The owner and/or operator of a retal gasole distribution station shall pay the {ollowing lees:

Lo afthe actual enussions of volatile organic compounds (VOC) from the facility equal or exceed 50 tons
per year. caleulated as a rollmg average based on throughput and considering vapor recovery cquipment.

9. iF the actual emissions of volatle organic compounds VOCO) from the facility are less than 30 tons per
year and more than 1 ton, caleulated as a rolling average based on througliput and considering vapor
recovery cquipiment. an annual ee ol $250.

[5-12-97]
2.40 CALCULATING EMISSION FEE PER ASBESTOS UNIT (AU):

AL The enussion fee per AU shall be paid by those sources which meet the appheability pursuant to 10 CFR
Part 61, Scetion 611 LG ().

Lo An Alhs derved by dividing the ashestos removed at or above the levels specified pursuant 10 CFR
Part 61, Secton 611 156D 6) by the corresponding factor and unit of measure in square feet, lnear
feet, or cubic feet.

2. The total fee paid to the Departinent for eacly asbestos demolition and renovation project shall be the
product of the total number of AUs removed multiplicd by $21.00.

3. The Department shall, within ten days of receiving the notification pursuant to £0 CFR, Part 61, Section
61.115, bill the source for the amount duc.

AU Asbestos Removed

I

facror
Fee due =Total AUsx$21.00

Example:
Factors and units of measure:

20NMAC 11.02





160 SF (square feet)
260 LF (linear feer)
35 CF (cubic feet)

Sample Problem:

A contractor proposes to remove 320 8F, 260 LE. and 70 CF of asbestos.

320 8SF N 260LF N 70CF
160 SF 260 LF 35CF
2+1+2=5AUs
5 AUsx$21.00 = Fee Due
= $105.00

=Total AUs

Caleulations:
[5-12-97]

2.0 BILLING AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE: [12-16-9 1 R, 20 NMAC 11.02.10L.2.7. 5-12:97: 512-97]
. By July 1. 1997, and by each May 1 thereafter, the Department shall send a written bill

or invoice to each owner or operator which the Department determines is subject to Part
02. The bill or invoice shall state:

1. the required annual fee due for the immediately following 1 year period from July 1
to June 30; and

2. the authority for, and method of calculating the required annual fee.

[12-16-94; Rn, 20 NMAC 11.02.11.2.7.A, 5-12-97; 5-12-97]

B. The required annual fee shall be paid by July 1, 1997 and by each July I thereafter. [12-
16-94; Rn, 20 NMAC 11.02.11.2.7.A.2, 5-12-97,; 5-12-97]

C. For stationary sources which commence operation after June 30, but prior to July 1 of
any year:

. the annual fee shall be prorated based upon the number of days from the
commencement of operations to the following June 30; and

2. the required fee shall be paid by the date operations commence.

20 NMAC 11.02





[12-16-94; Rn, 20 NMAC 11.02.11.2.7.B, 5-12-97: 5-12-97]
2 2PAYMENT:

A. After an owner or operator receives a bill or invoice from the City, the owner or
operator shall pay the fee within thirty (30) days by certified check or money order made
payable to the Albuquerque Environment Health Department and delivered to the City
Treasury.

B. Upon receipt of the check or money order, it shall be deposited in the Air Quality permit
fund.

C. Any person who receives an invoice from the Department for fees under this Part may request an informal
review of the basis for the invoice, and may pay the invoice under protest. The request for informal
review shall specify the areas of dispute and shall be made in writing to the Director within 30 days of
receipt of the invoice.

The Director shall conduct an informal review of the invoice within thirty (30) days of receipt of the
request. At the discretion of the Director. the Director may meet and confer with the requesting party
during or before the informal review. The Director shall review whether the invoice is correct based on
information available to the Department under this Part. and the Director may revise the invoice based on
the informal review.

Disposition of the informal review shall be mailed to the requester within ten working davs after the
informal review. The Director's decision after the informal review shall become final unless within thirty
(30) days after receipt of the decision the requesting person requests in writing a hearing before the Board.

[12-16-9 1 Rux, 20 NMAC 11.02.11.2.8, 20 NMAC | LOZIL2.8.A, 20 NMAC 11.02.11.2.8.13, 5-12-97; 5-19-97]

2.13 NONPAYMENT: Failure to pay the entire fee by the due date specified in this Part is a violation of this Part
and may subject the owner or operator to: [19-16-91...] 2-1-95; Ri, 20 NMAC 11.02.11.2.9. 5-12-97]

AL the envil penalties provisions of the City of Albuquerque and Bermalillo County Jomt Air Quality Control
Board Ordmances; and [12-16-9:4; Ru, 20 NMAC 11.0211.2.9.A, 5-12-97)

B. the enforcement provisions of the City of Albuquerque and Bernalillo County Joimnt Air Quality Control
Board Ordinances. [12-16-94; Rn, 20 NMAC [1.02.11.2.9.8, 5-12-97]

20 NMAC 11.02
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Application Fee Schedule

BASEAPPLICATION FEES FOR NEW SO RCES AND MODIFICATIONS

1 Part £ - Pre-comtrolied emission sreater than 10 Ibs, hiv or pre-controlled cuissions
greater than 25 wons e CUPY). and less than 100 TPY.
inl 4

2 Part 11 - Pre-controlled emissions greater than 100 7TPY.

3 Part 60 or Part 61 - Auy applcation [or a Nonataimnent Area Penm or Prevention of

Stgruhicant Detertoraton (PSD) Pernuit,

3] Ay application requiring an analysis review of havardous an pollutint emissions.
.
3) Any application vequiving lederal source calegory review of NSPSUNESTIAPS (o exelude

asbestos), or Part 69,

- e LS D B X AN Za W03

) Form [review for Authorin-to-Construct pre-approval or cmission olfset eredits.

~.3

Anmual cnssions invenion review for major
3) Avnnoal emissions mventory review [or not-m

9 Fees per Asbestos Unit (A1)

[8-19-83...12-1-95; 5-12.97. 7-15-97]
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TITLE 20 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
CHAPTER Il ALR UQUERQUE/BERNALILLO COUNTY AIR QUALITY CONTROL BOARD

PART 2 PERMIT FEES

200120 ISSUING AGENCY: Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board, Environmental

Health Department. P.O. Box 1293, Albuquerque, NM 87103 Telephone: (505) 768-2600.

201122 SCOPE:
A. Applicability:
t1y Any person FequrtRg required to obtain a permit pursuant to 20.11.42 NMAC, Operating
Permits;

(2} Any person FegqFRg required o obtain a permit pursuant to 20.11 .41 NMAC. Authority-to-

Censtruct;

(3} Any person with a valid registration or permit issued pursuant to 20.11.40 NMAC, Source
Registration, 20.11 .4} NMAC, Authority-to-Construct, or 20. ] 1.42 NMAC, Operating Permits;

4)  Any person requesting a Surface Disturbance Permit pursuant to 20.11.20 NMAC, Airborne
Particulate Matter:

(5)  Any person FequrRg required to provide notification regarding removing regulated asbestos
containing material pursuant to 20. | 1.64 NMAC, Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary
Sources; and

{6)  Any person requesting professional or administrative services.

B.  Exempt: This Part does not apply to sources within Bernalillo County that are located on Indian lands
over which the Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board lacks jurisdiction.
C. Variance: Any Person may request a timely variance to this Part in accordance with Variance

Procedures, 20.11.7 NMAC, if allowed by federal, state or local laws and regulations.

|

Proposed 20.11.2 NMAC (Final Draft with Floor o
2/12/01

Staff Exhibit #] — Proposed 20.11.2
NMAC, Permit Fees, w/Floor Amend.
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2001123 STATUTORY AUTHORITY: This Part is adopted pursuant to the authority provided in the New
Mexico Air Quality Act, NMSA 1978 § 74-2-4, 74-2-5; the Joint Air Quality Control Board Ordinance. Bernalillo
County Ordinance 94-5 sections 3 and 4: and the Joint Air Quality Control Board Ordinance. Revised Ordinances of

Albuquerque 1994 § 9-5-1-3 and § 9-5-1-4.

20.11.2.4 DURATION: Permanent.

20.11.2.5  EFFECTIVE DATE: INSERT DATE. unless a later date is cited at the end of a section or paragraph.

20.11.2.6 OBIECTIVE:
A. To implement the requirements of 74-2-7 NMSA by establishing:
(13 Reasonable fees to cover the cost of reviewing and acting on any permit application received
by the Department;
(2) Reasonable fees to cover the cost of implementing and enforcing the terms and conditions of
any permit issued by the Department; and,
(3) A schedule of operating permit fees consistent with section 502(b)(3) of Clean Air Act and
the Joint Air Quality Control Board Ordinances;
B. To implement the requirements of section 507 of federal Clean Air Act by establishing adequate
funding for a small business stationary source technical and environmental compliance assistance program; and
C. To establish reasonable fees to cover the administrative expenses incurred by the Department in
implementing and enforcing the provisions of the New Mexico Air Quality Control Act, the Joint Air Quality

Control Board Ordinances, and the Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Air Quality Control Board Regulations.

Proposed 20.11.2 NMAC (Final Draft with Floor Amendments) 2
2/12/01
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20.11.2.7  DEFINITIONS: Throughout this Part, the terms defined shall have the following meanings.

is Part, Hf there is any apparent conflict between the meaning of a definition in this Part and a

definition in another Part. the definition in this Part shall prevail and apply.

A, “Allowable Emission Rate” means the most stringent emission limit that has been established bva
permit issued by the Department or the source’s potential-to-emit.

B. “Emissions Unit” means any part or activity of a stationary or portable source that emits or has the
potential to emit any f’ee‘p()liut;mt.

C. “Fee Pollutant” means:

(1) Sulfur dioxide (SOx);

(2)  Nitrogen dioxide based on total oxides of nitrogen (NOx);

(3)  Carbon monoxide (CO);

4)  Particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than or equal to 30 micrometers (TSP);

{5)  Any volatile organic compound as defined in 40 CFR 51. 100(s), as amended;

(6)  Any hazardous air pollutant listed pursuant to section 112(b) of the Federal Clean Air Act;
and,

{7y Any regulated substance listed pursuant to section 112(r) of the federal Clean Air Act.

(8)  Any other pollutant determined by the Board after public hearing.

D. “Fugitive Emissions” means those emissions that cannot reasonably pass through a stack, chimney.
vent, or other functionally equivalent opening.

E. “Major Source” shall have the meaning defined in 40 CFR 71.2.

F. “Potential-To-Emit” or “PTE” means the maximum capacity of a stationary source to emit any air
pollutant under its physical and operational design. Any physical or operational limitation on the capacity of source
to emit an air pollutant. including air pollution control equipment, restrictions on hours of operation or on type or
amount of material combusted, stored or processed, shall be treated as part of its design if integral to the process or

the limitation is federally enforceable through permit or regulation. Any limitation on emissions due to process
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design must be unchanging and unavoidable physical constraints. The potential-to-emit for nitrogen oxide shall be
based on total oxides of nitrogen.
G. “Qualified Small Business” means:
(1) a business that has 100 or fewer employees;
(2) is a small business concern as defined by the federal Small Business Act;
(3) does not emit more than 50 tons per year of any regulated air pollutant. or 75 tons per year of
all regulated air pollutants; and
(4) i§ not a major source of hazardous air pollutants.
H. “Regulated Air Pollutant” means the following:
(1)  Nitrogen oxides, total suspended particulate matter, or any volatile organic compounds:

{2y  Any pollutant for which a national,_state or local ambient air quality standard has been

promulgated;
{3)  Any pollutant that is subject to any standard presmulgated-under established in Section 111
of the Federal Act;
(4)  Any Class I or Il substance subject to any standard promuleated-under-or established in by
Tite VI of the federal Act; or
(5)  Any pollutant subject to a standards or requirements presuigated-under gstablished in
Section 112 of the federal Act, including:
(a)  Any pollutant subject to requirements under Section 112(j) of the federal Act; and
{b)  Any pollutant for which the requirements of section 112(g}(2} of the federal Act
have been met, but only with respect to the individual source subject to the requirements.

L. “State Ai case permit application review of the potential emissions of

toxic air pollutants listec s, Subsection IV, Per

Emissions.
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J. “Stationary Source with De Minimis Emissions™ means a source, unless otherwise regulated, with a
potential-to-emit:
(1) less than 5 tons per year of any regulated air pollutant, excluding hazardous air pollutants;
(2) less than 2 tons per year of any hazardous air pollutant;
(3) 5 tons or less of any combination of hazardous air pollutants per year; or
(4) 20 percent of any lesser threshold per year for a single hazardous air pollutant established by

the Environmental Protection Agency by rule:

20.11.2.8  SAVINGS CLAUSE: Any amendment to 20.11.2 NMAC that is filed with the State Records Center
shall not affect actions pending for violation of a federal or state statute or regulation, a Citv or County ordinance, or
any Board regulation. Prosecution for a violation under prior regulation wording shall be governed and prosecuted

under the statute. ordinance. part or regulation section in effect at the time the violation was committed.

20.11.2.9  SEVERABILITY: If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or word of this Part or federal. state or
local standard incorporated herein is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or otherwise mvalid by any court. the

decision shall not atfect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Part.

20.11.2.10  DOCUMENTS: Documents cited and incorporated in this Part may be viewed at the Albuquerque

Environmental Health Department, One Civic Plaza NW, 3rd Floor, Room 3023, Albuquerque, NM 87102,

20.11.2.11 GENERAL PROVISIONS:
A. At the time of application, any person, including a federal, state or local governmental agency, who
files an application pursuant to 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct, for an initial air quality review and

authority to proceed with construction or requesting to modify an existing air quality permit shall pay the applicable

permit fee pursuant-te required by this Part.
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B.  Any new or existing stationary source that meetings the applicability requirements of this Part shall

pay an annual emission fee based on the source’s potential-to-emit. Sources wishing to reduce their potential-to-
emit may do so at any time through the provisions of 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct.
C. At the time of submittal, any person filing an application for a Surface Disturbance Permit with the

Department pursuant to 20.11.20 NMAC, Airborne Particulate Matter, shall pay the applicable filing and inspection

D. At the ime of notification, any person notifying the Department pursuant to 20.11.64 NMAC.

Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Source, of the removal of regulated asbestos

# unless the owner/operator provides

&

documentary proof satisfactory to the Department that either all applicable fees have been paid in-accerdance-with

Variance Procedures.

F. Al fees required to be paid at the time of application shall be paid by check or money order payable to
the “City of Albuquerque, Permits Program (Fund 242)" and either be delivered in person to the Environmental
Health Department, Finance Section, 3" floor, Room 3023, Albuquerque/Bernalillo County Government Center
(City Hall), One Civic Plaza NW, Albuquerque, NM, or mailed to Attn: Finance Section. Environmental Health
Department, P.O. Box 1293, Albuquerque, NM 87103. The Finance Section then shall send a receipt to the
applicant. The applicant shall attach a copy of the receipt issued by the Finance Section to the application as proof
of payment. The Air Quality Division cannot accept direct payments.

G. No person required to pay an annual emission fee pursuant to this Part shall be in compliance with

their permit unless all applicable fees are paid in-aceordance-with as required by this Part.
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H. No fee required by this Part shall be refunded without the written approval of the Director. When
determining the amount of the refund. the Director may deduct a reasonable professional service fee to cover the

costs of staft time involved in processing a permit or request,

2011212 AUTHORITY-TO-CONSTRUCT PERMIT FEES: FEE CALCULATIONS AND PROCEDURES
A General Permits for Minor and Area Sources: Sources applying for a General Permit pursuant to
20.11.41 NMAC, Authori.ty«tQ«CO'ﬁStruét‘, shall pay the applicable fee found in section 18 of this Part.
B, Case-by-Case Air Quality Review Prior to the Construction of a Stationary Source:

thy  Case-by-case air quality application review applieation fees shall be calculated based on the

proposed source’s potential-to-emit fee pollutants-foreachresuluted poutant-for-each-proposed-emission-unit.
Federally approved State Implementation Plan limitations may be used to determine a source’s potential-to-emit.
2y Fugitive emissions shall be included in the source’s potential-to-emit.
(3)  Emissions from these operations determined by the Department to be insignificant activities
shall not be included in the calculation.

() Foreach fee pollutant, calculate Fthe potential-to-emit from for each proposed emission unit

to the nearest tenth of a ton shall-be-totaled-and-e spressed-in-tons-percalendarvear-as-a-whole-number. Total the fee

pollutants from each emission unit and express the value in_tons per calendar vear as a whole number. When

rounding, if the number after the decimal point is less than 5, the whole number remains unchanged. If the number

after the decimal point is 5 or greater, round the whole number shall be rounded up to next whole number.

(5} The application review fee shall be determined by comparing the source’s calculated
potential-to-emit with the fee schedule found in section 18 of this Part.

(6)  In addition to the application review fees. a source proposing to construct any emission unit
or units that must comply with the provisions of 20.11.60 NMAC, Permitting in Nonattainment Areas. 20.11.61
NMAC, Prevention of Significant Deterioration, 20.11.62 NMAC. Acid Rain, 20.11.63 NMAC, New Source

Performance Standards for Stationary Sources, or 20.11.64 NMAC, Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
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B. By Starting August | of each year, each owner/operator shall be sent an official invoice by the City of

Albuquerque stating the annual emission fee due, which the owner/operator shall be pay

with the directions stated in the invoice.

C.  Asrequired by 74-2-16 NMSA, all monies received pursuant to this section shall be deposited in the

1 City of Albuquerque, Permits Program (Fund 242),

D.  Caleulating Annual Emission Fees:

(1) For each source, the potential-to-emit for each fee pollutant shall be totaled and expressed in

tons per calendar year as a whole number. When rounding, if the number after the decimal point is less than 3. the
whole number remains unchanged. If the number after the decimal point is 3 or greater, round the whole number

shall be rounded up to next whole number.

(2)  The source’s-potential-to-emit sum of each fee pollutant shall be multiplied by the

appropriate annual emission fee feund listed in section 18 of this Part then totaled, to determine the annual emission
fee due.
(3) The source shall pay either the minimum annual emission fee or the calculated emission fee
whichever 1s greater.
E. Sources wishing to reduce their potential-to-emit may apply for a permit or medification modify their

existing permit threugh consistent with the provisions of 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct.

20.11.2.14 FILING AND INSPECTION FEES FOR THE REMOVAL OF REGULATED ASBESTOS
CONTAINING MATERIAL; FEE CALCULATIONS AND PROCEDURES

A.  Atthe time of notification, a filing and inspection fee shall be paid by the owner/operator removing
regulated asbestos containing material pursuant to 20.11.64 NMAC, Emission Standards for Hazardous Air

Pollutants for Stationary Sources, and the federal regulations incorporated therein.

Proposed 20.11.2 NMAC (Final Draft with Floor Amendments) 9
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B The filing and inspection fee shall be calculated by multiplying the Asbestos Unit (AU) by the
apphicable fee in section 18 of this Part. Equation I shall be used to calculate the total Asbestos Units (AU) and

amount due;

Total Due = [(SF /160y + (LF/ 260) + (CF/ 3531 x AU
(Equation 1)

AU = Asbestos Unit.

Example: A contractor proposes to remove 320 square feet (SF), 260 linear teet (LF) and 70 cubic feet (CF) of

regulated asbestos containing material.

From the example above:

LF=260
CF=70

AU=$21.00 (From section 18 of this Part)

From Equation 1:

[(SF /160y + (LF/260) + (CF/35)} x AU =

[(3207 160) + (2607 260) + (70/ 35)] x $21.00=

Proposed 20.11.2 NMAC (Final Draft with Floor Amendments) 10
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(2+ 1+ 2yx$21.00=

5x$21.00 = $105.00

Result: The contractor must pay $105.00 at the time of notification.
C. Al fees due pursuant to this section shall be paid in accordance with the procedures found in section

20.11.2.15  FILING AND INSPECTION FEES FOR SURFACE DISTURBANCE PERMITS; FEE
CALCULTIONS AND PROCEDURES

A. A filing and inspection fee shall be paid by each person requesting a Surface Disturbance Permit
pursuant to 20.11.20 NMAC, Airborne Particulate Matter.

B. The filing and inspection fee shall be calculated by multiplying the acreage to be disturbed, expressed
as a whole number. by the applicable fee found in section 18 of this Part. When rounding. if the number after the
decimal point is less than 5, the whole number remains unchanged. If the number after the decimal point is 5 or
greater, reund the whole number shall be rounded up to the next whole number.

C.  All fees due pursuant to this section shall be paid in accordance with the procedures found in section

11, paragraph C and E of this Part.

20.11.2.16  FEE ERRORS, CORRECTIONS AND REFUNDS
A, Within 30 days of receiving any invoice from the City er-bill, any person who does not agree with the
amount due may request a review by the Director to correct any errors or challenge the basis upon which the fee was

computed. If the Director has not received a written request or challenge within 30 days after the payee payvor

receives a-bil-or the invoice, the biller invoice shall be final.
B.  Fer I fees are due at the time of application, the payee payor must pay the required fee, then request a

review within 30 days of payment.

Proposed 20.11.2 NMAC (Final Draft with Floor Amendments) 11
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written requesis for review ¢

nt to: Division Manager. Air Quality Division. Environmental Health
Department. Air Quality Division. P.O. Box 1293, Albuquerque, NM 87103
Do The request for review must include:

(

f—

) The name of the owner/operator, address and telephone number;

(2} The dollar amount of the alleged error; and

b Adescription of the alleged error and any other information the payee payor believes may

Lot

{
support the claim.
E. Within 20 days of receiving the request for review, the Director shall audit the account and. either:
€1y Amend the invoice or bill and refund any money due the pavee pavor; or
{2y State the invoice or bill is correct.
F. The Director may confer with the payee payor to obtain additional information during the audit period.
G. Within 10 working days of the Director’s decision concerning the review, the decision shall be sent by
certified mail to address provided by the payee payor.
H. [farefund is due, the Department shall refund any money due consistent with the policies and

procedures of the City of Albuquerque.

I The Director’s decision may be appealed to the Board.

20.11.2.17 FAILURE TO PAY

A. Ttshall be a violation of this Part to fail to pay a any fee by-the-date-specified-in-a-billorinvoice

required by this Part. Director’s decision, or as-required-by Board regulation.

B. Stating an biH-er invoice is in error shall not be a defense to this section.

C. Inaddition to the eellection paying of past due fees and-any-penalties-allowed-by-lawthe Department

f-eostss the pavor shall pay a penalty of 50 percent of the fee
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amount, plus interest on the fee amount computed in accordance with section 662 1(2)(2) of the Internal Revenue

Code of 19806 (relating to computation of interest on underpayment of federal taxes)

[This section was expanded to specifically siare the penalty for failure 1o pay consistent with the provisions of
Jederal Clean Air Act, section SO2(b}3)(C )i ii}.)
20.11.2.18 FEE SCHEDULE

A. Annual Emission Fees: Sources issued a registration or permit pursuant to 20.11.40 NMAC, Source
Registration. 20.11.4] NEAVIAC‘ Authority-To-Construct, or 20.11.42 NMAC, Operating Permits. shall pav a
minimum annual emission fee of $150.00 or the annual emission fee calculated consistent with section 13 of this

Part. which ever is greater. The following fee pollutant rates apphy shall be used in calculating the annual emission

fee, unless otherwise listed:
(Iy Non-Hazardous Fee Pollutants: $31.00 per ton;

2)  Hazardous Fee Pollutants (Non-Major Sources): $31.00 per ton;

{3)  Hazardous Fee Pollutants (Major Sources): $250.00 per ton.

sing less than 2,200 gallons of any one solvent-

solvent-containing materials: $150.00

any one solvent-containing
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() Gasoline Service and Fleet Stations: $250 or $31.00 per ton, which ever is greater;

(gy  Natural gas or distillate fueled fired boilers less than 10 million BTU used
exclusively for residential. commercial or institutional heating and hot water: No Charge

(h) Printing, Publishing and Packaging Operations:

(i) ~ Sheetfed (nonheatset) otfset lithography using less than 7,125 gallons of clean
solvent and fountain solution additives per year: $150.00

‘ (ii) ~Nonheatset web offset lithography using less than 7,125 gallons of solvent and

foutain solution additive per year: $150.00

(i) - Heatset web offset lithography using less than 50,000 pounds of ink, cleaning
solvent, and fountain solution additives: $150

(iv)  Screen printing using less than 7,125 gallons of total solvent used including

solvent-based inks, cleaning solvents, adhesives and coatings: $150.00

(v) - Flexography (water-based or UV-cured inks, coating and adhesives) using less than

200,000 pounds total of inks, coatings and adhesives: $150.00

(i) "~ Soil and/or water remediation operations: $150.00

nary sources with de minim ssions: No Charge

B. General Air Quality Review Fees for New Sources (Minor Source General Permits):

Proposed 20.11.2 NMAC (Final Draft with Floor Amendments)
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(9)  Soil/water remediation systems: $1000.00
C. Case-by-Case Air Quality Review Fees for New Sources (Based on a Source’s Potential-to-Emit):

(1y  Proposed sources with a potential-to-emit equs

> or greater than 5 tons per vear and less
than 23 tong per vear: $1,000.00

(2)  Proposed sources with a potential-to-emit equal to or greater than 25 tons per vear and less
than 50 tons per year: $2,000.00

(3) I;r(}pc)sed sources with a potential-to-emit equal to or greater than 50 tons per vear and less
than 75 tons per vear: $3,000.00

(4)  Proposed sources with a potential-to-emit equal to or greater than 75 tons per vear and less
than 100 tons per vear: $4,000.00

(5) Proposed sources with a potential-to-emit equal to or greater than 100 tons per vear:

$5.000.00

D. Federal Program and State Toxic Air Pollutant Review Fees; In Addition to the Air Quality Review

Fees
(1) 40 CFR 60 Standards: $1.000.00
(2) 40 CFR 61 Standards: $1,000.00
(3) 40 CFR 63 Standards:
(a) Promulgated Standards: $2,000.00
(by Case-By-Case MACT Review: $10,000.00
(4)  PSD/Non-Attainment Review: $5,000.00
(5)  Acid Rain Review: $5,000.00
(6) State Toxic Air Pollutant R
E. Permit Modifications:
(1) P2 Modifications: No Charge
(2)  Minor/Flexible Permit Modifications: $1,000.00
Proposed 20.11.2 NMAC (Final Draft with Floor Amendments) 15
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(3% Major Modifications: $5.000.00

F. Portable Source Relocation Fee: $250.00
G, Administrative Modifications 1o Existing Permit: $100.00
H. Surface Disturbance Permit Filing and Inspection Fee: $100.00 per acre
L Asbestos Unit ¢ ALY $21.00
I Administrative Fees:
hH I;rofcssion:zl Services Fee: $75.00 per staff hour
2y Photocopying:
{2y First 10 Pages: $0.50 per page
by Additional Pages: $1.00 per page
(3% Regulation Compilation: $20.00
4y Public Records Research Fee: $50.00 per staft hour
Proposed 20.11.2 NMAC (Final Draft with Floor Amendments) 16
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Albuquerque/Bernalillo County
Air Quality Control Board

Staff’s Proposal to Repeal and Replace 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit Fees

Testimony of Mr. Michael D. Smith, Environmental Health Department, Air
Quality Division

Good evening Mr. Hearing Officer, members of the Board, my name is Mike Smith with
Albuquerque Environmental Health Department, Air Quality Division. [ am an
Environmental Health Scientist responsible for research and revising air quality rules and
regulations. I have been with the Department for more than 10 years and have worked as
an air quality inspector, permit writer and supervisor. | have a Bachelor of Geological
Science Degree from New Mexico State University and have worked in resource law
enforcement for twenty years at the federal, state and local levels.

Before I start my testimony, I would like to explain, for the benefit of the newer Board
members, some the requirements of the New Mexico Air Quality Control Act important
in tonight’s hearing.

The basic duty of the local air quality board is to “prevent and abate air pollution.” To
that end, the Board is required to “adopt, promulgate, publish and repeal regulations
consistent with the Air Quality Control Act.” When considering new regulations or
amendments the Board must take in account the “character and degree of injury to or
interference with health, wellfare, visibility and property.” Take in account “the public
interest, including the social and economic value of the sources and subjects of air
contaminants;” and finally, take in account the “technical practicability and economic
reasonableness of reducing or eliminating air contaminants from the sources involved and
previous experience with equipment and methods available to control the air
contaminants involved.” Also, when considering a new regulation, as staff, we must
provide you with substantial evidence to support a new regulation or amendment. To
satisfy that requirement, and to meet the requirements of the New Mexico Air Quality
Control Act, we are having this hearing tonight to hear testimony from staff and public
concerning this regulation to provide you with the information you need to make an
informed decision.

In tonight’s hearing I will make every effort to avoid using acronyms without first
defining the term. If I should use a term or phrase that you do not understand, please
interrupt me and I will explain the word or phrase.

As required by the New Mexico Air Quality Control Act, the Division must provide
public notice of hearing at least 30 days prior to the hearing. To meet this requirement
the Division published notice of tonight’s hearing in New Mexico State Register on
December 29, 2000, Staff Exhibit No. L, and in the Albuquerque Journal on January 7,
2001, Staff Exhibit No. 2. In addition, the Notice of Hearing was posted in City Hall as
required by City of Albuquerque Ordinance, section 2-6-1-4(C)(2)(a). Also, as required

Staff Exhibit #12 — Testimony of Mr. _
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by the New Mexico Air Quality Control Act, the Division mailed the Notice of Hearing
to all persons who have made written request to receive advanced notice of hearings and
to every company with a permit or registration issued by the Department, and to
contractors issued Surface Disturbance Permits pursuant to 20.11.20 NMAC, Airborne
Particulate Matter. This mailing list is Staff Exhibit No 3. All letters sent were postdated
on January 10" or 11", 2001. Staff believes we have met and exceeded the public notice
requirements for this hearing.

As aresult of this notice, the Department has received seven written comments or
requests to testify. These are marked as Staff Exhibits Nos. 4 through 9.

Staff Exhibit No. 10 is a copy of our current regulation.

Exhibit No. 11 is copy of the proposed regulation with minor editorial changes made on
January 18. 2001 with the proposed floor amendments we wish to introduce tonight. 1
will be referring to this exhibit during my testimony.

Staff Exhibit No.12 is copy of my testimony for the record.

Finally. Staff Exhibits Nos. 14 and 15 are fee comparison tables I will refer to later in my
testimony.

Mr. Hearing Officer, at this time I would like to introduce these exhibits mnto the record.

My testimony, tonight. is to explain the changes we propose to 20.11.2 NMAC, Permit
Fees. the purpose of the fee regulation, how the permit fee regulation will be
implemented and explain the rational for the proposed fee schedule. Following my
tesumony, Mr. Angel Martinez, Division Manager, will discuss issues specific to the
Division’s budget.

Why do we have fee regulation in the first place? As required by New Mexico Air
Quality Control Act, 74-2-7 NMSA, and the Joint Air Quality Control Board ordinances,
the Board is required to establish a schedule of construction fees sufficient to cover the
reasonable cost of reviewing and acting upon any application for a permit, including the
costs of implementing and enforcing the terms of any permit, excluding the costs of any
court costs or other costs associated with an enforcement action. In addition, the Board is
required to establish a schedule of emission fees consistent with the provisions of section
502(b)(3) of the federal Clean Air Act that requires any air contaminant source that emits
100 tons or more per year of any regulated air pollutant, or 10 tons per year of any single
hazardous air pollutant, or 25 tons per year of combined hazardous air pollutants, to pay
annual emission fees sufficient to cover the direct and indirect costs of a federally
approved major source permitting program.

With this regulation the Division is also establishing new elements for a minor source
operating permit program requiring all sources with a permit or registration with the
Division to pay annual emission fees to cover the direct and indirect costs of ongoing
inspection and compliance activities.
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This regulation also establishes fees to cover the direct and indirect costs of administering
and enforcing the asbestos and dust control programs required by Board regulation.

At this time, please refer to Staff Exhibit No. 11, the proposed fee regulation with floor
amendments. Since this is a new regulation, and staff is proposing to repeal the current
regulation, I am going to discuss the major elements of the proposed regulation and
proposed floor amendments.

First, page 1. line 8. section 20.11.2.2 outlines the sources that will be affected by this
regulation. The only major change to this section from the current regulation is the
requirement that persons requesting a Surface Disturbance Permit, pursuant to 20.11.20
NMAC, Arrborne Particulate Matter, shall be required to pay a filing and inspection fee
to cover the direct and indirect costs of administering and enforcing the dust control
program, which will be discussed later in my testimony.

Page 2. lime 11, section 20.11.2.6, Objectives, outlines the objective of the regulation and
states the statutory requirement for establishing permit fees.

Starting on page 3, line 1, section 20.11.2.7, Definitions, lists the definitions that will
used in this Part. The Division is adding several new definitions that will be used to
implement the fee program.

The first new definition 1s found on page 3, line 21, “potential-to-emit,” which defines
the method the Division uses to determine a source potential emissions. This definition
has been crafted to be similar to the federal definition for regulatory consistency. This
definition will benefit sources since it takes in account controls that are integral to the
production process.

At this time, staff would like to present the following floor amendments to add several
new definitions to this section.

The first new definitions is on page 4, line 3, “qualified small business,” which shall
mean a business that has 100 or fewer employees; is a small business concern as defined
by the federal Small Business Act; does not emit more than 50 tons per year of any
regulated air pollutant, or 75 tons per year of all regulated air pollutants; and is not a
major source of hazardous air pollutants. This definition is consistent with the Small
Business Stationary Source Technical and Environmental Compliance Assistance
Program approved the Board on October 7, 1992. The staff is proposing that qualified
small businesses may be eligible for reduced permit and emission fees required by this
Part.

The second new definition we wish to propose is on page 4, line 22, “state air toxic
review,” which shall mean a case-by-case permit application review of the potential
emissions of air toxics listed in state regulation 20.2.72 NMAC, subsection IV. This
definition has been added so the Division can establish an appropriate review fee for
toxic air pollutants. Depending on the source’s potential-to-emit of toxic air pollutants, a
permit review becomes more complicated and may require additional research and air
dispersion modeling; increasing staff time and effort justifying the additional fee.
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The last definttion the Division wishes to add 1s “stationary source with de minimis
emissions,” which means a source with a potential-to-emit less than 5 tons per vear of
any regulated air pollutant, excluding hazardous air pollutants; less than 2 tons per vear
of any hazardous air pollutant; 5 tons or less of any combination of hazardous air
pollutants per: or 20 percent of any lesser threshold per year for a single hazardous air
pollutant established by the Environmental Protection Agency by rule. This definition
establishes the emission limits the Division will use to determine the applicability of a
source in paving permit or emission fees. This definition is not intended to exempt
sources {rom this regulation, or any other Board regulation. Current and future
regulations may require sources that meet the minimum limits established by this
definition to obtam permits and pay emission fees, such as, dry cleaners and other
hazardous pollutant sources that are specifically regulated.

Starting on page 3, line 21, section 20.11.2.11, are the general provisions for this
regulation. A major change from the current regulation is the requirement to pay all fees
that the time of application. Currently, staff invoices the applicants for any fees due after
the application is processed. By collecting fees at the time of application, not onlv is the
Division reducing the administrative burden on the staff, but streamlines the review
process by having a complete application package submitted to the Division for review.
All permit fees will be required to sent or delivered directly to the Environmental Health
Department’s Finance Section prior to the application being submitted to the Division.
This process will ensure that all fees are deposited into the correct air quality accounts.

Subsection B requires all sources to pay an annual emission based on the source’s
potential-to-emit. Sources wishing to reduce their potential-to-emit may do so through
the provisions of 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct.

Annual permit fees will also be sent directly to the Department’s Finance Section.

This section also requires that any person submitting an application for a Surface
Disturbance Permit, or notifying the Department of the removal of asbestos containing
material pursuant to 20.11.64 NMAC, Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
For Stationary Sources, shall also be required to pay all fees due at the time of
application.

To ensure compliance with this Part, subsection G, page 6, line 22, states that no source
will be in compliance with its permit unless all applicable fees are paid as required by this
Part. As part of an inspection or annual compliance statement, sources must demonstrate
that all applicable permit fees have been paid.

Starting on page 7, line 5, section 20.11.2.12, Authority-to-Construct Permit Fees; Fee
Calculations and Procedures, describes the methods and procedures used to determine the
permit fee required to process an Authority-to-Construct permit application. The
Division intends stay with an emissions-based fee schedule when determining permit
fees, that is, the more you potentially pollute the higher the fee. When determining the
application fee, the applicant must determine the potential-to-emit of all regulated fee
pollutants and fugitive emissions. This procedure, along with increased application fees,
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generally. will mean higher application fees to the applicant. The Division believes these
increased fees are justified since the fee not only pays for the permit review process, but
includes mitial baseline inspections, performance testing review. EPA reporting and the
source’s annual emission fee until the next invoice cycle.

In addition to the emission-based fees, sources that must comply with federal
performance standards or major source review programs shall be required to pay an
additional fee depending on the federal program being reviewed. Federal programs
include new source performance standards, hazardous air pollutant standards, and federal
major source review programs such as, Prevention of Significant Deterioration, Non-
attainment Area Permitting and Acid Rain.

Fees to modify an existing permit will also be emission-based in determining if the
modification is a major or minor. Modifications that trigger a federal review program or
require an air toxic review will pay the additional federal program and air toxic review
fees, but only for the emission unit subject to the requirement.

Page §, line 3, paragraph 7,outlines an example of an emission-based fee with an
additional federal program review fee added.

At this time, staff would like to offer the following floor amendments. Backing up to
page 7, line 6. section 20.11.12, subsection A, delete the word “reserved” and add,
“Sources applying for a General Permit pursuant to 20.11.41 NMAC. Authority-to-
Construct, shall pay the applicable fee found in section 18 of this Part.”

The Division intends to amend 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct, to allow general
permits to be establish for specific source categories eliminating the need for case-by-
case air quality review, expediting the permit issuing process.

At the end of section 20.11.2.12, page 8, line 19, add subsection D as follows, “Qualified
small businesses shall pay one-half of the calculated case-by-case air quality review fees
prior to adding any federal review fees or state toxic review fees.” Qualified small
businesses working through the Division’s small business assistance program will only
pay half of the case-by-case air quality review calculated, prior to adding additional fees.
The small business would still be responsible for paying for any federal program and air
toxic review fees. This provision is not applicable to sources applying for a general
permit since the costs of the permit has already been reduced.

The Division estimates, under the proposed regulation and based on the average number
of permit applications received, to collect about $111,000 per year in application fees.
Under the current regulation we have invoiced $87,500 for the past year. The Division
estimates it costs approximately $252,000 per year to minimally fund a new source
review program. The remainder of the funding comes from annual emission fees, federal
grant money and City general funds.

Starting on page 8, line 22, section 20.11.2.13, Annual Emission Fees, Fee Calculations
and Procedures, describes the methods and procedures for invoicing and calculating
annual emission fees. All invoicing will be done by the City of Albuquerque with annual
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fees sent to the Department’s Finance Section for deposit. As required by law, all fees
will be deposited into City of Albuquerque, Permits Program Fund.

All annual emission fees will be determined based on the source’s potential-to-emit
taking in account any permits and SIP-approved regulatory limits. Sources with
registrations issued pursuant to 20.11.40 NMAC, Source Registration, will be reviewed
on a case-by-case basis. and if permitting is required, the Division will permit these
sources at no charge. The Division will be proposing to repeal 20.11.40 NMAC. Source
Registration, and establish a federally enforceable operating permit program for all
applicable sources. Staff will also be proposing several floor amendments to section 18
creating annual emission fees for specific source categories that currently have
Registrations in lieu of Authority-to-Construct Permits.

Annual emission fees will be used primarily to fund the compliance and inspection
activities required by the state Air Quality Control Act, the Joint Air Quality Control
Board Ordinances and Board regulations. In addition, the annual emission fees will also
fund the Small Business Assistance Program. Under the proposed regulation, the
Division estimates it will collect about $756,850 per year in annual emission fees. The
Division estimates it takes approximately $819,000 to minimally fund the inspection,
compliance and small business assistance activities within the Division. Funds from
annual emission fees will also be used for staff training, regulatory development and
federal emission inventory reporting and other activities required by section 502 of
federal Clean Air Act. Remainder of the funding comes from federal grant money and
City general funds.

One major change staff is proposing is to remove the provision in the current regulation
to allow sources to pay emission fees based on actual emissions. This provision is found
in section 11.2.4.F that reads. “An annual emissions inventory may be submitted for
reviews by the Department for the purpose of annual fee adjustments. This shall be
restricted to sources with established permit allowable emission rates or sources which
have submitted a timely permit application pursuant to Part 42, section 1.2.2.A.2. The
emissions inventories shall be submitted to the Department by no later than June 1, 1997,
and by April I each year thereafter, for review consideration for every year an adjustment
is sought. Within thirty (30) days of receipt the Department will bill the source for the
review pursuant to Table One of this Part. Any adjustments to the source’s permitted or
otherwise established emission fee shall be incorporated and adjusted and billed in
accordance with the billing schedule provisions of this Part.” While this provision
benefits sources with large allowable emissions, and on the surface appears to encourage
emission reductions, these sources still have the right to pollute at there permitted levels
at any time. The Division strongly supports emission reduction through permit and by
removing the ability for sources to pay on their actual emissions will encourage sources
to truly reduce their emission through federally enforceable permit conditions.

The Division received three written comments concerning the removal of the emission
inventory provision from the Department of Energy, General Mills and PNM. Both the
Department of Energy and General Mills believe that by removing the provision to pay
on actual emissions will create a disincentive for voluntary pollution reductions. General
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Mills, Staff Exhibit No. 6, stated in their letter, “that the proposed system of fees creates a
disicentive to minimize air emissions because...the fee is based on potential worst-case
activities, and effectively disallows pollution prevention activities from quickly
recovering cost savings associated with emission fee reduction.”

The Department of Energy will also testify the current provision encourages pollution
prevention.

The Department disagrees that removing the provision will discourage pollution
prevention, and is proposing in the fee structure a pollution prevention modification at no
charge to encourage sources to reduce their emissions through federally enforceable
pollution prevention techniques or processes. Pollution prevention means the reduction.
or other practices that reduce or eliminate the creation of pollutants, through increased
cfficiency in the use of raw materials, energy, water or other resources, or protection of
natural resources by conservation. Source reduction includes any practice which reduces
the amount of any hazardous substance or pollutant prior to recycling or treatment,
including equipment or technology modifications, process modifications, reformulation
or redesign of products, substitution of raw materials and improvement in housekeeping.
maintenance, training, and inventory control. Pollution prevention techniques or
practices do not include add-on air pollution controls used to limit air emissions or
emission reductions based on decreased production needs. PNM, in its letter, Staff
Exhibit No. 7, understands that emission fees can be reduced through permit modification
but chooses not to modify based on its business needs which is consistent with the
Division’s proposal that sources pay on what they are allowed to emit by permit.

Page 9, line 21, section 20.11.2.14, Filing and Inspection Fees for the Removal of
Regulated Asbestos Containing Material; Fee Calculations and Procedure, describes the
methods and procedures used to calculate filing and inspection fees for the removal of
regulated asbestos containing material. The section remains unchanged from the existing
requirements, however, as required by the general provisions of this Part, all fees must be
paid at the time of application. Currently the inspectors invoice the sources after the
notification is received increasing the administrative burden on the staff. By requiring
fees at the time of application, the inspector will be free of this administrative burden and
spend more time in the field conducting inspections.

The Division estimates it takes approximately $84,000 annually to minimally fund this
program, and expects to collect approximately $63,000 year in fees based on average
number of notifications received. Remainder of the funding comes from federal grant
money and City general funds.

Page 11, line 8, section 20.11.2.15, Filing and Inspection Fees for Surface Disturbance
Permits; Fee Calculations and Procedures, describes the methods and procedures in
calculating filing and inspection fees for Surface Disturbance Permits issued pursuant to
20.11.20 NMAC, Airborne Particulate Matter. Currently, the Division does not charge
for these permits and is proposing to charge a per acre fee to cover the program costs of
two inspectors. The dust control program is an import part of our Particulate Matter SIP
and must be adequately funded. For 1999 and the first quarter of 2000, monitors in
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Bernalillo County exceeded the annual National Ambient Air Quality Standard for
Particulate Matter. IUs vital we not continue this trend and the Division 1s aggressively
addressing problem areas. such as dust control. in an effort to avoid non-attainment
status. The fees for Surface Disturbance Permits not only funds the dust control program.

but hopefully will encourage businesses to disturb only the acreage necessary for their
project.

The Division received one comment letter from Sandia Properties Limited concerning the
proposed fee and will address the comment later in my testimony.

Page 11, line 19, section 20.11.2.16, Fee Errors, Corrections and Refunds, describes the
procedures to be taken to correct fee errors, make corrections or request refunds. As
stated in the general provisions of this Part, the Director may deduct a reasonable
professional service fee to cover the costs of staff time in processing a permit or request.

Page 12, line 19, section 20.1 1.2.17, Failure to Pay, establishes the violation for sources
failing to pay any fee required by this Part, and the procedures to be used to calculate any
penalty and interest due consistent with the provision section 502(b)(3)(C)(11) of the
federal Clean Air Act.

Starting on Page 13, line 5 continuing to end of the regulations is the proposed fee
schedule. The fee schedule was combined into one section for the convenience of the
reader and to simplify future amendments to the fee schedule.

The first subsection addresses annual emission fees. The Division is not proposing to
change the fee pollutant rates for non-hazardous or hazardous air pollutants and will
remain at $31.00 and $250.00 per ton, respectively. The current federal presumptive fee
rate for major sources is $34.87 per ton.

The Division is proposing to raise the minimum annual fee from $100.00 to $150.00.
Sources will be required to pay $150.00 or $31.00 per ton whichever is greater, unless
otherwise stated. Upon further review of the regulation, staff recommends the following
floor amendments. Starting page 13, line 10, add the phrase “unless otherwise listed”.
Starting on line 14, add a new paragraph 4, “(4) Annual Emission Fees for Specific
Source Categories,” then list the following:
“(a) Auto Body Repair and Painting:

(i) One Spray Booth: No Charge

(i1) Two or More Spray Booths: $150.00
(b) Chromium Electroplating: $150.00

(c) Degreasers Using Organic Solvents
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(1) Non-halogenated solvents- using less than 2,200 gallons of any one solvent-
contamning material, and 5,400 gallons of any combination of solvent-containing
materials: $150.00

(11) Halogenated solvents- using less than1.200 gallons of any one solvent-
containing material, and 2,900 gallons of any combination of solvent-containing
matertals: $150.00
(d) Dry Cleaners (Non-Major): $150.00
(e) Emergency Generators: $150.00

() Gasoline Service and Fleet Stations: $250.00 or $31.00 ton, which ever is greater

(g) Natural gas or distillate fueled fired boiler less than 10 million BTU used exclusively
for residential, commercial or institutional heating and hot water: No Charge

h) Printing. Publishing and Packaging Operations:

(1) Sheetfed (nonheatset) Offset Lithography using less than 7,125 gallons of
cleaning solvent and fountain solution additives: $150.00

(i1) Nonheatset Web Offset Lithography using less than 7,125 gallons of solvent
and fountain solution additive: $150.00

(111) Heatset Web Offset Lithography using less than 50,000 pounds of ink,
cleaning solvent, and fountain solution additives: $150.00

(1v) Screen Printing using less than 7,125 gallons of total solvent used including
solvent based inks, cleaning solvent, adhesives and coatings: $150.00

(v) Flexography (Water-based or UV-cured inks, Coatings and Adhesives) using
less than 200,000 pounds total of inks, coatings and adhesives: $150.00

(i) Soil or Water Remediation Operations: $150.00
(j) Stationary Sources with De Minimis Emissions: No Charge”

It is the intent of the Division to use this list of specific source categories for non-major
sources when determining source applicability and ensure fair fee assessment.

The next two subsections of section 18 establishes the fee schedule for an initial air
quality review to obtain a construction permit from the Division.

On page 14, line 17 the Division initially wanted to reserve this subsection for minor
source general permits in lieu of a case-by-case air quality review for new sources. Upon
further review, the Division proposes to add the following fees for general permit review
to avoid having to open this regulation again for public hearing.
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On page 14, starting on line 17, strike the word “reserved” and add the following
paragraphs:

“(1) Auto Body Repair and Painting: $500.00

(2) Dry Cleaners (Non-Major): $500.00

(3) Emergency Generators: $500.00

(4) Genenc Coating and Abrasive Operations: $500.00

(5) Other Fueling Facilities Receiving Fuel by Truck or Rail (Non-NSPS): $1000.00
(6) Non-NSPS Boilers: $500.00

(7) Printing and Packaging Operations: $500.00

(8) Retail and Fleet Gasoline Service Stations: $500.00

(9) Soil/Water Remediation Systems: $1000.00”

On page 15. starting on line 2 are the proposed case-by-case air quality review fees for
new sources. This is an emission-based fee schedule were fees increase as the source’s
potential-to-emit increases, and will be based on the source’s potential-to-emit all fee
pollutants. including quantifiable fugitive emission. The fee not only covers the cost of
permit review, but also includes costs for construction and baseline inspections.
compliance test reviews and the source’s annual emissions fee until the next billing
period. For those sources with potentially low emissions of toxic or hazardous air
pollutants. an additional air toxic review fee will be required which will offset the costs
of these more complicated permits.

The fees proposed are substantially higher than the current fee schedule. Currently. a
source with pre-controlled emission less 100 tons would pay only $500.00. That covers
about 7 staff hours, assuming $75.00 per staff hour. The proposed fee schedule would
require sources to pay up to $5000.00 which offset up to 67 staff hours; assuming 40
hours for permit review and processing, 8 hours air quality modeling review, with the
remaining fee covering construction and baseline inspections, compliance testing, and
annual emission fees for the source until the next billing period.

In addition to the emission-based air quality review fee, any source that must comply
with any federally required performance standards or control technologies will be
assessed an additional review fee to cover the cost of implanting the federal program.
These federal review fees are found on page 15, starting on line 13, section D. The most
common federal program reviewed are the new source performance standards, or NSPS,
found in 40 CFR 60; which would add $1000.00 to the initial air quality review fee. Asa
rule. NSPS requires additional recordkeeping, reporting and compliance testing for the
source and the Division.
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On page 15. line 23, section E, establishes the fee schedule for permit modifications. The
Division intends to revise 20.11.41 NMAC, Authority-to-Construct, to establish
modification criteria for pollution prevention modifications, minor or flexible permit
modifications and major modifications. Generally speaking, major modifications will be
those modifications that significantly increase a source’s potential-to-emit requiring more
extensive permit review and processing, modeling, and inspection and compliance
activities. As with the case-by-case air quality review, any modification that must
comply with a federal program requirement will be charged an additional federal program
review fee.

On page 16. line 2, the Division proposes a Portable Source Relocation Fee to cover the
costs of permit review and modeling at the different locations a portable source may
relocate.

When establishing the case-by-case air quality review fees we did not compare our fee
structure to other jurisdictions because the emission-based fee schedule fit our needs. It
is also very difficult to compare permit fees with other jurisdictions. The State of New
Mexico. for example, is currently revising their fee structure to an effort-based fee
schedule, that is, the more emission units a source proposes, the higher the permit fee. In
addition, the State charges fees for sources that must comply with federal requirements
along with an air quality modeling fee, toxic air pollutant review fee and a nonrefundable
filing fee. On reviewing the State’s proposed regulation, and based on some sample
calculations on recent permits issued by our Department, we believe our fee schedule is
comparable to the State’s proposal. However, I believe its more telling to compare our
proposed fee structure with other metropolitan area in the Southwest. For this purpose I
picked Maricopa County, Arizona, which includes Phoenix, and Clark County, Nevada,
which includes Las Vegas.

Staff Exhibit 13 outlines the different fee approaches and compares tonight’s proposal
with the State of New Mexico, Clark County and Maricopa County. Since each
jurisdiction has developed a fee program that fits its individual needs, it is difficult to
make a direct comparison. I believe, however, the comparison does show that
Albuquerque’s new source review fees are reasonable even considering the increases
being discussed.

Page 16, line 4, subsection H, establishes a $100 per acre fee for Surface Disturbance
Permits. The purpose of this fee to cover the costs of administering and enforcing the
provisions of 20.11.20 NMAC, Airborne Particulate Matter. As previously discussed,
Albuquerque has exceeded the annual National Ambient Air Quality Standard for
Particulate Matter in 1999 with high levels continuing into the year 2000. Albuquerque
must act now to control dust generated by land disturbance to avoid federal action.
Managing the dust control program takes a minimum of two full-time positions to
process permits, conduct on-site inspections, respond to complaints and perform the other
administrative matters related to the program. Again, I compared our proposed dust
control program fees with those of Clark and Maricopa Counties, Staff Exhibit No. 14.
Our proposed fee of $100 per acre is less than Clark County’s fee but more than
Maricopa County’s fee, however, Maricopa County’s fee is annual fee. The Annual
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Block Permit required by Maricopa County is available for organizations that perform
routine maintenance on utilities, paved and unpaved roads, road shoulders. alleys and
public right-of-ways at non-contiguous sites.

We have received one comment concerning our proposed fees from Sandia Properties
Limited. Staff Exhibit No. 9, regarding master planned projects, such as Ventana Ranch,
which encompassed approximately 900 acres. When applying our proposed fee the
developer would be required to pay $90,000, or approximately $30.00 per house
assuming 3 houses per acre in addition to fees already paid to the City for project
approval.

Looking at other jurisdictions, this same project would cost at least $32,510 or more in
Maricopa County. since permits must be renewed annually, and $98,100 in Clark County.
Staff believes that the proposed fee $100 per acre is reasonable and expects to generate
approximately $80.000 in revenue per year based on the average number of acres
disturbed per vear.

The Asbestos Unit fee found on Page 16, line 5, subsection 1, will remain the same.

Page 16. starting on line 6, section J, establishes miscellaneous administrative fees the
Division will charge. The $75 per hour Professional Service Fee was established
assuming an average employee salary, plus benefits and overhead. Maricopa County’s
professional service fee is $70 per hour and staff believes the proposed fee is reasonable.

The fees established for photocopying and regulation books are consistent with
Department policy.

The public records research fee has been established to cover the direct staff costs of
complving with information requests concerning permits, enforcement actions and
complaints.

Mr. Hearing Officer this concludes my testimony and wish to end by quoting Miguel De
Cervantes from his classic Don Quixote by saying, “that what costs little is valued less.”

12
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Proposed Amendments to 12/13/00 Draft
Strikeout — Material Deleted

Double Underline — Material Added
[Comments] - Comments

Pollutants for Stationary Sources, also shall pay the applicable federal program review fees found listed in

section 18 of this Part.

(7) Example: A company proposes to build a facility with a NSPS boiler with a potential-to-
emit of greater than 100 tons per year of NOx. From the fee schedule found in section 18 of this Part, the
company will be required to pay an initial air quality review fee of $5,000.00 with an addition federal
program review fee of $1,000.00 for the NSPS boiler, for a total fee of $6,000.00. The review fee shall be
submitted at the time of application in accordance with the procedures found in section 11, paragraph E of
this Part.

(8) Sources submitting an application for the removal of regulated asbestos containing
material pursuant to 20.11.64 NMAC shall comply with the provisions of section 14 of this Part.

C. Permit Modifications:

(1) Atthe time of application, any source proposing to modify an existing air quality permit
shall pay the applicable fee found in section 18 of this Part.

(2)  Any proposed modifications to an existing air quality permit that must comply with the
provisions of 20.11.60 NMAC, Permitting in Non-Attainment, 20.11.61 NMAC, Areas Prevention of
Significant Deterioration, 20.11.62 NMAC, Acid Rain, 20.11.63 NMAC, New Source Performance
Standards for Stationary Sources, or 20.11.64 NMAC, Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for

Stationary Sources, shall, in addition, pay the applicable federal review fee, but only with respect to the

individual emission unit subject to the requirement..

20.11.2.13 ANNUAL EMISSION FEES; FEE CALCULATIONS AND PROCEDURES

By June 1 of each year;-based-on-the-Department’srecords; the Department shall send each owner/operator
a letter stating the fee amount owed-by-the-ownerloperator. The owner/operator has 45 days from
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